TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING
May 26, 2016 — 1:30 o’clock p.m.
Classroom 6 - Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
Open Session — Assembly Rooms 1, 2, 3
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

The Board may take action on any of the items listed
below, unless the item is specifically labeled
“Informational Only”

Time
Agenda ltem Allotted Requestor

1 | Call to Order 3 min. Standard
2 _| Approval of agenda
3 | Public Comments — Announcement 3 min. Standard

Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on

the Closed Session portion of the Agenda. Per Board Policy 14-018,

members of the public may have three minutes, individually, to address the

Board of Directors.
4 | Oral Announcement of ltems to be Discussed During Closed Session

(Authority: Government Code Section 54957.7)
5 | Motion to go into Closed Session
6 | Closed Session 2 Hours

a. Hearings on Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit or
Quality Assurance Commiittees
(Authority: Health & Safety Code, Section 32155)

b. Reports Involving Trade Secrets
(Authority: Health and Safety Code, Section 32106)
Discussion Will Concern: Proposed new service or program
Date of Disclosure: June 30, 2016

c. Reports Involving Trade Secrets
(Authority: Health and Safety Code, Section 32106)
Discussion Will Concern: Proposed new service or program
Date of Disclosure: October 31, 2016

d. Reports Involving Trade Secrets
(Authority: Health and Safety Code, Section 32106)
Discussion Will Concern: Proposed new service or program
Date of Disclosure: October 31, 2016

e. Reports Involving Trade Secrets: New Facilities; Conference with Real
Property Negotiators
(Authority: Health and Safety Code, Section 321086,
Gov Code Section 54956.8)
Property: 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056
Agency Negotiator: Steve Dietlin
Negotiating Parties: Tri-City Healthcare District and City of Oceanside
Under Negotiation: Development program
Date of disclosure: September, 2016

Note: Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the members of Tri-City Healthcare District regarding any item on this
Agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Administration Department located at 4002 Vista Way,
Oceanside, CA 92056 during normal business hours.

Note: If you have a disability, please notify us at 760-940-3347 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting
so that we may provide reasonable accommodations.



Agenda ltem

Time
Allotted

Requestor

g. Public Employee Evaluation: Chief Executive Officer
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54957)

h. Conference with Legal Counsel — Potential Litigation
(Authority Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (5 Matters)

i. Approval of prior Closed Session Minutes

j. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation
(Authority Government Code Section 54956.9(d)1, (d)4

(1) Tri-City Healthcare District vs. Michael Vu, et al.
Case No. 37-2016-00003989-CU-WM-NC

(2) TCHD vs. National Union Insurance
Case No. 16-CV-60382-JLS-JLB

(3) TCHD vs. Burlew
Case No. 37-2014-00034015-CU-NP-NC

(4) TCHD vs. Paul Mazur, M.D., and DOES 1-50
Case No. 37-2016 00002803-CU-O-NC

(5) Steven D. Stein v. Tri-City Healthcare District
Case No. 12-¢cv-02524BTM BGS

(6) Medical Acquisitions Company vs. TCHD
Case No: 2014-00009108

(7) TCHD vs. Medical Acquisitions Company
Case No: 2014-00022523

Motion to go into Open Session

Open Session

Open Session — Assembly Room 3 — Eugene L. Geil Pavilion (Lower
Level) and Facilities Conference Room — 3:30 p.m.

Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54957.1)

10

Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance

3 min.

Standard

11

Public Comments — Announcement

Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Board Agenda at the time the item is being considered by the Board of
Directors. Per Board Policy 14-018, members of the public may have three
minutes, individually, to address the Board of Directors.

NOTE: Members of the public may speak on any item not listed on the
Board Agenda, which falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors,
immediately prior to Board Communications.

2 min.

Standard

12

Special Presentations:
(1) Recognition of Nurses of the Year

a) Imelda Browning, RN — Inpatient Services
b) Luke Galindo, Patient Care Support Staff

15 min.

Chair/CNE

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -2-

May 26, 2016




Time

Agenda Item Aliotted | Requestor
13 | Introduction:
Sharona Ben-Haim, M.D., Neurologist 10 min. W. Knight
14 | Community Update - 15 min. Chair
GE 512 CT Scanner — Dr. Donald Ponec and Mr. Steve Young, Senior
Director of Ancillary Services
15 | Report from TCHD Foundation 5 min. Standard
16 | Report from Chief Executive Officer 10 min. | Standard
17 | Report from Acting Chief Financial Officer 10 min. | Standard
18 | New Business
a. Consideration to approve FY2016-2017 Community Healthcare Grant 20 min. | Director
Awards Nygaard
b. Consideration to appoint Ms. Sandy Tucker, Senior Commission 5 min. CHAC
Nominee for the City of Oceanside to a two-year term on the Community
Healthcare & Alliance Committee
c. Consideration to appoint Ms. Mary Donovan, Vista Mayoral 5 min. CHAC
Recommendation to a two-year term on the Community Healthcare &
Alliance Committee
d. Consideration to appoint Mr. Dung Ngo, Multicultural Representative to a 5 min. CHAC
two-year term on the Community Healthcare & Alliance Committee
e. Consideration to appoint Mr. Ted Owen, District of Carlsbad Chamber 5 min. CHAC
Representative to a two-year term on the Community Healthcare &
Alliance Committee
f. Consideration to appoint Ms. Mary Murphy, District of Carlsbad Police & 5 min. CHAC
Fire representative to a two-year term on the Community Healthcare &
Alliance Committee
19 | Old Business
Ad Hoc.
a. Report from Ad Hoc Committee on electronic Board Portal 5 min. Comm.
20 | Chief of Staff 5 min. Standard
a. Consideration of May 2016 Credentialing Actions Involving the
Medical Staff and Allied Health Professionals — New Appointments Only
b. Medical Staff and Allied Health Credentials for May 2016 —
Reappointments
21 | Consideration of Consent Calendar 5 min. Standard
(1) Board Committees
(1) All Committee Chairs will make an oral report to the Board
regarding items being recommended if listed as New
Business or pulled from Consent Calendar.
(2 ) All items listed were recommended by the Committee.
(3) Requested items to be pulled require a second.
A. Human Resources Committee HR Comm.
Director Kellett, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 0
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes)
TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -3- May 26, 2016




Time
Agenda Item Allotted | Requestor

1) Approval of intent to send out a Request for Proposal (RFP)
for Record Keeping Services for Defined Contribution Plans

and 457(b) Plans
B. Employee Fiduciary Retirement Subcommittee
Director Kellett, Subcommittee Chair Emp. Fid.
Open Community Sears — 0 Subcomm.

Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes)

C. Community Healthcare Alliance Committee CHAC Comm.
Director Nygaard, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 0
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes)

D. Finance, Operations & Planning Committee FO&P Comm.
Director Dagostino, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 0
{Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes)

1) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Hamid Movahhedian as
the NICU Medical Director, as weli as provide oversight for the
Newborn Nursery and High Risk Infant Follow-up Clinic for a
term of 36 months, beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30,
2019, at an annual cost not to exceed $71,520, and a total
cost for the term not to exceed $214,560.

2) Approval of an agreement with North County Neonatology
Specialists to provide NICU and unassigned delivery coverage
for a term of 36 months, beginning July 1, 2016 and ending
June 30, 2019, at an annual cost not to exceed $91,200 and a
total cost for the term not to exceed $273,600.

3) Approval of an agreement with Trane for replacement of an
ice chilter compressor for a maximum total cost of $55,753.

4) Approval of an agreement with Craneware for a term of 60
months, beginning May 25, 2016 through May 24, 2021 for an
annual cost for year 1 of $69,175; year 2 $73,109; year 3
$75,659; year 4 $78,209; and year 5 $80,759 for a total cost
for the term not to exceed $376,911.

5) Approval of an agreement with Cardiology General
physicians Drs. Oscar Matthews, Mohammed Pashmforoush
and Paul Sarkaria as the Cardiology General ED Call
Coverage Physicians for a term of 12 months, beginning July
1, 2016 through June 30, 2017, at a daily rate of $200, for a
total annual and term cost of $73,800 for FY2017.

6) Approval of an agreement with Cardiology-General & STEMI
physicians Drs. Kenneth Carr, Karim El-Sherief and David
Spiegel as the Cardiology-General ED Call Coverage
Physicians for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2016

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -4- May 26, 2016




Time
Agenda Item Allotted | Requestor

through June 30, 2017 at a daily rate of $200-General at an
annual cost of $73,600, $600 for STEMI, at an annual cost of
$219,000 for a total annual and term cost of $292,000 for
FY2017.

7) Approval of an agreement with Cardiothoracic Surgery
physicians Drs. Theodore Folkerth and Frederick Howden as
the Cardiothoracic Surgery ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a
term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June
30, 2017, at a daily rate of $375 for an annual and term cost of
$136,875 for Cardiac, and a daily rate of $375 daily for an
annual and term cost of $136,875 for Thoracic, for a total
annual and term cost of $273,750 for FY 2017.

8) Approval of an agreement with ENT physicians Drs. Julie
Berry, Audrey Calzada, Herman Goldstein, Robert Jacobs,
Marc Lebovits, Ritvik Mehta, Bruce Reisman and Ashish
Wadhwa, as the ENT ED-Call Coverage physicians for a term
of 24 months beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2018 at
a daily rate of $450 Monday-Thursday and $550 Friday-
Sunday, for an annual cost of $179,950 for FY2017 and
$19,950 for FY2018, for a total term cost of $359,900.

9) Approval of an agreement with General Surgery physicians,
Drs. Andrew Deemer, Adam Fierer, Dhruvil Gandhi, Karen
Hanna, Mohammed Jamshidi-Nezhad, Eric Rypins and
Katayoun Toosie as the General Surgery ED-Call Coverage
Physicians for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2016
through June 30, 2018 at a daily rate of $1,400 for an annual
cost of $511,000 and a total cost for the term of $1,022,000;
reimbursement of $725 per case for unfunded
cholecystectomy cases at an expected total cost for the term
of $52,200.

10) Approval of an agreement Interventional Radiology
Physicians Drs. Michael Burke, Brian Goelitz, Justin Gooding,
Michael Noud, Donald Ponec and Richard Saxon as the
Interventional Radiology ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a
term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30,
2017 at a daily rate of $600 for an annual and term cost of
$219,000 for FY2017.

11) Approval of an agreement with OB/GYN physicians Dr.
Tannaz Ebrahimi-Adib as an OB/GYN ED Call Coverage
Physician for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2016
through June 30, 2018 at a daily rate of $800 (weekday) and
$1,000 (weekend/holiday) for an annual cost of $313,800 for
FY2017 and $314,400 for FY2018 for a total term cost of
$628,200.

12) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Brian Mudd, as the
Oral/Max Surgery ED Call Coverage Physician for a term of 12
months, beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 at a
daily rate of $350, for an annual and term cost of $127,750 for
FY2017.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -5- May 26, 2016




Time
Agenda ltem Allotted | Requestor

13) Approval of an agreement with Urology physicians Drs.
Bradley Frasier, Michael Guerena, Jason Phillips, Caroline
Vilchis (Colangelo), Arthur Warshawsky, as the Urology ED
Call Coverage physicians for a term of 12 months, beginning
July 1, 2016 through June 30,2017 at a daily rate of $350 for
an annual and term cost of $127,750 for FY2017.

14) Approval of an agreement with Vascular physicians Drs.
Andrew Deemer, Mohammed Jamshidi-Nezhad as the
Vascular Surgery ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a term of
36 months, beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019 at a
daily rate of $650, for an annua!l cost of $237,250 and a total
cost for the term of $711,750.

15) Approval of an agreement with Registry vendors, with
flexibility to add or delete Agencies, for supplemental staffing
for nursing and Allied Health for a term of three years,
beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019, for an annual
cost not to exceed $5.5m and a total cost for the term of
$16.5m.

16) Approval of an agreement with Dr. Sharon Slowik for the
provision of Laser and Aesthetic services for a 13 month term,
beginning June 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017, at an amount
not to exceed 40% of gross collections.

17) Approval of an agreement with Brainlab, Inc. for the
purchase of capital equipment item Brainlab “Curve” Mobil
Navigation System (Cranial and ENT with microscope
integration) for a one-time total purchase and installation cost
not to exceed $367,019.

E. Professional Affairs Committee PAC
Director Mitchell, Committee Chair
(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for
informational purposes.)

1) Approval of Patient Care Services Policies
1. Collection of a Blood Specimen by Skin Puncture
Procedure
. Consent for Minors Policy
. Nitrazine Test on Vaginal Fluid Procedure
. Siemens Rapidpoint 405 Procedure
. Urine Chemistry Using a Urine Dipstick, Measuring
Procedure
. Urine Dipstick Analysis Using Siemens Clintek Status +
Connect Procedure
7. Witnessing a Patient Signature on Patient’'s Personal
Documents 8610-341

g wWN

»

2) Administrative Policies and Procedures
1. Fax Waiver 635
2. Library Services Mission and Scope of Service 287

3) Unit Specific

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -6- May 26, 2016




Agenda ltem

Time
Allotted

Requestor

Infection Control
1. Surveillance Program I1C2

Medical Staff

1. Supervision of Resident in Emergency Medicine 8710-

571

NICU
1. Bathing, Newborn Infant

2. Chest Tube, Care of Infants with Pneumothorax

3. Dietitian, Role in the NICU
4. Measuring Infant Length in the NICU

Women and Newborn Services
1. Amniocentesis

4) Approval of Clinical Contracts

F. Governance & Legislative Committee
Director Dagostino, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats - 0

(No meeting held in May, 2016)

G. Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee
Director Finnila, Committee Chair
Open Community Seats — 0

(Committee minutes included in Board Agenda packets for

informational purposes.)

1) Approval of Policies & Procedures:

a. 8610-523 — Use and Disclosure of Information Regarding

Media

b. 8750-569 — Referral Source Policies; Contractual
Arrangement with Physicians and Other Referral Sources

2) Approval of Non-Clinical Contracts as reflected on Spread

Sheet
(2) Minutes — Approval of:
a) Regular Board of Directors Meeting — April 28, 2016
b) Special Board of Directors Meeting — May 11, 2016
(3) Meetings and Conferences - None

(4) Dues and Memberships - none

Gov. & Leg.
Comm.

Audit, Comp.
& Ethics
Comm.

Standard

Standard

22

Discussion of ltems Pulled from Consent Agenda

10 min.

Standard

23

Reports (Discussion by exception only)
(a) Dashboard - Included
(b) Construction Report — None
(c) Lease Report — (April, 2016)
(d) Reimbursement Disclosure Report — (April, 2016)
(e) Seminar/Conference Reports -
1) _ACHD Annual Meeting— Directors Mitchell/Nygaard

0-5 min.

Standard

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -7-

May 26, 2016




Time

Agenda Item Allotted | Requestor
2) AHA Annual Meeting — Chairman Dagostino

24 | Legislative Update 5 min. Standard

25 | Comments by Members of the Public 5-10 Standard
NOTE: Per Board Policy 14-018, members of the public may have three (3) minutes
minutes, individually, to address the Board

26 | Additional Comments by Chief Executive Officer 5 min. | Standard

27 | Board Communications (three minutes per Board member) 18 min. | Standard

28 | Report from Chairperson 3 min. Standard
Total Time Budgeted for Open Session 3 hrs.

29

Oral Announcement of ltems to be Discussed During Closed Session
(If Needed)

30 | Motion to Return to Closed Session (If Needed)
31 | Open Session
32 | Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session
(Authority: Government Code, Section 54957.1) — (If Needed)
33 | Adjournment
TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -8- May 26, 2016




CHAC REPORT ON GRANT RECOMMENDATIONS

This year we had a total of 34 applications requesting just under ONE MILLION DOLLARS in
assistance! As always, it is challenging to read through the needed programs and do our best to
determine the greatest need. All of these organizations are worthy and deserving but $300,000
just goes so far. We are pleased to recommend the following organizations for funding:

1. Boys and Girls Club of Vista

Requesting: $10,000 Recommending: $5,000

PROGRAM: Requesting funds to expand PROJECT FUN (Fitness, Understanding and Fun) at its
main site, four middle schools and sports extension sites as well as the new Raintree Park
Learning Center located in Townsite in the very high needs area of Vista.

The need to increase physical fitness in youth is ongoing and hopefully will reduce obesity and
lifelong medical problems as the youth grow older. Many of the club members cannot afford

sports or travel teams and this is a viable and needed alternative. We have previously funded
this program.

2. Casa de Amparo

Requesting: $10,000 Recommending: $10,000

PROGRAM: Requesting funds to support the Residential Services Medical Program that
provides ongoing health care and mental health support for foster youth in their care. They
rely on many sources to aid in funding the residential salaries for nurses, therapists and mental
health workers to name a few, so assisting shows the District’s support of their work.

3. Community Resource Center

Requesting: $25,000 Recommending: $15,000

PROGRAM: Requesting funds will support the onsite Therapeutic Children’s Center with counseling staff
and also will assist with the funding of a Case Manager. The Center’s domestic violence counseling
services meet the psychological and emotional needs of both adults and children exposed to domestic
violence.



4. Fraternity House, Inc.

Requesting: $30,500 Recommending: $15,000

PROGRAM: Requesting funds to support the program at Michaelle House located in Vista. This house
serves very low income and homeless men and women living with HIV/AIDS and additional chronic
illnesses, symptoms and side effects. The panel recommends funding the part-time position of MEND
Manager (Mental Health, Education, Nutrition and Health Direction) at a cost of $15,000 as this was the
most important and needed part of their project budget. We have previously funded this program.

5. Interfaith Community Services

Requesting: $25,000 Recommending: $15,000

PROGRAM: Requesting funds to assist with the Transitional Youth Academy which empowers
low-income and at risk students to achieve their academic and career goals. Funds will go to
help fund a part-time case manager who is an LMFT to provide counseling and mental health
services to at risk high school students.

6. KOCT
Requesting: $15,000 Recommending: $15,000

PROGRAM: Requesting funds continuing to address the need for mental health services of the
healthcare district. They will be producing three videos that will focus on the areas of mental
health and access to healthcare. They will inform the residents regarding the different levels of
care, types of practitioners, facilities and locations in the community. They will further examine
various levels of mental health services, target populations, and medical diagnoses. We have
previously funded aspects of this program.

7. Mama’s Kitchen

Requesting: $15,000 Recommending: $ 15,000

PROGRAM: Requesting funds to address the need for medically-tailored meal delivery service for
critically ill residents of the TCHD. To qualify for their program (which is free of charge), individuals must
be physically and/or mentally unable to prepare meals due to HIV/AIDS or cancer and must also be
referred by a case manager or healthcare professional. Mama’s Kitchen is the only program that
provides 100% nutrition, offers multiple restricted diet meal plans, and feeds client’s dependent
children at NO cost. This program ensures that residents battling critical ilinesses avoid malnutrition,
can fully access health care, and experience improved health outcomes.

10



8. Miracle Babies

Requesting: $32,363 Recommending: $12,500

PROGRAM: Requesting funds to partner with the Vista Community Clinic REACH program to
provide education and guidance to middle and high school students about the importance of
healthy lifestyles — including the importance of physical activity, nutrition, obesity prevention
and diabetes. The program ensures that pre-teens and teens are empowered to optimize their
health before having children. This grant will cover the cost of a program coordinator at 15
hours a week for a year along with a modest fee for guest speakers to augment the program.

9. NAM! (National Alliance on Mental lliness) North County San Diego County

Requesting: $3,237 Recommending: $5,000

PROGRAM: Requesting funds to support the “In Our Own Voice” program which helps to reduce the
stigma of mental illness through education and support from those with lived experience facing the
challenges of living with a brain disorder. IOV is a powerful anti-stigma program demonstrating to both
family members and peers that recovery is possible. Presentations are made to businesses, schools,
faith centers, social services and community groups. The grant will assist with the costs of scheduling
these presentations, very modest stipends to the presenters, mileage, and supplies.

10. North County Health Services

Requesting: $30,000 Recommending: 25,000

PROGRAM: Requesting .125 FTE of the full salaries needed for two clinical psychologists/social
workers who will be trained and will in turn provide at least 5000 hours of mental health
services. As with so many of the requests and organizations, we are acutely aware of the need
for more behavioral health services.

11



11. North County LGBTQ (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Questioning) Resource
Center

Requesting: $14,400 Recommending: $14,400

PROGRAM: Requesting funds to continue to provide enhanced mental health services and
address the increased risk of suicide and substance abuse that affects this community with such
high statistics. Their counseling and mental health program is the only one in existence in
North San Diego County. We have previously funded this program.

12. North County Lifeline

Requesting: $17,807 Recommending: $17,000

PROGRAM: Requesting funds to expand their efforts to facilitate early identification of youth with more
serious mental health needs. Funding will cover a PT mental health counselor to administer and discuss
ACE results. These results will lend further guidance in case planning and help ensure that you with the
potential to develop more serious mental health issues do not fall through the cracks.

13. Operation HOPE

Requesting: $21,500 Recommending: $21,500

PROGRAM: Requesting funds for a part time counselor who will provide children’s group counseling as
well as individual counseling for adults. They have recently expanded their program to provide year
round shelter and the provide a client-centered, holistic approach to getting clients back to
independence. We have previously funded aspects of this program.

14. Pacific Cancer Fitness

Requesting: $70,000 Recommending: $15,000

PROGRAM: Requesting funds for a lifestyle management system that delivers a variety of
services for the cancer patient and the family — for example transportation, education, nutrition
information, exercise programs etc. They call this “Cancer Concierge”. They believe that it is
important to go beyond the limitations of the medical piece of the puzzle and provide helping
hands to maintain and improve behavioral health for the patient and family members.

12



15. Palomar Family Counseling Services, Inc.

Requesting: $23,098 Recommending: $23,100

PROGRAM: Requesting funds to administer a program called Incredible Years at Foussat Elementary
School, , transitional Kindergarten through third grade. The children at Foussat are primarily
economically disadvantaged and are at risk for mental health issues. By screening this age group and
delivering universal social-emotional supports, these children and their teachers all learn the same
concepts and language which can be reinforced between lessons. This program also provides
workshops for the parents and supports family wellness by linking parents to the school, healthcare and
community resources as well as offering health education. The program will be administered in both
English and Spanish.

16. The Brother Benno Foundation, Inc

Requesting: $15,000 Recommending: $7,500

PROGRAM: Requesting funds to provide emergency food assistance and emergency shelter
assistance. In recommending that the $7500 go directly to the emergency shelter problem
which has a greater need and will provide rental assistance and utility/emergency motel
vouchers to the disabled, seniors, men, women and families under severe stress and who show
signs of mental iliness, providing them a safe place and thus redirecting them away from the
emergency room when not necessary.

17. The Elizabeth Hospice Foundation

Requesting: $27,496 Recommending: $10,000

PROGRAM: Requesting funds specifically to support Grief and Loss Counseling services at the
regional office in Carlsbad. Although they are asking for funds to be distributed across
budgetary line items, we are recommending that the $10,000 only be spent on the most critical
areas of service —the Children’s Program Manager, staff counselors, Cuddle Bear supplies (that
go to volunteers who make keepsake bears for children, and Camp Erin San Diego, which is a
three-day grief camp — Money to be used only for Tri-City district residents.

13



18. Vista Community Clinic

Requesting: $45,000 Recommending: $34,000

PROGRAM: Requesting funds to enhance its efforts in Primary Care/Behavioral Health through
the development of a Behavioral Health Services Manager. Through this position, VCC will
promote improved access to behavioral health and substance use treatment resources and
management of that care and improve retention of BH patients.

The recommended amount is 40% of the full time position as requested.

19. Women’s Resource Center

Requesting: $21, 306 Recommending: $15,000

PROGRAM: Requesting funds to address the trauma that domestic violence caused for the
children in our community who witness this brutality in their homes. The funds will help
preserve the Mental Health Counseling Program which offers counseling 24 hours a week for
the children in transitional housing. This is a program we have previously funded.

14



JUDY RITTER

MAYOR

March 2, 2016

Julie Nygaard, Board Member
Tri-City Medical Center

2095 W. Vista Way, Suite 214
Vista, CA 92083

Dear Ms. Nygaard,

| highly recommend Ms. Mary Donovan for your consideration for the Community
Health Care Alliance Committee.

Sincerely,

-

Lot~

Ritte
or

200 Civic Center Drive, Vista, California 92084-6275 1 P: (760) 639-6130 | F: (760) 6396132 | E: jritter@citynfvista.com | cityofvista.com

15



March 23, 2016

Re: Dung M Ngo
Wells Fargo Bank
Business Relationship Manager

To: Susan McDowell

I would like to express my interest in becoming a member of Tri-City Medical Center. Let me tellyou a
little bit about my background. I’'m an alumnus of University of California Riverside, majoring in
Psychology, with a minor focus in the medical field. | was once going to be a medical doctor, but wasn't
too smart to be one and had to change my major. | always have the ambition of helping people. Now
'm a business relationship manager working for Wells Fargo for over 20 years. 1 think | sort of do,
helping people with their financials. Some of the things that | helped my business clients with are-
underwriting line/loan, commercial building refi/purchase, business cash flow analysis, complex treasury
management services, insurance, merchant services, and payroll.

I know that I'm going to be a good fit since I'm bilingual, speak Vietnamese. | enjoy working and helping
people out, whether it's in the medical related field, which | like, or in the financial sector. | was a
President of Math and Science Club back in high school. Friends told me that I'm kind, generous, good
at heart, and | like to live my lives this way, “Treat people like you want to be treated”.

Thank you for taking the time to read my letter/email and looking forward to many successes.

Dung M Ngo

16



|
It
i

l 2\ Tri-Cit
“9 Medigal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF INITIAL CREDENTIALS REPORT
May 11, 2016

Attachment A

INITIAL APPOINTMENTS (Effective Dates: 5/31/2016-4/30/2018)
° N.D M.D r 1
e FAKSH, Arij, D.0./OB/GYN/Maternal-Fetal Medicine
« MADANLE M.D./S /Cardiotl icS
e THISTLETHWAITE, Patricia, M.D./Surgerv/Cardiothoracic Surge
INITIAL APPOINTMEN HE ALLIED HEALTH PROFESSIONAL STAFF

e LAFORTE ZELLE, NP

INITIAL APPLICATION WITHDRAWAL: (Voluntary unless otherwise specified)
Medical Staff: None

TEMPORARY PRIVILEGES: Medical Staff/Allied Health Professionals:
 LAFORT ZELL

TEMPORARY MEDICAL STAFF MEMBERSHIP: Medical Staff: None

17



(ﬁ)Trl-Clt
Medical Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT -1 of 3
May 11, 2016

Attachment B

BIENNIAL REAPPOINTMENTS: (Effective Dates 6/01/2016 -5/31,/2018)
. n . ' 1 jv
o Berry, Julie A, MD/Otolaryngology/Active

° urly, Edward R., MD/ Pediatric/Activ

e Myrsi Meli MD/Pathology-Anatomic/Activ
e Park, Gregory C., MD/Plastic Surgery/Provisional

° imi i Pediatrics/Activ

e him, Michael, MD T rol Active

o Sh Wen D/Int 1M

RESIGNATIONS: (Effective date 5/30/2016 unless otherwise noted)
Voluntary:

¢ Alaoui, Jannah CNM.,/OB/GYN- AHP

e B ing. Randall M.D. /E Medicine/Acti
e Chaffoo, Richard, M.D../Plastic Surgery/Courtesy
e Choi, James, M.D.,/Anesthesiol Provisiona

« Ekholm,] CNM/Allied Health Professional

Time Limited reappointment: (90 days)

None

Pagelof1

18



(ﬁ)Tﬂ -City
Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - Part 2 of 3
May 11,2016

NON-REAPPOINTME

P

V C
BYUN, Charlton K., M.D..

izmar, Branislav

DANESHMAND, Shahram S., M.D.

ED STATUS MODIFICATIONS
Diagnostic Radiology
OB-GYN
Maternal & Fetal Medicine

i hn C. M.D. rnal ici
KARAS JR., Stephen, M.D Emergency Medicine

RKHIL Ramin, M.D.

STAFFE STAT HAN

Ponec, Donald |, M.D

General Surgery-Request additional 6 months

Attachment B

19



"3 Tri-City

Med|cal Center
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT - Part 3 of 3
May 11,2016

Attachment C

° Wilke, Lindsey W., MD Podiatry
) Malhis, Safouh, MD Pulmonary Medicine

e  Mendoza, Jorge. MD Radiology



(:p) Tri-City

Medlcal Center
TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER

INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE REAPPOINTMENT CREDENTIALS REPORT - 1 of 3
May, 2016

Attachment B

BIENNIAL REAPPRAISALS: (Effective Dates 6/1/2016 - 5/31/2018)

e (Carlton, Vivian W, PAC/Allied Health Professional Supervising Physician

. win hel K. 11j

¢ Guthrie, Lesli A., AuD/Allied Health Professional

. nV,P i 1th Professi 1

RESIGNATIONS: (Effective date 5/31/2016 unless otherwise noted)

Page1of1

21



|

2\ Tri- Clt
(‘)) Medlcal Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
INTERDISCIPLINARY PRACTICE INITIAL CREDENTIALS REPORT
May, 2016

Attachment A

ITIALAPPOINTMENT TO THE ALLIED H FESSIONAL STAF
e LaForteza, Jozelle B.. NP

INITIAL APPLICATION WITHDRAWAL: (Voluntary unless otherwise specified)

Allied Health Professionals:
None

TEMPORARY PRIVILEGES: Allied Health Professionals:
o LaForteza, Jozelle B.. NP

22



910z ‘0l Ae l 9oRIWIWOY S92IN0SaY UewnH
‘A|snowljueun paLJed Sem Uoijow ay| "uojow
Sy} papuooas UBIPaABYOW "JQ pue paroul [|aYolN
Joyoauq ‘Bunesw 910z ‘21 1Mdy 8y} Jo sainuiw
nayey Jieyn ay} snoidde o} uonjow e 10} pajied N8|y ey SeJNUIl Jo uoneouney ‘f
-olignd 8y} JO S1equiaW WO} SUSWILLIOD ongnd
na|i@y Jieyd Buipiebas ydeibeled sy) peal 118|[@) JieyD 8y} JO sioquisaw wWoyj sjuswwo) ‘¢
‘Alsnowiueun palies sem
uoljoW 8y "UOIOW By} PAPUOIIS ([BYIN J0308lIg
pUB PaAOW SISPUBS UMD "910Z ‘0} Ae jo epusbe
pnojiey J1eyd ay) anoidde o} uoiow e 1o} paj|es je||ey Jieyd epuabe ay} jo jenouddy g
‘wrd
}aji8y Jieyd Ge:Z|1 e Japio 0) Buyssw ay) ps||ed Ps||day Jleyo BplO OL |IBD I
a|qisuodsay dn-mojjod uoissnasig oido ]|
(s)uosiad uoloy
1EJid JOpeA|eS ‘USSIBIN UIMEW Jd ‘END ‘ZINYdS uoleys ‘ousy aliewssoy Jojoalg ;Juasqy SIaquuaiy
|efeqien seouel4 ‘Jo|qy uuinp ‘ounsobeq sewer Jieyd qO4d ;Juasald siaylo
HH Jo dA ‘Apenag say)s3
‘dA\S ‘unelg BWION ‘0D ‘Meys-pieulag ajliay) ‘009 ‘Asjuo) endey| {030 ‘UipLig OASIS :Juasald siaquiajy Buijop-uoN

Slapues Usmg) ‘aouinp aof
‘uosien elulbli/ ‘UBIpaYBAOW pILiBH "Id ‘e duas) “id ‘|IBYSNIN BIneT Jojoalg ‘Naley [UAD ieyd

;Juasald siaquiapy Bunop

14vda

910Z ‘0l Aey
SY019341ad 40 ayvod 3HL 4O
JILLINNOD STDUNOSTY NYWNH
YILNID TVIIAIW ALID-1ML

o
N



910z ‘0l fen Z 290N SO2IN0SaY uewnH
nojiey Jieyd ‘w-d gg:| 1e Bunssw ay) pauinolpe yajiey Jieyd Juswwinolpy "0l
naj|y JieyD 910Z ‘vi dunr Buneew jxau jo 8leg ‘6
najoM ey SUON SUOIEOIUNWIIOD S3)IWWO0D 'Q
nalId) 11eyD ‘pamalnal sem ueld YJom oy ue|d MOM ‘2
. sjesodo.ud 1oy }senbal
unelg BWION ‘pPassSNOSIp Jou sem wa)l siy -d4y J9y0.g syjeusg ‘9
‘Aupigisuodsal Asejonply pue saoiales Buluiquuod o)
uonIppe Ul ‘passnasip sem saafojdws e o} sbuires
JUSLWIBLIISI Ul UOIIBONPA 10} PSAU 8Y| "SIOPUBA
ainnj 4o} suoleoadxa passnosip 880D 8y
"9WO2}NO d)el }S8q/}Semo]
pue aAledwod JSow Joj Hgns 0} SIOPUSA
Buibebusa aq M gHO.L yeu) lesodoud Joj 1sanbau sjesodoud 10} ysanbau
unelg euwION usjuUM Jelp e pajussaid 103021 YH ‘J8|gy uuInpd -d4Y saoinieg buidasy pioday p
‘Apadoud Aldwoo 0) moy pue sabueyo
Jusuiad jsow ay) passnosip AlaLiq aspiwwoo
ay_. 'sainpadoud Jo/pue saiojjod ‘sseoosd QHD L
199)1e Aew ey} sajepdn B sjuawdojansp me| |eiepad SMET
uneig ewIoN pue a}e)s Juadal pauie|dxa HH 10 dA ‘Alieneg Jayisg | MaN/siuswdojanaq |ebaT Jo maney 0
‘s|eob g uosuedwod 91.0z/G1L0g pajussaid
os|e wna)seo) "JWN "s|iejap asueuwopad parosdwi S|
pue ‘[eAJ00 ‘Jojensiuiwpe Aued paiy) 1soo pasnoul
‘SJUNOD WIeD ‘sajel uonualal ‘swus) Aojjod passnasip
99D 8y ‘Sased dwod yiom Apjauenb
unelg BULION JO MaIABI B paleys Jojoallg SH ‘wnjsises) Apny sase) dwo) SISHIOA MBINSY '
"PasSSNosIp )9 PAMBIASI 819M SB)eJ UoljoB)SiieS aousladxy
najey Jieyn aaAo|dw3 -se|id sousuadx3 Japjoysyels ayl Japjoyayels -pieoquyseq ao’g ‘e
ssauisng mMeN ‘9
BUON ssauisng plI0 'S

a|qIsuc ” )Yy
(sjuo. 4

dn-mojjo4
uondy

uoiss.__iq

oido]

<
o~



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

Recordkeeping Services
For Defined Contribution Plans And
§457(b) Plans

Date
May 2, 2016

Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) is soliciting Request for Proposals (RFP)
recordkeeping services for its Defined Contribution and 457 (b) Plans.

SECTION 1: GENERAL INFORMATION & SUMMARY

1.1 Organization Requesting Proposal
Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way

Oceanside, CA 92056

www . tricitymed.org

1.2 Designated Contact Person

<Name>

Tri-City Medical Center
4002 Vista Way
Oceanside, CA 92056

1.3 Procurement Process
Submissions will be evaluated by the Employee Fiduciary Retirement Plan

Subcommittee (Subcommittee) of the Board of Directors in accordance with the
criteria set forth in this RFP.

1.4 Contract Form

If selected to provide services, it is agreed and understood that the successful
Respondent shall be bound by the requirements and terms contained in this RFP
with regard to services performed, payments, indemnification, insurance,
termination, and applicable licensing provisions.

1.5 Informational Meeting

There will not be an informational meeting for this RFP. Any questions must be
submitted by e-mail to the above-named Contact Person.

25



1.6 Submission Deadline
RFP's must be received by TCHD no later than June 17" 2016. RFPs will not be

accepted by facsimile transmission or email. Any RFP’s received by TCHD after the
deadline will be rejected.

1.7 Definitions
The following definitions shall apply to and are used in this RFP:

"Consultant” or "Consultants" - refers to the interested persons and/or firm(s) that
submit a Proposal.

"Respondent” or "Respondents" - refers to the interested persons and/or firm(s) that
submit a Statement of Qualifications.

"RFP" - refers to a Request for Proposal

"SOQ" - refers to Statements of Qualifications.

"TCHD" - refers to Tri-City Healthcare District.

"Vendor" or "Vendors" - refers to the Respondents submitting an RFP.

1.8 Submission Address
All RFPs and SOQs should be sent to the Contact Person and address listed in 1.2.

SECTION 2: INTRODUCTION AND GENERAL INFORMATION

2.1 Introduction and Purpose

TCHD is soliciting RFP’'s from interested persons and/or firms for the provision of
recordkeeping services for Retirement Plans and for support for its Employee
Fiduciary Retirement Plan Subcommittee (Subcommittee) and its board of directors
(Board) in meeting their obligations as plan fiduciaries. TCHD will consider only
those RFP’s that provide all the information and documentation as required herein
(in the sole judgment of TCHD), and in the order and format requested.

TCHD intends to qualify the Respondents that:

o Have the professional, financial, consulting and administrative capabilities to
provide the proposed services; and

e Wil agree to perform such services under the compensation terms and
conditions determined by TCHD to provide the greatest benefit to it and its
employees. A limited number of the person(s) and/or firm(s) that are qualified

pursuant to the RFP process will then be eligible for an opportunity to make a
formal presentation.

26



2.2 Respondent Options

TCHD is seeking RFP’s from interested persons and/or firms that offer the most
competitive services and highest value. Respondents should submit RFP’'s and
Statements of Qualifications (SOQs) pertaining to recordkeeping services only.

2.3 Procurement Process And Schedule
The RFP’s will be evaluated by TCHD to determine if the Respondent has met the

minimum professional, administrative and financial areas described in this
document.

Based upon the totality of the information submitted, including information about the
reputation and experience of each Respondent, the Evaluators will determine which
Respondents are qualified (professionally, administratively and financially).

TCHD reserves the right to, among other things, amend, modify or alter the
Procurement Schedule upon notice to all potential Respondents.

Anticipated Procurement Schedule Activity Date

1. Issuance of Request for Proposals. May 16, 2016
2. Request for Proposal Due to TCHD: June 17, 2016
3. Review completed by TCHD: July 2016

4. Interview process. July/August 2016

2.4 Conditions Applicable To RFP
Upon submission of the RFP, the Respondent acknowledges and consents to the

following conditions relative to the submission and review and consideration of its
Qualification Statement:

. This RFP does not commit TCHD to engage Respondent.

. All costs incurred by the Respondent in connection with responding to this
RFP shall be borne solely by the Respondent.

. TCHD reserves the right (in its sole judgment) to reject for any reason any
responses and components thereof and to eliminate from further
consideration any Respondents.

TCHD reserves the right (in its sole judgment) to reject any Respondent that
submits an incomplete or non-responsive SOQ to this RFP.

TCHD reserves the right, without prior notice, to supplement, amend, or
otherwise modify this RFP, or otherwise request additional information.

All RFPs and SOQs shall become the property of TCHD and will not be
returned.

27



. All information will be made available to the public at the appropriate time, as
determined by TCHD (in the exercise of its sole discretion) in accordance with
applicable law.

. TCHD may request Respondents to send representatives to TCHD for
interviews.
. TCHD reserves the right to change or alter the schedule for any events called

for in this RFP upon the issuance of notice to all prospective Respondents
who have received a copy of this RFP.

. TCHD reserves the right to conduct investigations of any or all of the
Respondents, as TCHD deems necessary or convenient, to clarify the
information provided as part of the Qualification Statement and to request
additional information to support the information included in any Qualification
Statement.

. TCHD reserves the right to suspend or terminate the procurement process
described in this RFP at any time (in its sole discretion). [f terminated, TCHD
may determine to commence a new procurement process or exercise any

other rights provided under applicable law without any obligation to the
Respondents.

2.5 Addenda Or Amendments To RFP
During the period provided for the preparation of responses to the RFP, TCHD may
issue addenda, amendments or answers to written inquiries. Those addenda will be
noticed by TCHD and will constitute a part of the RFP. All responses to the RFP
shall be prepared with full consideration of the addenda issued prior to the
Qualification Statement submission date.

2.6 Cost of Qualification Statement Preparation

All documents and information requested herein shall be prepared at the sole cost
and expense of the Respondent. There shall be no claims whatsoever against
TCHD, its officers, officials or employees for reimbursement for the payment of costs

or expenses incurred in preparing and submitting for participating in this
procurement.

2.7 Qualification Statement Format

RFP’s which in the judgment of TCHD fail to meet all requirements or which are in
any way conditional, incomplete, obscure, contain additions or deletions from
requested information, or contain errors may be rejected.

2.8 Communications Regarding This RFP

All communications concerning this RFP or the RFP process shall be directed to
TCHD's Designated Contact Person listed in section 1.2, hereof.

28



SECTION 3: CURRENT AND NEW RETIREMENT PROGRAMS

3.1 Current Plans

TCHD is a public healthcare district located in the north coastal region of San Diego
County. Because TCHD is a public agency, its retirement plans are "governmental
plans" and are not subject to the Employee Retirement income Security Act of 1974
(ERISA). Nonetheless, due to the application of various fiduciary rules under
California state law, including California Government Code section 53213.5, TCHD
has adopted a number of "best practices" that include the application of certain
ERISA rules and standards to its plans, as though ERISA applied. Therefore, TCHD
is looking for Respondents who not only have significant experience working with
governmental plans, and who understand the limited application of the plan
qualification rules to such plans, but who also understand its desire to, on a selective
basis, apply a number of ERISA's fiduciary standards and principles to promote the
proper administration and investment of the plans.

Currently, TCHD maintains three defined contributions plans (DCPs) which hold
approximately $284 million in assets as of the beginning of May 2016:

a. The National Security and Retirement Program (NSRP), a section 457(b)
plan, that TCHD uses as its Social Security Replacement Plan (SSRP) and
which receives a mandatory employee pre-tax contribution and an employer
matching contribution, if the entire employee contribution is made;

b. A separate, standalone section 457(b) plan (Regular 457(b)), which only
receives employee pre-tax deferrals; and

c. A Money Accumulation Pension Plan for Employees of Tri-City Healthcare
District (MAPP), which receives both employee after-tax contributions and
employer matching contributions.

The NSRP has a 90-day eligibility requirement, has approximately 925 active
participants, had approximately $112 million in assets as of May 2016, had
approximately 328 former participants with account balances, and receives
approximately $8.03 million in employee and employer contributions annually.

The Regular 457(b) Plan is open to all full-time and part-time employees and
receives only employee contributions. As of May 2016 it had approximately
919 active participants, and 169 former participants with account balances. It
had approximately $40.7 million in assets and receives approximately $5.1
million in employee contributions annually.

The MAPP covers both full-time and part-time employees who have
completed at least one year of service. As of May 2016, it had approximately
1302 active employees and 329 former participants with account balances. It
had approximately $131.6 million in assets and receives approximately $10.1
million in employee and employer contributions annually.

29



SECTION 4: MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

4.1 Minimum Qualifications Applicable to Record Keepers and Third Party

1.

Administrators

As of the date of its submission, the Respondent must have provided
recordkeeping, administrative, consulting and/or employee communication
services for governmental defined contribution plans authorized under
internal Revenue Code (Code) sections 457(b), 401(k), 403(b) or 401(a) for a
minimum of ten (10) years.

As of the date of its submission, the Respondent must have a minimum of $1

billion in total defined contribution plan assets under recordkeeping or
administration.

As of the date of its submission, the Respondent must have a minimum of five

(5) defined contribution plan clients under recordkeeping or administration,
each with at least 750 participants.

The Respondent must have a minimum of five (5) governmental defined
contributions clients.

The Respondent must demonstrate that it can provide state-of-the-art
technology, including interactive voice-response systems, Internet retirement-

planning and account-management tools, and automated transaction
processing.

The Respondent must demonstrate that it is either completely independent of
any financial institution or securities brokerage firm; or fully and continuously
disclose any relations with such financial institution or securities brokerage
firm, and further disclose any commissions, bonuses, revenue sharing, or
soft-dollar payments resulting from the firm's relationship with TCHD. Such
disclosure shall include any and all information required under ERISA

sections 404(a)(5) and 408(b)(2) and the regulations thereunder (as though
ERISA applied).

A market competitive fee structure.

Provide a copy a standard services agreement of the type that would be used
between your firm and TCHD generally reflecting the services mentioned in
this RFP. The agreement shall include a cancellation clause allowing either
party to terminate upon 90 days written notice, a choice of California law and
a California venue for disputes, and recognition of the parties' fiduciary status
under applicable law.

30



SECTION 5: SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

5.1 General Requirements

The Respondent's qualifications must meet or exceed the professional,
administrative and financial qualifications set forth in this RFP and shall incorporate
the information requested below. To the extent Respondent does not meet all of the
qualifications set forth in this RFP but the Respondent feels they have special

qualifications, such respondent must submit supporting information with its
response.

5.2 Informational Requirements

The Respondent shall, as part of its Qualification Statement, provide the following
information. Respondents are encouraged to be clear, factual, and concise in their
presentation of information.

Cover Letter

An executed Cover Letter signed by the key contact person, along with the contact's
address, telephone number, and email address.

SOQ Section 1

a. An executive summary (not to exceed two (2) pages) of the information
demonstrating the minimum requirements outlined in Sections 4. of this RFP.

b. A description of the business organization (i.e., corporation, partnership, joint
venture, etc.) of each Respondent, its ownership and its organizational
structure.

— Provide the names and business addresses of all Principals of the
Respondent submitting the Qualification Statement. For purposes of
this RFP, the term "Principals” means persons possessing an
ownership interest in the Respondent. If the Respondent is a
corporation, "Principals" shall include each investor who has any
operational control over the Respondent, and every stockholder having

an ownership interest of 10% or more in the firm. (Sample form in
Section 7)

- If a Respondent is a partially owned or a fully owned subsidiary of
another firm, identify the parent company and describe the nature and
extent of the parents’ approval rights over the activities of the
Respondent submitting an SOQ. Describe the approval process.

If the Respondent is a partnership or a joint venture or similar
organization, provide comparable information as required in (b) above
for each member of the partnership joint venture or similar
organization.

c. The number of years Respondent has been in business under the present
name.

31



The number of years Respondent has been under the current management.

Any judgments within the last three (3) years in which Respondent has been
adjudicated liable for professional malpractice. If any, please explain in detail,
including parties, dates and court.

Whether the Respondent is now or has been involved in any bankruptcy or
re-organization proceedings in the last ten (10) years. If yes, please explain.

Confirmation of appropriate federal and state licenses to perform activities.

A list of all immediate relatives of Principal(s) of Respondent who are TCHD
employees or elected officials of TCHD. For purposes of the above,
"immediate relative" means a spouse, parent, stepparent, brother, sister,
child, stepchild, direct-line aunt or uncle, grandparent, grandchild and in-laws.

A copy of a standard services agreement of the type that would be used
between your firm and TCHD generally reflecting the services mentioned in
this RFP. The agreement shall include a cancellation clause allowing either
party to terminate upon 90 days written notice, a choice of California law and
a California venue for disputes, and recognition of the parties' fiduciary status
under applicable law.

S0Q Section 2

a.

A narrative statement of the Respondent's understanding of TCHD's needs
and goals. This narrative should also describe the general approach that the
Respondent would take in working with TCHD's plans.

Provide a brief description of the type of services (i.e. recordkeeping)
Respondent is interested in providing.

Provide a brief description of the Respondent's overall experience in providing
the type of services sought in the RFP. Describe at least five (5) similar
engagements where services of the types being proposed were provided in
the past five (5) years, with a least three of them having been with
governmental agencies. Provide references for all five engagements,
including contact person, title, address, telephone, and email

Resumes of staff who likely will be assigned to provide services to TCHD if
awarded the contract.

If Respondent is intending to provide bundied services with another provider,
provide all information, including any financial arrangements with such

provider, that such provider would be required to disclose, if such provider
was a separate Respondent.

32



f. Supplemental information that the Respondent feels may be useful in
evaluating its SOQ (up to two pages).

5.3 Submission of Qualification Statements

Respondents must submit three executed copies of their SOQs to the designated
Contact Person.

Bound SOQs must be received by TCHD no later than 3:00 p.m. Pacific Standard
Time on June 17, 2016. SOQs submitted by facsimile or e-mail will not be accepted.

SECTION 6: EVALUATION AND SELECTION

TCHD will consider RFP and SOQs only from Respondents who, in TCHD's sole
judgment, have demonstrated the capability and willingness to provide high quality,
cost-effective services in the manner described herein.

6.1 Evaluation Criteria
RFPs and SOQs will be evaluated based on fulfilment of the minimum and
informational requirements described above inciuding:

o Demonstrated understanding of TCHD's needs.

e Relevant experience and expertise of the Respondent and its designated
team.

o Willingness and ability to enter into an agreement with TCHD.

¢ References.

o Overall clarity and completeness of the RFP and SOQ.

6.2 Selection Of Qualified Vendor(s)
TCHD shall not be obligated to explain the results of the evaluation process to any
Respondent. TCHD reserves the right to award a contract for the requested services

at any time within the qualification period. Every Qualification Statement should be
valid through this time period.

SECTION 7: GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The following are general terms and conditions which may or may not be explained
elsewhere in this RFP.

7.1 TCHD’s Right To Reject
TCHD reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, if necessary, or to waive any
formalities in the proposals, and, uniess otherwise specified by the Respondent, to

accept any item, items or services in the Proposal should it be deemed in the best
interest of TCHD.

33



7.2 Original/Authorized Signatures

Each proposal and all required forms must be signed in ink by a person authorized
to do so.

7.3 Delivery Of Proposals

Proposals may be hand delivered or mailed consistent with the provisions of the
legal notice to Respondents. In the case of mailed proposals, TCHD assumes no
responsibility for proposals received after the designated date and time and will

return late proposals unopened. Proposals will not be accepted by facsimile or
e-mail.

7.4 Clarification of RFP
Should any difference arise between the contracting parties as to the meaning or

intent of these instructions or specifications, TCHD's Evaluators' decision shall be
final and conclusive.

7.6 Contract Requirements

The Vendor, if awarded the contract, agrees to protect, defend and save harmless
TCHD against damage for payment for the use of any patented material process,
article or devise that may enter into the manufacture, construction or form a part of
the work covered by either order or contract, and further agrees to indemnity and
save harmless TCHD from suits or actions of every nature and description brought
against it for, or on account of, any injuries or damages received or sustained by any
party or parties by, or from, any of the acts of the contractor, its servants or agents.

7.6 Insurance Requirements

The consultant shall maintain sufficient insurance to protect against all claims under
Workmen's Compensation, General and Automobile Liability, and shall be subject to
approval for adequacy of protection. Certificates of such insurance shall be provided
TCHD when required. Insurance requirements are as follows:

Comprehensive General Liability in the amount of $2,000,000
Workers Compensation in the statutory amount of $100,000
Automobile Liability in the amount of $1,000,000

Professional Liability in the amount of $1,000,000

SECTION 8: REQUIRED LETTER

Dear

The undersigned have reviewed the Qualification Statement submitted in response
to the Request for Proposal (RFP) issued by TCHD of , dated
[insert date], in connection with TCHD’s need for Financial Advisory Services.

We affirm that the contents of our Qualification Statement (which Qualification
Statement is incorporated herein by reference) are accurate, factual and complete to
the best of our knowledge and belief and that the Qualification Statement is

-10-

34



submitted in good faith upon express understanding that any false statement may
result in the disqualification of (Name of Respondent).

(Respondent shall sign and complete the spaces provided below. If a joint venture,
appropriate officers of each company shall sign.)

(Signature of Chief Executive Officer)
(Typed Name and Title)

(Typed Name of Firm)*

Dated

(8ignature of Chief Financial Officer)
(Typed Name and Title)

(Typed Name of Firm)*

Dated

“If joint venture, partnership or other formal organization is submitting
a qualification statement, each participant shall execute this Letter of
Qualification

9=

35



910¢ ', Arenuer

L sa)IWwWwoIgns ue|d Justuainay Asepnpl4 safoldw]

‘Kienuer ul @auasqe 0} anp Bujuielsge sispues

uamo) ypm Ajsnowiueun paLled Sem Uolow ay |
‘uonow 8y} papuooas 118||8) JeyD pue aroidde o)
panow uosie) Auulo ‘Bunesw 910z ‘2l Aenuer ayj Jo
sejnuiw ay) aaoidde o) uonow e 10} pa||ed Najiey J1eyd

S8JNUIN jo uoledlney

}ali8y Jeyd
Wwa)l 8y} Jo uoneIspISuod
s, @9]ILWOoY) 810499 2lignd ay)
-o1jgnd 8y} jo siequiawl woly 0] )saJlajul Jo way Aue uo dlgnd
najey ey sjuswiwod olgnd o | syuswwos Bulpsebas ydesbeled ay) peas Pajisy JIeyd | 8yi Jo sisquiswl AQ sjuswwo) ¢
‘A|snowiueun paled sem uoljow
Sy] "uoloW 8Y) pPapuodas 9|18 JieyD pue aaoidde
0} paaow uosie) Auuis) ‘epuabe Bunssw 910¢ ‘0L
nojeM Jeyn Ae\ ay) anoidde o} uonow e 104 paj|ed §a||ay Jieyd epuaby Jo [eaosddy °Z
Jollv Jieyp “w'e 00:1 | Je Jopio o} Bunesw ay) paj|ed }ajiey Jleys |plQ oL (ed 'L
sjqisuodsay dn-mojjo4
(s)uosiad uonoy uolssnosiq oido]

ousy allewasoy J0}oaiq

jelfeques sasuel

‘ua|ly Aeg) “1oyeg ,euaq ‘1aad usainep 19|qy uuind ‘ounsobeq sawer Jieyd aog

‘““YH 10 dA ‘Apenag JayisT ‘{dAS ‘unelg euloN ‘009 ‘Asjuo) endeyf (03D ‘UIplBlq 9A8)S

uosien Auulg) ‘siapues uamo) ‘Pajiey WAD 1q 1tey)d

;Juasqy sJaquispy

:Juasald si1ayjo

meys-pieusag sjluay)n

;Juasaid slaquiapy Bunop-uon

;Jussald siaquapy Bunop

14vda

J3LLININOD 9NS NV1d LNIJWIFHILIY AdVIONAId IIA0TdNE

9102 ‘0L Aey
SMO0L93dIa 40 ad¥vod IHL 40

H31N3D TVOIdIN ALID-RIL

36



91L0Z _EN_‘ Aenuep 29))IWLOOQNS Uejd Juswainay Ateanpld aafojdwg

119193 JIeYD ‘wrd gg:1 | 1e Bunesw sy} psuinolpe pajiey Jeyd yuswwnolpy ‘6

nejiey Jeyd 910z ‘¢l Joquisydeg Buneow Jxau Jo ajed 'g

s9)IuIwo)

SUON By} WO} SpPEW SJUSWLIOD °/

Raiiey Jieyd

"SIOSIAPE JUBLIISOAU] Juapnid pue saakoldwa
aHOL usamiaqg diysuoljejes pue uoleIuNwWwoo
1ealb ay) pue ajel uoledpipedausw|joius
Buimoub ayy sybiybiy paquosep

BUS(] 'SOSSE|D JOSSE puk S)20}s ‘aouewuiopad
19)Jew puom ‘Alewwns joyiew ‘uoneddied
aafojdwsa uo saIwwod ay) payepdn eusq
uneig ewJoN "MaIABl 19X ew Jauenb paiyy sy} psjussald Jexeq .eusq ajepdn Apauenp juapnid q

"‘PaMaInsJ OS[e 81am sedueleq

Juno2oe pue sajel {euajep abelaae ‘sajes uopedoiped
‘sBuluies ‘suonnguuod ‘ymolb Jasse ued ‘soljsiels
ueid Aay] "s)nsai Auauenb s ujooul] woly ayepdn

ue papnjoul yoiym Aiewiwns aAnoaxa pajuasaid
uneig euwloN Jabeuepy diysuone|ay ujoour] ‘1ead usainep ajepdn Aapenp ujoour] e

ssauisng MaN ‘9

BUON

ssouisng pPIO 'S

a|qisuodsay dn-mojjo4
(sjuo uonoy uoIssnoasiq oidoy

S’ p e

37



s31nuliNy Jutlaaw 910¢ ‘6T At
3911 WWOT B33URI||Y 2Je2YL{EdH Altunmwol JHVHI

oded|T

3@ ¥0s 3V WITVIH I DINVAQY

121U3)) [edIpPaN AL mav
e

‘panoidde Ajsnowueun pue
uaMQ paL Aq papuodas sem uopow a3yl ‘ssbueyd yum epusbe bunssw
9102 ‘6T AeIW 9Y3 2A0idde 0} pauoiow ounsobeq wir Jieyd pieog | YANIOY DNILIIW

40 TYAQiddV

alln Jieyd DYHD pue Jopauiqg Aq wd ez T 3e 1oplo 0 pajjed sem
Bureaw 9a1)1ILUWI0D) ddUel||ly 2JedylesH Ajunwwo) ‘9T0g ‘6T Ael ayL YIQUO OL TIVD

‘pieebAN

TT19ISNOdSTU
(s)NOSuad dN MOT104 NOLLDY NOISSNJSIa JIdOL
SI9pUBS UMD ‘|[PYdiiiy BIneT Jopadid “Isieldads jusjuo)
91ISGIM ‘PlEMURID Uelg ‘I0JRUIPI00D DYHD ‘eldlen el[e) 110jeulpioo) DVHD ‘|IPMOQIIA uesns +LN3ISTUd SUYIHLO
opnues opueuls ‘zado Asspny
‘oAouly esewolx ‘Joxpn ) Apues ‘uewpys3 Alewasoy ‘Aydiniy Ately ‘ueaouoq Alely ‘AqniH esoy e
ap nojLie ‘uosjeN doer ‘uosesln 1619 ‘Apaay uoqg ‘begeH |Aueq ‘Udequazueyds Jaig ‘zalad eieqleg :INISAVY SUIgWIN

00D ‘Meys-pieussg SARYD ‘00D ‘AS|uc) endeyl (03D ‘UIRBIQ aARIS
J201j0 Bunadel JOIYD ‘IBuUSg pire(

usmQ pal ‘0bN ‘W bung ‘eAopioD eysily ‘YD
no Auely ‘uoo) abiep ‘ewsapa epull ‘Asuoy Ano ‘elaussH [01e) ‘syoolg [o1eD) (QIN Bznos JOPIA
*1g “pojjeyds Aue Jopaaq ‘ounsobeq wir uewdiey) sioaiq Jo pieog pieebAN aing Jeyd JDVHD

| wooy Ajquiassy

9102 ‘61 Aep

S3ALNNIN ONILIIN
(OVHO) 2apiwwo) adueljjy aieayjjesy Ajlunwwo)
JousIq aJesunea A)H-Li|

:LN3SEV SUIGWIN DNILOA-NON

*IN3ISTd SUIAGINIAW DNILOA-NON

:IN3ISIAUd SUYIGNINW

38



3@> 801 3w IR QIDNVAQY
133u3) |edpan L3D-L m&
(V]

sainuiw Buiieaw 910C ‘AT Aew
33111WWOoOD 22ue]|Y 23241 RIH Aviunwwo) )N H
s8ed|t
‘pancidde
Ajsnowiueun pue oupjsobeq wir Aq papuodas sem UOOW By *ssinuiw SILNNIW
Buisaw DYHD 9107 T2 IUdy 3y anosdde o3 pauonow ypojerps Auer | 40 NOHLVOLALLYA
SINIW3IDONNONNY
"apeuwl aJoMm SjuSWwWod dljgnd oN B SINFWWOD
o1and
"'SMaU DJWDL 1s93e| ay) Buipsebal dnoub ay)
a1epdn 03 pajsanbai sem JeolO BunIe JOIYD ‘Pauusg pineq e
‘peals
5,119 u1 podal ayj Juasaud 03 paalbe ewsopa epul Jaquisy
*SSaU||l 03 SNP SUOREPUBILLIOIDY ISJHWWOD MIIASY DVHD Y3
juasaid 03 9jqe 10U sem ays eyl Jieyd ayj paunou uoses|o) 1615 e
“Modoay suonesadp
ay3 jJuasald 03 ajgeun pue umo} Jo Jno sem A9juo) endey OQD e
PIuod Bulnpayds aynuiw jse| e 03 anp ajepdn
03D 943 asaud 10 puajie 0} 3jgeun Sem UIISIJ 9A91S OID e (a,uod)
VAN3IOV SONILIINW
:Buimol|oy du3 308124 0} pabueyd sem epuabe ay L 40 TVACUddVY
T noouas | N MOTI04 NOLLOV NOISSNJSIa IdOL

| wooy Ajquiassy

9102 ‘61 Ae

S3LNNIN ONILIIN
(DVYHI) 2a)1wwo) asuel||y atesyjjesaHq Ajunwiwo)

1os1Q aJesurjeay ANo-ul

39



SAINULIN

guii1aa N 91t0e ‘AT AuA

3@> ¥O¢ WO NI AIINVAQY
Ja3ua) (eapa AL &)
Rw.

233111 WWOCD) BlueL]IY #IiRd24lrieaH A
sdedle
00°000'ST$ 19]U3) 92.N0Say S,USWIOM
00°000'v€$ MU AJUNWWo) BIsip
00°000°0T$ uonepuno4 a2idsoH Yieqezi|3 syl
00°00S'2$ uonepuno4 ouusag Jaylolg ayl
00°001°€Z$ Buijesuno) Ajjwe4 Jeuiojed
00°000'ST$ Ssaul4 JaoueD) Jyed
00°00S'1C$ adoH uonesado
00°000°LT$ aulpy Auno) Yo
00°00v'¥1$ 1Jud 321n0say 1997 *0D YUON
00°000'5Z$ SeDIAISS LjesH AunoD YyUoN
00°000's$ IWVN
00°00S'CT$ saiqeg sl
00'000'ST$ uaUoY S,ewely
00°000'ST$ 100
00°000°ST$ S8DIAIBS AjunwIwoD yyeusuf
00°000'ST$ asnoH Ajuialeid
00°000'ST$ 19JUD) 924N0SaY AJIUNLWILIC)
00°000°0T$ oledwy ap ese)
00°000's$ BISIA Jo gn|D SHI9 8 shog
:lenoidde
10} slojpali] Jo pleog a3 03 sjunowse pue suoneziueblo Buimojjoy
3U3 POpUSWILLIOIRL 331IWIWO0D 3y} ‘syuelb Ajunwwiod 1o 00°000°00€$
Jo 196png e YIM °"00°000°000°T$ 4opun 3snl buiisenbad ‘papiwgns alom munﬂwnh_ﬁz%ewww
suoneoiidde p¢ Jo (230} e ey bunou ‘dnoib ay3 03 sUoHEPUBIWODSY MIIAZH SVHD
juels sRIWWO) MBIASY DYHD 43 pajuasald ewsapaT epul] Jlsquisiy ‘NOLLV.LNIS3IUd
T Shoas™ | an momi04 NoLLOV NOISSNJSIA SIdOL

(DVHD) 28pwwo) asuel|ly sieayjjeay Ajunwwo)

] wooy Ajquassy

9102Z ‘6l Ae
S3ALNNIN ONILIdN

Jo1S1g dJedulfeay AND-1a1

40



3@> vos 33wk QIINVAGY
121U [eapaN AuD-uL m,u

<

sai1nul JuileaiN 9107 6T Aew

29111WWO] a8d2ueij|ly 2J¥o24yljeasH Ay
o8ed|vy
Aemuspun Apua.und suonesedaud bupueuy wiey-buoj anH - ©
24mny Jeau ay3 ul Jaysue) 3} gOW peedxy e
gOIW 3u3 Jo 1ooy
p.E OU3 10} L3BSH ASON WRM 3ses) 3Ly Jo Buiubis pajedonuy
sdajs Ixau ayy aroidde 03 Aquno)
ay} Joj Buniem — Jun uoneziigels sisKD 3y} YIm ssaibold e
sjuaned
JO Moy suswipedaq Aouabiewg ayy 0] sjuswaosdwy buiobug e
BAI9S oM AJIUNWIWOD 9Y3 0] Yoeaajno panupuo) e 100
aleys 1ayJew ase) Alewd pjing 0} buinupuo) e sunayien JByd
:Buipnput ‘sjeob Bulobuo pue sjuswysijdwodde Jusdal ‘Nauuag piaeq
s daqua) |edipaln AyD-11 Bulpiebas dnoib syy passalppe Rauuag pineq Aq yoday DWDL
Hoday 00D ON ajepdn 00D
Hoday 03D ON arepdn 0310
‘|lercidde Joy siopauiq JO (LNOD)
pieog a3 0} SLUOREpUSWILIDaI 3y} Bumiwgns paroidde sepiwwod ayy | SNOLLVANIWWOOIY
‘oupsobe( 1012241Q AQ papuodas pue uamQ paL Agq apew uonow Iad ANVHD FALLIWWOO
: : : M3TIATY DVHD
‘NOLLV.LIN3ISIUd
T noouas | dn moT104 NOLLOV NOISSNOSIA 1d0L

| wooy Ajquiassy

9102 ‘61 AelN

S3ALNNIN ONILITN
(DVHD) 2epiwwo) aaueljly aJesyjjesH Ajunwwo)

Jouysig aiesuljeaH ANl

41




sainuiiy JurlaaWw 910z ‘6T Aew
99111 WWOo) sduet]|y 12yl Ajiunuiwog PN H D

2d8ed]|s

3@> O HVYIHIWEIH QWUZ(\’Q(
1231ua) [edpa AuD-ag &)
(9

‘diysiapes) s,uljia1g aA33S Jopun |[om AloA

*a1e3 Ajijenb s DIWD1 pue

18q4a4 "1a BunybyybBIy |eInIaWWOod UOISIARIRY 15338] DWDL POMOYS pineq

‘Aajes judijed paziubooay

Ajjleuonen Joy bunes v, X9 sJ33us) (edIpajy AD-1L Bunybiybiy
pe s,jeuinor ssauisng ob6aig ues a3 Jo Adod e papiaoid pireq

Buissalboud ale sbuiyl ‘|aAs|

juswabeuep SARNDS9XT / UoKEASIUIWPY Y3 18 1eY) pajou os|e pireq

suonenobau Penuod

NI3S 943 Ul JUSWISS e Yyoeas 0} d|ge Sem Ul|1Sig 9A91S e
Bunioypoud/buienuapald oy ybnouyy buiob pue pieoq
U0 MOU SI ‘WISH uag euoleys “Iq ‘uodbinsoinaN DIWDL MON

‘Auno)

oba1q ues ul z Ajuo jo T pue AJuno) YHON ul duo Ajuo sy}
SI Jauueds 3y Jeyy pajou piaeq — busaw og syjoem xeu je
Jauueds 21§ 1D 243 uo uoneusoul bupuasald aq |jim Jduod Aq e

(3,u0)) 120140
BunaeR J9IYDd
‘NPuuag piaeq
Aq p1oday DWDL

I19ISNOdSTY
(s)NoOS¥ad

dN MOT104 NOLLDV NOISSNJSIa

J1dOL

| wooy Ajquiassy

9102 ‘61 Aey
SA1LNNIN SNILZAN

(DVHO) @apiwwo) asueljly aiedyjeay Ajunwwo)

Jouysig adesurieaH ANo-1a}

42



salnuly JulldeN 910C ‘6T AR
21e2y1jeald Ajarunmwo) )Y HD

29111 WWOD Bouetj|y

28ed|9

3@> 604 3D WM (JIINVAQY
1231uU3) [eNPAN A1D-L &)

10jeulpioo) DVHO

Asopaug

SHoMIaN dluedsiH
3y} uo uopeuliojul
slaquiaw jlew3

"UOIIBULIOJUI DY) O] AJ|IqISSa00e JaISes o)

dde ue buneatd 1apisuod 03 Juem Aew Asyy pa3sebbns ||yl 10109410
"J9]00q 3y3 JO so1dod uIeIqo 03 MOY UO UORBWLIOUI B31IWWO0D 3y)

JO saquiaW jiewa 03 pajsanbal sem ||oMOgIIN uesns J03eulpioo) JVYHD
"yINoA 944 Bruq Joy aouelly oynbaig ues ay) Aq pajidwod Alopauiq
}oMIaN dluedsiH ayj Inoge uopewojul papiaoid ewsapa epur]

‘saue|die jo

uedsBuim Jopim auy}) ajepoluwodde 03 Aemunt podiie sy) uspim o3 sueld
uo Buppom Apualind si A1) Sy} pue yoeag 0juod Je [910H S,uosess
-in04 Mau e pjing 03 39s SI peqsie) jeyy dnolb sy) pawLiojul usmQ pal

uswpedag
3di4 9Y} WO JUBWIIIRI JUSD3J S USGSH jAeq JquBly o
1STZ Ael Jo puayeam uonepalddy uonessdy e
TC ABIN UO JUSAS s|iel| By uo sjie] ayj
8T A JO pudEaMm BU) [RARSSS Alagmens eISIA e
:Buimoj|o ay3 pajou X20j[eyds Aue Jopadig

Ayuno) obaiq ues u dwoy

e buiseyound uaym suondo JuswAed-umop YIm sjuapisal AJUNWILLIOD
151SSe 0] welbold asuelsissy JuswAed umoq e sey Ajuaiind obied silom
1eyy Bunou Ino-puey e papiroid pue dnosb a3 passalppe oby Bung

suoneIUNWWo)
CENTITT T g

I19ISNOdSTY
(s)NOSuad

dN MOT104 NOLLOVY

NOISSNJSIA

JIdOL

| wooy Ajquiassy

91L0Z ‘61 AeN
S3LNNIN 9NIL3IN

(DVHD) 9apiwwo) aduel||y aieayjjeay Ajjlunwwio)

JoU3SIq 2aedurieaH A)D-LL

43



3@> HO1 VD HIWIM owuz<>°<
J23ua) [eAPaN A1D-1L m,v
&

SalnUI Jultilaw 9107 61T AR

29111WWO) B2uvf|Y 2Jed2UljEdH Ayrunulwon’ )W H
o8ed|L
‘wdgz: T Je pauinolpe sem Bunssw ssNIWWOD DVHD 910C Ael 3yl Juswuinolpy
"wdog:2T
1e 9707 ‘9T aung ‘Aepsiny] Joj pajnpayds si Hunesw 3xau ay | bunooW 1eN
SjUBWIWO)) JI|gnd ON | SjudwWIWOo) dijgnd
‘swiea) diyslapea pue sioalig
JO pJeog juand ayy Jopun Bupiey s DL UoiRdRAIp SY3 UM Addey (3,u0))
AJaA swizas Ajunwiwiod Buipunolns ayj jeyl pajou Asuoy Ano Jaquisiy suoneIunuwIwo)
2 wIwo)
N nbonaa. | 4n moTi04 NoLLOV NOISSNJsia 51401

| wooy Ajquiassy

9L0Z ‘6L Ae

SALNNIN ONILIIN
(DVHD) eopiwwo) asueljjy aJesyjjesap Ajunwiwo)
Jouysiq aJesurjea AN-HL

44



45

paaoidde aq o} aie ‘gL0zZ ‘6l IMdy
JO sajnuiw ay) jey} ‘papuodss pieebAN
10323811 ‘NB9|I8M 1032811 A paaow Sem }|

NOILON 9102 ‘6} [MdY
‘paijijes alam salnuUIp "palyel a1em sajnully JO seJNUIW JO uoneouley
way 8y}

JO UoneJIapISUOI S,99)IWW0D
-oljgnd 8y} Jo slequiaw woyy | 810494 aljgnd ay) 0} Jsaisiul
sjuswiwod Buipsebas ydesbesed Jo wey Aue uo ojgnd ayy

ounsobeq
Joy0011qg ay} peal oulsobe( 10303.1Q JO slaquiaw AgQ sjuswwo) ¢
"910C ‘LI Ae|\ jo epuabe
ayj 1daooe o) panoadde A|snowijueun
SEM }I puUB ‘papuodas )3|I9NY
10}29.1qg ‘opJejuo) "iq Agq paaow sem }|
NOILOW epuaby jo jeaouddy °Z
‘wd gg:Z1 }e Japlo o} buesw
ay} pajjeo ounsobe( 10100.41Qq Joplo 0} [|eD L
suoiIsn|auo)
a|qisuodsay jsuofjepuawiuoday suoepuaWWo23y oidoj
(s)uosiad uonoy SUoISN|2U0Y) ‘suoISSNISIq

Zopus|\ Uasjyiey ‘4susoly| uyor ug ‘meys-pleutaq ajfuay) ‘uijsiqg eAsis

yuomsuieH eseqiegq ‘(oidoooid)

100y Apor ‘Auen suspey) ‘puoweiq Asepy ‘ddo) Ayjey ‘owney Awaisp ‘|leusald alieyf ‘Z3nyog uoseys
‘ISMOYD8I SUYD ‘Xiuad luor ‘Jakswung suer ‘beymapN us|o J9fiiN Ausys ‘@100 wo] ‘pauusg piaed
19010 AbBajens jaiyn ‘Wbiuy suhkepp ‘00D ‘Asjuod endey ‘049 Bunoy ‘seary Aey

aueay] wi] ‘18y8juabul] suhepp ‘uoibuleH aA8)S ‘1IZznalei oue) ‘euolo)
yuei4 “1qg ‘optejuon snasepy “iQ ‘pieeBAN alnr J00aa1q ‘N8|IeY |UAD Jojdaliq ‘ounsobeq sswer Jojoaliq

‘Juasqy siaquiapy

juesald sisyjo

Juasaid
siaquiapyy Bunop-uoN

jJuasald si1oquiaj

9102 ‘L1 Aeiy
sa)nul s9lwwo) Buluueld pue suonesadQ ‘@oueuly

193ua) [eatpay A10-uL



010z ‘L1 Aepy

rA sBupsapy @spiwwo) Buluueld pue suopeladQ ‘eoueul

IISMOYD3IIN SHYD

suonesadQ ‘@oueul ayj jey} paroidde
Ajsnowiiueun sem }i pue ‘papuodas
opJejuo) “i1qg ‘paroul 133]|ay 103oaliqg

-J08sa1dwiod 43)|1Yo 991 Bunsixa ay)
0 Juswaoe|dai sy} Joy si lesodoud

SIU) Jey) Pale)s HSMOYISIN SHYD

eluloji|eD uiaynos
egp--ou| ‘SN aued
jesodold uswaoejday
Jossaidwod 19))1yn 99|

puowelq Aep

"009°'€.Z$ Pa39X?@ 0} JoU WwId} 3y} 1o}
}S09 |e)o} B pue ‘00Z°‘L6$ pa29Xxa 0} jJou
}S09 jenuue ue Je ‘6L0Z ‘0¢ aunr Buipud
pue 910z ‘L Ainr Buluuibaq ‘syjuow gg jo
w3} e 1o} abelanod Aiaaljap paubisseun
pue nNoIN apiroid o} sysijerdads
ABojojeuoaN A3uno) YLION azuioyne
slojoaai(q Jo pieog gHIL 3yl ey
pusawwodal dapiwwo) Bujuue|d pue
suoneladQ ‘asueuld ayj jey) paroidde
Ajshowliueun sem }I pue ‘papuodIds
BUOIOY) "I ‘PoAOW J3}jayuabui A

NOILOW

"salBAljop paubisseun

10} aJ1e9 Juejul 10} abeianod apiroid
SE ||oM SB ‘ND| |eljeuoaN 8y} 1o}
abelanod ueldisAyd 24z apinold

0] sisijeioadg ABojojeuosN AJuno)
UMUON pue ueipayyeAol "iq 10}
sojel SWes 8y} Je |eMaual Joeljuod
JeaA-¢ e 10} sem Juswoaibe

SIy} ey} paulejdxa puowelq Aep

s)sijeinadg ABojojeuoapn
Auno)d yuoN B "a'n
‘uelpayyeAo|y piweH
Juswaalby ueldisAyd
abeiano) AenaQg

paubisseun 2 NDIN

puowelq Aep

"09S‘V1L2$ P999Xa 0} JoU WI3) 3y} 1o}
JS092 je}o} e pue ‘0Zs‘L.$ pa9aodXa 0} Jou
1S09 jenuue ue je ‘L0z ‘0 aunp Bulpua
pue 910z ‘I Ainp Bujuuibaq ‘syjuows

9¢ JO uwud) e 1oy} o1ul[) dn mojjo4 jueju]
ysiy ybiH pue AuasinN uiogqmapN ayj

10} Jybisian0 apiaoud se [jam se ‘10)dauiqg
[edIpaill NOIN 9y} se uelpayyeAoly

"1g dzLoyjne si0j2ali( jo pieog

aHOL1 3Y} Jey) puawiiogad 3ajiwwo)
Buiuue|d pue suonesadQ ‘@oueulq ay)
jey) panoidde Ajshowiueun sem }I pue
‘papuodas uajjayuabul A ‘opiejuod) Qg

NOILOW

"OIUID dN-MOjj0- Juejul dsiy

ybiH 8y} pue AuasinN ulogmaN
ay} Jo 1yBiIsSIoA0 Sk ||om se

‘pels Buisinu NDOIN Yum diysiapesj
pue uoljeloge||0o ‘sbunssw

}Je @ouepusjie apnjoul 0} salnp siH
"NOIN 8y} jo diysiojoaiip [edlpaiu
s,ueipayyeAoly "iq 10} ‘sajel
awes a8y} Je |lemaual JOBJUOD
Jesf-¢ e 10} sem Juawosaibe

SIY} Jey) paAaAuod puowelq Atepy

‘amn

‘UeIpayyeAo|p plweH
4030341 [e21PSA NDIN
10} Juswaalby ueisAyd

‘e

ssauisng MaN ‘9

ssauisng pl0 'S

‘paule)sqe euolon
"1q ‘paysanbai suoneosyipow Aue Jnoym

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

suoisnjouo)
/suonepPUSWIWOIdY
uonoy

suonepUaWWO0I3Y
suolIsn|auo) ‘suoissnasiq

oido|




aL0z ‘1L kel

[y sbunasyy eemwwo) buiuueld pue suoneladp ‘eoueuly SF

‘elie)leg |[ned pue ‘g ‘ysnolojuiysed
pewweyol ‘aiN ‘mayney J1edasp
sueloisAyd jessua-ABojoipie) azuoyyne
s10}0a1i(q jo pleog AHOL a4l 1ey}
puswwodal aaiwwo) Bujuueld pue
suonesadQ ‘@sueul ay) jey) parosdde
A|snowjueun sem }i pue ‘papuodas

"asealou) ajel
Ou YUM ‘[emaudl e sem Juswaaibe
SIU1 Jeyl pakaauod JaIN Ausys

‘uojow s|buis e
Aq paianod aq pjnom spuswaalbe
[1eD-UO Q3 I|e ‘PamalAsl 8q pinom

|elauagy-Abojoipie) e

Asjuon endey Juswinoop dn-ajum yoes sjiym :obelanon ||IeD-u0 a3
/ Jo|NN Ausys eUOI0) 1] ‘PAAOW OpJejuo) “id 1ey) pajess oulysobeq Jojoaiid | Joj Juswoealby ueisAyd o
(INYO)
"116'92€$ Pa2oXxa 0} Jou wa) | 100} SoUSI9jBI BUUO SpNIIU] pInom
ayj 40} }S09 [B)0} B pue 6G2‘08¢$ G Jeak | 9SBYdInd 'G-¢ sieaA Joj aseauoul
602°8L$ ¥ 122 ‘669°GL$ € Jeak ‘6OL‘ELS %2 € 9pnjoul pjnom jnq ‘suo
Z 1edh ‘G/1L°69% | Jeah 3s0o [enuue Jeak ul asealoul ou yim syjuow
ue 10} 1202 ‘vZ Aey Buipua pue 910z ‘G2 09 Jo} sI [esodoid “soue)dwod
Aepy Buluuibaq ‘syjuow (9 Jo WLId) e Joj pue sanss| buijjiq 4o} swiejo
alemauel) Yyjm jyuawaaibe ay) szuoyjyne smalAal ‘Alo)siy swiejo sulejuiew
si0)2al1( Jo pieog AHIOL 3yl ey yoiym ‘1azAjeuy ||1g ays sl
puswwiodal IPIuwoH mc_::m_n_ pue _mmoao._a 8y} Ul papnoul osly "s|iiq
suonesadQ ‘eoueuld ayj Jeyy paroidde | |eydsoy sjeiousb 0) pasn aiemyos
A|snowiueun sem }| pue ‘papuodas | Huq Jo} [emaual e sem [esodoid
Xjuad uor opJejuo) "iQg ‘parow 333||9) 10393liQ SIUY} jey} paAaAuod xiuad uor | [esodold "ou| ‘esemauel) ‘p

‘Jiun juasaud ay} jJo
Jainjoenuew ay} Sl oym ‘ou) ‘sn
auel] WOl Sem paAladal asuodsal
Aluo ay] ‘piq 104 3no Ind sem
|esodoud siyj ‘Aoijod Jad “Jayleam
Jawem ay} Buunp jeydsoy ay)
|002 Ajjn} 01 A)ljIgeUl UB 8INHISUOD
PINOM JI ‘j1B} 49][IYD Jud1IND
*€62°G6$ JO 1509 |B}O} Wnwixew e 9y} pjnoys ‘spuewsap Bujjood
10} 10ssaidwod J3[[IYD @21 Jo Juswase|dal paseaioul Buunp [iej Aew Jajiyo
1o} auel] Yyjm juawaaibe ue azuoyjne 3y} Jey) SuI1aoUu0d aie 819y} Jey)
s10)9311( Jo pieog dHIL 3y} ey} pue ‘yesj Juelabujol e sey Ja||Iyo

puswiwooas ddPIwwo) bujuue|d pue 991 JuUaIND 8y} Jey) pauie|dxs aH auel|

suojIsnjauo)
a|qisuodsay Jsuoljepuawwiosdy suoljepuawiuo2ay oido|

(s)uosiag

uonoy

SUOISN|IU0Y ‘SUOISSNISI




910z ‘L1 Aeiy

v sbunaesyy sapiwwo) Buluueld pue suonelado ‘eoueuld G

Ayep je ‘2102 ‘0€ aunf Buipus pue 910z
‘b Aine Buluuibaq ‘syjuow Zj jo wua) e
10} suedisAyd abesano) jjen-q3 A1abing
s1oeIoyjOIpIR) 3Y) Se ‘g ‘UspMmOoH
}ouapaid pue gIN ‘ypdyjo4 aiopoay)
sueioisAyd A1a6ing d1oeIOYjOIpIRD
azuoyjne s10}2aliqg Jo pleoq

AHOL 2y} Jey) puswiiosal [P0
Buiuue|d pue suopetadQ ‘asueul]

ayj} jeyy paroidde Ajsnowiueun sem jl
pue ‘Ajshowijueun Sem )i pue ‘papuodas
BU0I0Y "I ‘paAOW oplejuo) "ud

"L10Z Ad 10} 000°262$ 40 3S0D

w3} pue jenuue |ejo} e 10} ‘000°‘6L2$ 10
35092 [enuue ue 1o} ‘|INILS-009$ ‘000°CL$
JO }SO2 |enuue ue 1o} [eidud9-00¢$

jo ajes Apep e je /102 ‘0€ aunr Bulpus
pue 910z ‘1 AIne Buluuibaq ‘syjuow

Z1 Jo uud) e Joj sueldisAyd abelano)
lle9-a3 |ereuan-ABojoipie) sy} se AN
‘lebaldg piaeq pue QN ‘JoHBYS-|T WwiLiey
‘a ‘ue)d Yypeuuay| sueldisAyd |NILS

R |essuan)-ABojoipies ay) azLioyne
$40323.1Q jo pieog QHOL 943 ey}
puswiwosal aNuwo) bujuue|d pue
suonesadQ ‘@aueulq ayj jey) parosdde
Ajsnowiueun sem }i pue ‘papuooas
BUOI0Y "1 ‘pdAOW oOpiejuo) iqd

"LL0Z Ad 10} 000°EL$

JO }S09 W3} pue |enuue |ejo} e 10} ‘00Z$
jo ajeu Ajrep e je ‘210g ‘0¢ aunr Buipua
pue 910¢Z ‘I AInp Bujuuibaq ‘syjuow

Z1 0 w9} e 10} sueldisAyd abeiano)
l1eD-a3 [esauan-ABojoipie) ay} se g

"gsealoul ajel
ou Y)M ‘|emaual B sem juswaalbe
SIY} 1ey} paAaAuod Jo||IN Auays

"asealou] ajel
OU Y)IM ‘|lemausl e sem Juswaaibe
SIU} 1By} paAaAuod 9| Ausys

Asbing o1oeIoyjOIpIR)

INTLS
B |essuasy-Abojoipie)

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiagd

SuoISN|ouU0)
/suoijepUAWWI0IdY
uonoy

SUOIJEPUBWIIOIBY
SUOISN|2U0Y ‘suoissnasiq

oido]|




glLoz ‘L1 Aen o sBunesyy 9aniwwo) Buluueld pue suoneladQ ‘eoueuly

Ajrep e je 810z ‘0¢ aunr Bulpua pue 9102
‘L Ainpe Buuuibaq ‘syjuow g Jo wid) e
10} ueidisAyd abesano) |led-a3 A1abing
jeasuan) ay) se suedisAyd L1abing
Jelauan) anoge ay) azuoyjne siojoallqg
jJo pieog gHIL 3yl Jey} puswwiodal
sapIwwon Buluue|d pue suonesadQ
‘asueuld ayj jey) pasosdde Ajsnowjueun
sem }1 pue ‘papuodas ‘papuodas | OU UM ‘lemaual B sem Juswaaibe

BUOIOY "I ‘PAAOW OpIBIUO) “id SIy} Jeyy pekaauod Jo|liN Auays £iobing [e1ouss) e

‘asealoul ajel

"006°65€$ 40 3502

w19} |ejo) e 10j ‘gL0Z Ad 103 0656°6LL$
pue /10Z Ad 10} 05661 $ 30 }SOD |enuue
ue Joj ‘Aepung-Aepud 065$ pue Aepsinyl
-fepuoly 0S¢ Jo ajel Ajlep e je g0z ‘0
aunp Butpua pue g0z ‘L AIne Buluuibaq
‘syjuow g Jo wia) e 10} sueldisAyd
abesano) [[D-a3 LN3 34} se AN
‘emypep Ysiusy ‘aii ‘uewsiay asnig
‘AN ‘eIYya NIANY ‘A ‘siAoqgaT] duep
‘an ‘sqooer paqoy ‘aiN ‘uleIzsploo
ueusaH ‘il ‘epezje) Aalpny ‘Qil

‘Allag alnp suerdisAyd | N3 azoyine
$10303.1Q jo pieog AHOL 24} jeyy
puswwodal Ivjiwwo) buiuue|d pue

suonesadQ ‘@oueuly ayj jey} pasosdde ‘9Sealoul ajel e apn|oul pjnom
Ajsnowjueun sem }i pue ‘papuodas pue ‘[emaual e sem juswiaaibe (yeouy
BUO0IO0) "1 ‘PaAOW Opiejuo) ud siy} 1ey) paAaauod J9|INy Aueys ¥ 9SON ‘Jeg) INJ e
"L1L02

Ad 10} 0G2°€22$ 3O }SOD W) pue [enuue
[e30} B 10} ‘O1oBIOY ] 10} G/8'9ELS 4O

JSOD WLId) pue jenuue ue 1o} Ajiep G/¢$ Jo
ajes Ajiep e pue ‘oeipJe) 10} 5/8°9¢L$ JO
JSOD W3} puk Jenuue ue 1oy G/£$ Jo ajel

suoisn|auo’n
a|qisuodsay /suonepuswwoddy suoREPUIWWOIDY oidoj
(s)uosrayg uonoy SUOISN|2U0Y) ‘sUoISShIsI|g




9102 ‘2L AReN 9 sBunesyy seniwwo) Buluueld pue suonesadQ ‘eoueuly B

‘8102 Ad 10} 00'V1LES PUE ‘L10C Ad 104
008‘€1LE$ JO }1SOD |enuue ue 10} ‘Aepijoy
/ puaxaam 000‘L$ pue Aepyaam 008$
jo ajeu Ajiep e je 810z ‘o€ aunr Buipus
pue 910z ‘I Ainr Buluuibaqg ‘syjuows
$Z 30 wuad) e 1o} ueldishyd abeiano) |jed
-g3 NAD/FO ue se g ‘qipv-lwiyelqy
zeuue] uejoisAyd NAD/DO @zuoyjne
s10)2311Q jo pieog QHOL 243 ey}
puawwioosas aapwwo) bBuluue|d pue ’
suonesadQ ‘aoueuly oy jey) peaoidde | AIPY-ILUILEIQT ZEULBL ig s|qibye
Ajsnowiueun sem ) pue ‘papuodas mou Buippe ‘Juswasife mau e
BU0I0A "1 ‘POAOW OPJEIUOD “I(] sI sIY} 1ey} paurejdxa Jo|jiN Aisys NAD/EO o

‘sasuadxo wia) ul abueyo
ou yum ‘|jaued Bupsixs sy) 0}

*210Z Ad 10} ‘000°612$ 30 350D

w19} puUk [enuuE Ue 1o} ‘009$ Jo ajed Ajiep
e e 2102 ‘0¢ aunp Buipua pue 91.0Z ‘I
AInp Bujuuibaq ‘syjuow g| Jo uLid} e 1oy
sueldisAyd abesano) |jed-a3 ABojoipey
[euonuaAiauj 3y} se g ‘Uoxes pieyony
‘am ‘23uod pjeuoq ‘QiNl ‘PNON [3eydIiN
‘an ‘Buipoon unsnr ‘Al ‘2809

ueng ‘g ‘oxng |9eysi suerdtsAyd
ABojoipey [euoljuaAIdlu] dzLioyne
s10}234iQ jo pleog QHOL 3y} ey}
puswwodal a9 iwwo) Bujuueld pue

suoneladQ ‘@oueuld ayj jeyj parosdde ‘osealoul sjel
K|snowjueun sem }i pue ‘papuodsas | OU UM ‘|emausdl e sem Juswaaibe
BUOIO0Y "I ‘POAOW OpPIRIUOY) “i( sIy) 1ey) pakeauoo Jajiiy Ausys | ABojoipey |euoijuamsiul e

"0022S$ Jo wus)

3y} 10} }S09 |e)0} pajoadxa ue je sased
Awo0399)sA23|0Yyd papunjun 10} ased
Jad 6z/$ Jo Juswaesinquial :000°220‘L$
JO uLId) 3y} 10§ }SOD |B)O) B pue 000°LLSS
JO 1S09 |enuue ue 1o} ‘00p‘L$ JO ajeu

suoIsnjouo)
a|qisuodsay /SUOREPUAWIWOI3Y SUOEPUAWIWO2Y oidoj
(s)uosiag uonoy suoISN|doU0?) ‘suolissnasiq




910z ‘2L e

l sBunesyy sapiwwo) Buiuuejd pue suoneladQ ‘@oueuld [n

si0j2a11Q jo pieog AHOL 94U} jey)
puawwooal 99)jwwo) buluuejd pue
suopnesadQ ‘@oueuld ayj jey) paroidde
A|snowjueun sem )i pue ‘papuodds
euUOJO) "1 ‘paAOW oplejuo) “Id

'L1L0C

Ad 10} 062221 $ JO 1SOD uLId) pue |enuue
ue 1o} ‘0SE$ Jo ajel Ajiep e je /102 ‘0€
aunp Buipua pue 910z ‘} Ainr Buluuibaqg
‘syjuowl Z| jo wua} e Joy suepdisAyd
abesano) |[eD-a3 ABojoin 3y} se AN
‘Kysmeysiep Inyuy ‘an ‘(ojabuejod)
SIY9JIA duijosed ‘ai ‘sdiljiud

uosep ‘g ‘euaians) [9eydi| ‘QiN ‘19iseld
Kajprig sueldisAyd ABojoin szuoyine
sJ10}22liq Jo pieog AHOL 84} ey}
puawwooai aaiuwo? Buluue|d pue
suoneiadQ ‘@oueul] ayj} jey) pasoidde
Ajsnowjueun sem }| pue ‘papuodas
U010 "I ‘paAOW opiejuo) "idg

"L1L0¢C

Ad 10} 062°221$ JO }S02 W9} pue jenuue
ue 10} ‘05€$ Jo ajel Ajlep e je 210g ‘0€
aunp Buipua pue 9102 ‘I AInr Buluuibeq
‘syjuow g| Jo wLiad) ke 1o} uerdisiyd
abeiano) ||eH-ad A1abing xe/jelO 9y}
se ‘sad ‘Ppny ueng ueldisAyd aziioyjne
$10}00l1Q jo pieog AHOL 943 ey}
puawwodsal 3dNHWwo) buluue|d pue
suoneltadQ ‘@oueulq ayj ey} parosdde
Ajsnowiiueun sem }1 pue ‘papuodas
BUOIOY "1 ‘paAOW Op.lejuod) “id

"002'829$ 0 3502 UL} [ej0} e 10}

"aseaJOuUl 8)el B sapn|oul
pue ‘|lemaual e sem Juswaalbe
siy) Jey) pakaAuod JajlIN Ausys

"asealoul djel
OU YIM ‘|emaudl e sem juswaaibe
Siy} Jey) pakaAuod Ja|IN Aueys

"9sealoul ajel
OU YlIM ‘|emaual e sem Juswoalbe
SIY) 1Y) paAaAuod Jo||N Aleys

Aabing Jejnosep

Aiebing ABojoin

Aobing xepn/elo

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosrayg

suoIsn|auo)
/suoljepuswwoddy
uondy

suoepuawWWIoddNY
suolsn|suo) ‘suoissnasiqg

oidoy




9102 ‘L1 Aen

8 sBunesyy sepwwo) buluued pue suoessdQ ‘@oueuld S

owiey Awaisf

Jpjayjsay pue Jase Jo uoisiaoid

ay) Joj} yimo|g uoseys “1q abebus

0} Jouysiq 9y} Aq paAIas sauNnwiwod ay)
Jo yjjeay atjqnd ayj jo )sasajul 3saq ayj ul
31 puy siojoallq jo piseog AHOL 343 jey)
puswwooas a9apwwo) buluuejd pue
suonesadQ ‘@sueul ay) jey) paroidde
A|snowijueun sem }i pue ‘papuodas
pieeBAN 10)0a11Q ‘paAOW BUOIOD "I

‘pansua uoissnasip Jueoylubis
‘alen) Aewld

AID-1] e S9oIAISS Ddljay)sae

pue Jase| apiaoid 0} }IMo|S uoleys
"1g Yum aqg pinom juswasaibe
S92IAIBS [BUOISSD)0Id Yluow ¢
SIY} Jey} paAanuod owley Awalsp

‘d’IN YMo|S uoleys e
Juswaalby
$82IAI9G |euolIssajold b

ddo] AyyeyM

‘WG9l $ JOo wis}

8y} 10} }S09 |B)O) B puk WG G$ Paadxa

0} JOU }SO9 |enuue ue 1oj 6L0Z ‘0¢ aunp
Huipua pue 910z ‘I Ainp Buluuibaq ‘sieak
€ JO uLId) ke 1o} YjjeaH pallly pue Buisinu
104 Buyyeys [eyuawajddns 10} ‘salouaby
aja|ap 10 ppe 0} AN|IGIXS} YIM ‘SIOPUSA
Ansibay yym juswaaibe ayj azuoyjne
$10}23.1Q jo pieog AHOL 9y} ey}
puswiwodas aswwo) Buluue|d pue
suoneladQ ‘@oueuld ayj jey) parosdde
A|snowjueun sem ji pue ‘papuodas
opJejuo’) “i1qg ‘pasou 139|19y 1032341

‘pansua uoIssnos|p juedsylubis
"pa1oNpuod

ale sweiboud Buluiesy peib mau
pue pally ale jjejs 2109 |euolippe
se ‘pajoaloid s| /102 A4 10} SIS02
JajeAel) pue Axsibaa ul uoionpal
e Jey} paAsAuod os|e ays

"A||e00] pue Ajjeuolnjeu yjoq ssjel
pasealoul yum ‘yejs |ejuswaiddns
Jo} wniwaid e je s| puewsap

1ey} pajels Jaypn) ays ‘selouedeA
JJB)S pue spuewsp swn|oA

uo juspuadsp ale pue ‘pasu Jo
auwi) ayj e siapinodd Jo Aljigejieae
ay} o} anp AleA s)s09 ay |
‘S]0BJJU0D J9|aAel) pue Ansibal 10y
puads |enuue 8y} 104 s| Juswaalbe
siy) Jeyj pautejdxe ddo] Ayjey

Juswaalby
19jenel] @ Annsibay )

"0G. L1 L$ JO ula) 8y} 10} SO |ejo) e

pue ‘0GZ‘L£Z$ 40 }S09 |enuue ue 1o} ‘059$
jo ajeu Ajiep e je 6102 ‘0¢ sunf Buipua
pue 9102 ‘} AiIne Buluuibaq ‘syjuow 9¢
JO wuId) e 1o} sueldisAyd abesano |jed
-g3 A1sbung Jejnasep ayj) se OQd ‘peuzsnN
-Iplyswer pawweyo pue gu ‘1swsaqg
malpuy sueldisAyd Jejnasep azuoyine

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

suoisn|aouon
/SUOIIEPUAWIWIOIdY
uonay

SUOHEPUBWIOIDY
SUOISN|OU0Y) ‘suoissnoasiq

oido)




9102 ‘Ll Ae

6 sbunesyy sapwwo) Buluueld pue suogeladQ ‘edueuld 3

SeAly Aey

€6l snsua) Ajieq "bAy
dLAd — siojedipuj] A3y — DINDL

€161 ¢ Iuswames Px3 3083
(go1) ¢ 3043
098'cl ¢ uswspes "[OX3 valig3a
c8L'lL $ valig3
19G°18C $ asuadx3 BunesadQ
018'822 $ snuaAsy Bunesedp

ajeq o) Jeaj |edsi]
(spuesnoyy

u s1e|jop) 9102 ‘0¢ i4dy Buipua
s|eloueUl} 8y} pajussald seAly Aey

sjeloueul{ I

owney Awalar

"61L0°L9€$ p@adxa 0}

jJou }S09 uoiejjejsul pue aseyaind [ejo}
awn-auo e 1o} (uonesbajui adoososoiw
ypm IN3J pue jelueld) wajsAs
uonebiAeN 9]IqON 2AIND,, qejuielg wajl
juawdinba jejides jo aseyaind 10§ "ouj
‘gejuielg YyjIm juswaaibe ayj azuoyyne
S10jo341(Q Jo pieog dHIL 3y} 1eyy
pusawuwoo3l 3dHwWwwo) buluue|d pue
suoneiadQ ‘aosueulq ayj jeyy parosdde
Ajsnowjueun sem }| pue ‘papuooas
N3|I9y 1032341 ‘paAOwW opiejuo) “iqg

‘pansua uoissnasip juedsyiubig
‘91L0C Ad

ul eseyosnd Joj swa)l Juswdinba
[eudeo panoidde jo 31si| 8y} uo

S| Wayl Siy} jo Juswaoeldal ay) jey}
pajou pue ‘aAIny) gejuielg ay} Jo
salnjea; ayj buljiejap uonejussaid
JuI044emod jouq e aneb

8y ‘uonippe u] "10puaA ay} Aq
pauoddns aq Jebuoj ou pjnom pue
‘aunp ui 8y JO pua s} yoeal pjnom
Wwa)sAs LIqI|OY] JuUS.LIND 8y} Jey)
pajels a4 °sadines |eolbins JNJ
pue Aisbinsoinau ul asn 10} paje|s
‘weysAs uonebineu aang gejuielg
ay} 1oy Buluiel) @ uoneuswWNISUI
‘uoie|eisul ‘eseyoind

awp-auo ay) Jo} sem |esodoud

SIy} 1ey) paule|dxs owiey Awaisp

|[esodold waisAs
uonebineN ajiqop
LMD, gejuielg

JO uone|eisu| g aseyoind 'y

‘Su0I13293}|02 ssolb

JO %0 P999Xa 0} Jou jJunowe ayj je
‘2102 ‘0€ aunp Bulpua pue 910 ‘L aunp
Buluuibaq ‘wIad) Yjuowl-g L B 10} SAJIAIBS

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

sSuoIsnjouo)
/SUOIIEPUAWIWIOIdY
uopoy

sSuoiEepUAWLIOIDY
SUOoISN|2U0Y) ‘suoIssnasiq

oido}




910z ‘Ll Aen ol sBunespy sepiwwo) Buluuelq pue suonesedQ ‘eoueuld o

Ae)s jo yibua

abelony aJnoy-ONDL ®
S}HSIA Juswpedaq

RAousbisw3-ONDL
sheq

juaned paisnlpy-ONDL
(swogmap Buipnjox3
[eudsoH |ejol) ‘snsus)

Alreq sbeleay-ONOL
3|qQeAI809Y SJUNOJJY

Juaned ut shkeq 1oN-ONOL

:sydeus)
0’8y /v 19N ul sAeq ‘BAY Ad
gLy $ (suoyiw un)

/V Wusled 18N ‘BAyY A4
Jea) jeasi4 Ag

d/V 39N Ul sAeq 2 ¥/V Jusijed 1aN

4] e SUSIA a3
681 SETIEV g
0Sg sase) Aebing
199'6 sAe( ysned pajsnipy
102 snsua) Alleq ‘bay

YJUuoN
jusiIn?y — si10jedipuj Aayl — DL
lee $ 30d3
oes’t $ valig3

12562 $ asuadx3 bunesad
90¢'6Z $ anuaAay bunesadp

YIUO\ Juaiing

— Atewiwing jeioueuld - gHO1
600°GS SUSIA a3
LS1°C sslBAla(g
€9¢'S sase) Aabing
LE8'V6 sAe( jualjed pajsnipy

suoIsnjouo)
a|qisuodsay /suonepuswwosdy SUOJepuaWWOoI3Y aidoj
(s)uosisayg uonoy SUoISN|2U0Y) ‘suoissnasi|g




9102 ‘L1 RelN

Ll sbunssypy sanwiwo) buluueld pue suoneladQ ‘eoueul

ddo] Ayieym

neuuag pineq

puowejq Aep

uewuieyn

ue|d }4OM dY3} AJipow 0} yuomsuleH eseqlegq

ndybnoayy

MOJ} Juaned apim-jejidsoy
Buinoidwi ay) pajielap yoiym
apl|s uI0dlamod e psjuasaid
Ayrey] 1exoed By} ul papnjoul
SJUBWN20P 8y} O} Uollippe U|

910¢

AIne Ul 8q pjnom J8UdY SSBUIOAN
ay) 4o} a1epdn 1xau ay) jey) pealbe
SEM ]I pue pansus uoissnasIp
BWOS '18JUdY) SSaU|IBM

ay} Jo Buunioniisas swos Bul
-J9pISU0D S| 8Y ey} pajou yjsuusg
piaeq ‘1exoed ay} ul papnjoul
JUSWINO0pP 8y} 0} uollippe u|

"uoloalip aAlisod [|eiaA0

ue ul Bulnow s1 )1 ‘MO|S uaaq

sey Juawanolidwi ajiym jeyy psjou
ays "9102 YoJe ybnoiyy sjeatsiul
1N0/as00 g Janouin) abeloae
Alyjuow sy} pue sinoy awiy swud
Bunnp yuow Aq sabejusotad
uolezi|in %o0[q [ejo} ay} ‘swly uo
Bun.eys sased jo abejusosad sy
Buijielap uoneasaid Juiodiomod
Jouq e papinoid puoweiq Aepy

‘'suonsanb

)SE 0} SWOI|aM S1aM slaquisl
a9IWIWOoY) Ing ‘AJUo MalAL

1o} a1oMm swayl epuabe asay)
ley) pauodals ouljsobeq J0108.1

indybnouay |
/ pieog pag xauoly e

JBJua)) ssouU|op\  ©

(Bunesiu 4O judy wouy petisjep)
Aiabing ‘uoyoanq [eoipaN  ©

Aluo
uojjewloju| — ue|d YoM il

55

Apauenp
‘3043 pue yallg3-GHOL °

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

sSuoISnjouo)
/suoiepUaWWOIdY
uonoy

SUOIJEPUBWILIOIDY
SUOISN[2U0Y) ‘suoissnasiq

oidoj




sbunesyy sapwwo)) buluueld pue suopeladQ ‘edoueuld 8

910z ‘L Aen 45

wd gQ:z pausnolpe Bunasy Juswuinolpy ‘0l
(suou)

sbuiuadp Ajunwwio) ‘6

ey 910¢ ‘Lg8unr buneaw jxau jo sjeq 'g
S1aquIB|\ SaRIWIWOD

Jieydn SUON AQ sjuswwo) 7

uoISSNISIpP ON

SeAly Aey ‘pleoquseq pieoquseq e

‘pensua uoissnosip jueoyiubis

sSuoIsSnjouo)

a|qisuodsay /SUOIIEPUBWIWIOIDY SuUONEPUSWIOIY
(s)uosiag uonay sSuoISNjouU0Y) ‘suoiIssnasi

oido}




- ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

> YOU

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT FOR NICU MEDICAL DIRECTOR

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal —Same
X
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates Rates
Physician’s Name: Hamid Movahhedian, M.D.
Area of Service: NICU
Term of Agreement: 36 months, Beginning, July 1, 2016 — Ending, June 30, 2019
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
Hours per
Responsibilities: Rate / Month Hours Monthly Cost Annual Cost | 36 month (Term) Cost
Hour per Year Not to Exceed Not to Exceed
Not to Exceed
Medical Director $149 20 240 $2,980 $35,760 $107,280
Oversight Newborn
Nursery & HRIFC $149 20 240 $2,980 $35,760 $107,280
Totals: $71,520 $214,560

Position Responsibilities:
e Medical Director duties, meetings, collaboration with NICU nursing staff and leadership

e Oversight of Newborn Nursery and High Risk Infant Follow up Clinic

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: | X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Mary Diamond, Sr. Director, Nursing - Surgical Services /
Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize Dr. Movahhedian as the NICU Medical Director, as well as provide oversight for the Newborn
Nursery and High Risk Infant Follow up Clinic for a term of 36 months, beginning July 1, 2016 and ending
June 30, 2019, at an annual cost not to exceed $71,520, and a total cost for the term not to exceed
$214,560.

57



" ADVANCED HeALTH CAR

FOR Y@ U

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
NICU & UNASSIGNED DELIVERY COVERAGE PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Physician’s Name: Hamid Movahhedian, M.D. & North County Neonatology Specialists
Area of Service: NICU
Term of Agreement: 36 months, Beginning, July 1, 2016 — Ending, June 30, 2019

Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES

Monthly Annual Cost 36 month (Term) Cost

Responsibilities: Cost Not to Exceed Not to Exceed

In-House On-Call Coverage Duties,
24/7, 365

Position Responsibilities:

$7,600 $91,200 $273,600

e 24/7 Physician coverage for the Neonatal ICU
e Coverage for unassigned deliveries (infant care)

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: | X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Mary Diamond, Sr. Director, Nursing - Surgical Services /
Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive
Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize North County Neonatology Specialists to provide NICU and unassigned delivery coverage for a
term of 36 months, beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2019, at an annual cost not to exceed
$91,200, and a total cost for the term not to exceed $273,600.

58



*. ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
Ice Chiller Compressor Replacement Proposal

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel Other:
- | —Sam
Status of Agreement X | New Agreements Ezr\:::::es E:::Swa Same
Vendor’s Name: Trane US, Inc. dba Southern California Trane
Area of Service: Central Plant - Facilities
Term of Agreement: 12 months, or completion of work
Maximum Totals: $55,753

Description of Services/Supplies:

e Currentice chiller has internal refrigerant leak

e Anticipate compressor may fail during increased cooling demands

e Compressor failure would constitute inability to fully cool the hospital during heat

e Only public bid received on April 15, 2016 was Train US, Inc.

( e Trane is the only manufacturer of replacement compressor

e Existing chiller manufactured by Trane
Document Submitted to Legal: X | Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X | Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X | No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Chris Miechowski, Director of Facilities / Kapua Conley,
Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

I move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors

authorize an agreement with Trane for replacement of ice chiller compressor for a maximum total cost of
$55,753.

59



" ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@ U

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
Craneware, Inc. Proposal

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X | Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement X New Rates Rates
Vendor’s Name: Craneware, Inc.
Area of Service: Patient Accounting

Term of Agreement: 60 months, Beginning, May 25, 2016 - Ending, May 24, 2021

Maximum Totals:

Annual Cost Bill 2% Annual Monthly | Total Annual
(excluding Bill Analyzer) | Analyzer Increase Cost Cost
Yearl $69,175 S0 SO $5,765 $69,175
Year 2 $69,175 $2,500 $1,434 $6,092 $73,109
Year 3 $69,175 $5,000 $1,484 $6,305 $75,659
Year 4 $69,175 $7,500 $1,534 $6,517 $78,209
Year 5 $69,175 $10,000 $1,584 $6,730 $80,759
. Total: $376,911

Description of Services/Supplies:
Products included in Purchase:

e Charge Description Master — lists all hospital charges, approximately 9,500 charges
o Used to generate bills

o The CDM is a public document published by OSHPD
e Bill Analyzer: Claims History, review claims for billing issues, compliance, etc.

e Pricing Analyzer: Compares data with competitors to ensure prices are not out of line. Creates report tool
for price charges & financial impact.

e Online Reference Tool (ORM) provides CMS transmittals & updates. CMS manual, CPT code details, APCs,
modifiers, NCDs, Medical Necessity, Medicare & Medi-Cal billing rules, payment/ pricing estimates.

Document Submitted to Legal: Yes X No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Joni Penix, Director, Patient Financial Services / Ray Rivas, Acting
Chief Financial Officer

Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors authorize the
agreement with Craneware for a term of 60 months, beginning May 25, 2016 and ending May 24, 2021 for an

annual cost year 1 $69,175, year 2 $73,109, year 3 $75,659, year 4 $78,209 year 5 $80,759 and a total cost for the
term not to exceed $376,911.

60



FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE - Cardiology-General

Type of Agreement Medical Directors | X | Panel Other:

Status of Agreement New Agreement :er:::; X i:::swal ~Same
Physician’s Name: Oscar Matthew, MD, Mohammad Pashmforoush, MD, Paul Sarkaria, MD
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Cardiology-General
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2016 — Ending, June 30, 2017
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES

For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage:

Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost

$200 FY17:365 $73,000

Position Responsibilities:

e Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Cardiology-General specialty services in accordance with
Medical Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: | X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff / Kapua Conley,
Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize Cardiology-General physicians Oscar Matthew, MD, Mohammad Pashmforoush, MD, and Paul
Sarkaria, MD as the Cardiology-General ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a term of 12 months, beginning
July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017, at a daily rate of $200, for a total annual and term cost of $73,000
for FY 2017.

61



FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE - Cardiology-General/STEMI

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Physician’s Name: Kenneth Carr, MD, Karim El-Sherief, MD, David Spiegel, MD
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Cardiology - General and STEMI
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2016 - Ending, June 30, 2017
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage:
Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost
$200 - General FY17: 365 $73,000
$600 - STEMI FY17:365 $219,000
Total Cost: $292,000

Position Responsibilities:

e Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Cardiology-General & STEMI specialty services in accordance
with Medical Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: | X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff / Kapua Conley,
Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize the Cardiology-General & STEMI physicians Kenneth Carr, MD, Karim El-Sherief, MD and David
Spiegel, MD as the Cardiology-General ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a term of 12 months, beginning
July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017 at a daily rate of $200-General for an annual cost of $73,000, $600-
STEMI, for an annual cost of $219,000, for a total annual and term cost of $292,000 for FY 2017.

62



o5 ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@ U

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE — Cardiothoracic Surgery

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Physician’s Name: Theodore Folkerth, MD, Frederick Howden, MD
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Cardiothoracic Surgery
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2016 — Ending, June 30, 2017
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage:
Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost
Cardiac: $375 FY17: 365 $136,875
Thoracic: $375 FY17: 365 $136,875
Total Cost: $273,750

Position Responsibilities:

e Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Cardiothoracic Surgery specialty services in accordance with
Medical Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: | X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager Medical Staff / Kapua Conley,
Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize Cardiothoracic Surgery physicians Theodore Folkerth, MD and Frederick Howden, MD, as the
Cardiothoracic Surgery ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2016 and
ending June 30, 2017, at daily rate of $375 for an annual and term cost of $136,875 for Cardiac, and a
daily rate of $375 daily for an annual and term cost of $136,875 for Thoracic, for a total annual and term
cost of $273,750 for FY 2017.

63



FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE - ENT

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement X New Rates Rates
Physician’s Name: Julie Berry, MD, Audrey Calzada, MD, Hernan Goldsztein, MD,

Robert Jacobs, MD, Marc Lebovits, MD, Ritvik Mehta, MD,
Bruce Reisman, MD, Ashish Wadhwa, MD

Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: ENT
Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning, July 1, 2016 — Ending, June 30, 2018
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage:
Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost
$450/Monday-Thursday FY17: 208 $93,600
$550/Friday-Sunday FY17: 157 $86,350
$450/Monday-Thursday FY18: 208 $93,600
$550/Friday-Sunday FY18: 157 586,350
Total Term Cost: $359,900

Position Responsibilities:

e Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all ENT specialty services in accordance with Medical Staff Policy
#8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: | X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff / Kapua Conley,
Chief Operating Officer

Motion: | move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of
Directors authorize ENT physicians Julie Berry, MD, Audrey Calzada, MD, Hernan Goldsztein, MD, Robert
Jacobs, MD, Marc Lebovits, MD, Ritvik Mehta, MD, Bruce Reisman, MD, Ashish Wadhwa, MD as the ENT
ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2018 at a
daily rate of $450 Monday-Thursday and $550 Friday-Sunday, for an annual cost of $179,950 for FY 2017
and $179,950 for FY 2018, for a tota! term cost of $359,900.

64



" ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@ U

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE — General Surgery

Type of Agreement Medical Directors | X | Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal -~ Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Physician’s Name: Andrew Deemer, MD, Adam Fierer, MD, Dhruvil Gandhi, MD,

Karen Hanna, MD, Mohammed Jamshidi-Nezhad, DO,
Eric Rypins, MD, Katayoun Toosie, MD

Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: General Surgery
Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning, July 1, 2016 — Ending, June 30, 2018
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage:
Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost
FY17: 365 days $511,000
>1,400 FY18: 365 days $511,000
Unfunded Cholecystectomy | Estimated Cases per Estimated
Cost Year Annual Cost
FY17:36 $26,100
2725, per case FY18: 36 $26,100

Position Responsibilities:

e Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all General Surgery specialty services in accordance with Medical
Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and regulatory
requirements.

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff Services / Kapua
Conley, Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize the above General Surgery physicians as the General Surgery ED-Call Coverage Physician for a
term of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2018 at a daily rate of $1,400, for an

annual cost of $511,000 and a total cost for the term of $1,022,000; reimbursement of $725 per case for
unfunded cholecystectomy cases at an expected total cost for the term of $52,200.

65



" ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

_ R YOU

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE - Interventional Radiology

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates

Physician’s Name:

Area of Service:
Term of Agreement:

Maximum Totals:

Michael Burke, MD, Brian Goelitz, MD, Justin Gooding, MD,
Michael Noud, MD, Donald Ponec, MD, Richard Saxon, MD

Emergency Department On-Call: Interventional Radiology

12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2016 — Ending, June 30, 2017

Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage:

Rate/Day

Panel Days per Year

Panel Annual Cost

$600

FY17: 365

$219,000

Position Responsibilities:

e Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Interventional Radiology specialty services in accordance
with Medical Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

¢ Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: | X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff / Kapua Conley,

Chief Operating Officer
Motion:

I move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize Interventional Radiology physicians Michael Burke, MD, Brian Goelitz, MD, Justin Gooding, MD,
Michael Noud, MD, Donald Ponec, MD, Richard Saxon, MD as the Interventional Radiology ED-Call
Coverage Physicians for a term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017 at a daily
rate of $600, for an annual and term cost of $219,000, for FY 2017.

66



FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE - OB/GYN

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal —Same
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement New Rates Rates
Physician’s Names: Tannaz Ebrahimi-Adib, MD
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: OB/GYN
Term of Agreement: 24 months, Beginning, July 1, 2016 ~ Ending, June 30, 2018
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES

For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage:

Current Panel Days per | Current Panel

Rate/Day Year Annual Cost
$800/weekday FY17: 256 $204,800
$1,000/weekend/holiday FY17: 109 $109,000
$800/weekday FY18: 253 $202,400
$1,000/weekend/holiday FY18: 112 $112,000
Total Term Cost: $628,200

Position Responsibilities:

e Provide 24/7 patient coverage for OB/GYN specialty services in accordance with Medical Staff Policy
#8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and regulatory
requirements.

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: | X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager Medical Staff / Kapua Conley, Chief
Operating Officer

Motion: | move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize OB/GYN physician Tannaz Ebrahimi-Adib, MD as an OB/GYN ED-Call Coverage Physician for a term
of 24 months, beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2018 at a daily rate of $800 weekday and $1,000
weekend / holiday, for an annual cost of $313,800 for FY 2017, and $314,400 for FY 2018, for a total term
cost of $628,200.

67



" ADVANCED HEALTH CAR

. R YOU

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE - Oral/Max Surgery

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same

Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Physician’s Name: Brian Mudd, DDS
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Oral/Max Surgery
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2016 — Ending, June 30, 2017
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES

For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage:
Rate/Day Panel Days per Year Panel Annual Cost
$350 FY17: 365 $127,750

Position Responsibilities:

( e Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Oral/Max Surgery specialty services in accordance with
Medical Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: | X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff / Kapua Conley,
Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

I move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize physician Brian Mudd, DDS, as the Oral/Max Surgery ED-Call Coverage Physician for a term of 12
months, beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017 at a daily rate of $350, for an annual and term
cost of $127,750 for FY 2017.

68



FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE — Urology Surgery

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal —Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement New Rates X Rates
Physician’s Name: Bradley Frasier, MD, Michael Guerena, MD, Jason Phillips, MD,
Caroline Vilchis (Colangelo), MD, Arthur Warshawsky, MD
Area of Service: Emergency Department On-Call: Urology Surgery
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, July 1, 2016 — Ending, June 30, 2017
Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage:
Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost
$350 FY17: 365 $127,750

Position Responsibilities:

e Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Urology specialty services in accordance with Medical Staff
Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and
regulatory requirements.

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: | X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager Medical Staff / Kapua Conley,
Chief Operating Officer

Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize Urology physicians Bradley Frasier, MD, Michael Guerena, MD, Jason Phillips, MD,

Caroline Vilchis (Colangelo), MD, Arthur Warshawsky, MD as the Urology ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a
term of 12 months, beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017 at a daily rate of $350, for an annual
and term cost of $127,750 for FY 2017.

69



. /ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
PHYSICIAN AGREEMENT for ED ON-CALL COVERAGE - Vascular Surgery

Type of Agreement Medical Directors X | Panel Other:
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement New Agreement X New Rates Rates

Physician’s Name:

Area of Service:
Term of Agreement:

Maximum Totals:

Andrew Deemer, MD, Mohammed Jamshidi-Nezhad, DO

Emergency Department On-Call: Vascular Surgery

36 months, Beginning, July 1, 2016 — Ending, June 30, 2019

Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
For entire Current ED On-Call Area of Service Coverage:

Position Responsibilities:

Rate/Day Panel Days per Year | Panel Annual Cost
FY17: 365 $237,250
$650 FY18: 365 $237,250
FY19: 365 $237,250
Total Cost: $711,750

e Provide 24/7 patient coverage for all Vascular Surgery specialty services in accordance with
Medical Staff Policy #8710-520 (Emergency Room Call: Duties of the On-Call Physician)

e Complete related medical records in accordance with all Medical Staff, accreditation, and

regulatory require

ments.

Board Approved Physician Contract Template: Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Sherry Miller, Manager, Medical Staff / Kapua Conley,

Chief Operating Officer
Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize Vascular physicians Andrew Deemer, MD and Mohammed Jamshidi-Nezhad, DO as the Vascular
Surgery ED-Call Coverage Physicians for a term of 36 months, beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30,
2019 at a daily rate of $650, for an annual cost of $237,250, and a total cost for the term of $711,750.

70



FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
Registry Contracts for Nursing and Allied Health Proposal

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel Other:
Renewal - Renewal — Same

Status of Agreement X | New Agreement X New Rates Rates
Vendor’s Name: Registry and Traveler Vendors
Area of Service: Nursing and Allied Health Areas
Term of Agreement: 36 months, Beginning, July 1, 2016 ~ Ending, June 30, 2019
Maximum Totals:

Average Monthly Cost | Annual Cost Not to Exceed Total Term Cost
$458,000 $5.5m $16.5m

Description of Services/Supplies:

e The annual spend for the contracts varies based on availability of a provider at the time of need.
Requests for registry are based on volume demands and staff vacancies; therefore there is no
absolute cost figure. Demand is at a premium for supplemental staff, with increased rates
nationally and locally. In addition, there may be a need to expand or delete the current Registry
Agencies based on availability of providers for our needs.

e Historical Information: Tri-City Medical Center Agency Usage — FYTD 2016 through April, 2016 =
$5.5m. Estimated total spend for FY 2016 is $7.0m

e  We will be able to reduce registry and traveler costs for FY 2017 as we hire on more core staff and
hold additional New Grad training programs.

Document Submitted to Legal: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Kathy Topp, Director, Education, Clinical Informatics &
Staffing / Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

Motion:

| move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of Directors
authorize the agreement with Registry vendors, with flexibility to add or delete Agencies, for supplemental
staffing for nursing and Allied Health for a term of 3 years, beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2019
for an annual cost not to exceed $5.5m and a total cost for the term of $16.5m.

4



'ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
Professional Services Agreement

. . Other:
Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X Professional Services
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement Renewal
Physician Names: Dr. Sharon Slowik
Areas of Service: Tri-City Primary Care
Term of Agreement: 13 months, Beginning, June 1, 2016 — Ending, June 30, 2017
Maximum Totals:
Professional Services Compensation as a % of collections
Laser & Aesthetic Services 40%

Position Responsibilities: Physician shall provide Laser and Aesthetic services which include, but is not

limited to:
e Age Spot & Hyperpigmentation Treatment * Skin Rejuvenation
with Broad Band Light Therapy * Skin Restoration
' e Facial Line Treatment with BOTOX® ° Skin Smoothing
Cosmetic e Skin Stimulation & Tightening
¢ Hair Removal e Laser Foot Treatment
e Skin Exfoliation with Medical Grade * Cryotherapy
Microdermabrasion e Vein Treatment with Laser Therapy
e Skin Freshening with Chemical Peels e  Wrinkle & Scar Treatment with Laser Skin
e Skin Freshening Peels
Board Approved Physician Contract Template: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Jeremy Raimo, Sr. Director Business Development /
Wayne Knight Chief Strategy Officer

Motion: | move that the Finance, Operations and Planning Committee recommend the Board of
Directors find it in the best interest of the public health of the communities served by the District to
engage Dr. Sharon Slowik for the provision of Laser and Aesthetic services for a 13-month term,
beginning June 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017, at the amount not to exceed 40% of gross

( collections.

12



"ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

> YOU

( FINANCE, OPERATIONS & PLANNING COMMITTEE
DATE OF MEETING: May 17, 2016
Purchase and Installation of Brainlab “Curve” Mobile Navigation System Proposal

Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X | Other: Capital
Renewal — Renewal — Same
Status of Agreement X | New Agreement New Rates Rates
Vendor’s Name: Brainlab, Inc
Area of Service: Surgical Services, OR
Term of Agreement: One-time purchase, installation, instrumentation training and case

consultations
Maximum Totals:

Purchase & Installation: Totals:

Brainlab “Curve” Navigation System: | $339,832
Tax @ 8% S 27,187
Total Cost $367,019

Description of Services/Supplies:

e Purchase, installation, instrumentation and training for Brainlab “Curve” navigation system for
Cranial, ENT, with microscope integration in the Operating Room

e Brainlab “Curve” is a mobile navigation system of neurosurgery and ENT surgical procedures
e Existing Brainlab Kolibri system is no longer supported by the company, (8 year life span)

e Usage of the Kolibri system averages 35 surgical cases per year

e Replacement item and is on the list of approved capital items for the fiscal year

Document Submitted to Legal: Yes X No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: Yes X No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Mary Diamond, Sr. Director, Nursing / Sharon Schultz,
Chief Nurse Executive / Jeremy Raimo, Sr. Director, Business Development / Wayne Knight, Chief Strategy
Officer

Motion: | move that Finance Operations and Planning Committee recommend that TCHD Board of
Directors authorize the agreement with Brainlab, Inc for purchase of capital equipment item Brainlab
“Curve” Mobile Navigation System (Cranial and ENT with microscope integration) for a one-time total
purchase and installation cost not to exceed $367,019.

73



lIoyoUN Jopauig

*olignd

ay) JO slaquiaw woly sjuswwod Buipiebal
ydeibeled sy} peai ||]sYdHN 10308410

‘wisyl sy}

JO UONBISPISUOD S,99)O0D

alojaq olgnd ay} 0}

}sasayul Jo way Aue uo olqgnd
9y} JO slaquisw AQ sjuswiwo) ‘¢

lISYOU 10308

")20|jeyos Jojoaiq Aq pspuooss
pue ejiuui4 Jojoaiid Aq speuwl sem
epuabe ay} saoidde 0} Uoilo

"SUOIBOIJIPOLW JO SUOH)PpE OU d1aM 818y}
pue epuabe ay) pamalAsl 98I0 8y |

epuaby Jo [eaciddy -z

l]oYOUN 1030841

‘| wooy Ajqwessy ul ‘wd Go:g| Je
Japio 0} Buzeaw sy} pa||ed ||aYaN 403108a1g

19pI0 OL IED 'L

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUOIJEPUAWIIOIY
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnosiq

oido|

74

‘|ouo)) uondaju| pue Ajjenp ‘110 ‘esueldwod Alojejinbay 10) J0)08lIJ ‘UOSIESId IWEl PUB ‘UOSUYOL SSWE “IQ :JUdSqy SIaqUIBIN

"ZlaH Ualie)y] pue euancg) elolled ‘sleAN AouepN ‘zeyoues
YOIy ‘seineq uoseys ‘ddo) Ayiey| ‘esuendwo) pue Aiojeinbay Joy Jojoauq IS ‘Ubneueae) eIoIBpy ‘[9SUNOY jBJauSs) ‘Uoued YOIy :judsaid siayjQ0

“JaoO @oueldwo) J8Iyn

‘meyS-pleusag sjliey)d pue ‘daA IS /AND ‘Z2INYas uoleys ‘dA ‘8x3 /00D ‘Aisjiuod endey| ‘03D ‘Ulisiq aAs)S :Juasald siaquiapy Buop-uoN

‘UBWIOAA NOOS

‘I pue ey aua9) "I ‘opiejuo) snatepy "ig ‘ejluuly euowey Jojoaliq ‘Noojeyss Aue Joyalig ‘(JieyD) [leYyou eineT Jojoaliq  Judsald sloquiapy

9102 ZI Aep
sajnuip uoissag uadp

Bupespy 98l ILIWIOY SlleYY |BUOISS9}0.d

lajua) [eslpaN AND-1L

14dvdd



4

912160 SSINUIN Ovd 2

yemoys
AusH IQg

ybneueae)
BIDIBIA

‘leuoljeulo|

[euoleLIoU|

Aiesaoau ale jey) sbuiyy (g) 9a1y) aie atsy)
1ey}) pajels o "sainseauw juaijedino g3 8y}
uo podals ybnoioy) e pajusasald yemoys "iqg

‘suononJisul abieyosip Adesay) uuepepp
31 Buiuieouod ejep ay} uo UoISSNISIp
Jouq e osje sem alay] ‘}abie} snoge
AjJUSlSISUOD S| uoljeZiunwiwi ezusnjjul 8y

"suoljipuod Bunsixe-aid jo

80Ud)SIXd 8y} SI YdIym Wway} JO SUO S10]oe) Jo
10| B UO spuadep }| S||e} JO saseo ul geyas
s Juaned ay) 10} sAed jeyudsoy ay) 41 ejluul
Joyoaug Aq pasod uojysanb e sem asay|
‘gjejnquie 0} a|qeun Ji a|qe|ieAe Spowwod
e oyew ‘Buuamoys /bunsajio) buunp

saw [je 1e syuaned ysu-ybiy yum ulewal
‘sdg Buisn Buipunod Apnoy :ale uaye)
sdajs ay) Jo awWo0S 'SI00}) 8y} Ui suop jojid
Bunasioy e s) aisy} ‘anssi siu} yum djay o
-abuajieyo e awo0o9(q 0) senuluod sjualjed
Joj sduy woolyjeq yym pajeloosse sjje4
s|ied

‘pJeoqyseq sawodnO Alenp

By} J0} sainsesw ay} uo papodai eiolep

sainsespy Juanedin0 a3 ‘q

pieoqyseq
sawoonQ Ayjenp ‘e

ssauisng MaN G

ZUSH usuey]

‘0102 YoJdepy wody senuiw ay)
anoldde 0] uoijow ay) papuoodas
%00]|BYyoS 10}08li(] pue pasrow
OpJejuo) 'Iq "paluiies ssinuin

‘Bunoswi
910Z ‘1 |udy wody seynuiw 8y} snoidde
0} uoljow e 10j pajie ||sYouN 4030a11q

‘9102 Iudy
JO s8)nuiw jo uoljeoyney v

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

suoljepuswwogd)y
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

oido]




€

912150 SINUIN OVd 2

8y} u1 abuajieyo Jayjoue Jo} ayesuadwod
djay ueo Juswanosdwi ssao01d € Jey) SMoys
siyl "umop ob sainBly SLOMT U}l padiay
yoiym spsqniHg a3 ojul spaq 4oed} jse}

ay) pesodindal Asy] ‘Ajjusdal uMop Jusm
pue S1OM1 Moy pue syuaijed Buipieoq,
JO anss| 8y} uo payono) osje yemoys "iq

“Ino pjing a1e sbuiy} 1ayjo se uoos se
pajuawsajdwi aq |jim pue palspisuod
Bulaq sI moj} ay} djay o0} wes} yids
e ojul |euonipes} ay} wouy buibueys
Jo |esodoud y -Juswaaoidwi $S8901d

‘ueas bulaq sjualied jo Jequinu

pue moj} juaijed sjoaye uin} ul yaiym
spaq 3 9yl JO %8 1034. Yoiym
abeuoys buisinu e pue s||ed oIS
aAeY [|l}s aM Inq 3 ayi ut Jess ayj
Buiziwndo je qol yealb e suop saey
aolpue) Jojoali g3 pue uoleys
-buiyels uonedsibai pue BuisinN

‘a3 ay} ui syuaijed jo Jaquinu

abel| e Buleas ul sn djay |m abueyo
SIyl ‘aAeY om ey} Z ay)} 0) pasedw oo
abeu) wes)-G B aAeYy 0} BUOP
uoneinbyuod e ag o} spasu ||i}s 319y}
Ing sjuswaaoidwi Bupjew uj padijay
sey ssao0id abeu) NHY UL "3 8y
ul moyj Juaied sy ut sabuajieys syy Jo
BUO S| uojjeyiwi aoeds jey) passasse
aAeY pue (03 JnO Je payoo| aAeYy

SOIJIOYINY -JUBWUOIIAUS /aoeds |
‘a3 8y} ui suonetado sy} 8ziwpdo 0}

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

SUOoEPU3IWWOIdY
juondy dn-mojjo4

uolssnasiqg

oido]




1

912150 S8INUIN OVd 1=

eliano epuled

‘lenoidde pieog

4o} pJemioy Buirow sa19ijod 8y}
anoidde 0} uonow ayj papuooss
)00]|eyoS J10joallI[ pue paAow
gliuuld Jojoalig ‘panocidde asem
sainpaoold pue salljod saoIMeg

ale) jualled ayl :NOILDVY

aJay} ‘syusfied 1o} Jou NG yels 1o} s|gejiene
auo sl aley] ‘|endsoy ay} ui olignd Alejou
e Jo AlljigejieAe 8y} uo uolisenb e sem alay |

‘Ko1jod Siy} UO UOISSNOSIP ON

*Aoijod siy} Uo uoISsSNosIp ON

‘Ajuo Bunsa)
aJed jo uiod e palapisuod st ainpsadodd sy

‘Rayjod
a\} Jo ued Buiuodal ay) 104 s)insas [e20AINbS
8Yj UO uonedljield |jlews e sem alay ]

"Ao1j0d siy} ul pauiejuoo s|qe}
8y} uo apew aq |m abueys Bumpewlo} v

‘Bunesw ainyny e je dnoub

8} 0] UMOYS 3 ||IM JOMBIA UIBA 8} ‘OS|Y
‘uswivads poojq 1o} papasau melp poolq
JO JuUNowe 8y} Uo pasiel Sem uoljsenb y

Juswuedap

sjuswnNo0( [euosiad
s usned uo ainjeubig
Jusied e Buissaulpy /

ainpaosoud

108UU0) + sniels

NI suawalg buisn
sisAjeuy >onsdig suun ‘9

a.lnpasold
Buunseaw “onsdiq suun
e Busin Aisiway) auun °g

ainpadold
GOv wiodpidey suswsals

ainpasold pinj4
jeuibep UO )S8] SUIZBIIN ‘€

Aoljod S1oulpy JOf JUBSUOD °Z

aInpadold ainjound
up|s Agq uswipadg
poo|g JO uod9|I0y "L
:s3Inpadoid
pue sald1j0d aie) jualjed

sainpasold pue saldlod
JO |eaolddy s|qissod
pue uojelapisuo) "9

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

SuonEpPUIWIOIDY
juonay dn-mojjo

uoissnasiq

oido}




91LZ1S0 SeIuIN OVd

eilenc) epued

elians eoujed

elang epuled

‘|lenosdde pieog

1o} pJemioy Buinow saioljod sy}
anoidde 0] uonjow 9y} papuooas
UBWLIOAA "0 PUe peAow ejiuuly
1010011 “parosdde sem Aojjod

He1s [edlpsNl 84l :NOLLOV

‘|leaocidde pieog 1o} piemioy
Buinow saioljod sy} snosdde
0] uonow 8y} popuodas ejiuuly
10)0811 pue paAow >20||eyos
Joanqg ‘panosdde sem Aojjod
jospuo) uonoayul 8yl :NOILOV

"UBWIOAN

"1 AQ papuooas pue Yoo||eyos
Jopalg Aq panow se panosdde
a19m salpnasoud pue saljod

aAljelisiulwpyY 8yl :NOILOV

‘Aoljod siyj 0} Juswiyoeye ue se

pappe aq ||Im Wwioy uoljenjeas ue jo sidwes
syl ‘@3 8u) ui sjuspisal ay} Joj uoisiaiadns
10841puUl pue 10311 S| 818y} pajou Sem }|

‘Aoljod siyy jo ped |esbajul
ue sAe|d Jl se pajou sem BulysempueH

"s90IAIBS 10§ Aed Apiey

am 0s ssao0id siy) yum pasn si Ajooidioay
‘salielql} |BoIpaW Jay)o pue sisjuad
olwepese Yum DD Jo ssadoud ueol Aleiq|
J8)Ul @Y} UO UOoiEBdIYUEB[D UOYS Sem a1ay ]

‘£o110d SIY} UO UOISSNISIP ON

-oliqnd Asejou e paau Asy)
J1 o6 0} a1aym mouy| |iim sjusljed os sjeislal
plepuejs awos aAey o} uonsabbns e sem

/82 So2i1n8g jJo adoog pue

auipa\ Aousbiswg
ul JUapISay Jo uoisinedng L
#eis [edipaiy

weibold aoue(isAIng “|

|oJjuod uonoddju|
ayioads yun

uoIsSIpN saoIneg Aelqi] 2

GEQ JoneM Xed |
sainpasoid
pue sal21j0d 2ARRLSIUIWPY

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suolEpPUBAWWOIY
juondy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oido|




912150 SeINUIN Ovd 2

‘us)e} suonoe ou alam alsy |

paso|) ul ua)e] uooy Auy
Jo uosisadiieyn ay} jo spoday ‘6

1BYONN J03oaa1g
‘INd 22-¢
[IBUONIN 40108410 Je uoissag uadQ 0} uInjal SO 8y uolssag uadp oy wnley °g
‘INd SO:1 }e uoIsSsas pasolo
ojui o6 0} panosdde Ajsnowiueun
SEeM ]I pue papuodas e|luuly "uoISSag Paso|) ojul
[I8YONN 103108110 10)08lIq ‘paAow opJejuo) “Ig ob 0] uonow e 10§ payse ||SYdYA J03081Ig uoIssag paso|) °/
‘Bunjesw ‘apew ale
S,4JUOWL JX8U 10} POMBIASL | SUOHEOIPOW /SUOID3LI0D [IJUn Pa|qe) a1am
pUE Pa}981100 ( ||IM SJOBIUOD |  SJOM S]OBJJUOD 8SOUM sueidisAyd Inoj aiem
[IOYSHIN J0103lIg [eoiuld 8sayl :NOILIOV 219y} ‘S10BIJUOD |BOIUID JO MBIASI BY) Uj sjoeiuo) [eaiulld ‘9

Blian9) epued

eliansg) epuled

‘lenosdde pieog

Joj psemuo} Buirow Aojjod sy
anoldde 0} uoow ayj papuooas
UBWLIOAA "I pue paAow
)00||eyos Joyalq ‘parosdde
sem £oljod SNM BUL :NOILOV

‘lenocsdde pieogq

10} premuoy Bunow saioljod auy
aAosdde 0} uoljow sy} papuodss
UBWLIOAA "Ig pue paAow

OOy 9S Jojoauq “panoidde
sem Aojjod NDIN 8YL :NOILOV

‘Ao1j0d SIy) UO UOISSNOSIP OU SEM 819y ]

*Ao1j0d SIY} UO UOISSNISIP OU Sem a1ay |
*Aa1j0d SIY) UO UOISSNOSIP OU SBM 818y |

‘suole|op aJem salljod Z 1sii 8y |

sISsjusdoIUWY |

S32IA19S UIOQM3N pue USWOpA

NOIN 3y}
ul YbuaT Jueu| buunsesiy v
NDIN 8y} ul 8joy ‘vennaiq ‘¢
XeJoylownaud Yjm sjueju|
joased ‘sgqn i1ssyn ‘¢
Jueju} uiogmsp ‘Buipeg i
NJIN

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiod

sSuonepusa oIy
Juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

oido]




91Z1S0 SOINUIN OVd &

[IBYIUN 403103410 INd ¥2:Z Je pauinofpe Bunes|y juswuinolpy ‘L |
"SJUBWIWOYD ON 29)IWwWoD) ay}
IBYSHN 10308a1( JO SI9QUISB|\ WU} Sjuswwo) "0}
uoIssos
a|qisuodsoy suoepUIWLIOIY
(s)uosiad juonoy dn-mojjo4 uoissnasiq

oido|




" ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

o YOU

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
May 12", 2016

CONTACT: Sharon Schuitz, CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

|

Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures

1. Collection of a Blood Specimen by Skin Puncture
Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

Consent for Minors Policy

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

Nitrazine Test on Vaginal Fluid Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

Siemens Rapidpoint Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

Urine Chemistry Using a Urine Dipstick
Measuring Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

o ol s lw|N

Urine Dipstick Analysis Using Siemens Clintek
Status Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval
with revisions

7. Witnessing a Patient Signature on Patient’s
Personal Documents 8610-341

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

Administrative Policies & Procedures

1. Fax Waiver 635

DELETE

Forward to BOD for approval

2. Library Services Mission and Scope of Service
287

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

Jnit Specific

Infection Control

1. Surveillance Program IC 2 — TRACKED

CHANGES E’:::g: Forward to BOD for approval
2. Surveiliance Program IC 2 — CLEAN COPY
Medical Staff
1. Supervision of Residents in Emergency Medicine Practice Forward to BOD for approval
8710-571 Change with revisions
NICU
1. Bathing, Newborn Infant DELETE Forward to BOD for approval
. Chest Tube, Care of Infants with Pneumothorax DELETE Forward to BOD for approval

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

2
3. Dietician, Role of in the NICU
4. Measuring Infant Length in the NICU

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

Women and Newborn Services

1. Amniocentesis

3 year review,
practice change

Forward to BOD for approval

Page 1

81



‘C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

COLLECTION OF BLOOD SPECIMEN BY SKIN PUNCTURE

Purpose:

To outline the procedure for collection of blood specimen by skin puncture.

Supportive Data:

Skin puncture is applicable for:
1. Severely burned patients

2. Extremely obese patients
3. Patients with thrombotic tendencies
4. Patients with malignancies for whom venipuncture is reserved for therapeutic
purposes
5. Geriatric patients or patients in whom superficial veins are not accessible or fragile
6. Patients performing tests at home (e.g. blood glucose)
7. Newborn/pediatric patients
Equipment: 1. Tenderfoot (NSY) and Preemie Tenderfoot (NICU)
2. Automatic lancet device
3. Heel warmer
4. Alcohol prep pad
5. Capillary blood coliection tubes
6. Microhematocrit tubes and clay
A PROCEDURE:
1. Verify order for blood sampling.
2. Identify the patient per Patient Care Services Policy IV.A Identification, Patient.
3. Ensure the blood specimen is collected from the individual designated on the specimen labels or
requisition slip.
4, Choose the Puncture Site:
a. Each patient should be assessed individually to choose the optimal blood-sampling
method.
b. It is recommended greater than 1mL} be drawn via venipuncture.
C. Nonpharmacologic comfort measures and/or sucrose should be provided to patient
undergoing painful procedures such as skin puncture.
d. Infant Heel Stick:

i. Warm the infant’s heel: Use a heel warmer according to manufacturer’s
instructions.

i. Provide the patient with a pacifier dipped in sucrose at least 2 minutes before
beginning the procedure.

iii. Provide developmental posmonlng

iv. Site of Puncture: P o
The blood must be obtalned from the lnfant s heel using the most medlal or lateral
portion of the plantar surface of the heel, where “medial” is defined as closest to
the midline of the body, “lateral” is defined as away from the midline of the body,
and “plantar surface” as the walking surface of the foot.

V. Assess the sampling site and select an area without excessive previous punctures,
hematomas, or infection.

vi. Contraindications to performing heel sticks are bruising or hematoma on the feet;
feet that are edematous, injured, or infected; and feet with anomalies upon which
pressures should be avoided.

e. Children And Adult Finger Stick:

i. The puncture shall be on the palmar surface (pad) of the distal phalanx and not at
the side or tip of the finger.

ii. Avoid puncturing the fifth finger if possible.

il The skin puncture site must be warm and not swollen (edematous).

5. Clean the Puncture Site:
Cl_in_ical Nursiqg D Pharmacy_ & Medic_al Professjonal
TRedew | polcess | Seothe | “Vanoew | Tempeucs | Scive | M | Giccrs
0% oE 06/12, 1115 | 06/12, 12115 03116 n/a 10/12, 0416 | 11/12, 05/16 1212

82




| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Collection of Blood Specimen by Skin Puncture

Page 2 of 2

10.

11.

a. Disinfect the site for sample collection and allow it to dry. Betadine shall not be used to
clean and disinfect skin-puncture sites.
Puncture the Skin:
a. Depth: The depth may be not more than 2.4 mm beneath the plantar heel skin surface
and half this distance at the posterior curvature of the heel.
i. Infants: Use an automated heel lancing device that is appropriate size for the
patient to perform the heel stick to ensure the proper depth.
ii. Finger Sticks: Use the automatic lancet device to ensure the proper depth.
Perform the puncture:

a. Puncture the chosen site that has been prepared.

b. Wipe the first drop of blood with dry sterile gauze pad since it is most likely to contain
excess tissue fluid.

c. A second drop of blood will form over the puncture site. When a micro collection device
touches this drop, blood will flow into the tubes by capillary action.

d. During specimen collection, allow capillaries to refill (apply gentle pressure and then
release) Avoid excessive squeezing of the heel). Fill specimen containers to the specified
volume.

e. Allow blood drops to fall freely into the tube (avoid scooping or scraping blood from the

heel). Fill specimen containers to the specified volume. Cap the tube when it is filled.
Order of Draw: If multiple specimens are to be collected, including preservative (EDTA)
specimens, the EDTA specimen is drawn first to assure adequate volume and accurate
hematology test results. Other additive specimens are collected next and clotted specimens last.
Post Puncture Bleeding:

a. Infant's Heel:
i. Hold a sterile gauze pad pressed against the puncture site until the bleeding stops.
b. Finger Stick: Apply pressure with a clean gauze pad until bleeding stops. Place a

bandage on the site, if necessary.
Disposal of Automated lancing Device:

a. Dispose the automated lancing device in a sharps container.

Labeling Policy:

a. Each sample must be accurately labeled. Sample labeled with the wrong patient or
specimens without labels cannot be used. These samples have to be recollected.

b. Each tube of blood must be labeled with the patient’s full name, medical record number,

time and date the specimen was collected, and the Compass log-on ID (Example: The
Cerner log-on ID for Jane Doe is “doejan”. DO NOT use initials.)

B. REFERENCES:

Ohlsson, Shah VS A. “Veniepuncture versus heel lance for blood sampling in term neonates.”
Cochrane Database System. 19 Apr. 2010. Web 24 May 2012.
www.2.cochrane.org/reviews/en/ab001452.html.

Robbins, Meyers R. Pediatric Nutrition Practice Group. 2" ed. Chicago: American Dietetic
Association, 2011. Print.

Walton, DM, MG MacDonald, and J Ramasethu. Atlas of procedures in neonatology. 4" ed.
Philadelphia: Lippincott Williams and Wilkins, 2007. 84. Print.

MacDonald, MG, and J Ramasethu. Folk LA. Capillary heel stick blood sampling. 4" ed.
Philadelphia: Lippincott Williams and Wilkins, 2007. 93. Print.

83



@)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICESAdministrative Policy-Manual

ISSUE DATE: 11/94 SUBJECT: Consent for Minors

REVISION DATE: 9/95; 11/96; 10/97; 7/99; 6/03; PO ER—2E10-260
1/06; 06/09; 06/11

Department Approval Date: 08/15

Clinical Policies and Procedures Approval: 09/15

06/1109/15

Nurse Executive Council Approval:

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approvai: 06/4105/16
Board of Directors Approval: 06/11

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To establish guidelines to obtain a valid consent from all minor patients prior to a therapeutic,
diagnostic, or invasive procedure based on guidelines set forth in California Hospital Association
Consent Manual.

B. POLICY:

1.

2.

By statutory definition, a person under the age of 18 is unable to consent to medical treatment except
as otherwise allowed by law.
When a minor needs medical treatment, health care providers must look to patient's parent, guardian
or other person to consent, unless it is a life threatening emergency.
a. If a patient is a minor, the minor’s parent may provide consent.
a-b. Guardian — a copy of the official certified letter of guardianship must be placed in the
medical record.
Where an adult who is not the parent or guardian seeks care for a minor with injury or illness which is
not an emergency, the healthcare provider shall request a copy of the parents’ authorization and
include it in the minor’s medical record.
Even where third party authorization is provided, the healthcare provider shall attempt to contact the
parent(s) to confirm consent and to inform the parent of the status of the minor. If it is not possible to
contact the parent(s) or guardian, the healthcare provider shall apply first aid where necessary.
Consent issues under California Law vary depending upon certain circumstances. Attached to this
policy is an easy to use table summarizing consent issues regarding minors.
In specified circumstances, a third party (not the minor and not the parent/guardian) may consent to
medical treatment on behalf of a minor. In these circumstances please consult the Risk Manager or
Administrative Supervisor on duty.
a. Minors with step-parent
i. A step parent who has not legally adopted a minor does not have the authority to
consent to treatment on the minor’s behalf without written authorization from the
natural parent or guardian or a valid Caregiver’s Authorization Affidavit.
ab. Minors with a Registered Domestic Partner Parent(s), or Stepparents
i. State law gives registered domestic partners (or former or surviving registered domestic
partners) the same rights and obligations as are granted to spouses in marriage. This
includes the rights and obligations of registered domestic partners with respect to a
child of their partner. [Family Code Section 297.5]
ii. However, becoming the spouse of a parent is not the same as becoming a parent, even
for legally married couples. For example, as noted above, even though a stepmother is
legally married to a minor’s father, the stepmother does not have the authority to

84



Administrative-Policy-Manual—Patient Care Services
Consent for Minors,-8610-360
Page 2 of 5

consent to treatment on the minor's behalf without written authorization from the father
or a valid Caregiver's Authorization Affidavit.

ii. These same rules apply to registered domestic partners. In order for the registered
domestic partner of a child’s parent or stepparent to consent for medical care for that
child, the domestic partner or stepparent must do one of the following:

1) The registered domestic partner or stepparent must have legally adopted the
child.
2) The registered domestic partner or stepparent must provide a signed third-

party authorization form giving that registered domestic partner or stepparent
the ability to consent to medical care for the child.
iv. The registered domestic partner or stepparent must complete a valid Caregivers

Authonzatlon Affi daVIt lf—a—m@ste*ed—éemes&e—panﬂeprs—net—named—en—the—bwm

V. if the status of someone claiming to be a child’s parent is unclear, the birth certificate or
custody order may be used to determine who may legally provide consent.
7. Self-sufficient Minor
a. When a minor of 15 years of age or older is living separate and apart from his/her parent(s) or
legal guardian, whether with or without consent or acquiescence of his/her parent(s) or legal
guardian, and manages his/her own financial affairs, regardless of the source of income, the
minor is capable of giving valid consent for medical or dental care without parental or guardian
consent, knowledge or financial liability. The duration of the separate residence is irrelevant.
[Family Code Section 6922, CHA Consent Manual]
8. Refusal of Treatment
a. The person who has legal authority to consent for the treatment of a minor also has the
legal authority to refuse treatment.

i If the minor is legally authorized to consent to treatment, the minor also has the
legal authority to refuse the treatment. (The minor must also have the capacity to
make healthcare decisions.)

8:9. For further clarification regarding situations involving minor’s authority to consent, contact Risk
Management and/or refer to the current California Hospital Association Consent Manual.

C. RELATED DOCUMENTS HeEeRENC =0 EORIMENMEICH CAN BE FOUNE- O THE INTRAMNET:

1. Authorization for Third Party to Consent to Treatment of Minor Lacking Capacity to Consent
2. Caregiver’s Authorization Affidavit (Ferm1)
3. Consent Requirements for Medical Treatment of Minors

D. REFERENCES:
1. California Hospital Association Consent Manual

85



Administrative-Peolicy-Manual—Patient Care Services
Consent for Minors;-8618-360
Page 3 of 5

AUTHORIZATION FOR THIRD PARTY TO CONSENT

TO TREATMENT OF MINOR LACKING CAPACITY TO CONSENT (Form 2)
(We), the undersigned, parent(s) person having legal custody/legal guardianship of (name of minor)___
, aminor, do hereby authorize (name of agent) as
agent(s) for the undersigned to consent to any x-ray examination, anesthetic, medical or surgical diagnosis or
treatment, and hospital care which is deemed advisable by, and is to be rendered under the general or special
supervision of, any physician and surgeon licensed under the provisions of the Medical Practice Act on the
medical staff of any hospital, whether such diagnosis or treatment is rendered at the office of the physician or
at the hospital.
It is understood that this authorization is given in advance of any specific diagnosis, treatment, or hospital care
being required but is given to provide authority to the above described agent(s) to give specific consent to any
and all such diagnosis, treatment, or hospital care which a physician, meeting the requirements of this
authorization, may, in the exercise of his/her best judgment, deem advisable.
This authorization is given pursuant to the provisions of Family Code section 6910.
(I)(We) hereby authorize any hospital, which has provided treatment to the above-named minor pursuant to the
provisions of Family Code section 6910 to surrender physical custody of such minor to (my)(our) above- named
agent(s) upon the completion of treatment. This authorization is given pursuant to Health and Safety Code
section 1283.
These authorizations shall remain effective until [month and day] , 20
unless sooner revoked in writing delivered to the agent(s) noted above.
Date:
Signature:

[Parent/legal guardian/person having legal custody] (circle relationship)

[Barent]

Signature:

Medically Relevant Information

Minor’s birth date

Allergies to drugs or food

Conditions for which minor is currently being treated

Current medications

Restrictions on activity

Primary care physician (name and telephone number)

Insurance company

Mother’s name, address and telephone numbers Home
Work
Other
Father’s name, address and telephone numbers Home
Work
Other
Traatment of Minor Lacking Capacity to Consent Patient Identification Label

Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, California 92056
(760) 724-8411




Administrative-Pelicy- Manual—Patient Care Services
Consent for Minors;-8618-366
Page 4 of §

CAREGIVER’S AUTHORIZATION AFFIDAVIT (Form 1)

se of this affidavit is authorized by Part 1.5 (commencing with section 6550) of
vivision 11 of the California Family Code.

INSTRUCTIONS:  Completion of items 1-4, inclusive and the signing of the affidavit
is sufficient to authorize enrollment of a minor in school and
authorize school-related medical care. School related medical care
means medical care that is required by state or local governmental
authority as a condition for school enrollment, including
immunizations, physical exams and medical exams conducted in
school.

Completion of items 5-8 inclusive is additionally required to
authorize any other medical care. Please print clearly

- I am requesting enrollment of the minor in school and to authorize school-related
medical care. Completion of items 1 — 4 only is required.

- Tam requesting to authorize medical care not school-related. Completion of items 1
— 8 is required.

The minor named below lives in my home and I am 18 years of age or older.

1. Name of minor:

2. Minors birth date:

= My name: (adult giving authorization)

4. My home address:

5. I am a grandparent, aunt, uncle, or other qualified relative of the minor (see back
of this form for a definition of “qualified relative”).

6. Check one or both (for example, if one parent was advised and the other cannot
be located):

- T'have advised the parent(s) or other person(s) having legal custody of the
minor of my intent to authorize medical care, and have received no objection.

- T am unable to contact the parent(s) or other person(s) having legal custody
of the minor at this time, to notify them of my intended authorization.

My date of birth:

=~

8. My California driver’s license or ID card number:

Warning: DO NOT SIGN THIS FORM IF ANY OF THE STATEMENTS ABOVE ARE INCORRECT, OR YOU WILL B
COMMITTING A CRIME PUNISHABLE BY A FINE, IMPRISONMENT, OR BOTH.

87



Administrative-Polisy-Manual—Patient Care Services
Consent for Minors-8646-360
Page 5 of 5

CONSENT REQUIREMENTS FOR MEDICAL TREATMENT OF MINORS:

Is parental | Are parents | Is minor's | May M.D. inform parents of
Consent | responsible | Consent | treatment without minors
If Minor is: Required? | for costs? | Sufficient? | consent?
Unmarried, no special circumstances Yes Yes No Yes
Unmarried, emergency care and parents Yes if
not available [Business and Professional No Yes capable Yes
Code § 2397] P
Married or previously married
[Family Code §7002] No No ves No
Emancipated (declaration by court,
identification card from DMV) No Pr?\lb;my Yes No
[Family Code §§ 7002, 7050, 7140]
Self-sufficient (15 or older not living at
home, manages own financial affairs) No No Yes 1
[Family Code § 6922]
Not married, care related to prevention or
treatment of pregnancy, except No No Yes No
sterilization[Family Code § 6925]
Not married, seeking abortion No No Yes No
Not married, pregnant, care not related to
prevention or treatment of pregnancy and Yes Yes No Yes
no other special circumstances
On active duty with Armed Forces [Family
Code § 7002] No No Yes No
19 or older, care related to diagnosis or
.tment for communicable reportable
disease or condition or to prevention of an No No Yes No
STD [Family Code § 6926]
T P
23 5207r]older, care for rape’ [Family Code § No No Yes Yes, usually
1 .
ggzrg]for sexual assault’ [Family Code § No No Yes Yes, usually
12 or older, care for alcohol or drug abuse’ Only if
[Family Code § 6929] parents are
No? participating Yes Yes, usually
in

counseling
12 or older, care for mental health Only if
treatment, outpatient only' [Family Code § parents are
6924; Health and Safety Code Section No? participating Yes Yes, usually
124260] in

counseling
17 or older, blood donation only [Health No No Yes Probably Not

and Safety Code § 1607.5]

Minors are defined as all persons under 18 years of age.

' Special requirements apply, See Chapter 2 of the Consent Manual or Chapter 3 of Minors & Health Care Law
2 Parental consent is required for a minors participation in replacement of narcotic abuse treatment (such as
methadone, LAAM or buprenorphine products) in a program licensed pursuant to Health and Safety Code §
| 11875 et. seq. (now codified at Section 11839 et. seq. [Family Code § 6929(e)]

2: Notwithstanding the above information, a psychotherapist may not disclose mental health information to a
parent who has lost physical custody of a child in a juvenile court dependency hearing unless the parent has
obtained a court order granting access to information.

Reference: Welfare and Institutions Code § 14010

88



G

Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: NITRAZINE TEST ON VAGINAL FLUID

Purpose: To assist in the evaluation of vaginal fluid for the presence of amniotic fluid.

Supportive Data:  The nitrazine test is a screening test performed on amniotic fluid to evaluate a suspected
rupture of membranes. A Registered Nurse (RN) is authorized to perform this procedure.
Testing is under the supervision of the Laboratory Point of Care (POC) Coordinator and
under the jurisdiction of the Laboratory Medical Director.

Equipment: 1. Nitrazine paper
2. Sterile gloves

A. SPECIMEN:
1. Patient Preparation:
a. This procedure may be performed during a speculum examination.

2. Type of Specimen:

a. Vaginal Fluid
B. QUALITY CONTROL (QC):
1. QC Materials: Normal and abnormal urine control vials
2. Test the normal and abnormal controls per POC testing.
3. Perform QC each day testing is performed and when a new vial is opened.
4, Document results on the Point of Care Quality Control Log.
5. If the control results are not within acceptable limits the test is considered invalid and further
patient testing is not allowed until corrective action steps are successful and documented.
C. PROCEDURE:
1. Perform hand hygiene and apply gloves.
2. Verify patient identification according to policy.
3. Swab the fluid pooling in the vagina or along the sidewall of the vagina (avoiding the cervix) using
a cotton tip applicator.
4, Touch the applicator to the test paper ensuring the chemically treated paper is totally moistened.
5 Read the nitrazine paper immediately.
a. Nitrazine paper is a multi-parameter test paper with a wide range of colors used to
interpret the alkaline nature of amniotic fluid.
b. Normal amniotic fluid is neutral (pH 7.0) or slightly alkaline (pH 7.25).
c. In the presence of amniotic fluid the moistened nitrazine paper will change from a yellow
color to a dark blue color.
6. Compare the paper visually to the color scale printed on the outside of the box.
D. REPORTING RESULTS:
Color pH Report As
Yellow 5.0
Olive 5.5 Negative: Membranes probably not ruptured
Olive-green 6.0
Blue-green 6.5
Blue-gray 7.0 Positive: Membranes probably ruptured
Deep blue 7.5
Unclear or other color 2 Equivocal: May be due to blood, ercervical mucus or
semen
vision Cl.in.ical Nursir!g Pharmacy_& Medic.al Professional
“owen | folcess | St | CGIOGST | Temeues | i | A, | e
Zgo%/%;gg: 07/11, 08/15 08/11, 09/15 03/16 nia 10/11, 04/16 11/11, 05/16 11111
5

89



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Nitrazine Test on Vagina! Fluid

Page 2 of 2
E. DOCUMENTATION:

1. Record the result on the Nursing Progress Record. Enter the following:

a. Date and time.

b. Result

C. Name or initials of the operator
F. LIMITATIONS:

1. The nitrazine test is not considered a definitive test for diagnosing ruptured membranes.

2. A false negative result may occur if there has been prolonged rupture of membranes (longer than
24 hours) or when only a smail quantity of fluid is present.

3. A false positive may occur if vaginal secretion has been contaminated with blood, urine or
antiseptic solution. The pH of blood, vaginal mucus and some secretions associated with vaginal
infection is also alkaline.

G. REGULATORY COMPLIANCE:
1. Nitrazine test is considered a waived test under CLIA 88 Federal Regulations.
2. Personnel performing the testing must be certified prior to performing patient testing. Certification

is achieved through a training program coordinated by the nursing education department in
conjunction with the lab. Competency is assessed and documented annually. Competency
records are maintained on the nursing units.

3. Proficiency testing is coordinated through the laboratory staff and performed by testing personnel
on the nursing units.

REFERENCES:

1. Kennedy, B.B., Ruth, J.R., Martin, E.J. (2009). Intrapartum management modules — A perinatal
education program (4" ed.). Wolters Kluwer Health/Lippincott Williams & Wilkins: Philadelphia,
PA.

2. Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendments of 1988 Federal Regulations

90



‘C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

SIEMENS RAPIDPOINT 405

Purpose:

The analysis of blood gases, electrolytes, ionized calcium, glucose, and hematocrit.

Supportive Data:

The Rapidpoint 405 system uses potentiometry, amperometry, and conductance to
measure the concentration of analyte in the sample. An electrochemical interaction
between the analyte of interest and the sensor generates an electrochemical signal that
is proportional to the amount of analyte in the sample. Potentiometry is the technology
that measures the difference/ potential between two electrodes in a solution without
applied current. Amperometry involves applying voltage to an elecirode and then
measuring the current generated. Conductance is the readiness with which a conducting
substance transmits electrical current.

Equipment: Rapidpoint 405 Analyzer

Syringe or Capillary (balanced heparin or lithium heparin if not testing Ca++)
Authorized to Registered Nurse (RN), Respiratory Care Practitioner (RCP), Perfusionist, Anesthesia
Perform Technician
Procedure:

NOTE: For more detailed information regarding technology, reagents, calibration points, etc., please refer to
the laboratory and/or manufacturer’s user manual.

A CLINICAL SIGNIFICANCE:

Some Causes of Some Causes of
ANALYTE Increased Values Decreased Values
Dehydration Dilutional hyponatremia
Diabetes insipidus (cirrhosis)
Salt poisoning Depletional hyponatremia
SODIUM Skin losses Syndrome of inappropriate
Hyperaldosteronism ADH
CNS disorders
Renal glomerular disease Renal tubular disease
Adrenocortical insufficiency Hyperaldosteronism
POTASSIUM Diabgtic Ketoacidosis (DKA) Treatment _of DKA
Sepsis Hyperinsulinism
In vitro hemolysis Metabolic alkalosis
Diuretic therapy
Prolonged diarrhea Prolonged vomiting
Renal tubular disease Burns
CHLORIDE Hyperparathyroidism Salt-losing renal disease
Dehydration Overhydration
Thiazide therapy
Dehydration Hypoparathyroidism
Hyperparathyroidism Early neonatal hypocalcemia
IONIZED Malignancies Chronic renal disease
CALCIUM Immobilization Pancreatitis
Thiazide diuretics Massive blood transfusions
Vitamin D intoxication Severe malnutrition
GLUCOSE Diabetes mellitus Insulinoma
Pancreatitis Adrenocortical insufficiency
Endocrine disorders (e.g. Hypopituitarism
Cushing’s syndrome Liver disease
evi C[injcal Nursiqg Pharmacy_ & Medic_al Profess_ional
e | polsesa | xouive | PP | Thoeuice | Decuhe | Marm, | Oiecon
06/09, 05/15 07/11, 0515 08/11, 05/15 03116 n/a 10/11, 04/16 11/11, 05/16 11111

91



| Patient Care Services Rrocedure-Manual
Siemens Rapidpoint Procedure

Page 2 of 11
Some Causes of Some Causes of
U Increased Values Decreased Values
Drugs (e.g. steroids, Ethanol ingestion
thyrotoxicosis) Reactive hypoglycemia
GLUCOSE Chronic renal failure Glycogen storage disease
Stress
IV glucose infusion
Respiratory alkalosis Respiratory acidosis
pH Metabolic alkalosis Metabolic acidosis
Acute Respiratory Acidosis: Respiratory alkalosis:
e Depression of e Increased stimulation
respiratory center of respiratory center
e Suppressed o Hypermetabolic states
neuromuscular system e Mechanical
| e Pulmonary disorders hyperventilation
| PCO o Inadequate Compensation in metabolic
2 . e . .
' mechanical ventilation | acidosis
Chronic respiratory acidosis
o Decreased alveolar
ventilation
¢ Hypoventilation
Compensation in metabolic
alkalosis
Breathing oxygen-enriched Carbon-monoxide exposure
PO air Pulmonary disorders
2 Myocardial infarction
Congestive heart failure
Primary metabolic alkalosis Primary metabolic acidosis
HCO, Compensation in respiratory | Compensation in respiratory
acidosis alkalosis
Dehydration Hemolytic anemias
HEMATOCRIT Burn§ o Iron deficiency .
Impaired ventilation Marrow depression
L Renal disorders Blood loss
B. SPECIMEN COLLECTION:
1. Specimen Type:
rs$;“p‘:e ng?g: n Minimum Fill Volume | Preparation )“
Arterial 200 microliters for 1.0 mL i
blood | syringe | Expel air from the syringe |
Syringe 800 microliters for 3.0 mL | and cap it immediately after
\b{lem:;ls syringe obtaining the sample. |
o0 1.5 mL for 5.0 ml syringe ‘
175 microliters balanced |
Capillary | Capillary | heparin tubes Fill the tube completely and |
blood tube (Minimum is 100 cap it securely. ‘
microliters) |

92



| Patient Care Services Rrocedure Manual
Siemens Rapidpoint Procedure

Page 3 of 11

d.

For whole blood samples, use syringe or capillary tube containing balanced heparin. If
you are not analyzing samples for ionized calcium, you can use lithium heparin.

Other anticoagulants, such as benzalkonium heparin, EDTA, citrate, oxalate, and
fluoride significantly affect blood pH, sodium, potassium, chloride, and ionized calcium
results.

Antimicrobial compounds such as silver sulfadiazine and chlorhexidine, which are found
in some central venous catheters, significantly affect sodium results and may affect
subsequent sample analyses. Do not collect venous samples for electrolytes analysis
from a central venous catheter that contains silver sulfadiazine or chlorhexidine.

You can introduce samples into the Rapidpoint 400 system using the sample collection
devices listed in the previous table.

Specimen Handling:

a.

b.

o

e.

Position any labels toward the back of the syringe barrel near the plunger so the label
does not block the syringe from entering the system and cause it to fall off.

Cap the sample device immediately after you collect the sample to avoid room air
contamination.

Analyze the sample as soon as possible to minimize oxygen consumption.

Before you analyze the sample, roll the syringe or capillary tube between your palms
and gently invert it several times to mix the sample thoroughly. Blood cells settle during
storage, and if the sample is not well mixed before analysis, the Hematocrit results
obtained can be falsely decreased or increased. Mix all samples using a consistent
technique.

Dispose of used sample devices in a biohazard contamination bag.

Known Interfering Substances:

a.

Always select the mixed venous sample button to analyze mixed venous samples.
Samples collected from some pulmonary artery catheters can contain the benzalkonium
ion that interferes with analysis and affects resulits.

Level of

Interference

Interfering Concentration
Analyte Substance Tested .I

|
’ lonized Calcium

50 mg/dL
30 mg/dL
5 mg/dL

1
|
-.098 mM (6%) 1
-046 MM (3%)
"6 mmol/L |
\ >50 mM
Heparin* | i
1 50 mg/dL 1'9.5 mmol/L |

Salicylic Acid

" Dobutamine

Sodium Benzalkonium

. |

Salicylic Acid

F;Ioride

' Hematocrit

I
| 20 mg/dL

| Dextran

| Protein

Leukocytes

Protein

{ 1.8 mmol/L
| 3g/dL

| 60,000 WBC
| cu/mm

12%
| 4%

5%

| 10%
| 4.9%
| -1.3%

’ Potassium
|

Benzalkonium
Heparin

B-C. PROCEDURE:

|
L

15015 mM
|

93



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Siemens Rapidpoint Procedure

Page 4 of 11

Analyzing Patient Samples:

a.

b.

j-

Roll the syringe or the capillary tube between your palms and gently invert it several
times to mix the sample thoroughly.

Touch the button for the patient SAMPLE TYPE. A checkmark indicates the button is
selected. (Default is arterial syringe).

i. Arterial (syringe)

ii. Capillary (175 microliters Cap tube)

il Venous (syringe)

iv. Mixed venous blood (this will only do a pO2)

TOUCH (deselect) ANY PARAMETER THAT YOU DO NOT WANT. This is important for
the Lab to properly order the test in Cerner. The Rapidpoint is set up to default Arterial
Blood Gases and lonized Calcium.

Touch ANALYZE.

When prompted, introduce the sample device into the sample port and touch the
CONTINUE button. The system aspirates the sample.

i. Arterial or Venous: Place the syringe into the sample port.

ii. Capillary: Insert the Capillary tube into the sample port until you feel it click into
place.

When prompted, remove the sample device from the sample port and touch the
CONTINUE button.

When prompted, enter the following demographic information.

i. Touch the Patient ID field and key in the specimen accession number (performed

by-RCPs-in ICU, ED, NICU) or the patient medical record number (performed by
RNs-or-Perusienists-in OR).

ii. Touch the Patient Name field and key in the patient Last Name.

iii. Touch the Operator ID field and key in your5-digit employee identification
number#

iv. Touch the Temperature field and key in the patient’s temperature (defaults to 37
C if no data entry).

Touch the right arrow to continue.

View the results. The values for the results appear in yellow when analysis is still in
progress. Select the Print Results Key for a printout.

Touch the CONTINUE when you finish viewing results. The instrument will wash and
prepare for the next sampling.

Recalling Patient Results: Use this procedure to view and print results for patient samples that
have already been analyzed.

a.

Touch the Recall button. The recall button is the “File Folder” icon located in the upper
right hand corner of the screen.

i. Touch Patients: The list of patient samples appears.
ii. Touch the sample you want to view.
iii. Use the arrow keys to view additional samples. Select the sample.
iv. Touch the Results button to view the results.
1) You-may-eEdit sample demographics by pressing the Edit button- (Ffor
example, yeu-may-wish-to change the temperature). If yeu-changed this #

will not be corrected in Cerner. The results have already been filed. {-you
wish-{To correct this in the computer, notify the laboratory.

2) To reprint results, touch the Print icon.
V. You may search for a sample by patient by pressing the Search button.

94



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manuat
Siemens Rapidpoint Procedure
Page 5 of 11

1) Enter in the Accession or Medical Record Number and touch the green
arrow.

3 Reporting Results:

a. Calculations: The Rapidpoint 400 analyzer contains a microprocessor that performs all
calculations required for reporting results.

b. Result Symbols:
A | The result is above the patient range.
V¥ | The result is below the patient range.

_____ A The result is above the reporting range. Send to Laboratory for
analysis.

_____ ¥ The result is below the reporting range. Send to Laboratory for
analysis.

The system has an atypical response when measuring this
parameter and cannot report the result. Analyze the sample again.

""" ? | When this symbol appears for the HCT, it may indicate that the HCT
result was not reported because Na failed Required QC or it was not
performed
The HCT was not corrected for Na or K because the sensor is out of

u calibration, turned off, or beyond the reporting range. The system
uses a default value of 140 mmol/L for Na or a value of 4 mmol/L for
K to determine the HCT result.
c. Reference Intervals:
. Reference Range Reportable
Analyte Unit Arterial Venous Range
Sodium mEqg/L 135 — 153 100-200
Potassium | mEq/L 3.5-5.3 0.5-15.0
Chloride mEg/L 101-111 65 — 140
Glucose mg/dL 70-110 20 - 750
o | moidL 45-49 0.80 - 20.0
pH 7.35-7.45 6.50 —7.80
PCO, mm/Hg 35—45 10 — 150
PO, mm/Hg >80 10 - 700
Males (adult)
. 42 - 52
Hematocrit | %PCV Female (adult) 12-75
37 - 47
HCO3* mEq/L 22 - 26
TCO,* mEg/L
BE* mEq/L (-2) = (+3)
o 55-85
sO, Yo 94 -100 (sepsis >70) C;I;::La;:sed
Males (adult)
14-18
Hb g/dL Female (adult)
12 - 16

95



| Patient Care Services Rrocedure-Manual
Siemens Rapidpoint Procedure

Page 6 of 11

d.

Critical Results:

i. Critical results represent an emergency condition and must be reported
immediately to the patient's attending physician or nurse.

ANALYTE (units) CRITICAL VALUE
LOW<or= | HIGH>or=
ADULTS
Sodium (mEg/L) 120 170
Potassium (mEql/L) 2.9 6.1
Glucose (mg/dL) 40 450
lonized Calcium (mg/dL) 3.0 6.3
pH 7.3430 7.56352
PCO, (mmHg) .
“when pH is >7.736 n/a 5655
PO2 (mm/Hg) 55 n/a
Glucose{mgldL)} 40 £E0
Hematocrit (%PCV) 20.0 60.0
TCO2 (mEql/L) 10 45
NEONATES

pH 7.28 7.50
PCO, (mmHg) 25 60
PO2 (mm/Hg) 50 100

44. Verifying Patient Results in the Lab Information System (LIS)

a.

Results inbound from the OR analyzers i will not
automatically cross over to the LIS. The result of the test BGP (for OR6) or other tests as
indicated by the results must be ordered and resulted by the lab.

Tests performed on the Emergency Department (ED), Intensive Care Unit (ICU), or
Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) will cross over into the LIS when identified with a
valid accession number (indicated in the Patient ID field).

i. Log on to the LIS and open Accession Result Entry.
ii. Type in the accession number.

iii. Review results; append any necessary comments.
iv. Verify.

2.5. Maintenance

a.

Cleaning and Disinfecting the Screen: Clean the touch screen as needed to remove
dust, dirt, or splatters from the screen and disinfect the screen surface.

i. Materials:
1) Hospital-approved disinfectant wipe
2) Lint-free cloth
ii. If necessary, wring any excess liquid from the wipe so it is wet but not dripping.

iii. Touch the Status button and then touch Clean Screen. The Clean screen
appears for 20 seconds. This allows you to wipe the screen without activating
any buttons. While the Clean Screen is displayed, wipe the screen with the wet

96



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual

Siemens Rapidpoint Procedure
Page 7 of 11

iv.

wipe and then thoroughly dry the screen with the lint-free cloth to remove

chemicals that may damage the screen.
Touch the Continue button to return to the Analysis screen.

b. Cleaning and Disinfecting the Exterior Surfaces: Clean the exterior surfaces as needed
to remove dust, dirt, and splatter from the surfaces, and disinfect the surfaces.

Materials:

1) Hospital-approved disinfectant wipe

2) Lint-free cloth

Caution: Do not wet the sample port or the sensor contacts for the measurement
and Automatic QC cartridges. When cleaning surfaces do not spray cleaning
solution or other fluids into or on the sample port or the area behind the
cartridges. Avoid liquid from Sani-wipes around the sample port. The sensor
contacts, which are located behind the cartridges, may be damaged if they get
wet. Sensors inside the cartridge may be damaged if cleaning solution enters the
sample port.

If necessary, wring any excess liquid from the wipe so it is wet but not dripping.

iv. To disinfect the exterior surfaces: wipe, let remain wet for two minutes, then dry
with a lint-free cloth.
c. Replacing the Printer Paper: Replace the printer paper when a pink stripe appears on

the edge of the paper.

Material:

1) Printer paper

Grasp the latch on top of the touch screen and move the screen forward to
expose the printer compartment.

Remove the old roll of paper:

1) Open the printer compartment.

2) If paper remains in the printer, tear off the paper below the printer.
Caution: Do not pull the torn paper back through the printer. This can
damage the printing mechanism.

3) Turn the paper-advance knob clockwise to move the torn paper through
the printer.

4) Remove the old roll of paper.

5) Save the spindle for use with the new roll of paper.

Install a new roll of paper:
Note: When you advance the paper, watch the paper move through the printer to
ensure that it exits the printer correctly.

1) Get a new roll of paper and remove the outer wrapper.

2) insert the spindle through the roll of paper and place the paper in the
printer compartment. Ensure that the paper is tightly wound and the ends
of the spindle fit into the grooves on the sides of the compartment.

3) Insert the paper from the bottom of the roll through the back of the printer.
The system advances the paper automatically if the previous roll of paper

was empty.

4) Turn the paper-advance knob clockwise to move 2-3 inches of paper
through the top of the printer.

5) Note: When you close the printer compartment, ensure that the edge of
the printer paper extends beyond the top of the printer.

6) Close the printer compartment.

97



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manuat
Siemens Rapidpoint Procedure

Page 8 of 11

7) Note: The first report printed after installing a new roll of paper does not
have the Rapidpoint 405 name printed at the top.
8) Adjust the position of the screen for viewing.

D. CALIBRATION:

1.

2.

The system performs calibrations automatically at prescribed intervals and with each sample if
necessary.

The system automatically calibrated the sensors as follows:

a. One-point calibrations are scheduled to occur regularly at 30-minute intervals between
calibrations.
b. Every fourth scheduled calibration is a two-point calibration.

No operator action is required for calibration. If necessary, the system can defer a calibration to
analyze a sample. In this case the message informing you that the system is busy contains a
STAT button that lets you interrupt the calibration. However, if the maximum time between
automatic calibrations has elapsed, the system must complete the calibration before allowing
sample analysis.

During calibration, if the system detects a problem for a parameter, the system repeats the
calibration for as many as two times. The Additional Cal Required message appears on the
printed report and in the events log. If the calibrations are not successful, the system turns the
parameter off. You can continue to obtain results for the other parameters. However, you must
wait for the parameter to pass the next calibration to obtain results for the parameter the system
turned off.

The system performs additional calibrations during sample analysis for the first four hours after
you install a new measurement cartridge. These calibrations ensure that the cartridge is ready
for sample analysis. When these additional calibrations are required, sample results do not
update during analysis, analysis time is prolonged due to additional calibration.

E. QUALITY CONTROL.:

1.

The AutomaticQC (AQC) analysis option performs quality control analysis at the scheduled time
and for the scheduled level. The cartridge contains all the levels of QC material needed to
monitor system performance without operator intervention.

During AQC analysis, the system compares the results to the ranges for each parameter and
identifies any results that are out of range. Any parameters that fail QC are turned off. The
system repeats QC analysis if the first attempt fails and turns on any failed parameters that
pass. Any parameters that fail the second QC analysis are turned off.

The system allows you to analyze a sample from the AQC cartridge in addition to the scheduled
AQC. When you analyze an AQC sample, the results can affect parameter status. The system
turns failed parameters on that pass QC analysis for the failed level and turns parameters off
that do not pass QC analysis.

The system automatically sends the QC results to the Rapidlink data management system. This
is to be reviewed periodically by approved Laboratory personnel.

You can interrupt AQC between levels if you need to analyze an urgent patient sample. Touch
STAT on the AQC Results screen to delay analysis of the next level of QC material. When the

system is ready, analyze your patient sample. The system analyzes any remaining leveis of QC
after you finish.

<. PROCEDURE NOTES:

1.

Status of Parameter Buttons:
| ¥PH | Parameters with checkmarks are selected (Touch to deselect test) |

98



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manuat
Siemens Rapidpoint Procedure

Page 9 of 11

PH | This parameter is available but not selected.
PH Thi.s parameter is not available because the sensor is out of
calibration.
PURPLE BUTTON: not available because Required QC was not
Qac PH | performed.
ac | YELLOW BUTTON: not available because the sensor has failed
PH | QC.

The system reports only pO2 results for mixed venous samples. Because mixed venous
samples collected from some pulmonary artery catheters can contain potentially interfering
substances such as the benzalkonium ion that significantly affect the results of some
parameters, only pO2 results are reported.

Use sample devices containing only calcium-titrated (balanced) heparin or lithium heparin as the
anticoagulant.

Send specimen to the laboratory if you have any question concerning the operation or results of
the Rapidpoint.
System Message: The system messages can appear as follows:

a. Messages can appear in a message box over the Analysis screen or over the Status
screen.
b. Messages can appear in the events log at the Status screen or in the events log that you

access from the Recall menu. For example, after you replace a depleted wash/waste
cartridge, the message about the cartridge no longer appears at the Status screen but
remains in the events log that you access from the Recall menu.

C. The following table lists the messages in alphabetical order. Refer to the instrument
manual page 4-24 for a description of probable cause and corrective action. Notify LAB
or POC Coordinator if you have any questions with any of the following errors:

Message Probable Cause and Corrective Action
AQC Cartridge Expired | Refer to Replacing the AutomaticQC Cartridge.
C:ﬁj Cartridge Not Unable to use the Cartridge.

AQC Connector is Open | Connector on the cartridge is open.
Additional Cal Required | A sensor experienced a calibration error.

Analysis is turned off Rapidlink data management system has turned
by a remote computer. | off the system. Call LAB

The system cannot complete analysis due to
bubbles or obstruction. Touch Continue to
begin the sequence to clear the system.
Replace the sample port when prompted.
Analyze the sample again, ensuring that the
sample has no bubbles.

Cal was delayed. The system must perform a

Bubbles in the Sample.

Cal Overdue o

calibration before you an analyze samples.
Cal Not Done The system performs an extended calibration.
D2 Excessive Drift: The system turned the parameter identified in

D3 Slope Error: the. message gff because the sensor gxceeded
) calibration limits. Subsequent calibrations may
D4 Offset Error: make the parameter available again.

D21 Processing Error A system error occurred. When prompted, shut

99



| Patient Care Services Rrocedure-Manual
Siemens Rapidpoint Procedure
Page 10 of 11

Message

Probable Cause and Corrective Action

down the system. Call technical assistance if
appears again.

D23 Reagent Error: 1-8
or 10-13

Inadequate flow of one or more reagents.
System may prompt you to replace the
Wash/Waste or Measurement cartridges.

D23 Reagent Error: 9

Inadequate flow of one or more reagents.
System may prompt you to replace the sample
port or Wash/Waste or Measurement
cartridges.

D24 AQC Material Error

Inadequate flow of QC materials

D33 Valve Error: 1

A problem with the valve inside the
measurement cartridge.

D33 Valve Error: 2

A problem with the valve inside the
measurement cartridge.

D35 Electronics Error:
113

Error in the electronic components.

D35 Electronics Error:
14

A problem with the door.

D38 Temp Error: 1

Error in the temperature controls system
because of a problem with the fan.

D38 Temp Error: 2-13

Error can occur if a component in the
temperature control system has failed.

D39 Obstruction

Obstruction or a sample not detected, and
prompts you to replace the sample port.

D40 Wash Not Detected

Fluidic components of a newly installed
wash/waste cartridge have failed.

D41 No AQC Material
Detected

Fluidic components of a newly installed
wash/waste cartridge have failed.

D60 Communications
Error

Error in communicating with the Rapidlink.

Door Error

Door not closed.

Insufficient Sample
Volume.

The system cannot complete analysis. Touch
Continue to begin the sequence to clear.
Replace sample port when prompted.

M Cartridge Expired

Replace the Measurement and Wash/Waste
Cartridges.

Expire cartridge was installed or not installed

M Cartridge Not Valid
correctly as prompted.
No AQC Cartridge Not installed
No M Cartridge Not installed
No Paper in Printer Out of paper.
No W Cartridge Not installed
Out of Reporting The parameter shown is outside reporting
Range: range. Send specimen to lab.

QC Lot Not Defined

No Lot information is entered for QC

QC Material Expired

Define new lot of control

100



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Siemens Rapidpoint Procedure

Page 11 of 11

G.

1.

Message

Probable Cause and Corrective Action

Question Result:

Atypical response when measuring parameter.
Repeat.

Sensors Unavailable for
QcC

Out of calibration

System Error.

System will attempt to correct.

System Error. Power off
and on

Electronic or processing error has occurred.

System require
operator attention

- QC due ---- Cartridges are nearly expired or
depleted ---- Failed QC

Temp Not Ready

Temperature of the sensor module is outside
range.

Temp Out of Range

Does not report sample results

Temp Warning

New cartridge warming

The system detected an
obstruction and cannot
complete analysis.

Clot

The system did not
detect a sample

No sample detected.

This password is
expired.

You have exceeded your certification date and
cannot access the system.

Uncorrected:

Hct not corrected because Na or K not
calibrated.

Unrecoverable System
Error.

Call for technical assistance.

Unsuccessful
Connection.

Not connected to Rapidlink

W Cartridge Expired

Replace Wash/Waste Cartridge

REFERENCES:
“105951 Rev J." Bayer-Siemens Rapidpoint 400 Series Operator's Manual, 06/2008. Print.

101



2
(C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

URINE CHEMISTRY USING A URINE DIPSTICK, MEASURING

Purpose:

To outline nursing responsibilities for testing urine using dipsticks.

Supportive Data:

A registered nurse (RN) or licensed vocational nurse (LVN) may perform this procedure.
Testing using a urine dipstick is under the direction, authority, jurisdiction and
responsibility of the Laboratory Director. Urine dipstick testing is considered definitive for
the purpose of care and diagnosis.

Equipment:

1. Timer
2. Paper Towel

A POLICY:

1.

Urine dipsticks are inert plastic strips which have attached different reagent papers for
measuring urine chemistries. The dipstick provides a rapid, simple method for measuring pH,
leukocytes, nitrite, protein, glucose, ketones, urobilinogen, bilirubin, blood, and hemoglobin in
urine specimens. Testing is considered definitive for the purposes of care and diagnosis

B. PROCEDURE:
Verify Quality Control (QC) has been completed within at least 24 hours.
a. Complete QC and record in Iog |f needednot done

1.

Collect a-voided urine in a clean container. A first-morning specimen is preferred, but random

collections are acceptable.

a. Test the urine within two hours (test immediately if testing for bilirubin or urobilinogen). If
unable to test within two hours, refrigerate the specimen immediately and bring to room
temperature before testing.

b. Label the sample if the test is not performed at the bedside and in the presence of the
patient.

C. Mix well before testing.

Immerse the test strip briefly (no longer than 1 second) into the container of urine.

a. Make sure the reagent pads are totally immersed.

Draw the edge of the strip along the rim of the container to remove excess urine.

Turn the test strip on its side and tap once on an absorbent paper towel to remove excess urine.

a. This also prevents the possible mixing of reagent chemicals which can produce reading
difficulties.

Wait the appropriate time (per manufacturer’s recommendation) and read the test. Accurate

timing is essential.

a. Color changes that occur after 2 minutes are of no clinical value.

b. Match the test strip to the color and record results.
i. Be sure the strip is properly oriented to the color chart on the test strip container.
ii. Color changes that occur only along the edges of the pads should be ignored.

Careful removal of excess urine will eliminate this effect.

Storage

Store all unused strips in the original bottle.

Store at room temperature.

Do not remove desiccant from bottle.

Do not store in direct sunlight.

Do not use strips after their expiration date.

Once opened, strips are good until the expiration date listed on the bottle or six months

after the open date, whichever is sooner.-if-properly-stored-

000 oD

- REFERENCE RANGES:

Clinical Nursing Pharmacy & Medical Professional
Revision Dates Policies & Executive DeF? atrl:n;ent i Therapeutics Executive Affairs 3{’ a": of
Procedures Council athology Committee Committee Committee e
7/03,4/04,11/086,
7/09,08/11, 09/11, 05/15 10/11, 0515 03/16 n/a 11/11, 04/16 1/12, 05/16 112 1 &2
04/15




| Patient Care Services Precedure-Manual
Urine Chemistry Using a Urine Dipstick, Measuring

Page 2 of 3
Test: Glucose | Bilirubin | Ketones | Specific | Blood pH Protein | Urobilin | Nitrite Leukocy
Gravity ogen tes
Normal: | Neg Neg Neg 1.010- | Neg 46-8.0 | Neg Neg Neg Neg
1.035

D. LIMITATIONS

1. Protein: A VISIny bloody urine may cause elevated results

2. Blood: Capoten (captopril) may reduce sensitivity. Certain oxidizing contaminates, such
as hypochlorite, may produce false positive results. Microbal peroxidase associated with
UTI may cause false positive reaction.

3. Leukocytes: Elevated glucose (>= 3 g/dL) may cause decreased test results. The
presence of cephalexin, cephalothin, or high concentration of oxalic acid may cause
decreased test results. Tetracycline may cause decreased reactivity and high levels of
the drug may cause a false negative reaction. Positive results may occasionally be due to
contamination of specimen by vaginal discharge.

4, Nitrite: Pink spots or pink edges should not be interpreted as a positive resuit. A
negative result does not rule out significant bacteriuria. False negative results may occur
with shortened bladder incubation of the urine, absence of dietary nitrate, or the
presence of nonreductive pathological microbes.

5. Glucose: Ketone bodies reduce the sensitivity of the test; a moderately high ketone
levels (40 mg/dL) may cause false negatives for specimens containing a small amount of
glucose (75-125 mg/dL) but the combination of such ketone levels and low glucose levels
is metabolically improbable in screening.

6. Ketones: False trace results may occur with highly pigmented urine specimens or those
containing large amounts of levodopa metabolites. Compounds such as mesna that
contain sulfhydryl groups may cause false positive or an atypical color reaction.

7. pH: Bacterial growth by certain organisms may cause a marked alkaline shift (ph >8),
usually because of the urea conversion to ammonia.

8. Specific Gravity: Highly buffered alkaline urines may cause low readings, while the
presence of moderate quantities of protein (100-750 mg/dL) may cause elevated
readings.

9. Bilirubin: Atypical colors (colors that are unlike the negative or positive color blocks

shown on the color chart) may indicate that bilirubin-derived bile pigments are present in
the urine sample and may be masking the bilirubin reaction. These colors may indicate
bile pigment abnormalities and the urine specimen should be tested further (send to lab).

10. Urobilogen: Atypical color reactions may be obtained in the presence of high
concentration of p-amino benzoic acid. False negative results may be obtained if formalin
is present. Strip reactivity increases with temperature.

E. DOCUMENTATION:
1. Document the results in electronlc health recordP—ewethaﬁ—Emergeney—DepaFt-ment

QWGS) lf test performed by a Llcensed Vocatlonal Nurse (LVN), the LVN should Rreport
the result to RN as appropriate.

r. REFERENCES:

103



| Patient Care Services Prosedure-Manuat
Urine Chemistry Using a Urine Dipstick, Measuring
Page 30of 3

| 21. Siemens Healthcare Multistix Package Insert. AN30546GTN30516A. 614/260906/2010.

104



Distribution: Patient Care Services

(c‘? Tri-City Medical Center

PROCEDURE: URINE DIPSTICK ANALYSIS USING SIEMENS CLINITEK STATUS + CONNECT

Purpose: To provide an accurate and reliable method for reading urine dipstick results. Test results
may provide information regarding the status of carbohydrate metabolism, kidney and
liver function, acid-base balance, and urinary tract infection.

Supportive Data: A Registered Nurse (RN) or Licensed Vocational Nurse (LVN) may perform this
procedure. Testing is under the direction, authority, jurisdiction, and responsibility of the

Laboratory Director.

Equipment: 1. Siemens Clinitek Status Analyzer (Analyzer together with base component)
2. Siemens Multisix 10SG dipstick

3. Paper towel to blot

4. 2 levels Quality Control (QC) (current manfuatcturermanufacturer provided by lab)

A. PRINCIPLE :

1. The Clinitek Status analyzer is for in vitro diagnostic use in the semi-quantitative detection of
albumin, bilirubin, blood (occult), creatinine, glucose, ketone (acetoacetic acid), leukocytes,
nitrite, pH, protein, specific gravity, and urobilinogen in urine samples.

a. The Clinitek Status+ Analyzer provides more regulatory control than the previous Clinitek
Status model, including connectivity options and QC lockout functions.
2. If the movement of the test table is irregular or slow, this may be due to:
a. Heavy build up of dried urine on the test table—clean the test table
b. Low battery power—replace the batteries or use the power supply.
3. Substances that cause abnormal urine color may affect the readability of test pads on the

reagent strips (see Attachment A).

B. SPECIMEN:

1. First-morning void specimen is preferred. If not available, use a specimen that has incubated in
the bladder for at least 4 hours. A random-void specimen is acceptable, but may not register
positive nitrite results.

Collect in a clean dry container.

Label with patient identification.

Test within one hour of collection or refrigerate for up to 24 hours and bring to room temperature
before testing. (Bilirubin and urobilinogen decrease with time).

poON

C. PROCEDURE:

1. Quality Control: Two levels of quality control (QC) must be tested daily before

performing patient tests and when opening a new vial of test strips.

a. Store QC vials in the refrigerator when not in use and bring to room temperature before
use (10-15 minutes). An open vial of QC is good for 30 days at room temperature. Mix
well.

b. If QC needs to be performed, the “Strip Test” button will not be available, and the
QC button will say “QC Test Due”.

C. Select the QC button.

d. Select “QC Strip Test”

e. Operator: Select “Enter New Operator Name”. Enter operator ‘name’ by

i. Scanning badge barcode

ii. Typing alpha-CERNER code

iii. Toggle to numeric and type numeric — Employee ID
f. Control: Select “Enter Lot and Expiration Date”.

i. Scan the barcode for the QC lot number.

o Clinical Nursing Pharmacy & Medical Professional
Rg\;lts‘;gn Policies & Executive DeF? aatli"tg:gnt - Therapeutics Executive Affairs gi(::::?o?;
Procedures Council y Committee Committee Committee
5/13, 05/15 6/13, 05/15 6/13, 05/15 03/16 n/a 7/13, 04116 09/13, 05/16 09/13

05



| Patient Care Services-Rrosedure-Manual
Urine Dipstick Analysis using Siemens Clinitek Status + Connect
Page 2 of 5

ii. Adjust the year and month of the expiration date.
iii. Strip: Select “Enter new lot and expiration date”.
iv. Scan the barcode assigned to the vial of strips in use.
V. Adjust the year and month of the expiration date.
g. Prepare Test:
i. Mix the QC Vial well. Press “Start”. You have 8 seconds to complete the following

steps:
1) Wet each pad of the strip with control material.
2) Tap the edge of the strip onto a paper towel to remove excess liquid.

3) Place the strip in the test strip holder with the test pads facing up. Slide the
strip to the end of the holder.

4) At the end of the 8 second countdown, the test strip holder will pull into the
instrument and the strip will be read. The instrument will compare the
results obtained with pre-programmed expected results and determine a

PASS or FAIL.
5) Dispose of the strip and wipe clean the test strip holder.
6) Repeat any levels of Failed QC as necessary.
7) Verify strips and QC has been stored properly and are not expired.
8) Re-mix sample well.

9) Clean the test-table insert.
10)  Refer to additional troubleshooting steps at the end of this procedure.
11)  Contact the lab for support.

h. Record results on the Waived Testing QC log.

D). PATIENT TEST:
1. Select “Strip Test”

2. Operator: Select “Enter New Operator Name”. Enter operator
‘name’ by
a. Scanning badge barcode
b. Typing alpha-CERNER code
C. Toggle to numeric and type numeric- Employee |ID
3. Patient Information: Select “Enter New Patient”
a. Enter the Patient’'s Last Name
b. Enter the Patient’s ID
4, Strip: Select “Enter new lot and expiration date”.
a. If available, select “use last lot”. Or,
b. Scan the barcode assigned to the vial of strips in use.
c. Adjust the year and month of the expiration date.
5. Prepare Test:
a. Mix the sample well. Press “Start”. You have 8 seconds to complete the following steps:
b. Fully immerse the dipstick into the urine. Tilt slightly to the side ensuring all strip pads

are wet. Slowly pull the strip out, dragging the edge of the strip along the rim of the
vial to catch excess liquid.

C. Place the strip in the test strip holder with the test pads facing up. Slide the strip to the
end of the holder.

d. At the end of the 8 second countdown, the test strip holder will pull into the instrument
and the strip will be read. (The analyzer automatically

e. Performs a calibration each time a strip is read. Do not push or pull the test table or bump
the instrument while it is calibrating.)

f. While the strip is reading, select the color and clarity of the urine.

g. Dispose of the strip and wipe clean the test strip holder.
6. Recall Results:
a. From the main Select screen, touch the Recall Results button.

106



| Patient Care Services-Procedure-Manual
Urine Dipstick Analysis using Siemens Clinitek Status + Connect
Page 30of 5

b. Select to review Patient or Quality Control tests.

C. Test results are listed chronologically, with the most recent being at the top. Use the
up and down arrows to scroll and highlight the result you would like to recall. Touch
Select to view.

d. You may print. Touch done when finished.

E. LIMITATIONS:
1. Interfering substances may cause false positive or false negative results. Refer to
attachment A at the end of the procedure.
Z-2. To Report Results

a. Results reported by the meter:
Test Abbreviation Units REFERENCE RANGES:
Normal Abnormal
. 100 500
Glucose GLU mg/dL Negative 250 >1000
Small
Bilirubin BIL Negative Moderate
Large
"~ | Trace 80
Ketone KET mg/dL Negative 15
>160
40
<
1.005 1.020
oo . 1.010 1.025
Specific Gravity | SG 1015 1030 N/A
>
1.035
Blood BLO Negative Trace Moderate
Small Large
50 65 8.0
pH pH 55 70 85 N/A
60 7.5 =>9.0
Protein PRO mg/dL Negative Trace, 30, 100, > 300
0.2 2.0
Urobilinogen URO E.U./dL 1'0 4.0
) >8.0
Nitrite NIT Negative Positive
. Trace Moderate
Leukocytes LEU Negative Small Large
b. Critical Values:

i. Glucose greater than or equal to 1000 mg/dL shall be reported to patient’s
licensed health care provider (RN or MD)
c. Detectable Range for Reagant Area and Sensitivity:

| EF. METER MAINTENANCE AND CLEANING:

1. The test table is to be kept clean if the analyzer is to operate properly.

2. Nursing shall be responsible for the daily cleaning of the test table insert and weekly cleaning of
the meter.
a. To clean the Test Table insert:

i. Remove the insert and thoroughly clean with a hospital approved disinfectant.
ii. Rinse both sides under running water
iii. Dry and replace insert
b. To clean the Meter:
i. Turn analyzer off
ii. Wipe the outside with a damp (not wet) cloth and mild detergent

107



| Patient Care Services-Procedure-Manual
Urine Dipstick Analysis using Siemens Clinitek Status + Connect

Page 4 of 5
1) May use a hospital approved disinfectant after wringing out excess liquid
2) Avoid liquid from enter the printer compartment and under touch display
3. Lab shall perform other cleaning and maintenance to include cleaning of test table and white
calibration bar monthly.
a. To clean the Calibration Bar:

i. Remove the insert from the test table.

ii. Remove the test table by pulling it slowly out of the analyzer.

iii. Drain the drip tray, if necessary.

iv. Examine the white calibration bar on the test table for dirt or discoloration
under good lighting. If it appears dirty or discolored, wet a cotton-tipped
stick or lint free cloth with distilled water and gently wipe and clean the
calibration bar.

V. Do not scratch, touch or mark the Calibration bar.

vi. Allow the calibration bar to air dry.

fivii. Insert the test table and table insert back.-

G. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
| 1. Substances/Conditions Affecting Test Results — Attachment A

H. REFERENCE:
1. Siemens Healthcare Multistix Product Insert.-AN30516G.-TN30516A(2009,January) Rev. 06/10
2. Siemens Clinitek Status Connect System Operator's-Manual Guide-
2:3.  (432387-Revisions {2008, May) 135955) Rev. B, 2011-06

l. TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE:
1. Siemens HealthCare Technical Care Center: 1-877-229-3711 Option 13; option 2

108



| Patient Care Services-Procedure-Manual
Urine Dipstick Analysis using Siemens Clinitek Status + Connect

Page S5 of 5

Substances/Conditions Affecting Test Results — Attachment A
The following table includes specific substances and conditions that may affect test results.

Test Name False Positive or False Negative or
Increased values Decreased values
Glucose + Ketones ( greater than or equal to
40 mg/dL) may affect a 75 to 125
mg/dL glucose level
Bilirubin « Indican™ (indoxyl sulfate) may « Small amounts (less than 0.4 mg/dL)
impart a yellow-orange to red color may need to be detected with
on the pad ICTOTEST® Reagent Tablets (Send
to lab
« Metabolites of Lodine™ (etodolac) o lab)
+ Urine specimen was more than one
hour old (instability of bilirubin).
Ketone « Highly pigmented urines
« Large amounts of levodopa
(L-dopa) metabolites
« Compounds that contain sulfhydryl
groups
Specific » Moderate (100 — 750 mg/dL) « Highly buffered/alkaline urines
Gravity quantities of protein
Blood » Oxidizing contaminants (e.g. . Capotenr(Captopril)
bleach)
» Microbial peroxidase from urinary
tract infections
pH « Bacterial growth that converts urea
to ammonia
Protein « Visibly blood urine
Urobilinogen « p-aminosalicylic acid (PAS) and + Formalin
sulfonamides « Urine specimen more than one hour
« p-aminobenzoic acid (PABA) may old (instability of urobilinogen)
cause atypical color development
Nitrite « Infections caused by organisms that
don’t contain reductase
« Urine was not in bladder long
enough (at least 4 hours)
« Absence of dietary nitrate
Leukocytes + Contamination by vaginal discharge  « Elevated glucose (greater than or

equal to 3,000 mg/dL)

Cephalexin (Keflex®) or Cephalothin
(Keflin®)

High concentrations of oxalic acid
Tetracycline

109



@Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Adminlstratbreo Polley-MarualPatient Care Services

Patient’s Personal Documents

ISSUE DATE: 2/89 SUBJECT: Witnessing a Patient Signature on
REVISION DATE: 6/94; 7/99; 7/02; 3/06; 3/11 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-341

Department Approval Date(s): 03/16

Clinical Policies and Procedures Committee Approval Date(s): 04/16

Nurse Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 04/16

[0 02/11
AL i}

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 03/1105/16
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 03/11
A POLICY:
1. Witnessing of signatures on patients’ personal documents by hospital personnel shall not be

permitted. This policy is for the purpose of avoiding any conflict of interest and to avoid any

inference of impropriety.

B. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

documents-Witn

C. REFERENCES:
1. California Hospital Association Consent Manual 2015
2. California Probate Code

110



| Administrative-Policy-Manual—Patient-CarePatient Care Services

Witnessing a Patient Signature on Patient's Personal Documents, 8610-341

Page 2 of 2
WITNESSING OF PERSONAL DOCUMENTS
TYPE REQUIREMENT
I Advance Directives
Advance Health Care Directive No witnessing permitted by staff, except Notary
e By law, may not be healthcare Public.
providers or employees
e Volunteers and Contracted
Agencies are agents of hospital for
purposes of this policy.
il Wills
Typed Wills: Patients or designee will secure their own witnesses.
e Witnessed by 2 persons who are Hospital staff may not witness.
not beneficiaries under the Will.
e Should not be notarized.
Holographic Wills: No witness required.
o Entirely in patient’s own
handwriting, dated.
¢ No need to be witnessed.
. Financial Documents
Real Estate: Notary only.
e Notary required.
Power of Attorney/Finance Patient or Designee will secure their own witnesses
Hospital staff may not witness.
Bank Transactions Notary only.
e Notary required.
NOTES:

e Witnessing of any patient personal documents by an employee is not permitted.
o Advising patients and visitors regarding legal documents is not permitted.

111



@Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

DELETE -This is an
obsolete policy that is no
longer required.

ISSUE DATE: 11/06 SUBJECT: Fax Waiver
REVISION DATE: 6/09; 5/12; 6/12 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-635
Department Approval Date(s): 04/16
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 06/1204/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 07/14205/16
Board of Directors Approval: 07/12

112



@)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

ISSUE DATE: 9/05 SUBJECT: LIBRARY SERVICES MISSION AND
SCOPE OF SERVICE
| REVISION DATE: 11/08; 12/10, POLICY NUMBER: 8610-287
Department Approval Date(s) 04/16
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 07/1304/16
Operations-Team - Commitiee-Approval: B2
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 07/1305/16
Board of Directors Approval: 07/13
A PURPOSE:
1. To define the mission and scope of service provided by Library Services at Tri-City Medical
Center.
B. MISSION:
1. Tri City Medical Center Medical Staff and Health Science Library is committed to:
a. Providing high quality information resources and services which support clinical
decision-making and excellence in patient care;
b. Serving as an educational resource to all medical and hospital personnel;
C. Continuing improvement in quality through education and adaptation of technological
advances;
| d. Supporting the mission, strategic initiatives, and value statements of Tri-City Medical
Center.
e. Supporting Joint Commission Standard IM.03.01.01 for continuous access to
knowledge based resources.
C. SCOPE OF SERVICE:
1. The aim of the service is to provide information that can be used to support clinical and

management decision-making, quality improvement processes, continuing education of staff,
research, and when appropriate, patient and family education. Information is to be provided in a
cost-effective and customer-friendly manner.

2. Use and Access

a.

The library is available to all physicians, hospital employees, students officially rotating
through Tri-City Medical Center (residents, physician assistant students, nursing
students, and interns in other disciplines), and volunteers. 24-hour access is available
for physicians and hospital personnel only. Patients, their significant others and
community members may use the Library at the discretion of the Information Specialist,
and only when the Information Specialist is present. Use is limited to patient care and
educational purposes.

3. Services

a.

Reference Services

i. Assistance is provided in locating factual and bibliographic information.
Research and literature searches can be requested. This includes, but is not
limited to, information for direct patient care, in-services, and administrative
health care issues. Literature searches needed for urgent patient care issues or
urgent admlnlstratwe lssues receive top prlorlty A—'Fable—ef—Gentents—seree—B

113



Administrative Policy Manual

Library Services Mission and Scope of Service — 8610-287
Page 2 of 2

‘ A.D.

e.

eurrentjournakissues—-The library also provides user education programs upon
request. The Information Specialist may be reached by telephone, fax, or e-mail.

Circulation of Library Materials

i. Library books may be checked out for 3 weeks.

ii. A complete list of journals currently in the library is available, and details the title,
the years held, and whether the journal is a current subscription.

1) Journals may circulate in the Medical Staff Library for 2 weeks; a
photocopier is available in the library so that a needed article may be
reproduced. Photocopies of library-related materials may be made in the
library at no charge.

ii. Copyright restrictions apply to all materials.

Interlibrary Loans

i. Materials that are not available in Tri-City Medical Center’s library can usually be
obtained through interlibrary loan within twenty-four to forty-eight hours.

Interlibrary loans for urgent patient care issues or urgent administrative issues

receive top priority. Service is provided at discretion of the librarian and

interlibrary loan charges may apply.

Computer Services

i. Patrons may utilize library computers for reference and hospital-related
purposes. Current online subscriptions include MDConsult and CINAHL. Use is
limited to patient care and educational purposes. Computer use for urgent

patient care issues or urgent administrative issues receives top priority. Tri-City’s

Information Technology Internet Access Policy regulates all computer use.
Library Hours of Service:
i. 24-hour access for physicians and hospital personnel via keypad entry. Access
for individuals not associated with Tri City Medical Center available only when
information specialist is in attendance.

REFERENCES:

1. Joint Commission Standard IM.03.01.01

114



Tri-City Health Care District This copy of the policy reflects
Oceanside, California the TRACKED CHANGES.

Infection Control Policy Manual

SUBJECT: Infection-Prevention-and-Control-Risk Assessment and Surveillance Plan

ISSUE DATE: 3/2002

REVISION DATE: 7/13, 7/14, POLICY NUMBER:-1G-2
Department Approval Date(s): 07/15

Infection Control Committee Approval: 07/1407/15

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 07/1404/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 05/16

Board of Directors Approval: 08/14

A PURPOSE OF RISK ASSESSMENT

1.

Sound epidemiological principles must be considered in the formation of the surveillance
program designed to provide maximum information and identify opportunities to reduce disease.
Measures directed toward cost effective care must include best practice and technology to
prevent infection. The economic impact of an efficient and flexible infection control plan is
especially relevant in times of changing reimbursement and payment patterns. Tri-City Medical
Center’s plan outlines how this may be accomplished within the confines of resources, external
regulatory guidelines, and medical staff requirements.

3 PURPOSE OF SURVEILLANCE

1.

The foundation of and most important purpose of this program is to decrease the risk of
infectious complications for all patients, healthcare workers, visitors and staff. Ongoing
epidemiological information assists with identifying at risk populations and opportunities to
interrupt prevent or reduce the occurrence of healthcare associated infections. Surveillance will
be compared to nationally recognized benchmarks such as the National Healthcare Safety
Network (NHSN) rates whenever possible.

C. RESPONSIBILITY

1.

Successful creation of an organization-wide infection control program requires collaboration with
all relevant components/functions. Individuals within the hospital who have the power to
implement plans and make decisions related to prevention and control of risks related to
infections are included in the design and coordination of processes. In consultation with the
Medical Staff, Directors, Medical Director of Infection Control, Environmental Health and
Safety Committee, Patient Safety Officerthe-Patient-Care-Coordinating-Geuneil and the
Infection Control Committee, the Infection Preventionist (IP) shall implement a systematic
process for monitoring and evaluating the quality and effectiveness of the infection control
program. Significant deviations are discussed in Infection Control Committee, Quality
Improvement Medical Staff Committees, and-the-Environmental Health and Safety
Committee and the Patient Safety CommltteePatient-GaFe—GeeFd{naHng—Geune# and referred
to appropriate councils and committees for action.

infection Prevention and Control Services are staffed with 2.:81.8 FTE (includes one FTE with
certification in Infection Control). There are computer resources with Internet connection,
Microsoft Office software, NHSN National internet based database and access to the hospital's
electronic medical records (Compass and Affinity). Telephone with voice mail, and fax and
pageraccess is provided. The office is located within the Surgical Scheduling office.

115



Infection Control Manual
| Risk Assessment & Surveillance Plan

Page 2 of 18

3.

Infection Control Services works in conjunction with others, as a consultant and resource for
best practices. We support system changes and an interdisciplinary focus to improving care.
We believe that all our employees, medical staff, and volunteers play an important role in
preventing and controlling infections. Ultimately, the leadership team within the district is
responsible for adopting and ensuring compliance with appropriate policies and practices.

D. LINKS WITH INTERNAL SOURCES

T

On at least an annual basis, the IP department will meet with the affected departments (i.e.
Medical Staff and Employee Health) staff-to assess whether the goals and priorities have
been achieved and what steps are required to implement any indicated changes. The goals are
shared with and reviewed by the Infection Control Committee. Education on infection control
goals and priorities will be included with quarterly reports and during individual meetings with
the hospital leadership. The IP staff reports to Infection Control Committee quarterly and
attends other medical staff and hospital committees as requested, regulatory requirements and
department specific Quality Reports are reviewed.

4.E. LINKS WITH EXTERNAL SOURCES

21,

3-2.

a-3.

1.

The San Diego County Public Health Department, state health authorities, the Division of
Occupational Safety and Health, and other recognized infection control specialists, for example,
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), Association for Professionals in
Infection Control and Epidemiology (APIC), Society for Healthcare Epidemiology of America
(SHEA), and the California Healthcare Association (CHA) are important links between the
district and outside resources. infection Control departmentServices subscribes to automatic
notifications available via email from the CDC, San Diego County Ppublic Hrealth (CAHAN) and
California Department of Health and Human Services. Infection surveillance covers a broad
range of processes and activities with potential for intervention and these organizations assist
with the where, when, and how of targeting.

Healthcare associated infections (HAI) are reported by the IP staff to the external healthcare
referring-organizations when the infection was not known at the time of transfer. TCMC receives
reports from outside organizations/physieians when a patient deve|ops an mfectlon that might
meet criteria for a healthcare assomated |nfect|on

s—Home Health/Hosplce

quahty review staff report dlrectly to Infectlon Control Committee.

The following conditions will be reported to external healthcare organizations with the intent to

satisfy JCAHO IC 02.01.014-40(5)(and recorded in the patient’s chart using PowerForm). The

Infection Surveillance Report will document notification to the referring healthcare organization

within 7 days of discovery by the TCMC Infection Prevention and Control Staff:

i-a. Positive culture from a surgical site and surgery performed at another facility.

a-b. Influenza rapid test is positive and patient was discharged to another healthcare facility
prior to results being known.

b-c. Positive C difficile toxin test known after the patient was discharged to another
healthcare facility.

e.d. Positive MRBO-MDRO culture known after the patient was discharged to another
healthcare facility and the patient had no history of the same MDRO.

d.e. Unusual occurrences based on the opinion of the Infection Prevention staffist in
consultation with the Infection Control Medical Director and Director of Regulatory
Compliance.

E.F. PERTINENT RISK FACTORS

Each facility is unique and we considered the following factors in our planning.
a. National and international published scientific studies, community standard of care,
professional recommendations and regulatory requirements.

116



Infection Control Manual
| Risk Assessment & Surveillance Plan

Page 3 of 18

b. A review of hospital specific surveillance data from years past.

C. Medically fragile and at-risk populations such as newborns and those with invasive
devices.

d. The increasing antibiotic resistance in our facility and across the United States (as

reported by the CDC in by NHSN).

d-e. The vaccination/immunity rates of the community and employees.

PIDEMIOLOGICAL FACTORS: INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL

EG. E
1

The DistrictTri-City Medical Center is impacted by factors such as location, population served,
community health, financial status, population age, clinical focus, and healthcare worker
demographics and these were included in our planning.

2. The hospital's geographic location is in northern San Diego County. Qur-San Diego Ceounty is
the third-second most populous of California's 58 counties, and the sixth-fifth largest county in
the United States. San Diego is currently home to 2-83.21 million residents, and is anticipated to
grow to four million by 2020.

2.3. Located within the North County geographic region are 3 college campuses along with a
Marine Corp Base (Camp Pendleton).

3.4. San Diego County is becoming increasingly bicultural due to its Fhe-Geunty close
proximity to Mexico. In addition, the county is already ethnically diverse, and will be
increasingly so.—Ofresidents-under148; 327% are Hispanic, and the Hispanic population is
expected to continue to grow at a rapid rate. Approximately 21.5% of the county's populations
areis immigrants, including refugees, who come from other countries, speak 68 different
languages, and have a variety of needs as they assimilate into their new environment. The
senior and disabled populations are growing disproportionately compared to the rest of the
population.

4.5. Demographic information on the three cities most often served by Tri-City Medical Center is
listed below.

City Median Total # residents Percent White Hispanic | Asian &
income increase Pacific
since Islander
2000in14
years
Oceanside $ 161,029 (2000) +4-1%+7.3 | 48.54%
50,39559,640 ETESD % 35.836.0 7.6%
20415172,794 %
(2013)
Vista $ 89,857 (2000) +4-8%+7.9
50;564345,322 04438 % 42.90:8 | 49.084% 4.28%
(2011)96,929 (2013) %
Carlsbad $ 78,247 (2000) +350+41.8
81,46878,238 105,674110,972 % 75.249 | 13.63% 7.442%
(20134) %
a. http://www.city-data.com/city/Oceanside-California.html
b. http://www.city-data.com/city/Vista-California.html
C. http://www.city-data.com/city/Carlsbad-California.htm!
5.6. Enteric illness represents a significant burden of disease in the US and because of this the San

Diego County Health and Human Services Agency conducts outbreak investigation and
education to reduce the medical and cost-related impact of these diseases in the community.
Food borne ilinesses largely result from the ingestion of food or water contaminated by fecal
matter or ingestion of infected animal products. Hospitals play an important role in early

117



Infection Control Manual
| Risk Assessment & Surveillance Plan
Page 4 of 18

intervention by the identification and reporting of significant bacteria. The most common
mandated reported enteric illnesses in SD County are Campylobacter, Giardia, Hepatitis A,
Salmonella and Shigella.

6.7. In San Diego, overall rates for the three major reportable sexually transmitted diseases
(Chlamydia, Gonorrhea & Syphilis) have increased from 2011 to 2012. National trends
were reflective at the local Ievel mcludmg high rates of STD’s among young women and

th|rd Iargest number of HIV & AIDS cases in Callforma The. proportion of persons of
color has increased over time among HIV & AIDS cases. Black cases have the highest
rate of HIV & AIDS foIIowed by Hlspanlcs and then Whltes AH;SdJreprepemenatel-y—rmpaets

8. In 20143 San Dlego County -had 206 reported 220 cases of act|ve tuberculosns in 20132 San
Dlego County had—234reported 206 cases of actlve tuberculosns Ihrs—rs—a—hrgher—rate%ease—rate

5 i 2 } -1B drug susceptlblllty
information was available for 99% of the culture proven cases for 2014 in San Diego.
Multidrug-resistant (MDR-TB) strains were found in 2 of the cases. Tri City Medical
Center reported both cases of MDR-TB in our facmty In SD County, Hlspanlcs Asrans
had the highest rates of TB at 52%,

evepthe-years—lhe—ne*t—hghest—greup—wa&Amaanaclﬁc Islanders at 32%, non-Hrspanlc
Whites at 19% and non-Hispanic Blacks at 6%.Hispanie;-with-rates-0{12:8/400;000.TB
cases born outside of the US compromised 70% of San Diego County’s cases.lr-2043;
69%%-of TB-cases-are-foreign-born-persens-(Source: County of San Diego Health and Human
Services Agency, Tuberculosis and refugee Health Branch, April 20, 2015).Mareh-13,26014).
89. At TCMC, most AFB positive smears and cultures grow organisms that are not communicable
person to person. In 20143, there were 9five patients with pulmonary TB and none with
extrapulmonary TB An add|t|onal 34 cases were reported as rule out TB in 2014.anrd4

The number of active TB patlents seen annually at Tr| C|ty Medlcal Center varies from 5 12
TCMC Active TB Cases

16
14 4
12
10

B Extrapulmonary

DOPulmonary

B

~N

o

8-10. ;l'ri City Medical Center Financial Characteristics for Fiscal Year 2014AtTCMGC; in-fiscal

a. The top six insurance- coverage seen the acute care setting for-ouracute-cases (Net
; are as follows: (Not including OB/Newborn, BHU and
Rehab):
| MEDICARE | 36-37-%%36.03% |

118



Infection Control Manual
| Risk Assessment & Surveillance Plan

Page 5 of 18

=11,

12,

MEDICARE SR HMO 12.04%13.46%
MEDI-CAL HMOHMO 9-36%7.85%
HMO GARITFATED-SENIOR 8-327.54%
MEBI-CALHMOHMO Cap Sr 5:877.47%
SELFPAY/CASHMedi-Cal 65.6698%

i. The majority of insurance coverage for our newborns (nursery and NICU) is
funded by Medi-Cal or Medi-Cal HMO (74-59.2% compared to-ar HMO and PPO
insurance (48-412.3%) and other (8408.54%).

izb.  Patient census:

Average. Daily Census Average. | Total Pt. Days

Length of

Stay*
Acute Care (excludes all below) 135:2147.2 3:534.04 | 49,33853,728
ICU* 458171 2.836 6:7916,245
BHU 416-723.8 5586.43 6;0888,703
NICU 43:814.0 16:659.81 5;0015,121
Rehab Serv. 6.57 41.6915.49 2,432374

fi=i. *ICU ALOS includes discharges, transfers out, and expirations. All other areas
are based only on discharges.

b-.c. In acute care FY 14, the three largest age groups are- 76-85 year olds (19.6%), 56-65
year olds (17.7%), and 66-75 year olds (16.366-75-yearolds{16.8%)-55-65-yearolds
HRE%L and TE-28 vear olds (101565

a-d. Fifteen-Nineteen percent (10,745/ 57,19310;413/66,049) of Emergency Department

patients are admitted to the hospital.

The total number of employees working at Tri-City Medical Center (Fiscal Year 2014) is
approximately 2447-2,095 with about 4;254-1,275 staff providing direct patient care.

Tri-City Medical Center’s primary focus is on basic community services. In fiscal year 20143,
the top ten major Diagnostic categories (DRGs) are the following:

TeP@MO PO T

e

=

Obstelrics Mewssrms-illecnaies normarawborm:
ObstetricsNewborns & Neonates{\aginal-delivery)

Circulatory System

Musculoskeletal & Connective Tissue

Mental diseases

Digestive System

Respiratory

Infectious & pParasitic Diseases (psychoses)
Nervous System

Kidney & Urinary Tract

f

4—9—13 Top flve Inpatlent Surglcal Procedures (Flscal Year 2013)

119



Infection Control Manual
| Risk Assessment & Surveillance Plan
Page 6 of 18

FY12-13 Total

= C Section m Laparoscopic Cholecystectomy Appendectomy

m Replacement Total Hip = Replacement Total Knee

44-14. Home Care Services provides skilled, intermittent care to individuals in a home setting. The
restorative, rehabilitative services are provided by Registered Nurses, Licensed Vocational
Nurses, Masters of Social Work, Licensed Clinical Social Workers, Certified Home Health Aides,
Physical Therapists, Occupational Therapists, Speech Therapists and/or Dietitians. For FY
2014 in Home Care:

Average LOS | Top Payers Top 4 Primary DX
33 days Medicare- 51% Aftercare Surgical/procedure
HMO/PPO 39% Cardiovascular

Malig. Neo-Lung
Disease of Skin & Subcutaneous
tissue

42-15. General Process

a. Infection Prevention staff will regularly review, information from internal sources (case
manager, RLs) or external sources (other IC practitioners, home health/hospice, or
nursing homes) and the positive microbiology reports (furnished by the clinical
laboratory). The following are some of the patterns or issues that are evaluated:

i. Clusters of infections by the same organism, in the same ward or service or
infections after undergoing the same procedure.

ii. Infections due to unusual or highly resistant/significant organisms such as
MRSA, VRE, ESBL, CRE, and/or C.difficile Infection.

ii. All cases of reportable communicable diseases as mandated by Title 17. These
shall be reported in accordance with the ordinances of the County of San Diego
Department of Health.

b. Unusual or problem situations shall be brought to the Infection Control Committee for
review and discussion. See Epidemiologic Investigation of a Suspected Outbreak
policy.- 1G-03

c. In the absence of the Infection Prevention staff,-Bepartment-Rersonnel; hospital staff
can direct questions to Employee Health Services, Director of Regulatory Compliance,
Medical Director of Infection Control and/or Chair of the Infection Control Committee.

| 4H. TARGETED AND FOCUSED SURVEILLANCE FOR FY 20164 (Calendar Year 2015)

120



Infection Control Manual

Page 7 of 18

a-1.

b-2.

| Risk Assessment & Surveillance Plan

Infection control surveillance activities are Institution-surveillance-for-infection-control
activities-is-systematic, active, concurrent, and require ongoing observation while meeting
mandated reporting requirements.: Qur\We-have-chesen-effortsOur —areefforts are directed
towards high risk, high volumehigh-velume-andfor and device/procedure relatedassociated
infections. (such as urinary tract infections, selected surgical site infections, ventilator-
associated events (CU-enhy), and central line bacteremia)- Goals will include limiting
unprotected exposure to pathogens throughout the organization{Geals-13-7and-13-8),
Enhancing hand hygiene{Geal43—7) and limiting the risk of transmission of infections
associated with procedures{Geal+3:-1), medical equipment and supplies and medical devices.
[Coals 123454135 and 341

Surgical Site Infectlons

i-a. Due to ever-decreasing lengths of stay, the majority of postoperative infections are not
seen while the patient is in the hospital. Further, the increasing trend toward more
outpatient surgery and shorter postoperative hospital stays limits the ability of infection
control practitioners to detect infections.

&b. Surgical Site Infections that occur within 30 to 90 days (based upon the individual NHSN
definitions).. Surgical patients are risk stratified using the methods described in the
CDC’s NHSN surgical site component.

e-c. Case finding methods include a review of all microbiology cultures, and ICD coding for
post-operative infection. Potential cases have a chart review performed by Infection
Prevention staff using the most recent NHSN definitions ( Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention )

fd. Infection rates are identified using the NHSN definitions and are reported to the
California Department of Public Health through NHSN. In accordance with California
senate bill requirements: facilities are required to report surgical site infections on 29
surgical procedures. Tri City Medical Center performs 26 of the procedures, they are

listed below:
AAA Abdominal aortic Resection of abdominal aorta with
aneurysm repair anastomosis or replacement
APPY Appendix surgery Operation of appendix (not
incidental to another procedure)
BILI Bile duct, liver or Excision of bile ducts or operative
pancreatic surgery procedures on the biliary tract,
liver or pancreas (does not
include operations only on
gallbladder)
CARD Cardiac surgery Open chest procedures on the 25002504 2EA02E A/
valves or septum of heart; does 2EL0-EERE 2E R4 28 BE
not include coronary artery 52025422550,
bypass graft, surgery on vessels, | 35:64:-35-53;-35-54;
heart transplantation, or 25 E0-BEEE 202
pacemaker implantation 35-81-35.84,-35:91-35-05;

121



Infection Control Manual

| Risk Assessment & Surveillance Plan

Page 8 of 18

CBGB Coronary artery bypass | Chest procedure to perform direct | 36:40-36-44,-36-19
graft with both chest revascularization of the heart;
and donor site incisions | includes obtaining suitable vein
from donor site for grafting.
CBGC Coronary artery bypass | Chest procedure to perform direct | 36-45-36-44-36.2
graft with chest incision | vascularization of the heart using,
only for example, the internal
mammary (thoracic) artery
CHOL Gallbladder surgery Cholecystectomy and B Ed0d 4
cholecystectomy -4
COLO Colon surgery Incision, resection, or e E e
anastomosis of the large 45:03,-45-26-45-41;
intestine; includes large-to-small AE A0 AE LD A5 74
and small-to-large bowel AEFEH A0 A58
anastomosis; does not include 45.83.4502-4505;
rectal operations AB03 480448 40;
CSEC Cesarean section Obstetrical delivery by Cesarean | 74074742744
section £4-04-24.00
FUSN Spinal fusion Immobilization of spinal column 24-00-24.08
FX Open reduction of Open reduction of fracture or 027000 O 08,
fracture dislocation of long bones that 7926, 79317932,
requires internal or external FO2EA02E 05
fixation; does not include 795270557956
placement of joint prosthesis
GAST Gastric surgery Incision or excision of stomach; A DAL A0HEES
includes subtotal or total 43.6-43.743.84,-43.89;
gastrectomy; does not include 43.94,-43.99.44-45;
vagotomy and fundoplication 442444204431,
44.85-44.98
HPRO Hip prosthesis Arthroplasty of hip 00.70-00-73,-00.85-00.87;
24548452
HYST Abdominal Remaoval of uterus through an 68316839, 6841,
hysterectomy abdominal incision B840 88518880
KPRO Knee prosthesis Arthroplasty of knee 00.80-00.8481.548155

122



Infection Control Manual

| Risk Assessment & Surveillance Plan

Page 9of 18

LAM Laminectomy Exploration or decompression of | 03.04-03.02-03:09;
spinal cord through excision or 80.50-80-54-80-53;
incision into vertebral structures 20:842 28050 2460~

NEPH Kidney surgery Resection or manipulation of the EELAEELT EBEAL
kidney with or without removal of | 556-42,-65:24,565-3%;
related structures 55-32-5656-34-55-35;

OVRY Ovarian surgery Operations on ovary and related BEL4GEDO BEAD
structures 85-43,-65-21-65-25;

PACE Pacemaker surgery Insertion, manipulation or 00EQ-00E4 A7 EL
replacement of pacemaker SLELETIO-RETL

REC Rectal surgery Operations on rectum 48 A5 A EE A5 A0,

RFUSN | Refusion of spine Refusion of spine 24-20-21-20

SB Small bowel surgery Incision or resection of the small 45014802 4815
intestine; does not include smali- | 45:314-45-34,-45-54;
to-large bowel anastomosis 45 81-4E B2 4504

SPLE Spleen surgery Resection or manipulation of LA A2 A A A A8
spleen 44-5:-44.93,44.85,-41-99

THOR Thoracic surgery Non cardiac, nonvascular thoracic | 32.8832432-26:32.21-
surgery; includes SRS AAESA0E;
pneumonectomy and hiatal hernia | 32:28,32-36,-32:39;
repair or diaphragmatic hernia BB A0 20 EO
repair (except through abdominal | 32:569,32.6-32.9,-33:0;
approach.) 331,-33:20,-33-25-33.28;

34‘54_3. ] 4-521 3 I-sgy 3 |.6,
3 I'ggl g I'ggy 53'89 53-8‘1




Infection Control Manual
| Risk Assessment & Surveillance Plan
Page 10 of 18

VHYS Vaginal hysterectomy Removal of the uterus through BEEA B850 68
vaginal or perineal incision B&7S

XLAP Abdominal surgery Abdominal operations not 5374 5372-53.75-54.0;
involving the gastrointestinal tract | 64-44,-54-42-54-149-543;
or biliary system. Includes 54:4-54-54, 54.59-54.61;
diaphragmatic hernia repair EABE B4R E4 -
through abdominal approach. 5475 54.92_54.03

e. GOAL#1: The combined surgical site infection rate will not be statistically

significantly higher than the most recent published NHSN rates, using the
standardized infection ratio (SIR).

f. GOAL#2: Each individual surgical site infection rate (that is able to be calculated)
will not be statistically significantly higher than the most recent published NHSN
rates, using the standardized infection ratio (SIR).

3. Antibiotic Resistant Bacteria

a. Antibiotic resistance is an ongoing concern. Multiple studies have documented increased
costs and mortality due to infections caused by multidrug resistant organisms. Data will
be collected using positive cultures on patients with community acquired and hospital
acquired methicillin resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) vancomycin resistant
enterococci (VRE), ESBL Klebseilla, and ESBL E. coli, and Carbapenem- resistant
Enterobacteriaceae (CRE) CRE. A healthcare associated case is defined as a positive
culture from any body site on or after the third hospital day, with no prior history of the
organism. A-AMRSA-MDRO and C.difficile Infection risk assessment is performed
annually to determine need for additional interventions, resources, and surveillance. In
addition, pPositive blood cultures with MRSA or VRE and positive C.difficile
Infections are-rew-publically reported to CDPH through NHSN Multi-Resistant
Organism & Clostridium difficile Infection Module (LabID Event Reporting).

ib. GOAL#1: The number of healthcare associated MRSA infections and colonization
will remain below the Institute for Healthcare Improvement’s (IHI) published rate of
3.95 nosocomial acquisitions per 1000 hospital discharges for the calendar year.

# Patients with + MRSA and/or VRE cultures
# Hospital Discharges

c. GOAL#2: The MRSA and VRE Lab ID events (Blood culture specimen) rate will not
be statlstlcally hlgher than the most recent NHSN publlshed rates (usmg the SIR)

43-4. Clostridium difficile (C. difficile) surveillance is performed utilizing the Multi-Resistant Organism

& Clostridium difficile Infection Module (LablD Event Reporting).

a. All positive C. difficile results are entered into NHSN; reports are produced through
NHSN. Increases in hospital onset (HO) cases will be reviewed and action taken if they
are epidemiologically associated.

GOAL #1: The C. difficile hospital onset (HO) rate will not be more than expected based upon

NHSN SIR Rates.

a5. Ventilator Associated Event — Adult Critical Care Unit

a. VAE entilator-Associated-Pneumenia-{MAP)is conducted ondefined-as-preumenia-in
persons in the ICU who had a device to assist or control respiration continuously
through a tracheostomy or by endetrachaelendotracheal tube within the 48 hour period
before the onset of infection (inclusive of the weaning period). Current As-ofJaruary
2013;the-new-CDC/NHSN VAEentilater-Assesiated-Events definitions are followed.

124



Infection Control Manual
| Risk Assessment & Surveillance Plan
Page 11 of 18

has-beenused Thehis definition has -three tiers: ventilator associated condition (VAC),

infection related ventilator associated condition (IVAC), and possible ventilator

associated pneumonia (PVAP). All three tiers will be reported and each PVAP case will

be reviewed.

i. GOAL: There will be seven consecutive months without a possible ventilator
associated pneumonia (PVAP- Tier 3).

l #-Cases VAE-ventilator associated cases-preumenia in 1ICU x 1000
Total # ventilator days for the month

6. Central Line Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) — Intensive Care Units

ka. Patients with a central line (defined by NHSN as a vascular access device that
terminates at or close to the heart or one of the great vessels) and a primary
bloodstream shall be counted. If a bloodstream infection occurs while a central line is in
place or if a central line was inserted > than two calendar days before the onset of
infection a chart review will be performed. Current CDC/NHSN definitions are used to
determine CLA-BSI events through culture review.data-is-collected-by-reviewing
sultures— Actual line day information is available on-demand through the Compass
Explorer program created by IT in 2005. NICU line day’s data is collected by Nnursing
sServices daily and reported to the Infection Prevention and Control Department at the
end of each month. NICU rates are stratified by birth weight as per NHSN data
comparison.

Hb. GOAL #1: Using NHSN definitions for CLABSI, the CLABSI rate for ICU patients will
not be statistically higher than the NHSN standardized infection ratio (SIR).

2)c. GOAL #2: Using NHSN definitions for CLABSI, the CLABSI rate for non-ICU patients
will not be statlstlcally hlgher than the NHSN standard|zed mfectlon ratlo (SIR)

7. Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infection (CAUTI)

a. Symptomatic urinary tract infection — PatientsiCU-patients with an indwelling
urinary catheter at the time of or within 7 days before the onset of a positive urine
culture will have a chart review using current CDC/ NHSN definitions and
methodology.

# of Cases-CAUTI casesindGU x 1000
Estimation of urinary catheter days{GY

4b. GOAL #1: Using NHSN definitions for catheter associated urinary tract infection (CA-
UTI), the CAUTI rate for ICU patients will not be statistically higher than the NHSN
standardized infection ratio (SIR).

5)c. GOAL #2: Using the NHSN definitions for CAUTI, the CAUT! rate for non ICU patients
will not be more than expected based upon the NHSN standardlzed |nfect|on ratlo (SIR).

44.8. Hand Hygiene
a. Hand hygiene compliance rates are collected by manual observation performed by
unit staff on a monthly basis. The Hand Hygiene compliance rates are reported to
the Directors, Joint Commission Committee, Patient-Safety-Committeeand the
Infection Control Committee-and-Managers-Council- Number of opportunities per

125



Infection Control Manual
| Risk Assessment & Surveillance Plan

Page 12 of 18

5:10.

the World Health Organization’s 5 Moments.{rated-as-level1A-or-4B-by- the CDC) to

perform hand hygiene compared to hand hygiene completed (% compliance)
during care of patients.

GOAL #1: Hand hygiene observations are performed in every patient care area at
least once a month.

GOAL #2 Overall hand hyglene compllance rate will be at Ieast 90% per quarter

Environmental and Patient Care Rounds

b-a.

Enwronment of Care rounds are performed monthly brannuauy-m—patrent—eare
: nd-once -ROR : vith- and overseen

by the Enwronment of Care Commlttee These rounds W|II |dent|fy risks
associated with, but not limited to, medical equipment and supplies. In addition,
tracers are performed monthly on a schedule throughout the patient care areas.
GOAL #1: Infection Control assessments will be represented 90% of the time during
scheduled environmental rounds. and-tracers-

GOAL #2 Infection Control assessments will be represented 90% of the time
durmg scheduled tracers.

£d.

GOAL #3: Engineering staff in collaboration with Infection Control will complete an
Infection Control Construction Permit 100% of the time for projects that require a Class
Il or higher containment.

Reportable Diseases

a.

a-b.

Assisted by the Microbiology Laboratory and Emergency Department, required
reporting to Public Health is performed by phone,and/er fax or mailelectronic
submission; using the California Confidential Morbidity Report or other special
form as directed by the County of San Diego Department of Health. Case finding is
done through review of microbiology reports and calls from hospital staff
(including physicians).

GOAL: Required reportable disease will be sent to the local health department within
the required time frame 100% of the time. -Letter

126



infection Control Manual
| Risk Assessment & Surveiliance Plan
Page 13 of 18

| Gl

&-11. Employee Health collects and reports the following:
a. GOAL#1S: There will be 10% less needle stick injuries from the previous calendar year
i. Number of needle sticks injuries and details of department involved,
device, and cause.
b. GOAL#2: 100% of employees will complete the annual tuberculosis screen
i. # Staff completing annual TB screening (PPD, blood test or survey)/ #
Employees in whom compliance is required.
. 0, ALl
(LiPs)
c. GOAL #3: Greater than 90% of Tri City Medical Center staff (per NHSN definition)
will receive influenza vaccine.
i. # Employees and who received influenza vaccine/# employees who worked
at least one day during the flu season.
ed. GOAL #4: Greater than 90% of Tri City Medical Center inpatient Rehab unit staff
(per NHSN definition) will receive influenza vaccine.
&-12. Home Care, coliects and reports the following:
d-a. GOAL#1: CAUTI and CLABSI rates will be monitored and reported to the Infection
Control Committee quarterly.
e-b. GOAL #2: There will be less than two CAUTI infections in the calendar year.
i. # Cases UTIs with foley catheter/Total # device days.
fc.  GOAL #3: There will be no infections related to central lines in the calendar year.).
i. # Cases BSI with Central Line/Total # device days.
REFERENCES:

127



infection Control Manual
| Risk Assessment & Surveillance Plan
Page 14 of 18

1. County of San Diego Public Health & Human Services Agency, (June 2015) Public Health
Services. Retrieved from http://www.sandiegocounty.gov/hhsa/programs/phs/
Centers for Disease Control and Preventions, National Healthcare Safety Network (NHSN)
Tracking Infection in Acute Care Hospitals/Facilities. (2013, February)
http://www.cdc.gov/nhsn/acute-care-hospital/index.htm|

2. County of San Diego Tuberculosis Control and Refugee Health Program. (June 2015) TB
Statistics. Retrieved from
http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/hhsa/programs/phs/documents/ComparativeData2013 final3-13-
14Rev1031914.pdf

3. Friedman, C. (2014). Infection Prevention and Control Programs. in P. Grota (Ed.), APIC Text of
Infection Control and Epidemiology (4™ ed). Washington DC; 2014

4, The City of San Diego (2015), Economic development: Population. Retrieved on June 4, 2015:
http://www.sandiego.gov/economic-development/sandiego/population.shtml

| HJ. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1. Infection Control Policy Manual, Philosophy
2. Infection Control Policy Manual, Epidemiologic Investigation of a Suspected Outbreak
3. Infection Control Policy Manual, Facility Acquired Infections, Defined

128



ue|d asuej|isAIng

uWodal Buuaauibug Jo/pue Ja2Iy0
Aljeg Juated 4991yQ aie) Jo JusWuciiAug - e _

s H : H ~sbuipul} pue s|eojbojoig uo pyoday Acewleyd e
. R . Hoday Juawpuedaq buissadold a|Ud)S e
- sy09loid uononssuod _
. . . . . . . . JUS.IND JO MBIASI JB]S [OJU0D Uo[jodju| o
. - : : ales Jo JuawiuolIAug
N N uibag ubledwe) ezuanjjuj e
. . R . sainsodxg seseasi(] SNoNodju| e
R . . R sainsodxg 4gg ® sdieys e
. Bunsal-li4 GGN ©
. (suonsanb 10 Jdd) buluaang g e
yjjeaH 99Aojdwg

MIINDY

ue|d |onuo) ainsodx uaboyjed aulogpoolg e

*!

MBIADY Ue|d [04)u0) ainsodx3 sisojnosaqn] e

eoueHditey
vHSO9dueldwo) YHSO g

Buipodsay] aseasiq pue uonebiysaau| yealqinQ

*
*
*
*
L3
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

R . . . sejes [SEV1D PUE | LNV 40 Hodal y)[eaH 8woH-
T 5 3 5 sednseetttdt9S1d- W

. . . « A99vNII Ul VA
R . R R ILNYD
R R R . 1Sav10

ENRED

7gS3 e

VSHN *

JUA e
. . N . swsjueBliQ juelsisay onoiguue-Rinp
(OHd-3-"O"dH

aunp Aep idy Jep go4 uer 29 AON 120 1dag bny e aoue|jlIoAINg pajebue |
199N SEETY JEET SEETH 99))1WWOoY) |[013U09) UCIddU)
$510Z Ad ANITINIL NVEO0dd TONLNOD NOILIIANI IR

g8l Jo G| abed
JUBLUSSASSY YSIY ¥ UB|d 8ouUB||IoAINS Z DI
lenuep I ™) UORO3JU|

129



o) 0} pajuasald,

Bujwea”
1©N

‘?)nuiw Jomad ‘suolejuasald
‘spunoJ Buunp ‘1senp ybnouy} pawiopad
-(pe)senbal sy) ooadg aido Jo paseg qun e

¥

sosAo|dwg MaN e

uopeoanp3 +

sisgy10 buonpay e

—e

(Btitolitot
stuedoels) aoueldwo) aualbAH pueH e

stHAvoBuoRpeyY—e

suonoau| a)g jeoibing mn_oszm o

— e

*| x|

—e

sjoafoid Juswaaoidwi) aouewIOpdd

ue|d jo {eaosddy DD} e

0010}
UB|d SOUBJIBAINS PUE JUSWISSISSY YSIY JUasald e

(Buluue|d g uoneonpg) Jndu| e

(Buiuueiq
» uofjeonp3) sbunasyy siojoauiq Jo siebeuepy e

8l jog| abed
JUBWSSASSY YSIY ¢ Ue|d SDUE(IIBAINS Z D)

|Jenuepy | "D UOROBU)

130



gl Jo /| abed
JUBLISSASSY YSiY B ue|d soug(|ieAng g Dl
fenuepy |©° D UoNo8jU|

131



NSHN cut sa3us
v uRuoRds poog
WSUW 2 THA B S35

NSHN O3 o33
sansed papasu
NSHN 33391t 4
unro + o sy ¢ soud
U J PIIRIATIN ou 31 pannbag MIIAY WY I
- ‘saaed popaau
L — Aznoy uonsgap
NSHN 5399 3
puR2sG _
o | [ o
jsUC
jepdsot] 20 pIIVOASI
Appony 39500 APumLnio 1SS 70 “ISETED 1D 155, -
‘Iasue Ammuane) w 5z a0 {Arcasny sowd LAY 1SETTD o = = on
S SNCIIP TUA “NSHM Ok UBIWMY SOISERUPS 30U P PR DU {zhep
oy RsRumads e saul 25015 SARP 2 PIDAHER shup 7 pagoagos 06 ©3 o) pouad
SR w3y sum pauLIP NSHN
uppm suRlng

~ _ §T M3 $0 JuC uoinsnpa
204 JSUIF) PR 15 SAGP 2« IR

wanads

[ _

fe 3w 3un) (w2

__ wa- Cuaw fissipunem ISEVID) 3uun @ poom
I _ 1 |
-suonsplias g aps sad 15 QL . . o
“Swoqame pus 33duag Semsodia nuajod woday mEm_cmm\.O jensnun pue w_nmﬁon_mg ‘s, OQWN 3124 edasg 'z
suogupd=g L1 21 = voday *$34N3|ND BULIN pue poojq ‘punom ajeisedas '
HIHLO
S2IN}ND DANISOd ||P M3IADY

81 Jo 8) abed
JUBWISSASSY YSIY B UBld aduefidAINg Z DI
lenuep | <) uoiosju|

132



Tri-City Health Care District This is a CLEAN COPY of this policy
Oceanside, California

Infection Control Policy Manual

SUBJECT: Risk Assessment and Surveillance Plan

ISSUE DATE: 3/2002
REVISION DATE: 7/13, 7/14,

Department Approval Date(s): 07/15
Infection Control Committee Approval: 07/15
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 05/16
Board of Directors Approval: 08/14

A PURPOSE OF RISK ASSESSMENT:

1.

Sound epidemiological principles must be considered in the formation of the surveillance
program designed to provide maximum information and identify opportunities to reduce disease.
Measures directed toward cost effective care must include best practice and technology to
prevent infection. The economic impact of an efficient and flexible infection control plan is
especially relevant in times of changing reimbursement and payment patterns. Tri-City Medical
Center’s plan outlines how this may be accomplished within the confines of resources, external
regulatory guidelines, and medical staff requirements.

Y. PURPOSE OF SURVEILLANCE:

1.

The foundation of and most important purpose of this program is to decrease the risk of
infectious complications for all patients, healthcare workers, visitors and staff. Ongoing
epidemiological information assists with identifying at risk populations and opportunities to
interrupt prevent or reduce the occurrence of healthcare associated infections. Surveillance will
be compared to nationally recognized benchmarks such as the National Healthcare Safety
Network (NHSN) rates whenever possible.

C.  RESPONSIBILITY:

1.

Successful creation of an organization-wide infection control program requires collaboration with
all relevant components/functions. Individuals within the hospital who have the power to
implement plans and make decisions related to prevention and control of risks related to
infections are included in the design and coordination of processes. In consultation with the
Medical Staff, Directors, Medical Director of Infection Control, Environmental Health and Safety
Committee, Patient Safety Officer and the Infection Control Committee, the Infection
Preventionist (IP) shall implement a systematic process for monitoring and evaluating the quality
and effectiveness of the infection control program. Significant deviations are discussed in
Infection Control Committee, Quality Improvement Medical Staff Committees, Environmental
Health and Safety Committee and the Patient Safety Committee and referred to appropriate
councils and committees for action.

Infection Prevention and Control Services are staffed with 1.8 FTE (includes one FTE with
certification in Infection Control). There are computer resources with Internet connection,
Microsoft Office software, NHSN National internet based database and access to the hospital's
electronic medical records (Compass and Affinity). Telephone with voice mail, and fax access is
provided. The office is located within the Surgical Scheduling office.

Infection Control Services works in conjunction with others, as a consultant and resource for
best practices. We support system changes and an interdisciplinary focus to improving care.
We believe that all our employees, medical staff, and volunteers play an important role in

133



Infection Control Manual
IC 2 Surveillance Plan & Risk Assessment
Page 2 of 13

preventing and controlling infections. Uitimately, the leadership team within the district is
responsible for adopting and ensuring compliance with appropriate policies and practices.

D. LINKS WITH INTERNAL SOURCES:

1. On at least an annual basis, the IP department will meet with the affected departments (i.e.
Medical Staff and Employee Health) to assess whether the goals and priorities have been
achieved and what steps are required to implement any indicated changes. The goals are
shared with and reviewed by the Infection Control Committee. Education on infection control
goals and priorities will be included with quarterly reports and during individual meetings with
the hospital leadership. The IP staff reports to Infection Control Committee quarterly and attends
other medical staff and hospital committees as requested, regulatory requirements and
department specific Quality Reports are reviewed.

. The San Diego County Public Health Department, state health authorities, the Division of
Occupational Safety and Health, and other recognized infection control specialists, for example,
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), Association for Professionals in
Infection Control and Epidemiology (APIC), Society for Healthcare Epidemiology of America
(SHEA), and the California Healthcare Association (CHA) are important links between the
district and outside resources. Infection Control department subscribes to automatic notifications
available via email from the CDC, San Diego County Public Health (CAHAN) and California
Department of Health and Human Services. Infection surveillance covers a broad range of
processes and activities with potential for intervention and these organizations assist with the
where, when, and how of targeting.

2. Healthcare associated infections (HAI) are reported by the IP staff to the external healthcare

organizations when the infection was not known at the time of transfer. TCMC receives reports
from outside organizations when a patient develops an infection that might meet criteria for a
healthcare associated infection. Home Health/Hospice quality review staff report directly to
Infection Control Committee.

3. The following conditions will be reported to external healthcare organizations with the intent to

satisfy JCAHO IC 02.01.01(and recorded in the patient’s chart using PowerForm). The Infection

Surveillance Report will document notification to the referring healthcare organization within 7

days of discovery by the TCMC Infection Prevention and Control Staff:

E.  LINKS WITH EXTERNAL SOURCES:
1

a. Positive culture from a surgical site and surgery performed at another facility.

b. Influenza rapid test is positive and patient was discharged to another healthcare facility
prior to results being known.

c. Positive C difficile toxin test known after the patient was discharged to another
healthcare facility.

d. Positive MDRO culture known after the patient was discharged to another healthcare
facility and the patient had no history of the same MDRO.

e. Unusual occurrences based on the opinion of the Infection Prevention staff in
consultation with the Infection Control Medical Director and Director of Regulatory
Compliance.

F. PERTINENT RISK FACTORS:

1. Each facility is unique and we considered the following factors in our planning.
a. National and international published scientific studies, community standard of care,
professional recommendations and regulatory requirements.
b. A review of hospital specific surveillance data from years past.
C. Medically fragile and at-risk populations such as newborns and those with invasive
devices.
d. The increasing antibiotic resistance in our facility and across the United States (as

reported by the CDC in by NHSN).

134



Infection Control Manual
IC 2 Surveillance Plan & Risk Assessment

Page 3 of 13

G.

E
1

e. The vaccination/immunity rates of the community and employees.

PIDEMIOLOGICAL FACTORS: INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL.:

Tri-City Medical Center is impacted by factors such as location, population served, community
health, financial status, population age, clinical focus, and healthcare worker demographics and
these were included in our planning.

The hospital's geographic location is in northern San Diego County. San Diego County is the
second most populous of California's 58 counties, and the fifth largest county in the United
States. San Diego is currently home to 3.21 million residents, and is anticipated to grow to four
million by 2020.

Located within the North County geographic region are 3 college campuses along with a Marine

Corp Base (Camp Pendleton).

San Diego County is becoming increasingly bicultural due to its close proximity to Mexico. In
addition, the county is already ethnically diverse, and will be increasingly so. 32% are Hispanic,
and the Hispanic population is expected to continue to grow at a rapid rate. Approximately
21.5% of the county's populations are immigrants, including refugees, who come from other
countries, speak 68 different languages, and have a variety of needs as they assimilate into
their new environment. The senior and disabled populations are growing disproportionately
compared to the rest of the population.

Demographic information on the three cities most often served by Tri-City Medical Center is
listed below.

City Median Total # residents Percent White Hispanic | Asian &
income increase Pacific
since 2000 Islander
Oceanside $ 59,640 161,029 (2000) +7.3% 48.5%
172,794 (2013) 36.0% 7.6%
Vista $ 45,322 89,857 (2000) +7.9%
96,929 (2013) 42.9% 49.0% 4.2%
Carlsbad $ 78,238 78,247 (2000) +41.8%
110,972 (2013) 75.2% 13.6% 7.44%
a. http://www.city-data.com/city/Oceanside-California.htm!
b. http://www.city-data.com/city/Vista-California.html
c. http://www.city-data.com/city/Carlsbad-California.html

Enteric iliness represents a significant burden of disease in the US and because of this the San
Diego County Health and Human Services Agency conducts outbreak investigation and
education to reduce the medical and cost-related impact of these diseases in the community.
Food borne illnesses largely result from the ingestion of food or water contaminated by fecal
matter or ingestion of infected animal products. Hospitals play an important role in early
intervention by the identification and reporting of significant bacteria. The most common
mandated reported enteric illnesses in SD County are Campylobacter, Giardia, Hepatitis A,
Salmonella and Shigella.

In San Diego, overall rates for the three major reportable sexually transmitted diseases
(Chlamydia, Gonorrhea & Syphilis) have increased from 2011 to 2012. National trends were
reflective at the local level, including high rates of STD’s among young women and MSM (men
who have sex with men). San Diego County has the third largest number of HIV & AIDS cases
in California. The proportion of persons of color has increased over time among HIV & AIDS
cases. Black cases have the highest rate of HIV & AIDS, followed by Hispanics and then
Whites.

In 2014, San Diego County reported 220 cases of active tuberculosis. In 2013, San Diego
County reported 206 cases of active tuberculosis. TB drug susceptibility information was

135



Infection Control Manual
IC 2 Surveillance Plan & Risk Assessment

Page 4 of 13

10.

11

available for 99% of the culture proven cases for 2014 in San Diego. Multidrug-resistant (MDR-
TB) strains were found in 2 of the cases. Tri City Medical Center reported both cases of MDR-
TB in our facility. In SD County, Hispanics had the highest rates of TB at 52%, Asian/Pacific
Islanders at 32%, non-Hispanic Whites at 19% and non-Hispanic Blacks at 6%.TB cases born
outside of the US compromised 70% of San Diego County’s cases.(Source: County of San
Diego Health and Human Services Agency, Tuberculosis and refugee Health Branch, April 20,
2015).).

At TCMC, most AFB positive smears and cultures grow organisms that are not communicable
person to person. In 2014, there were 9 patients with pulmonary TB and none with
extrapulmonary TB. An additional 34 cases were reported as rule out TB in 2014. The number

of active TB patients seen annually at Tri-City Medical Center varies from 5 —12.

16
14 +
12 -

TCMC Active TB Cases

10

N b

o

:I'ri City Medical Center Financial Characteristics for Fiscal Year 2014
a. The top six insurance coverage seen the acute care setting are as follows: (Not
including OB/Newborn, BHU and Rehab):

MEDICARE 36.03%
MEDICARE SR HMO 13.46%
MEDI-CAL HMO 7.85%
HMO 7.54%
HMO Cap Sr 7.47%
Medi-Cal 6.98%

@ Extrapulmonary

OPulmonary

i. The maijority of insurance coverage for our newborns (nursery and NICU) is
funded by Medi-Cal or Medi-Cal HMO (79.2% compared to HMO and PPO
insurance (12.3%) and other (8.5%).

b. Patient census:

Average. Daily Census Average. | Total Pt. Days

Length of

Stay*
Acute Care (excludes all below) 147.2 4.04 53,728
ICU* 17.1 2.83 6,245
BHU 23.8 6.43 8,703
NICU 14.0 9.81 5,121
Rehab Serv. 6.7 15.49 2,432

i. *ICU ALOS includes discharges, transfers out, and expirations. All other areas

are based only on discharges.

C. In acute care FY 14, the three largest age groups are 76-85 year olds (19.6%), 56-65
year olds (17.7%), and 66-75 year olds (16.3

d. Nineteen percent (10,745/ 57,193) of Emergency Department patients are admitted to

the hospital.

The total number of employees working at Tri-City Medical Center (Fiscal Year 2014) is
approximately 2,095 with about 1,275 staff providing direct patient care.

136



Infection Control Manual
IC 2 Surveillance Plan & Risk Assessment
Page 5 of 13

12. Tri-City Medical Center’s primary focus is on basic community services. In fiscal year 2014, the
top ten major Diagnostic categories (DRGs) are the following:

Obstetrics

Newborns & Neonates

Circulatory System

Musculoskeletal & Connective Tissue

Mental diseases

Digestive System

Respiratory

Infectious & Parasitic Diseases

Nervous System

Kidney & Urinary Tract

TSm0 a0 T

13.  Top five Inpatient Surgical Procedures (Fiscal Year 2013):
FY12-13 Total |

@ C Section m Laparoscopic Cholecystectomy Appendectomy |

= Replacement Total Hip i Replacement Total Knee |

14, Home Care Services provides skilled, intermittent care to individuals in a home setting. The
restorative, rehabilitative services are provided by Registered Nurses, Licensed Vocational
Nurses, Masters of Social Work, Licensed Clinical Social Workers, Certified Home Health Aides,

Physical Therapists, Occupational Therapists, Speech Therapists and/or Dietitians. For FY
2014 in Home Care:

Average LOS | Top Payers Top 4 Primary DX
33 days Medicare- 51% Aftercare Surgical/procedure
HMO/PPO 39% Cardiovascular

Malig. Neo-Lung
Disease of Skin & Subcutaneous
tissue

15. General Process
a. Infection Prevention staff will regularly review, information from internal sources (case
manager, RLs) or external sources (other IC practitioners, home health/hospice, or
nursing homes) and the positive microbiology reports (furnished by the clinical
laboratory). The following are some of the patterns or issues that are evaluated:
i. Clusters of infections by the same organism, in the same ward or service or
infections after undergoing the same procedure.

137



Infection Control Manual

IC 2 Surveillance Plan & Risk Assessment

Page 6 of 13

ii. Infections due to unusual or highly resistant/significant organisms such as
MRSA, VRE, ESBL, CRE, and/or C.difficile Infection.

ii. All cases of reportable communicable diseases as mandated by Title 17. These
shall be reported in accordance with the ordinances of the County of San Diego
Department of Health.

Unusual or problem situations shall be brought to the Infection Control Committee for

review and discussion. See Epidemiologic Investigation of a Suspected Outbreak policy.

In the absence of the Infection Prevention staff, hospital staff can direct questions to

Employee Health Services, Director of Regulatory Compliance, Medical Director of

Infection Control and/or Chair of the Infection Control Committee.

H. TARGETED AND FOCUSED SURVEILLANCE FOR FY 2016 (Calendar Year 2015):

Infection control surveillance activities are systematic, active, concurrent, and require ongoing
observation while meeting mandated reporting requirements. Our efforts are directed towards
high risk, high volume and device/procedure associated infections. (such as urinary tract
infections, selected surgical site infections, ventilator-associated events , and central line
bacteremia) Goals will include limiting unprotected exposure to pathogens throughout the
organization, Enhancing hand hygiene and limiting the risk of transmission of infections
associated with procedures, medical equipment and supplies and medical devices.

Surgical Site Infections

1.

a.

Due to ever-decreasing lengths of stay, the majority of postoperative infections are not
seen while the patient is in the hospital. Further, the increasing trend toward more
outpatient surgery and shorter postoperative hospital stays limits the ability of infection
control practitioners to detect infections.

Surgical Site Infections that occur within 30 to 90 days (based upon the individual NHSN
definitions).. Surgical patients are risk stratified using the methods described in the
CDC’s NHSN surgical site component.

Case finding methods include a review of all microbiology cultures, and ICD coding for
post-operative infection. Potential cases have a chart review performed by Infection
Prevention staff using the most recent NHSN definitions ( Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention )

Infection rates are identified using the NHSN definitions and are reported to the
California Department of Public Health through NHSN. In accordance with California
senate bill requirements: facilities are required to report surgical site infections on 29
surgical procedures. Tri City Medical Center performs 26 of the procedures, they are
listed below:

AAA Abdominal aortic Resection of abdominal aorta with
aneurysm repair anastomosis or replacement
APPY Appendix surgery Operation of appendix (not
incidental to another procedure)
BILI Bile duct, liver or Excision of bile ducts or operative
pancreatic surgery procedures on the biliary tract,

liver or pancreas (does not
include operations only on
gallbladder)

CARD Cardiac surgery Open chest procedures on the

valves or septum of heart; does
not include coronary artery
bypass graft, surgery on vessels,
heart transplantation, or
pacemaker implantation

CBGB Coronary artery bypass | Chest procedure to perform direct

graft with both chest revascularization of the heart;

138



Infection Control Manual

IC 2 Surveillance Plan & Risk Assessment

Page 7 of 13

and donor site incisions

includes obtaining suitable vein
from donor site for grafting.

CBGC Coronary artery bypass | Chest procedure to perform direct
graft with chest incision | vascularization of the heart using,
only for example, the internal

mammary (thoracic) artery

CHOL Gallbladder surgery Cholecystectomy and

cholecystectomy

COoLO Colon surgery Incision, resection, or

anastomosis of the large
intestine; includes large-to-small
and small-to-large bowel
anastomosis; does not include
rectal operations

CSEC Cesarean section Obstetrical delivery by Cesarean

section

FUSN Spinal fusion Immobilization of spinal column

FX Open reduction of Open reduction of fracture or
fracture dislocation of long bones that

requires internal or external
fixation; does not include
placement of joint prosthesis

GAST Gastric surgery Incision or excision of stomach;

includes subtotal or total
gastrectomy; does not include
vagotomy and fundoplication

HPRO Hip prosthesis Arthroplasty of hip

HYST Abdominal Removal of uterus through an
hysterectomy abdominal incision

KPRO Knee prosthesis Arthroplasty of knee

LAM Laminectomy Exploration or decompression of

spinal cord through excision or
incision into vertebral structures

NEPH Kidney surgery Resection or manipulation of the

kidney with or without removal of
related structures

OVRY Ovarian surgery Operations on ovary and related

structures

PACE Pacemaker surgery Insertion, manipulation or

replacement of pacemaker

REC Rectal surgery Operations on rectum

RFUSN | Refusion of spine Refusion of spine

SB Small bowel surgery Incision or resection of the small

intestine; does not include small-
to-large bowel anastomosis

SPLE Spleen surgery Resection or manipulation of

spleen

THOR Thoracic surgery Non cardiac, nonvascular thoracic

surgery; includes
pneumonectomy and hiatal hernia
repair or diaphragmatic hernia
repair (except through abdominal
approach.)

139



Infection Control Manual

IC 2 Surveillance Plan & Risk Assessment

Page 8 of 13

VHYS Vaginal hysterectomy Removal of the uterus through

vaginal or perineal incision

XLAP Abdominal surgery Abdominal operations not

involving the gastrointestinal tract
or biliary system. Includes
diaphragmatic hernia repair
through abdominal approach.

GOAL#1: The combined surgical site infection rate will not be statistically significantly
higher than the most recent published NHSN rates, using the standardized infection ratio
(SIR).

GOAL#2: Each individual surgical site infection rate (that is able to be calculated) will
not be statistically significantly higher than the most recent published NHSN rates, using
the standardized infection ratio (SIR).

Antibiotic Resistant Bacteria

a.

Antibiotic resistance is an ongoing concern. Muitiple studies have documented increased
costs and mortality due to infections caused by multidrug resistant organisms. Data will
be collected using positive cultures on patients with community acquired and hospital
acquired methicillin resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) vancomycin resistant
enterococci (VRE), ESBL Klebseilla, and ESBL E. coli, and Carbapenem- resistant
Enterobacteriaceae (CRE) CRE. A healthcare associated case is defined as a positive
culture from any body site on or after the third hospital day, with no prior history of the
organism. MDRO and C.difficile Infection risk assessment is performed annually to
determine need for additional interventions, resources, and surveillance. In addition,
positive blood cultures with MRSA or VRE and positive C.difficile Infections are reported
to CDPH through NHSN Multi-Resistant Organism & Clostridium difficile Infection
Module (LabIlD Event Reporting).

GOAL#1: The number of healthcare associated MRSA infections and colonization will
remain below the Institute for Healthcare Improvement’s (IHI) published rate of 3.95
nosocomial acquisitions per 1000 hospital discharges for the calendar year.

# Patients with + MRSA and/or VRE cultures
# Hospital Discharges

GOAL#2: The MRSA and VRE Lab ID events (Blood culture specimen) rate will not be
statistically higher than the most recent NHSN published rates (using the SIR).

Clostridium difficile (C. difficile) surveillance is performed utilizing the Multi-Resistant Organism
& Clostridium difficile Infection Module (LablD Event Reporting).

a.

All positive C. difficile results are entered into NHSN; reports are produced through
NHSN. Increases in hospital onset (HO) cases will be reviewed and action taken if they
are epidemiologically associated.

GOAL #1: The C. difficile hospital onset (HO) rate will not be more than expected based upon
NHSN SIR Rates.
Ventilator Associated Event — Adult Critical Care Unit

a.

VAE is conducted on persons in the ICU who had a device to assist or control respiration
continuously through a tracheostomy or by endotracheal tube within the 48 hour period
before the onset of infection (inclusive of the weaning period). Current CDC/NHSN VAE
definitions are followed. The definition has three tiers: ventilator associated condition
(VAC), infection related ventilator associated condition (IVAC), and possible ventilator
associated pneumonia (PVAP). All three tiers will be reported and each PVAP case will
be reviewed.

140




Infection Control Manual
IC 2 Surveillance Plan & Risk Assessment

Page 9 of 13
i. GOAL: There will be seven consecutive months without a possible ventilator
associated pneumonia (PVAP- Tier 3).
VAE cases in ICU x 1000
Total # ventilator days for the month
6. Central Line Associated Bloodstream Infection (CLABSI) — intensive Care Units

a. Patients with a central line (defined by NHSN as a vascular access device that
terminates at or close to the heart or one of the great vessels) and a primary
bloodstream shall be counted. If a bloodstream infection occurs while a central line is in
place or if a central line was inserted > than two calendar days before the onset of
infection a chart review will be performed. Current CDC/NHSN definitions are used to
determine CLA-BSI events through culture review. Actual line day information is
available on-demand through the Compass Explorer program created by IT in 2005.
NICU line day’s data is collected by nursing services daily and reported to the Infection
Prevention and Control Department at the end of each month. NICU rates are stratified
by birth weight as per NHSN data comparison.

b. GOAL #1: Using NHSN definitions for CLABSI, the CLABSI rate for ICU patients will
not be statistically higher than the NHSN standardized infection ratio (SIR).

C. GOAL #2: Using NHSN definitions for CLABSI, the CLABSI rate for non-ICU patients
will not be statistically higher than the NHSN standardized infection ratio (SIR).

7. Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infection (CAUTI)
a. Symptomatic urinary tract infection — Patients with an indwelling urinary catheter at the
time of or within 7 days before the onset of a positive urine culture will have a chart
review using current CDC/ NHSN definitions and methodology.

# of CAUTI cases x 1000
Estimation of urinary catheter days

b. GOAL #1: Using NHSN definitions for catheter associated urinary tract infection
(CAUTI), the CAUT! rate for ICU patients will not be statistically higher than the NHSN
standardized infection ratio (SIR).

C. GOAL #2: Using the NHSN definitions for CAUTI, the CAUTI rate for non ICU patients
will not be more than expected based upon the NHSN standardized infection ratio (SIR).

8. Hand Hygiene

a. Hand hygiene compliance rates are collected by manual observation performed by unit
staff on a monthly basis. The Hand Hygiene compliance rates are reported to the
Directors, Joint Commission Committee, and the Infection Control Committee Number of
opportunities per the World Health Organization’s 5 Moments. CDC) to perform hand
hygiene compared to hand hygiene completed (% compliance) during care of patients.

b. GOAL #1: Hand hygiene observations are performed in every patient care area at least
once a month.
C. GOAL #2: Overall hand hygiene compliance rate will be at least 90% per quarter.
9. Environmental and Patient Care Rounds
a. Environment of Care rounds are performed monthly and overseen by the Environment

of Care Committee. These rounds will identify risks associated with, but not limited to,
medical equipment and supplies. In addition, tracers are performed monthly on a
schedule throughout the patient care areas.

b. GOAL #1: Infection Control assessments will be represented 90% of the time during
scheduled environmental rounds.

141



Infection Control Manual
IC 2 Surveillance Plan & Risk Assessment
Page 10 of 13

C. GOAL #2 Infection Control assessments will be represented 90% of the time during
scheduled tracers.
d. GOAL #3: Engineering staff in collaboration with Infection Control will complete an

Infection Control Construction Permit 100% of the time for projects that require a Class
Il or higher containment.
10. Reportable Diseases

a. Assisted by the Microbiology Laboratory and Emergency Department, required reporting
to Public Health is performed by phone, fax or mail using the California Confidential
Morbidity Report or other special form as directed by the County of San Diego
Department of Health. Case finding is done through review of microbiology reports and
calls from hospital staff (including physicians).

b. GOAL: Required reportable disease will be sent to the local health depariment within
the required time frame 100% of the time.

11. Employee Health collects and reports the following:
a. GOAL#1: There will be 10% less needle stick injuries from the previous calendar year
i. Number of needle sticks injuries and details of department involved, device, and
cause.
b. GOAL#2: 100% of employees will complete the annual tuberculosis screen

i. # Staff completing annual TB screening (PPD, blood test or survey)/ #
Employees in whom compliance is required.
c. GOAL #3: Greater than 90% of Tri City Medical Center staff (per NHSN definition) will
receive influenza vaccine.
i. # Employees and who received influenza vaccine/# employees who worked at
least one day during the flu season.
d. GOAL #4: Greater than 90% of Tri City Medical Center inpatient Rehab unit staff (per
NHSN definition) will receive influenza vaccine.
12. Home Care, collects and reports the following:
a. GOAL #1: CAUTI and CLABSI rates will be monitored and reported to the Infection
Control Committee quarterly.
b. GOAL #2: There will be less than two CAUTI infections in the calendar year.
i. # Cases UTls with foley catheter/Total # device days.
c. GOAL #3: There will be no infections related to central lines in the calendar year.).
i. # Cases BSI with Central Line/Total # device days.

l. REFERENCES:

1. County of San Diego Public Health & Human Services Agency, (June 2015) Public Health
Services. Retrieved from http://www.sandiegocounty.gov/hhsa/programs/phs/
Centers for Disease Control and Preventions, National Healthcare Safety Network (NHSN)
Tracking Infection in Acute Care Hospitals/Facilities. (2013, February)
http://www.cdc.gov/nhsn/acute-care-hospital/index.htmi

2. County of San Diego Tuberculosis Control and Refugee Health Program. (June 2015) TB
Statistics. Retrieved from
http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/hhsa/programs/phs/documents/ComparativeData2013 final3-13-
14Rev1031914.pdf

3. Friedman, C. (2014). Infection Prevention and Control Programs. In P. Grota (Ed.), APIC Text of
Infection Control and Epidemiology (4" ed.) Washington DC; 2014

4, The City of San Diego (2015), Economic development: Population. Retrieved on June 4, 2015:
http://www.sandiego.gov/economic-development/sandiego/population.shtml

RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1. Infection Control Policy Manual, Philosophy
2. Infection Control Policy Manual, Epidemiologic Investigation of a Suspected Outbreak
3. Infection Control Policy Manual, Facility Acquired Infections, Defined

142



(buluued ® uoneonp3) indu; e

(Buuued
' uoneonpg) sbunesyy si0joa.iq Jo siabeueyy e

ue|d aaue||IdAINS

uodau Bulisaulbu Jo/pue 18140
A1ajeg 1usled 9o 8Jed JO JUBWUOIHAUT e

sButpuly pue sjeaibojoig uo Loday Aseueyd e

uoday uswpedaq buissadold a|Us)S e

sjo9loid uononJIsSuod
JUBLIND JO MBIABI JJBlS [0JJUOD UOoNjoaju] e

9led JO JUBIUOoIIAUG

ubledwe) ezuanyju) e

sainsodx3 saseasi Snonoaju|

sainsodx3 4gg g sdieys

bunsel-li4 G6N

(suonsanb 1o qdd) buusaiog g1

yjjeoH salkojdwig

MaINSY
ue|d |onuon) ainsodx] uaboyjed sulogpoo|g e

MaINaY Ue|d [0J)uo) ainsodx3 sisojnosagn] e

aouel|dwod YHSO

Bunioday aseasiq pue uonebijsau| yealqino

solel |SEV10 PUE |LNVD 10 Hodad YijesH awoH

NJI Ul VA

1LNVD

1S8v10

*

x

*

JHO e
4983 e
VSHN e

= )= VAR
swisiueBiQ Juejsisay anoiquue-yNN

>

*

¥

ISS

aunp

Aen

Jey

994

uer

29(

AON

0

ideg

bny

nr

aoue[jloAINg pajebie|

199\

199\

199N

291IWIWOY [0JJU0Y UOIDBIU|

S10¢ Ad INIMFNLL NVHO0Ud TOJLNOD NOILD3JNI

€1 J0 14 abed
JUBLISSASSY )SIY B Ue|d SIUBIIBAINSG g DI
lenuepy |00 UooaU|

143



O} 0} pajuasald,

Bujwean
19N

‘ginuiw Jamod ‘suonejuasaid
‘spunol Buunp ‘}senp ybnouuy pawiopsd
-(pajsanbal sy) oyioadg oido) Jo peseg iun e

*

sasAo|dw MaN e

uojjeanp3

s|Sg@y10 buonpay e

aoueldwon sualbAH pueH

suondaju| a)is [es1bing Buonpay

sjoafold juswaaosdwij asuewsopod

ue|d Jo |lenouddy D)

001 0}
UB|d 99UE||I8AINS pUe JUBLISSASSY YSiy Juasald

€1 jo g\ abed
JUDWISSISSY MSIY 1§ Ue|d 8DUBJIIRBAINS Z DI
|enue |© 100 LoHOaju|

144



Isuc
easdsogg 20 paeoossy
Agjoag 3ama0y Agrumenis)

asuo Apununuce)
$1 URRIIIIP I TRSHNM
ogur suuads (e a3

NSHN o3ur s

—— Ban

RN uauoads pooNg
TSHA 40 JHA @ St
amyro « soud amyr + sogad
asl p pANR0SIR ox p1 pasnhoe
[MCRYEDY Agunumnoy)
158 40 “ISEYE ‘WNYD 155
@ 5z 20 (Aroasiy sotad B LD 198D
DU LEIM] UOLZIRUDER 0L G IHIPS IS
ns SABp T PRIIIAIE shup Z- paiaagioo
uausHds uupadg
I ]
{3537 surg}

NSHN Sus 33
‘sansed papaau
&3q0f uOtIILIP
NSHN S99 9
MIIAIY VYD)
NSH Qs sy
“maed pepsau
Aoy uonnnap
NSH SI3ow i
s | [ o
(zhup
06 <1 O} ponad
sun paUL3P NSHN
ungpm saualang
62 2 40 3ue uenIRUpR
20§ JAUEFY XA s shep g« parejed]
uatsads
tisst punom o3
BEVID} 2w R poo

suonembaa g aguy sad

nﬁg...mﬂﬂhﬁo_ﬁ.hiaﬁmud

1P ApqiaIn

‘uroqum pus 3apdoag semsodea eguajod woday +

‘swisiuedio jensnun pue ajqenodsa s OQIN a1eaedas

$3IN}{ND DANISOd || M3IA3Y

"$34N3|NJ SULIN pue poojq ‘punosm ajesedas 1

€1 jo g| abed

JUBLUSSASSY YSIY 9 Ueld 8ouBisans Z Ol
JenuBl I© 100 UoROAJuY

145



(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MEDICAL STAFF POLICY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 6/02 SUBJECT: Supervision of Residents in
Emergency Medicine
REVISION DATE: 6/02; 2/06, 4/08; 9/13 POLICY NUMBER: 8710 - 571
Medical Division Approval: 09/1304/16
Graduate-Edueatisn-Commitieefppraval: LoHs
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 40/1304/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 05/16
Board of Directors Approval: 10/13
A. POLICY
1. All medical care provided by Emergency Medicine (EM) Residents is under the supervision of the

Director of the Emergency Residency Rotation or a designated Medical Staff member(s) who are
member (s) of TCMC Medical Staff. Each emergency medicine resident is at least a 39 or 4" year
emergency medicine resident who is doing a clinical rotation at TCMC to round out their
community hospital education. Every patient seen by an emergency medicine resident, on either
required or elective clinical rotation, will have a designated emergency medicine physician medical
staff member (s) who will be responsible for and will supervise all medical care provided by the
residents, and will be directly involved in the treatment of every patient. Each emergency resident
is orientated to his/her responsibilities, job description (function in the department), documentation
requirements, and potential participation in departmental grand rounds before starting his/her
month long rotation. The residency rotation director gives individual verbal feedback of the
residents’ performance during the course of the rotation, in addition to submitting a formal written
evaluation to the Emergency Medicine Residency Program Director at the completion of each
resident’s rotation (see sample Resident evaluation form). Finally, the progress of the program
is reviewed at the GME committee annually, and on a monthly basis in the Emergency
Department meeting.

B. PROCEDURE
1. Orientation

a. Each emergency resident is orientated to his/her responsibilities, job description (function
in the department), documentation requirements (P&P 8710-513), and potential
participation in departmental grand rounds before starting his/her month long rotation.

2. Orders

a. Emergency medicine residents may write orders on the chart, or type in orders utilizing the
computer ordering system, after discussing such orders with, and under direct supervision
and review by an attending emergency department physician - a member of the TCMC
medical staff and the department of Emergency Medicine.

b. Verbal orders are permitted during codes and extreme emergency situations with
instantaneous review from the supervising emergency physicians present with the resident
and patient.

i. If a nurse or other hospital employee has any question about any order given by
the emergency medicine resident they may immediately question the resident and
the supervising emergency department physician.

c. The supervising emergency department physician will review all orders.
3. Documentation:
a. Documentation on each patient will be dictated by the emergency medicine resident

146



Medical Staff Policy Manual
Emergency Residents — 8710-571

| Page2of5

4-5.

(complete dictation), or entered into the computerized documentation system. The

attending emergency department physician will also document an attending summary

either via dictation or using the computerized documentation system. (See P&P 8710-

513).

Direct versus Indirect Supervision of Residents In the Emergency Department In

accordance with the Common Program Requirements established by the Accreditation

Council for Graduate Medical Education (ACGME), this section defines the levels of

supervision provided to residents rotating through the emergency department at Tri-City

Medical Center for different stages of their training and for various lebelslabels of

knowledge and skills.

4a. Levels of Supervision
2. Direct Supervision: The supervising physician is physically present with the

resident and the patient.

ii. Indirect Supervision with Direct Supervision immediately available: The
supervising physician is physically within the hospital and usually, within the
department, and is immediately available to provide direct supervision.

3:b. Permissible Level of supervision by graduate year of training
4. Emergency medicine residents in Post Graduate Year 1 and 2 must be

directly supervised at all times.

ii. Emergency medicine residents in Post Graduate Year 3 and 4 may be
indirectly supervised with direct supervision immediately available.

c. While it is expected that the sequential levels of supervision allow for progressive
independence and autonomy, residents rotating through Tri-City emergency
department may not supervise less experience residents but instead must be
supervised only by an attending physician who is board certified (or board eligible)
in emergency medicine.

Emergency Resident Position Description (job description) during TCMC rotation:

a. Goals and objectives of the EM residency training program are set forth in the EM
residency curriculum document. Overall, the goal of the EM training program is to provide
EM residents with an extensive experience in the art and science of emergency medicine
in order to achieve excelience in the diagnosis, care and treatment of emergency patients
Additionally, this experience will help to establish the trainee’s eligibility to participate in the
American Board of Emergency Medicine’s board examination. In accordance with this
curriculum, the EM resident trainee agrees to do the following while at TCMC, other
institutions and the parent organlzatlon
i. Develop and participate in a personal program of self-study and professional

growth with guidance from the EM faculty teaching staff.

ii. Under the supervision of the EM faculty, participate in safe, effective, and
compassionate patient care, consistent with the trainee’s level of education and
experience and in accordance with the Residency’s description of graduated
responsibility.

iii. Participate fully in the educational activities of the residency program and assume
responsibility for participation in the teaching of more junior physicians, of medical
students and students in allied health professions.

b. The required educational activities of the EM residency are summarized as follows:

i. A minimum attendance level at all mandatory EM conferences either offsite or
onsite.

ii. Complete assigned core curriculum lecture presentations (1 or 2 minimum during
residency training period) in a timely fashion with guidance from the EM faculty.

ii. Record and update procedure logs, ultrasound logs, and patient follow up logs.
Participate in procedure labs and follow up conference. Participate in institutional
programs and activities involving the medical staff and adhere to established
practices, procedures, and policies of the institution.

iv. Participate in the standing committees of the Medical Staff and institutional

147



Medical Staff Policy Manual
Emergency Residents — 8710-571
| Page3ofs

committees, as assigned by the program director, especially those that relate to
patient care review activities.

v. Develop an understanding of ethical, socioeconomic, and medical/legal issues that
affect graduate medical education and the practice of emergency medicine. Learn
cost containment measures in the provision of patient care.

vi. Perform all duties in accordance with the established practices, procedures and
policies of the institution, the emergency medicine program, and other institutions
to which the resident is assigned.

Vii. Formulate diagnostic, therapeutic and disposition decisions independently. The
EM-3 resident will be able to competently perform all the major critical procedures
for the stabilization and treatment of emergency patients. Administrative skills of
appropriate transfer of ED patients in accordance with applicable state and federal
regulations and interfacing with representatives of HMOs and other third party
payers will be stressed.

viii. The EM-3 resident will have developed skills as a clinical teacher and mastered
presentation skills in case conference and lecture formats. Original research has
been conducted, and the resident has developed skills in literature review and
critical appraisal. The basic skills to provide evidence-based healthcare have been
acquired. Significant teaching and academic responsibilities are included in the
EM-3 experience.

iX. Adhere to the emergency department schedule of assigned shifts, as well as the
call schedule and assignments of off service rotations, in a prompt and timely
fashion.

o Document patient care in the medical record in a timely fashion as per medical staff policy.

i Adhere to the ACGME institutional requirements and the ACGME-RRC program
requirements for emergency medicine.

ii. Participate in the evaluation of the EM training program.

iii. Comply with the licensure requirements of the State of California and/or State of
California requirements if in Active Duty, and the laws of the State and Federal
Governments.

iv. Adhere to the policies of the Emergency Medicine Residency- parent and rotation
and adhere document entitled; Guidelines for Managing Impaired Residents.

V. Adhere to the principles of the SAEM and CORD Statement on Professionalism in
Emergency Medicine summarized as follows:

1) The specialty of emergency medicine recognizes the importance of defining
its professional responsibilities, values, and commitments. Trainees must
be taught and emergency physicians must practice the following:

a) To make clinical decisions according to the best interests of the
patient.

b) To behave in a manner that enhances patient trust.

c) To deliver high quality emergency medical care, maintaining the
highest level of knowledge and skills.

d) To listen attentively, maintain confidentiality, and communicate
truthfully, respectfully, openly, and honestly.

e) To be an advocate for the health care needs of emergency patients
and the community.

f) To place the interest and well-being of the patient above self-
interest.

a) To serve as a role model for health care professionals in training.

h) To work collegially with others, helping to create a productive and

effective work environment.
d. Summary
i. Professionalism is defined as behaviors that enhance the trust of patients and of
society. This is accomplished by putting the needs of patients ahead of the

148



Medical Staff Policy Manual
Emergency Residents ~ 8710-571
| Page4ofs

physician’s self-interest. Professionalism must be demonstrated by all emergency
medicine professionals, integrated into residency training programs, and
continually reinforced. At this time of tumultuous change, professionalism serves
as a point of reference, at the core of the identity of the emergency medicine
specialist.

C. GRADUATED RESPONSIBILITY FOR EMERGENCY MEDICINE RESIDENTS

1. The emergency medicine (EM) residency provides a graduated level of responsibility for EM
trainees. Residents enter into the EM residency after successful completion of a PG-I (general
internship) and in the case of the Navy residents some in the field practice. These residents are
assumed to have developed the basic skills of history-taking and physical examination, as well as
general medical and surgical patient work-up and management

2. Before the emergency medicine resident arrives at TCMC, he/she will be expected to have
mastered basic skills in initial stabilization, essential diagnostic work-up, emergency core
procedures, and emergency department management of individual acutely ill and injured patients
in the unique environment of the ED.

4.3. By completion of the EM-2 (PGY-IIl) year, EM residents will have acquired expertise in multi-
tasking and managing both patient care and administrative responsibilities simultaneously. The
EM-2 resident will be comfortable in managing, and prioritizing the patient care of multiple
patients. Furthermore, EM-2 residents will be able to take on the additional responsibilities of the
stabilization and work-up of emergency department patients, emergency core procedures, and
coordinating further inpatient or outpatient evaluation and care with representatives of other
specialties. Furthermore, EM-2 residents will actively participate as base hospital physicians
directing paramedic pre-hospital providers.

24. Upon completion of the EM-3 (PGY-IV) year of residency, EM trainees will have mastered all the
above skills and in addition be capable of supervising all operational issues regarding patient flow
and prioritization in the ED, as well as the pre-hospital setting. An EM faculty member is
continuously present in the ED, but the EM-3 resident is expected to formulate diagnostic,
therapeutic and disposition decisions independently. The EM-3 resident will be able to
competently perform all the major critical procedures for the stabilization and treatment of
emergency patients. Administrative skills of appropriate transfer of ED patients in accordance
with applicable state and federal regulations and interfacing with representatives of HMOs and
other third party payers will be stressed. The EM-3 resident will have developed skills as a clinical
teacher, and mastered presentation skills in case conference and lecture formats. Original
research has been conducted, and the resident has developed skills in literature review and
critical appraisal. The basic skills to provide evidence-based healthcare have been acquired.
Significant teaching and academic responsibilities are included in the EM-3 experience.

3-5. Residency progress will be reviewed; problems with communication, suggestions for
improvement, and other questions of a general nature will be addressed. Any specific medical
problem with the resident's management will be discussed in the monthly Department QA
meetings as necessary.

D. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. Sample Resident Evaluation Form

149



Medical Staff Policy Manual
Emergency Residents — 8710-571
| Page 5of 5

| Sample Resident Evaluation Form

150



(c‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Women'’s & Children’s Services Manual - NICU

PROCEDURE:

BATHING, NEWBORN/INFANT

Burpose:

To outline the nursing responsibilities in bathir

Supportive Data:

Thefirst bath-should-be-delayed-unti-the-infan

DELETE - use Mosby's Skills
Bathing: Sponge and Immersion
(Neonatal)

Equipment:

Department Review

Division of
Neonatology

Pharmacy and
Therapeutics

Medical Executive
Committee

Professional Affairs
Committee

Board of Directors

04/16

04/16

n/a

04/16

05/16

151



Women's & Children’s Services Manual - NICU
Bathing, Newborn Infant
Page 2 of 2

152



)
(c\)) Tri-City Medical Center

Women's & Children’s Services Manual - NICU

PROCEDURE: CHEST TUBE, CARE OF INFANTS WITH PNEUMOTHORAX
: For-severely-compromised-infants-whe-haved . .
Purpose - AL | rod_ Sut DELETE - use Mosby's Skills
and placement in the infant's chest of o draing Chest Tube Insertion (Neonatal),
Equipment: Chest tubes: 8 Fr.10 Frand 42 FrPigtair Uni Chest Tube Removal (Neonatal), 1

Chest Tube: Closed Drainage
System (Neonatal)

s Division of Pharmacy and Medical Executive Professional Affairs -
Department Review Neonatology Therapeutics Committee Committee Soardioqliactons
04/16 04/16 n/a 04/16 05/16

53



Women's and Children's Services Manual - NICU
Chest Tube, Care of Infants with Pneumothorax
Page 2 of 2

154



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

| WOMEN:S AND NEWBORNCHILDREN'S SERVICES MANUAL - NICU

SUBJECT: DIETICIAN, ROLE OF IN THE NICU

ISSUE DATE: 4/09
REVISION DATE(S): 4/09, 6/11, 8/12

Department Approval Date(s): 03/15
Division of Neonatology Approval Date(s): 03/15
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 0513 n/a
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 06/14305/16
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 06/13

A. PURPOSE:
| 1. To provide consultation and be a resource person for the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU)
staff when needed for NICU patients experiencing slow weight gain and/or have a metabolic
disorder, as well as feeding intolerance.

B. POLICY:
1. Role of the dietician in the NICU.

C. SUPPORTIVE DATA:
1. Historically, some NICU infants have been diagnosed with a failure to thrive, poor weight gain,
feeding intolerance, with or without a metabolic disorder, short gut syndrome, etc., and the need
for occasional consultation exists.

2. Dieticians who have expertise in pediatric and neonatal nutrition can contribute to the teaching of
parents for these infants, providing a better outcome.
3. It is the policy of Tri-City Medical Center in accordance with California Children’s Services

(CCS) guidelines, to provide a dietician for such consults as requested by the NICU
Neonatologist/Allied Health Professionallicensed-independent practitioner{LIP).

4, The dietician will be CCS paneled in order to bill for any consultations that are originated in the
Developmental Assessment Clinic (DAC) after discharge.

5. The dietician will attend the weekly multidisciplinary rounds in the NICU.

165



(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Women's and NewbornChildrer's Services-Manual -

information about a child’s growth pattern.

NICU
| | PROCEDURE: MEASURING INFANT LENGTH IN THE NEONATAL INTENSIVE CARE UNIT (NICU)
Purpose: A series of accurate weights and measurements of stature or length offer important

Supportive Data:

The gold standard technique for measuring length for children less than 24 months

involves a recumbent length measuring board.

| | Equipment: Starters-Seca 210 Measure Mat from-QuickMedical
Issue Date: 10/08
A, POLICY:

| 1.

NICU.

B. PROCEDURE:
1. The Measure Mat will be spread out and smoothed by hand on a hard surface.

—ECHERMAL LIICES

| B-.C. REFERENCES:

1. Centers for Disease Control (2000) Use and Interpretation of CDC Growth Charts.
Rifas-Shiman, S.L., et al. (2005) Misdiagnosis of Overweight and Underweight Children

| 2.

The Starters-Seca 210 Measure Mat will be utilized for accurate measurement of infants in the

2. The infant is laid on the mat with the top of the head touching the head stopheadbeard. The
body will be positioned perpendicular to the head stopheadbeard and stretched out fully.

3. The infant’s knees will be held together and pressed down gently against the mat with one
hand, and the foot stopbeard brought up against baby’s heels with the other hand.

4, The foot stopbeard should be parallel to the head stopbeard by lining it up with the vertical
length measuring lines. The measurement is read along the edge of the Measure Mat.

5. The measurement is documented in infant’s medical record and plotied on the appropriate fetal
infant growth chart based on the infant’s gestational age.

6. Following use, wipe clean with hospital approved disinfectant wipesseap-and-waterorany
non-alcohol-based-disinfectant. Roll up mat and store away from excessive heat.

Younger than 2 Years of Age Due to Length Measurement Bias. Medscape General Medicine

7(4):56.
23. Seca 210 Instruction Manual

Department Review
| Revision

Division of
Neonatology

Pharmacy and
Therapeutics

Medical Executive
Committee

Professional Affairs
Committee

Board of Directors

| 6/09, 8/12, 01/16

10/15

n/a

04/16

05/16

08/12

156



‘C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Womens and Newborn Ghildrer’s
Services

PROCEDURE:

AMNIOCENTESIS

Purpose:

To outline the nursing care of the patient undergoing an amniocentesis.

Supportive Data:

Amniocentesis is the aspiration of fluid from the uterus through an abdominal puncture
for the purpose of amniotic fluid analysis. This procedure may be performed at any time
during pregnancy. Once the amniotic fluid has been obtained, laboratory testing may be
conducted for diagnosis of disease or evaluation of fetal lung maturity.

Equipment: 1. Electronic fetal monitor
2. Amniocentesis tray
3. Ultrasound machine
4. Patient identification labels
A. PRE-PROCEDURE:

1. Verify physician order.

2. Verify that the physician has discussed the indications, the risks, and benefits of the procedure
with the patient.

a. Ensure the signed consent is on the medical record.

3. Place the patient on electronic fetal and uterine monitoring for at least 20 minutes prior to
amniocentesis.

4, Notify physician for Fetal Heart Rate (FHR) tracing that represents a Category il or Category li|
interpretation. See Fetal Heart Rate Surveillance Policy.

5. Obtain maternal vital signs and blood pressure.

6. Assist patient to a lateral recumbent or supine with hip tilt position.

B. INTRA-PROCEDURE:

1. Complete Universal Protocol, TIME OUT procedure, before beginning the procedure. See
Universal Protocol Procedure, Patient Care Services.

2. Assist the physician as directed.

a. Prepare equipment needed for procedure- amniocentesis tray, ultrasound machine,
sterile gloves, ultrasonic gel, and labels with patient’s identification

b. Assist provider in obtaining an Amniotic Fluid Index (AFl) and Ultrasound to determine
fetal viability, Estimated Gestational Age, placental and fetal position, singleton or
multiple gestation, and detection of gross fetal malformation.

3. Label specimens at the bedside, utilizing the two patient identifiers and send for testing as
ordered by physician.

a. Protect specimen from light.
4, Apply band-aid to puncture site or 2x2 gauze with tape as indicated.
C. POST-PROCEDURE:

1. Continue external fetal and uterine monitoring for at least 1-hour post procedure or as indicated
by provider. Assess for the presence of contractions and assess site of needle aspiration for
bruising, bleeding, or leakage of fluid.

2. Administer Anti-D globulin as ordered by physician for D-Negative patient.

D. DOCUMENTATION:
1. Document procedure in the patient’s medical record. .
2. Notify the physician for any of the following post-procedure events:
a. Baseline fetal bradycardia or tachycardia.
b. Uterine Activity (e.g., contractions, preterm labor).
c. Vaginal bleeding.
view/Revisi At s & Medic'al Professional B_oard of
“onbate | OBIGYN | Neonatology | Pediatics | Therapeutics | [EXecutve | Affare || Directors
8/96; 2/99;
5/00; 6/03; 01/13; 04/16 nia n/a nia 05/13, 04/16 06/13, 05/16 06/13
6/06, 12/12

o7



| Woments and NewbornChildren's Services
Amniocentesis, Assisting with

Page 2 of 2
3. If patient is discharged to home, review the following instructions and those advised by the
physician:
a. Not to lift anything heavy for two days.
b. Report to physician:
i. Any amniotic fluid leakage.
. Fever
iii. Severe cramps (slight cramps for the first day or two are normal).
iv. Vaginal bleeding.
4, Document the teaching and any interventions completed in the patient’'s medical record.

E. REFERENCES:
| 1. Simpson, K. & Creehan, P. (200148) Perinatal Nursing (3* 4th Ed.), Philadelphia: Lippincott,

Williams & Wilkins.

2. Simpson, J., Richards, D., Otano, L. & Driscoll, D. (2012) Gabbe Obstetrics: Normal and
Problem Pregnancies (6™ Ed.) St. Louis: W.B. Saunders Company.

3. Chisholm, C. & Ferguson, J. Ultrasound-Guided Procedures in Obstetrics. Ultrasound Clinics,
2012 (7) 325-335.

4. Mattson, S. & Smith, J. (2011) Core Curriculum for Maternal- Newborn Nursing, 4" Ed. St.
Louis: Saunders; Elsevier. TuckerS-M-Miler-BD-A—(2009)-Felal-Meonitoring-and
Assessment{5"Ed). Mosby: Elsevier-

158



Governance & Legislative Committee
(No meeting held in
May, 2016)

189



9102 ‘6l AeiN saIWWoy salyg § soueldwo) ‘NP
‘leinid 8q 910z ‘1|
uejjsuuoq ‘s -payizes saynully | pinoys g ebed uo dws), piom 8y} pajou ejluulj uosiediieyd | judy —sejnuiw jo uojesyney v
] wa}l 8y} JO uolelapISUoI
s, 99)lWWOYN) a10jaq alqnd
8y} 0} }1sasaul Jo walt Aue uo
_ sjaquuaw aa)Iwwod pue aiqnd
"SJUaWILLIOD, O1|qNd OU 848M a1y | ay} Jo siaquiaw AQ Sjuswwo) ¢
‘Ajsnowjueun passed uogow ay |
‘pajuasaid se epuabe ay) anoidde 03 )39|jeyos 10322.1a
uejjauuoqd ‘s ‘panoisdde epuaby papuodas pue __m;oa_s_ houom:_n_ Aq panow sem}| epuaby jo jenoiddy g
aao L ‘S Buimopeuys
SEM Oym Ewuam e ‘nyz _._mco "SW;paonpouul ddoj ‘s
_ meys-pleussg ajfiayn
"SI\ JO Jleyaq uo Aepo} Buniodsl sem oym ybneueaed
"SI\ 0} SOA[9SWIAY] PaoNpOoIUl S1I9qusW 8a)IluWo)
“e[iuul4 uostadiieyn Aq Ja)ua) [eaipay A)D-11 1e | wooy
Ajquisssy Ui *W'e Qg:g Je J9pJo 0} pa||ed sem Bunsaw ay | BplOo oD L
suoIsnjauo)
ajqisuodsay JSuolEepuU3WOoI3Y uolissnasiqg
(s)uosiad uonoy
Jaquispy Alunwwo) ‘dieys uopeg ‘009 ‘meys-pieusag sjfiayd 00D ‘As|uo) endey Juasqy
juswabeuepy
)SiY ‘Jojoaaiq Joluss cm:mcm>mo BI0Jel ‘UohEeWLIOU] [Bo1UlD @ uoleonp] Jo Jojoaulq ‘ddo] Ayjey 18O AdeAud pue
WIH ‘Sp1029y |EDIPS|A JO J0}0811] ‘UosdWwoy | US9||0D ‘JUB)SISSY BANNDSXT ‘Ue||auuo( L8] ‘[8Suno) jesausn) jooloey aueiq ;Juasald sBYIo
040 Bunoy ‘seary Aey ((030) umpelg ansls s1aquispy Bunop-uoN
Jaquiapy Ajunwiwio) ‘Zuemyoss aljsa Jaquiay Ajunwiwo) ‘weljimzii4 uliyiey| Lsquisiy
Aunwwo) ‘Buiwwing Moer {IoYdHN BINET J10J081IJ ¥20(|eydS ‘M AleT Jojoaaiq (Jiey)) ejiuuld4 euousey Jojoallq :Juasald siaquiay

‘w e 0gi0L-w'e 0€:8
| wooy Ajquiassy
91L0Z ‘6L Aeiy
a9jlwwion saiyj3 » asuejdwo) ‘yUpny
Juagjes  \yAno-uL



910z 91 Aeiy 4 99plwwoy solyy3 g soueldwo) Py

"SI\ 1O J|eysq uo sjuswiwod papiroid ddoj Ayiey “siy Buuioyuo — #55-0528 (2
jJo)oed ‘Alsnowiueun passed uojjow ayj] °‘papuswe pue
epuaby pseog ui papnjaul pajuasaid se Buyoxe 10} [Hd JO d1nso|asig pue asn
pue epuabe pieog xau uo | - €zS-0198 A2110d Jo jenoidde puswwiodsa 03 Butwwing |

Jeadde o) wayl ‘Bunaxsepw -JN Aq papuo2as pue ||3yd) J030a.1g Aq parows sem 3|
10} |Hd 30 ainsojasiq £

pue asn — £25-0198 Adtjod ‘uofoas awes'ay) ul pazijeinid

pieog aaoidde 03 s1030811q | ©q B, piom ay) paysabbns os|e Sem }j -Alejo 104 3onus aq

JO pJeog 8y} 0} Juas | ,LUONEOIUNWWOD BU} 4O}, PUEB, WO} 8L} UI SUOHEdIUNIWOD, "Il

ue|jjguuoq ‘s aq 0} uonepUdWWODIAY | 'Z ‘g uoyodes ul abenbue| sy vm“wmmm:m_“m___cc_n_ uosiadiieyn

‘paIQU, BB

suopjdaoxe a1aum 1deaxe |Hd Jo asesjal 0} Joud Aiessaoau
s) uonezuoyine jusned jey) sepinoid Ajjenuasss Aoljod

ayj Jey} pajels 10019y ‘SN |Hd O 8|es a4l YlIIM uoljosuuod
ul pue (sepwwod ayy Aq pamairal Ajjusoal sem jey) Aojjod
e) Buisiepuny g} Se Yons SOUBJSWINDII JAYJ0 Ul 10} |Hd

JO 8INSO|9SIp pue'asnh 0} pajejal Y dIH Jepun saousiajip
ay) passnosip 0s|e ays "sailed:pJiul sy} Jo saniAloe

Bunsxew ay) Joy,seiped paiyy woly paniegal ale sjuswied Bunaxien
uaym sjuaned Aguapi o} pasn [Hd o} Ajleaiioads sajejal €26 10§ |Hd j0 ainsoosiq
-0198 Adljod paute|dxa joo10ey suelq "SI\ [9suno) [elsusy pue asn — £25-0L98 (1

:$8INpPa00Id % S8Idl0d
JO uoIssSNISIg pue mainay (v

sseuisng MaN 'S

“ ‘Aoijod ay) Jo

10 UOI08S ‘| # Ul JUaWa)e)s jJuepunpal ay) ayuis 0} Aoljod sy}
9S|Aal |IIM BYs,pajels uosdwoy| usaj|0D S|\ "99RILIWOD
ay} Aq peysabbns sebueyo sy jo |[e 108|381 Jou pIp 9102 ‘82
[Udy uo pseog‘ay) Aq panoidde pue Bupeaw s yjuow )se|
Je pamalnal 6GG-0G/8 A21|od 1ey} pejusIwod Zuemyds "IN

‘Aisnowjueun passed uopjow ayj] °"papuswe
se sajnuiw ay) anoidde o3} zpemyos aljsa AN
Aq papuodas pue Bujwwing yoepr "IN Aq paAow sem )|

sSuoIsSN|oUo0H
s|qisuodsay /suolepuatuwo’ady uoIssnasi|g
(s)uosisa- uonoy




910z 91 Aew £ 9apIWOD SOIYIT B soueydwoD Py

uejjpuuog s\ 9q 0} UoIEPUAWWOIY s
‘possaippe ale sjuswa|e YJelS Jay)o8insus o}

|eBa Jo souedwo) Uiim }NSuU0D 0} SIamainal Jaje 0} Aoljlod,
SU) Ul papnjoul Sem g4 “Q UOoRoBS paule|dxs Jodioey ‘S|

"sseo0.d 8y} Jo8|ja1 Aj9jeinooe
0} Juawpedaqg aouejdwo), peal 0} Jnoybnouy) pasiaal aq
Juswpedeq joenuo, abenbue|ay) jey) pajsabbns sem }

'S90.IN0S jei19)al Jay)jo

pue sueisAyd y)im sjoenuod ||e 10419210 dsueldwo)

ay) pue [eba| Aq MalAaL BAISUBIXS Sapn[oul Jey} ssacoud e:s
alay) pauiejdxs ays. $S90IN0S [B118)81 J8Y)0 pue, suerisAiyd
UM S1OBIJUOD UO:S8SN004 Ao)jod m;«.vmyﬂw. J00108Y ‘SN

"MET] HIB]S 8Y) Ul passnosip
aJe suonqiyoid;aoinos |euayal ay) pautejdxa ddo] S|y $82IN0SG |elsjey JaylO pue
* $82N0G [eLaey UM sdiysuoijejel Jo Juswabeuew ay) | sueioisAyd yim juswebueLy
0} syeads 695-06.8 Adljod 1ey) pajelsieus ‘meyg-pleussq [enjoenuo) :salljod
"SI\ J0 Jleyaq uo'sjuswiwod papiroid;ddo], Ayiey s\ | 82inog [eusyey — 695-06/8 (€

_ . ‘98llwio) 8y} 0} 3oeq
Jubnouq sl Ko110d 8y} usym papinoid aq ssioljod paousiayel
"MalAal | 8U] ey) pajsabbns osie,sus “pazijeul 194 Jou si yoiym Aoijod

10} aung Ul 9PWIWOD Jsyjgue ol 1£5-05/8 Aoijod Bunesodioour si HH eyl 1oe)

ayj 0} yoeq jybnoiqg aq |Im | au} o} anp.pue spodal Jo Ajilenuspluod ssaippe Jey) saioljod

sSMmaIAIU] JIXT :Buipoday ooxm___aEmw&cgm_m_ ajei0diooul 0) paliejep aq Aoijod ay)

pue Bunipny/esueldwo) nmwmm_mm.:m_ﬂoao_omw_ "SI\ ‘AoeAld uo Juswituod s dieyn ayj o}

[@sunon _ Buuojiuopy | esuodsal uj .>om>__w_m, 0] paje|al Juswa)e)s B dpn|oul Jou saop
[e18US9/0DD {—$6G-06.8 Ad1j0d |  Aoljod ay) jeyy E_mom_oo passaldxs os|e e|iuul{ uosiadiieyd

A - Aoljo4 @aAojduwiz, peal 0} pasinal
aq 'g uoi198s Jo a|}i} ay) palsebbns e|iuul4 uosisdney)

‘uonjeziuebio sy} sAes| oym Jels yim
MBIAIB)UI JIXS UB JoNpuod AjjusLind am pauiejdxs ddo] "s

% .~ ‘pemauai jou st Joejuod ay} ji Aejnoiied 's10}0esU0D 1o}
'SMBIAIB)UI JIXa Jo) AuoBajed e apn|oul 0} ssadoud e Bundepe smalnlo)u| )Ixg Buiroday
aq [|IIm meyS-pleulsg S| 1By pajels ays ‘meys-pleusag pue Buipny/esueldwo)

suoisn|ouo)
alqisuodsay /suonepuawwoIdy uoissnasiq
(s)uosis uonoy




910z 91 Aey

sojIWwWo) sy B soueldwo) ‘pEy

Juswaalbe ay)

JO ainjeu 8y} 0} aNp d|qemalaal Jou aJe suolnjos

1ON/O pue s)oo0.g yypassyy wioq pajels uosdyioy;y
"SI\l — SUOAN|OS J1aN/O pue $)400.g YIPBISN <

‘Juswealbe

sIy} Jo 9Bpajmou ou pey ays JoAamoy (Jameinsl)

Aued s|qisuodsay ay} se pajs||:sl ays paule|dxs

uosduwioy] SN "921A18S S} U0 uoneuLIouI

a|qeynuspl 10 Xoe| 0} 8np pajjeoued fuleq si ey}
JusWaaIby 8)BIn0SSY Ssaulsng B SIYSH] Bulodly. «

"paAjosal uaag sey
anss| 8y} }09]81'0} ULWIN|0D SMe)S By} Ul papnjoul
aq (M ¥, UV 'g|qenjosals] Jey} enssi.Joulw e sl

Bunel g e paje}s uosdwoy] S|\ “1oMaIABl JoeIuoD!

ou) Aq Z & pejes SEM SUON|OS (E01UYDS | ST BIIOAA <

"uwnjo9 snye}s aypul ., ue BuipnoulAq pajosjjel
8 |iM pue paA|0sal Usaq sey ansst ay).pajels
uosdwioy] "S|N. S}o8yd aoueUSjuIBW SAfUSASId
Bulissulbus Buip|ing'Ajwnun o} anp Jamalnsl
JoeU0D BY) Ag ¢ Se pajel'sem [auuld) xaldwis <

i, :MBUS-pleussg s\
V_o:m:_mn_comc_zo__ohoc:uotoamhcomanc._.cmm__oo.w_>_

e ‘Slaquial 89)ILUILIOD 0} PBINQUISIP SEM
ymocwvmmaw_co:m:_gmuom:coo_mo_:__o-cozv&mva:c<

SJOBJJUOD |EDIUID
-UOU JO UOISSNOSIP pue Malnay (g

7 fovoed epuobe

u1 papnjaui pue epuabe
pieog jxau,uo Jeadde

0} Wia}! {S32IN0S |eliajey
Jayjo pue sueisiyd
ypm juswabuelly
[enjoeu0?) Saldljod

92JN0g [elId)9Yy — 69G-0S/8
£o1104 anoadde si1030041Q"
jo pieog 3y} 0} Juss |

% ‘w'e
G0:6 Je Bunasw alfyys| nyz swie) sy pue ddoj Ayiey ‘s

il W *Aisnowiueun
/. passed uonjow ay] "papuswe pue pajuasaid
~SE'S324N0S§ |B11ajoy 19Y)0 pue sueldishyd yum
EmEom:E.& |enjoeauo,) (S3191|0d 92IN0S [Bl1djay —
1696-0G78 A21]0d jo [enoidde puawiwiodal 0) zZuemyds I
Aq papuo2as pue }20]jeyos 10)2311q Aq paAow sem}|

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosia

SUOISN|oU0)
/suoiepuatuwoday
uonody

uoissnasig




9102 91 Aely

g

sapIwwWo) solyyg B soueldwo) ‘Wpdly

AjuQ uonewoju|

/' /¥ — 9|gBAIS08Y JUN0JDY JaN Ul SABQ e
uoj|jiw G’ Lp$ — S|geAlsdsy SjUNoddY jusiied 1SN

128’6y —SUSINOT °

g96'L — SelBAlRg  ©

€18y — seseQ A1ebing

0.1'G8 — sheq waned pajsnlpy

Z61 - snsua) Ajeq abelseny e
:Buimoyjo}

8y} papnjoul Jeak Jusund ay) Joy siojedipul Aey Jsulo

0€e N; Juswspes "[ox3 va.lig3
¢Ge oraigﬁ_.:mm_

Nwm 1§ - Juswspes ‘|9x3 Jod3:
(96¥$) - 3043

ovo.wmww - ow,cmaxm_ Bunesado
¥0G:6%7¢$ — enuansy BuneisdO 19N

:(spuesnoy ui sie(|op) SMOJ|O} SE S)nsal
[eoueuYy 0 LA 1e9sl4 8y} uo uodas jouq e aneb seary JN

s)insay
Juswa)e)S |eoueUld JauEeND
n€ €10CAd JO MSIASY (o)

ue|jouuo( S\

‘J9)oed epuabe uj |

popnjoul pue epuabe pieog
1Xau uo leadde 0} waj
‘s)oeaUO)) [BdIUl|D-UON

ay} anoidde o3 siojoal1qg

JO pJeog ayj 0} Juas

9( 0} UOHEPUAWWOIY

‘Wwee.z1:6 Je.bunssw ay) Y| uosdwoy) sy

Ajlsnowjueun passed uopjow ayj] "pPaA|osal uaadq
sey anssi ayj} joapal 0} . N,, @Y} apn|dul 0} papusawe
pue.pajuasaid se Jaayspeaids Joesuo) [esiul|d
-UON 9y} jo |enoidde puatuwiodal 0} [|Yd) W 10303liq
+Aq papuo2ss pue weljimz)i4 ‘s Aq paaowl Sem }|

‘Juswaaibe ay} Jo ainjeu
ay) 0} anp m_nm\smsm: 10U si "ou) ‘salbojouyoa] HdD «

paubis

uaaq sey Juswoaibe a)e0osSe SSBUISNg B (|Ijun

Aueduiod yosessal sy} 0} 8|ge|ieAe ag pjnoys |Hd

ou pajou JooI10eY ‘S| Juswaalbe ay) yum sAejep

0] aNp JoMalAal JoBIjUOD 8Y)} Aq € e pajel sem
Auedwon yoieasay e ‘"ouj ‘Yajunys R uewspo)d «

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosia-

sSuoISn|ouo0n
/suoljepuawiwiodsy
uondy

uoissnasiq




9102 91 Aepy

9

seJILIOY SoIy1T 3 doueldwoD Py

-Ajuo uonewoju|

U1 paulno se seale jsu ybiy ay) uo snaoj [im Joypne au}
1ey) pauiejdxe uiialg N NSIA SIU) UO 9|qBAI9d8. S)UNOIoe

yusned uo Ajuewnd snooy (M pue yiyz Aey 8lis uo aq,

0} pa|NPayos S| SWEPY SSOJ\ PIJE]S SeARY S|\ ‘senuoud se
99s Aay} Jeym UO S8))JWWOD 3y} pausnb pue Ajyoys ssaooid
ypne 1no uibaq |jm swepy SSo paje)s ejluuld uosiadiieyd

sapuoud Jpny
JO uoissnosip pue mainay (g

"papnjoul a1esjey) SaNNY:aY) 198|81 0}

JUSWSE]S |elouBUI4 Pajepliosuo) 8y} uo paoeld ag sjoujoo)
e pajsabbns sem ]| ‘Juaws)elS |eloueUl4 Palepliosuo)

8y} Ul pajos|yal SI JeY) PUE Jajua) SSBU|[RAN:BY} S Yons ‘Unm
Q)eIIE OM Jey) SB)IIUS Jay1o Yim diysiaumo swos aAey

am paule|dxa SBARY I JUSWSIE]S [BIOUBULY Pa)EpIloSUa)
ay} SNSISA DNDL 8UY UO UoHEoyUE|D pajsanbal ZIemyos "IN

"SaAljenIuI no 108]jJa. A|g1eInd3e 0} siojesiput A8y Jaylo
Je Bupjoo| JepIsuod 'seAry "I\ paisabbns ejuui4 cow._mnr_mso

Jliej 8y}

ur AJUNoo 8y} YHM }0B13U0D: B OJul J8jus 0} adoy pue ssedold
Jey Joj Buipuny sjenbspe uo Aunod:ay} yum Bunjiom

‘aJe am pa)elsiaH "sjusned Joj Juswuoliaug Ja)aq e apinoid
pue wswpedsq. >o:m@_mEm By} Ul Moy} anosdull [lIm yoiym
lun.uonezijiqels’sisuy sy} Uo pajuswiwiod osje uipaldg I

: ._Bo ‘siequunu | OAAT] ‘ewn

yem apoudwlio)} g3 8y} Ul uo payiom Buleq seAleniul [e19ASS
0S|e 8Je alay) pajels ulpeiq N "Siequinu no 8sealdul

0} HOYo UB UM} B sWweu o) ‘suoabing oioeloyjoipie)d

pue suosbinsoinsp Jo uolppe ‘uoHelwY ASON

By} Se yons SaAljeljiul [B1oAaS uo Bupjiom aie em pajels

oH ‘siaquinu’ay) sAup sausbins jey) pauieidxs uipalqg N
“JedA snoinaid wol) sulpap ay) pauolsanb Buiwwng

'vadll93 pue 30Y3 ‘sHsIA juswpedsQ
Aousbiawig ‘sAeq juaned paisnipy ‘susogmaN Buipnjoxe
snsuan) Ajieg abelony ‘s|gealassy SjuNoodoy jusned

| ur skeq 1oN pajoajjal youm sydelb psjuasaid osie seary I

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosia-

sSuoIsSn|ouo0)
/suonepuawWWosay
uondy

uoissnasiq




910z 91 AeN L sapIWIWog o3 B soueldwo) WPy
‘AN Ul yum pajelfiye si 8y jey) dnoib
B Y)IM 198 0} pa|npayds s! uliaiq “JIN Palels ZHemUdss N
*Jo}0 0] sey AlD-11] Jeym pue “
A)N0-141 Jnoge aiow uies| o} 9| pinom ey} suoleziuebio
1o sdnodb Ayunwwod o) Buojeq Asyj Ji mouy pieod sy} sloquiapy
AjuQ uonewlou| | 13| 0} SJoquaW dRYIWWI0D pabelnoous ejluuly uosisadiieyd 99])ILILIOY WO} SJUSWWOY “| |
(1L°2G61G uoloag
‘apoD JUSWUIBA0Y :Ajlioyiny)
"UOISS®S |  UOISSaS Paso|d ul uaye} uoljoe
paso|0 Ul Uaye] SEM LONOR ou papodal ejiuuly uosiediieyD | Aue uo uosiadiey) woi poday ‘0L
‘palou A|snoinaid se'asuepusye
UNM “W'B GG:6 Je-UoISsas uado 0} paun)al sapiuwo:ay | uoissag uadp 6
‘Aisnowjueun passed uopjow ayj ‘w-e
9£:6 Je uoissas paso|d ojui ob 0} zuemyos
iy Aq papuogas pue Bujwwing I Aq, paAow sem )| | UoIssas pasojo ojuj ob o) uollo g
i ‘uonebii |enusiod Jo Jsjjew suo pue (2° 26616 uonoas
sa)nuw :o_mmmm pasolo Jo |eacsdde papnjoul Yolym Uoisses 8pO0Y) JUSWILLIBAOS)) UOISSOS
pasojo Buunp passnosip 890} epusbe ay} uo pajslj Swal paso|D Buunp passnosiq 9q
8U)JO JUBISOUNOUUE [BJ0 U apeuw e|luul4 uosiadiieyd 0] SWa}| JO Juswasunouuy |e1Q /2
SUON ssauisng p|O0 ‘9
‘loA8| 8|qeyns e je
S)OBJJUOD JNO MBIABI Sioypne ay) pajsabbns welimzii4 S|y
"UOISSOS BAIN0dXd
ul Juswsbeuew Yim suisouod Aue ssaldxs 0} 98D
ay} Jo} Ajiunpoddo ue apiaoid siojipne ay) 1ey) psjou Sem
1] Juswabeuew MalAIB)UI PUB YOO| J8SO[O B 8)e) 0} Jojipne
ay} 1dwoud jm diysiapes| ul abueyd Aue psjels uijjelqg ‘s
‘obe syjuouw [eiaAas uopejuasald Jisy)
SuoIsnN|duUo09)
a|qisuodsay /suonepuawLIoddy uoissnasiqg
(s)uosisa4 uonody




9102 91 A 8 ea)iWwWoY syl @ aoueldwo) ‘HpRE
! -Wwe'0o:0L" Je Bugesw ay) pauinolpe ejuuly uosiadieyd Juswuinolpy “¢|
"910Z ‘9 aun( .
10} pa|npayos s bunasaw 0Z ‘9L 8unp uo p|ay aq |m
IXaU S,29)IWIWOD dY | Bunsaw )xau s,89NIWLWIOYD 8y} palels ejiuul uosiadiieyd Bunespy 1xaN Jo ajeq ‘Zl
suoiIsnjouo?)
ajqisuodsay /SUOREPUBWIWIOIY uoissnasiq
(s)uosia 4 uondy




AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

May 19, 2016

RAJIVANCE

Administrative Policies & Procedures

1. Use and Disclosure of Information
Regarding Media

8610-523 | 3 year review, revised

Forward to BOD for
approval
with revisions

2. Monitoring Compliance/Auditing and
Reporting; Exit Interviews

8750-554 | 3 year review, revised

Pulled for further review

3. Referral Source Policies; Contractual
Arrangement with Physicians and Other
Referral Sources

8750-569 | 3 year review, revised

Forward to BOD for
approval
with revisions

168



(@»Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

| Compliance

ISSUE DATE: 5/03 SUBJECT: USE AND DISCLOSURE OF
PRIECRMATFON-RECARDING
MEDIAOF PHI FOR MARKETING

REVISION DATE: 1/06; 7/06; 3/09 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-523

Department Approval Date: 03/16

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 03/0904/16

OperstionsTFeam-Committse- pprowval Dajoe

Audit, Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval: 05/16

Board of Directors Approval: 04/09

A. PURPOSE:

1. The purpose of this pPolicy is to provide guidance te-stafffor-on the Use and dDisclosure of
Protected Health Information (PHI) for purposes of marketing including the requirement to
obtain: -Ppatient Aauthorizations for such marketing-is-required-foruse-or-disclosure-of-anyRH}.

B. DEFINITIONS:

1. Authorization: the written form that complies with HIPAA in order to Use and Disclose PHI
for Marketing.

2. Disclosure: the release, transfer, provision of, access to or divulging of PHI outside TCHD.

3 Financial Remuneration: direct or indirect payment to TCHD from or on behalf of a third
party whose product or service is being described. Direct or indirect payment does not
include payment for the treatment of a patient.

4, Individual: as used in this Policy is the person who is the focus of the PHI.

5. Marketlng —Marketing-is- any communication about a product or service that encourages the
purchase or use of the product or service. As-a-general-rule—providers-may-notusepatient
informationformarketing-witheutwritten-autherization-Marketing does not include those
activities that are expressly excepted as provided in this Policy.

6. Personal Health Information (PHI): individually identifiable health transmitted or maintained
in paper or electronic etherform that is created or received by TCHD AND

a. Relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an
individual; OR

b. Relates to the provision of health care to an individual; OR

c. Relates to the past, present, or future payment, AND

a.d. Identifies the individual OR with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to
believe the information can be used to identify the individual.

| 2-7. Use: the sharing, application, utilization, examination or analysis of PHI within TCHD.
C. POLICIES:

1. Valid Authorizations are required for the Use or Disclosure of a patient's PHI for Marketing unless
this Policy expressly permits Marketing without an Authorization or the activity is not
included in the definition of Marketing.

2. If the Marketing activity involves Financial Remuneration to TCHD from a third party, an
Authorization must be obtained and the Authorization must also state that Financial
Remuneration is involved.

D. PROCEDURES:
1. Marketing: Uses and Disclosures Requiring Authorizations 169



Administrative Policy Manual
Use and Disclosure of Information Regarding Media — 8610-523
Page 2 of 4

a. TCHD employees shall obtain a valid Authorization for the Use or Disclosure of a
patient’s PHI for Marketing unless this Policy expressly permits Marketing without
an Authorization or the activity is not included in the definition of Marketing as
discussed below.

b. If no exception applies, and the Marketing involves direct or indirect Financial
Remuneration or economic benefit to TCHD from a third party, TCHD must obtain an
Authorization and the Authorization form:

i Must meet the requirements for a valid Authorization

iii. Must contain the name or the other specific identification of the persons, or
class or persons, to whom TCHD may make the authorized Use of
Disclosure. A blanket authorization for Marketing is not permitted.

iii.. Must state that Financial Remuneration is involved.

iv. Must be reviewed and approved in advance by the Chief Marketing Officer
and the Chief Compliance Officer, with the assistance of legal counsel, as
necessary and appropriate.

C. PHI includes demographic information, without any accompanying diagnosis or
treatment information, so if no exception applies an Authorization must be obtained
from the patient even to use the patient’s address or phone number for Marketing.

2. Marketing: Uses and Disclosures Permitted Without an Authorization
B-a. The following communications are permitted under this Policy without a patient
Authorization:

it lined below:
b-i. —— i TCHD may make a face-to-face marketing
communication, as long as we-TCHD does not receive any Financial

Rremuneration or economic benefit, direct or indirect, from a third party for making
the communication.

—ii. TCRCHD may provide esmmpisstiensintaefoma-eliisnereguiredte

B When-the-marketing-communication-invelvesa “promotional gifts” of
nominal value as long as TCHD does not receive Financial Remuneration from
a third party-for-the-communication. Such “promotional gifts” must be limited
to items of nominal value (i.e. less than $10) such as pens, refrigerator
magnets, memo pads and/or key chains containing TCHD’s name.
Promotional gifts may not include cash or cash equivalents (e.g. gift cards).
Any other proposed “promotional gifts” or those that exceed nominal value
must be reviewed and approved in advance by the Chief Marketing Officer
and the Chief Compliance Officer, with assistance of legal counsel, as




Administrative Policy Manual
Use and Disclosure of Information Regarding Media — 8610-523

Page 3 of 4

e-a. Marketing activities that do not use PHI are not subject to HIPAA. Example: a third-party
purchased consumer list used to send information about a healthcare provider to a certain
segment of the general population (For example, all men under 50, living in the 60606 zip
code) would not fall under HIPAA.

3:b. Fi-CityMedical-CenterTCHD is not required to obtain patient ¢4Authorization for the
following activities when TCHD does not receive Financial Remuneration or economic
benefit from a third party:

i. Healthrelated-eCommunications that may be part of TCMC's treatment of an
ilndividual and health care operations, including case management, care
coordination-orour-health-care-operations, even if sale or use of a product or
service is promoted.

iii. Communications that may be part of TCHD’s treatment of an Individual
including to direct or recommend alternative treatment, therapies, referrals to
other providers, care settings for an Individual.

a+ii. Communications describing the availability of more cost effective pharmaceuticals.
i Example: recommending a specific over-the-counter cough medication to a

patlent Wlth hlgh blood pressure-is-net-mapkeﬂng
b-iv. divi

fer—smekmg—eessaﬁen—mret—ma#keaﬂg—Commumcatlons for case management
or care coordination activities and related functions to the extent they do not
fall under treatment.

c. TCMGHD may make the following communications to enrollees of health plans (i.e.
HMO'’s) when TCHD does not receive Financial Remuneration or economic benefit
from a third party:

i. Communications made solely for the purpose of describing its participation in a
provider network of the licensed health plan to which the enroilees already
subscribe; or

iii. Communications made solely for the purpose of describing if, and the extent to
which, it provides a product or service included in a plan of benefits of a licensed
health plan to which the enrollees already subscribe.

Marketlng Representatlons

2 TCMEHD marketing communications and materials will be reviewed to ensure that they
are free from exaggeration and do not use fear tactics as a means of persuasion and that they are
a factual representation of TCHD’seur services.

171



Administrative Policy Manual
Use and Disclosure of Information Regarding Media — 8610-523
Page 4 of 4

3E. RELATED POLICIES:
1. ARTCHD Administrative Policy # 518 Notice of Privacy Practices
2. AR#TCHD Administrative Policy # 525 Use and Disclosure of PHI for Fundraising

G-F. REFERENCES:

1. Eederal-HIRPAA Regulations;45 CFR Section 164.501
2, 45 CFR Section 164.508(a)(3)

43. Cal. Civil Code Section 56.10(d)

172



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

Compliance

ISSUE DATE: 05/12 SUBJECT: Referral Source Policies; General
Policy R fina A s with
PrysielamsiOther Roforral Sourses
Contractual Arrangements with
Physicians and Other Referral
Sources

REVISION DATE(S): POLICY NUMBER: 8750-569

Department Approval Date(s): 01/16

Administrative Policies and Procedures Approval Date(s): 01/16

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 02/16

Organizational Compliance Committee Approval Date(s) 05/16

Audit, and-Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval Date(s): 05/16

Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 05/12

A. PURPOSE:

on requlrements for Trl-Clty Healthcare Dlstrlct’s (“TCHD’s”) contractual arrangements with
physicians, physician groups and other referral sources (as defined below) to ensure
compliance with applicable Self-Referral and Anti-Kickback Laws.

B. DEFINITIONS:

1. Financial Relationship. For purposes of the Referral Source Policies, a “Financial Relationship”
means either a compensation arrangement in which remuneration is exchanged between District
TCHD and a Referral Source (e.g., payment for on call service, rent for use of space) or an
ownership or investment interest pursuant to which a Referral Source holds an equity interest in
the entity (e.g., shareholder or partner in a joint venture). A compensation arrangement and an
ownership/investment interest can be direct or indirect.

2. Immediate Family Member. For purposes of the Referral Source Policies, an “immediate family
member” is a spouse or civil union partner; natural or adoptive parent, child, or sibling; stepparent,
stepchild, stepbrother or stepsister; father-in law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law,
brother-in-law, or sister-in-law; grandparent or grandchild; and the spouse of a grandparent or
grandchild.

3. Referral Source. A “Referral Source” means a physician, physician group or any other person or
entity that is in a position to refer patients to or otherwise generate revenue for TCHD. For
purposes of TCHD's Referral Source Policies (and per certain laws and regulations), the term
“Referral Source” includes the Referral Sources’ Immediate Family Members.

4, Remuneration. The term “remuneration” means anything of value, including a salary, stipend or
fee, a free or discounted item, forgiveness of debt, i-ee.g., as in a recruitment loan,alean and
the like. For example, when X buys Y a cup of coffee, X has given remuneration (something of
value)to Y.

5. Referral Source Polices: Policies that provide guidance to TCHD’s staff on how to manage
arrangements when the other party is a referral source include but are not limited to:

173



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance
Referral Source Policies; General Policy Regarding Arrangements with Physicians/Other Referral Sources - 8750-569

Page 2 of 4

a. Administrative Policy Manual #8750-571, Loans & Guarantees to Physicians.

b. Administrative Policy Manual #8750-572, Medical Directorships.

c. Administrative Policy Manual #8750-573, Business Courtesies to Physicians and
Immediate Family Members.

d. Administrative Policy Manual #8750-574, Tracking Remuneration and Use of Items
and Services to and from Referral Source.

e. Administrative Policy Manual #8750-575, Sale of Items or Services to Physicians
and Other Potential Referral Sources.

f. Administrative Policy Manual #8750-576, Controls and Monitoring of Payments to

Physicians or Other Referral Sources.
g. Administrative Policy Manual #8750-580, Physician and Allied Health Professional
Service Contracts.
Self-Referral and Anti-Kickback Laws. Certain state and federal laws and regulations
describing prohibited Financial Relationships with referral sources like physicians,
physician groups and other referral sources and the criteria that must be met to comply
with them.

C. APPLICATION:

1.

2.

Except as set forth immediately below, the Referral Source Policies apply to all Financial
Relationships by and between TCHD and a Referral Source.
This Policy, however, applies to exchanges of remuneration that occur under or pursuant to one
or more contracts. It does not apply to non-contractual exchanges such as medical staff benefits,
gifts and other non-monetary compensation. Such other, non-contractual remuneration will be
covered by other, more specific Referral Source Policies.
Contractual Financial Relationships include, but are not limited to:
a. Physician recruitmenting agreements;
d-b. Management service agreements;
e-c. Professional sServices agreements (e.g., on call)-direstorships);
fd. Employment agreements;
g-e. Physician expense reimbursement agreements;
hf.  Other agreements for the provision of services or supplies (whether medically
related or not);
9. Asset purchase and disposition agreements;
f=h. Medical office building, other space, and equipment leases;

k-i. Joint ventures; and

j- Certain co-marketing arrangements.

k. Administrative Services Agreements (e.g., Medical Director Agreements)
L Physician Consultant Agreements

m Medical Staffing Agreements

kn. Co-Marketing Agreements

D.  GENERAL POLICIEPROCEDURES

1.

In General. Various federal-and-state-laws-and-regulations-Self-Referral and Anti-Kickback

Laws prohibit healthcare providers (such as hospitals) from offering and/or giving remuneration to
physicians, physician groups or other Referral Sources for the purpose of inducing patient
referrals or otherwise generating business. Some of these laws and regulations also prohibit
patient referrals and billing for services furnished to such improperly referred patients when the
referring physician has a Financial Relationship with the healthcare provider (e.g., a hospital) and
no exception applies. These laws and regulations are complicated and will be addressed in this
general policy as well as a number of the-DistristsTCHD’s policies related to specific
arrangements between and among Bistrist TCHD and physicians or physician groups (and other
Related Sources) such as, by way of example, service arrangements (medical director

174



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance
Referral Source Policies; General Policy Regarding Arrangements with Physicians/Other Referral Sources ~ 8750-569

Page 3of 4

agreements on call agreements, and the Ilke) and Iease arrangements. -Geueetwety—the—vaneus

reﬁe#ed—te—as—Reierrat—Seuree—Pehe&es—ﬂ Comphance wrth the Referral Source Pohmes is
mandatory unless an exception has been granted by the Legal-Compliance Department in
writing and in advance.

Contract Requirements. All of Distriet's-TCHD’s contractual arrangements with Referral Sources

must:

a. Be set forth in a current written agreement; one that has not expired or been terminated,
which sets forth the parties’ respective duties and obligations in sufficient detail and is
signed and dated by all of the parties;

b. Specify the timeframe for, or term of, the arrangement;

C. Specify the remuneration (e.g., rent, purchase price, compensation) to be exchanged,
which remuneration must be:

i. consistent with fair market value for services or items actually provided;
ii. determined in a manner that does not take into account the value or volume of
referrals or other revenue-generated; and

d. Be intended to obtain or provide an item or service that is reasonable and necessary for a
legitimate business purpose.

OtherApplicable-Policies—Additional legal requirements: In order to comply with the Stark Law,

Anti-kKickback Statute and other laws and regulations, TCHD may have to meet other
legal requirements in addition to those set forth above with respect to specific contractual
arrangements. (For example, in order to meet the Stark Law exception for Physician
Recruitment Agreements, the contractual arrangement must meet specific criteria.-)
Accordingly, TCHD and employees must ensure that other contract/arrangement-specific
policies are being reviewed and that they are using appropriate contractual documents or
templates that have been reviewed and approved by the Chief Compliance Officer,: Legal

Informal Documents; Amendments; Renewals. Informal documents, such as "letters of intent,"
"letter agreements," or "memoranda of understanding” are subject to the Referral Source Policies,
as are arrangements with physician- owned entities. TCHD must not enter into side agreements
or arrangements (written or oral) with physicians. The Referral Source Policies apply to all
amendments and extensions/renewals of agreements with physicians as well. If at any time it
appears that there have been discussions or memoranda indicating intent to obtain or reward
referrals by way of an agreement, such agreement shallwill not be approved.

Required Approvals. All contractual arrangements with Referral Sources must be reviewed and
approved in advance and in writing by the Chief Executive Officer (or his/her designee), and the
Legal-Compliance Department and/or Legal Counsel. The review and approvals must be
obtained even if the agreement complies in all respects with the Referral Source Policies. The
review and approvals also must be obtained for amendments to existing agreements that revise
the payment terms and/or the effective dates of the existing agreement. It is not acceptable to
obtain the appropriate approvals after making payments in accordance with the agreement.
Further, TCHD employees may not -do-notmakeitis-prohibited-to-make -commitments to

physicians until written approvals have been obtained. —ﬁrem—me-l:egal—Depathem—
Execution Timing. Both the-BistrictTCHD and the Referral Source must sign and date the relevant

written agreement(s) before any items or a service are provided, and before any payment is
made. Any items or services provided before both the-BistristTCHD and the Referral Source sign
the agreement cannot be compensated by BistrictTCHD, at the time of service or at any time in
the future, unless approved in advance by the Compliancetegal Department

Compliance with Contract Terms. In all contractual arrangements with Referral Sources,
payments must be consistent with the terms of the agreement and performance of all of the terms
of the agreements is required. For example, monies owed by a physician under a lease
agreement erloan-document-must be paid in accordance with the terms of the documents.

175



Administrative Policy Manual - Compliance

Referral Source Policies; General Policy Regarding Arrangements with Physicians/Other Referral Sources — 8750-569
Page 4 of 4

(Similarly, a contractual arrangement that requires time sheets as a condition of payment must be
performed and enforced according to its terms. In other words, the obligation to submit complete
time sheets cannot be ignored or waived.) Accurate and complete records of all physician
receivable collection activity should be maintained by TCHD. The kegal-Compliance Department
should be contacted in the event of a default so that remedies may be pursued in a prompt and
business- like fashion.

8. Contract -CentrelLeg-Data-base.

a. A centralized and computerized Referral Source Contract Centrol-Log-Contract Database
documenting all contractual relationships with each Referral Source must be maintained.
The Referral Source Contract Gentrol-ogDatabase should inciude all current
agreements, leases or-or financial arrangements between TCHD and any Referral
Sources, including Professional Service Agreements, Income Guarantees (Recruitingment
Agreements), Medical Directorships, Leases (including those maintained by an
independent property manager), Employment Agreements and generally, any Referral
Source relationship.

b. The ComplianceContractlegal Departiment shall be responsible for custody and
maintenance of the Referral Source Contract DatabaseCentrol--og and must keep
records current and provide timely updates to the-DistriectsTCHD’s accounts payable
management personnel. The kegal ComplianceCentract Department must ensure that a
copy of each fully executed agreement is maintained in a central repository with copies of
all supporting documents, including fair market value verification, Legal-Compliance
Department approval, and time records.

E. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. Administrative Policy Manual #8750-571, Loans & Guarantees to Physicians
2. Administrative Policy Manual #8750-572, Medical Directorships

3. Administrative Policy Manual #8750-573, Business Courtesies to Physicians and
Immediate Family Members
4. Administrative Policy Manual #8750-574, Tracking Remuneration and Use of Items and

Services to and from Referral Source

5. Administrative Policy Manual #8750-575, Sale of Iltems or Services to Physicians and Other
Potential Referral Sources

6. Administrative Policy Manual #8750-576, Controls and Monitoring of Payments to
Physicians or Other Referral Sources

7. Administrative Policy Manual #8750-580, Physician and Allied Health Professional Service
Contracts

F. REFERENCES:
1. 42 U.S.C. Sections 139nn (Physician Self-Referral Law or Stark Law)
2. 42 U.S.C. Section 1320a-7b (Federal Anti-Kickback Law)
3. 42 CFR Sections 411.350 et. seq.
4 42 CFR Sections 1001.952.

176



swawdy
910z/61/5 A A SI/91/TI u221319A spioay _no_voEru:eU ‘uosdwoy ], ayeaossy ssausng PZ60E LO0T YSL1 ], ‘BUI0dIY
w1y
gtoz/et/s| N N szt | stowiset vopensumupy|  QUABM WSND|  sooiaisg oo pofeuewDIO1 12201 ss0.) anjg wayiuy
sjuswaaady
9roz/6T/S| A A 19121 610Z/S1/10 — Y R L e swossy ssousng PS66Z L0 suoag.ang jo adaio) uvdLIOUIY
sawaiy
9t0z/6T/S| A A SUETl useIS1oAg mwepsoupa|  PIABQ “ouueg swnossy somsng PS99T LOO1 auj ‘Su[uaHoIg PIUTAPY
groz/6t/s| N N s1o1zl | 690u1€/T1 wonensumupy|  SUAZM TBIUM|  oswomy owsa e DOS12°0201 D17 KM BISIA 000F
wauauly
stoz/er/s| N N szl | Lioweo/io i s dcng|  ATBIAL PUOWIBIA|  osopony sweminbaPY66T L00T -auj ‘g sumrz
oroz/6r/s| N N suzzl | 9towelsso coomosoy munyy| 49T Ap9adgl|  woussity sanesDLO6T LOOI 017 ‘9Briuvapy Supiopm
wawaaIly
ot0z/61/s| A A szl | 91020690 | sownduon pue sl I8N UBNBUBABD| ooy euorssyos PYEET LOOT -uj ‘uoyEByr] uIIM
910Z/61/S| N N Suf
S1/p/C] 9107/0£/90 SuusomSug Fwppng SIIUD ‘DISMOYINIA] wousary sooangDOLPT LOOT|  ‘Tludoji[e)) jo Jududdeue]yl 31Sepm
ot0z/6T/S| A A ST L10T/0€/90 wauafeuuyy asvo| 1103 ‘@uc)sBUIAIY wouaifly s9os90TE LOOT “2uf ‘YIEIH AJIAIA
otoe/et/s| A A siiel | 910zo1/60 vopensupy|  TWBE UOSIVANA | yowsaiiy sowsPLTELOO] QUL VHA
N N
oroz/61/5 supzl | 910u1g/01 g oo Addng| _ SEWIOY L, 91001 Susegaing dnosp DEIET LOOT Ul VHA
A A
9102/61/5 svzzt | stousumo owng| 9IS WIRIA|  wowsasty sowas| D508'L00! su] ‘032197
910Z/61/S N N o Mo o |
SI/p/T) 9102/0£/90 Fuusoudug Gmppng| WA “UINYIN] Jwousasdty sooarag PTLST LOO] ‘suonnjog [CHUYIA ], S CIJ0dA
910¢Z/61/S A A
\ / S1/91/T1 910¢/L1/01 swaisdg voneuuopuy|  [PIUIBEQ ‘ZaunIBIA] w2y asuaary| IC8ELOO01 pajesodaodug Juspap
9T0¢/6T/S A A
/61/ [1¥1714" 910T/11/11 sumisks uonensoguy|  [PIUEQ “ZIUNIBIA] | uowsaify searasag yneaP8TIT LOOT -auj sdnjsuoneay panjeA
910¢/61/S N N
/61/ SU/T/T U331319AY soonosay vewny|  SOYIST ‘Ala2adg swzaifly soaasgPSET 1201 *2Ul ‘SIINAIDG 2IEINYI[BIY pINuU(]
910¢/61/S N N Juauasdy
/61/ S191/T1 S10T/1¢/T1 vopensunupy|  gnde)] ‘Aaquo) aaiag jeuossayoig PDESTE LOOI uJ ‘Sunnsuo) HISL
9102/61/S N N
/ SITh 9107/90/¥0 oneanpy Apeyf ‘ddoj, wauaify asw PTOTE°L001 Juf SONA[EUY [EIH UIANIY,
9t0z/61/S| N N )
S1/v/C1 810T/10/10 uotepunoy U “aByMaN wawsasfy saesPI1LT LOOT uonepunoy jeydsogy A)-Li],
9t0z/6T/S| N N
S1/T/T1 S10T/1£/C1 9210059y wBLINY auind) ‘1Y wawaify saoaesPLI6T LO0T U ‘sanrendy av-IdL
9102/6T/S N N .
Siv/el 910T/91/21 Suusautiug Suppng PLYD ‘PISMOYIIN owsaify o1 PYLIT LOOT U "g*M) AUBLL
9t0T/6T/S| N N .
S1/€/T1 L10T/1E/TT aawenduto) pue efa 1D ‘MEBYS-pIuUIg wawsasy saamiag| D0VL LOOT suj ‘raSeuepoea],
910Z/61/S| N N
S1/2/C1 2218104 5301053y Wewny uuing) ‘R[qy wowaaify s PDELST'LOOT IT1 “IMSUL HI0p Y |,
9102/61/S N N . w2y
S1/2/T1 L10T/L0/10 soomosay weumy|  JIYISH ‘Al1aadg o1 jeuorssayoag D1 1ZE°L001 -uj ‘Aueduio)) £3[32.10) Ay
910Z/61/S| N N .
ST/L1/TL 910¢/82/20 Aoeuireyd uoy, w:e: usunaify saatangDSTLT LOOT auj .«mh_ar—.
910¢2/61/S N N Woup3Iy|
S1/€/T1 6107/0€/11 KoeuLreyg o, ‘Buoy aseyoang swawdimbg DT1TE LOOT uj sAjey,
SNOLLYNTVA3 LIVHINOD T¥IINITI-NON P
10z ‘Ae ) /sansst Jolely ‘¢ ‘I|GBAJ0SDI/SANSSI > WIB| 'E
9 10141810 JUv. V3iH ALD-IH1L 3]0eA|0S31/5aNSS] JOUI *( SION ‘T

177



910T ‘A€

OHON\m.ﬁ\m A A s3Iy
Ss1/91/¢1 usaI13iang sunisg uoneuucyup|  [PIUE(Q ‘ZounIB awmossy ssomsng| DEL6°L001 ] SWSAS yuduwodeuvjy] (PN 1dD
supwdy|
m.—”ON\mH\m N N S1/91/¢t 910Z/£0/90 iy wey) Aiddng]  SBWOY, ‘aI00JAl amwossy ssousng DLIL T TTO1 au] ‘saidojouydd L, UdD
9T0Z/61/S| N N — U] HAOMIBN
S1/91/21 9102/1€/01 amypofeumpy]  QUABAL WBW |  soaniag amp patewsyPS 12171201 [EuonEN 2187 eIy Anudae)
910Z/61/S| A A — Auvdwo)
S1/Z/T1 9102/0€/90 amgy pofewepy|  QUARAA WS | soamiag orep poTewmn D6 11201 | 9ouBARSU] 2317 [EIAUID JNINIIUUC)
sawIdy
otoz/61/S| A A ST u2a1319Ag] sunisk vopmmoyyy| [PIUEQ ‘ZOUNIEI smaossy sowsngP8SSZ'L001| DT ‘suennjog aar) pajpouuo)
9T0Z/61/S| N N SIOIZI | 8102/10/40 ssamosy wewnpy|  1OUIST ‘A119AG | wwoumasty wouskorda PTLTE LOOI Wredupy Aue)
paojpue s
oroz/6r/s| N N siovzt | 91021610 | woudoproq susng|  aukeAn 9B freudsors sy swrsg o DOVEE'L001 [ “3u1 ‘YD [suopuIzug s131110)
plojpue] se
910z/61/S| N N st | stozieno wouwdoprog ssoumsng|  FUATAN WBID [rendso :osva sz ey P IPEE 9001 2uj ‘y) [EUONTIIU] SII110D
S A A swowRaIiy
gtoz/et/ sivzt | 9tozeweo yorasoy wonmp]  PHBUJ “1aAImg aiepossy sousng DSEEE LO0I Juj ‘Japanyg 7p urwPo)
suawRIfy
910/61/S A A S/l us1810AY swiorsA uoyeuuopuy| [ATUB( ZIUNIIA] swmossy ssausng D968T LOOT -auj ‘swaysAg [ejrdsoyy adtoy)
9T0¢/61/S N N
S1/91/21 910T/L1/v0 wowdopasq ssousng|  AWRIAL ‘ownrey psoq weipPY101°L001] Auedwo) asueansu apny, odesryy
A sjuawaafy
910Z/61/5 A STt u221819A7 sura1sg vonennoguy|  PIIB( ‘ZoUBIBIA] stemossy ssamsng DESTT LOOT uoneiodio) suUI)
910¢/61/S N N uawaaidy
/6t/ S1/91/T1 L10T/10/11 arp pafeumy|  QUABM WEND|  soinng areg pafewey PSS 117 LOOT ueld YIeaH Is[2ae)
910z/61/S| N N
S1/91/C1 910T/LT/SO 2oueun| 941G ‘UINAIA| yowsasiy AenuapyuonPZTE1LO0T| D171 SIIAIAG [EdDUBULY Julod 218D
9102/61/S A A spowsaify «OSdHD,, UonEzZINEsIQ
(074! usaudiang wounfeueyy ysry FPACIAl “YSneueae) awmossy ssomsng PIETE°L001|  A10ges Juaney jendsoy sruiope)
910z/6T/S| N N suonTpPy
S191/C1 32131945 s34g qeop sokoidur|  APMY ‘WN[RISED! snooveaasin swaynianDEV6T L001 | 1E11ISHPU] Jo Juaunaedaq vinto)ie)
9107/61/S| N N J— Jnysu]
siot/et u31312A5 sy wey) Aiddng|  SBIUOY], “9100]q awossy ssamsngP 1111201 T3l dHqug ‘suonnjog 19N/
9toz/6T/s| N N .
Si/9l/ct TT0T/LO/LO somenduron pe eS|  1IYISH ‘Apreadg|  jwoumarfy wowspiogPOTST LOOT YHPIIIA ‘Sooag
9102/6T/S| N N —— TIONEII0SSY
S1/91/21 32131947 Adessyy Eshyg| UK WBNDY | wowss amy pateusy DOSIT LOOT PIRIYS anjg pue sso1) anjg
9102/6T/S| N N —— UONEII0SSY
szl uosasBiong soompg afoieng|  BAIPUY ‘U0RG|  woniss amp poteweyPTLET'LOO] PIRIYS anjg pur sso1) anjg
9102/6T/S| N N .
S1/91/T1 u001319A7 $30IN0S9Y uRWINE 9A2)Q ‘UINAIA|  juowsasdy wowkodwz P8I6T LOOT sy ‘Ajadaag
910z/6T/S| N N ‘
S1/91/T1 8107/10/L0 soamosoy wewnyy|  JAYISH “A[H3AG | wowsardy weuwkorduz D 1LTELOOT ajk13y) ‘Mmuyg-paEwLIag
9102/61/S N N
S1/91/T1 43181947 UoHENSIWPY NS ‘UINRNIA|  woumaiy yuswkodug PFSTT LOOT plae( ‘pouuag
9t0z/61T/S| N N
S1/e/Cl1 9102/02/90 aouein seARy Avy pred jennuwoyDEOST LOOT 1S90 243 JO yueg
9102/61/S N N Wausay|
S1/2/C1 910¢/81/90 soomosoy wewnyy|  JAVIST ‘Ala2adg aansag feuoissayorg PYSTE L0 U ‘SIINAIIG [EIIPIA] YI2IISY

SNOLLYNTVAI LDVYLNOI TVIINITI-NON

LO1U1SIA UV

V3IH ALD-RL

21euIwIsl/a|qeajosaiun/sanss| Jole G 3jqeAjosal
/sanss| Jole "t ‘9|qeAj0S4/SBNSST 317 WA €

3(BAJ0S/SINSS] JOUIIA * SION ‘T

178



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 28, 2016 ~ 1:30 o’clock p.m.
Classroom 6 — Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at the
location noted above at Tri-City Medical Center, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, California at
1:30 p.m. on April 28, 2016.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present:

Director James Dagostino, DPT, PT
Director Ramona Finnila

Director Cyril F. Kellett, MD
Director Laura E. Mitchell

Director Julie Nygaard

Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry Schallock

Also present were:

Greg Moser, General Legal Counsel

Steve Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer

Kapua Conley, Chief Operating Officer

Cheryle Bernard-Shaw, Chief Compliance Officer
Norma Braun, Chief Human Resource Officer
Esther Beverly, VP/Human Resources

Ray Rivas, Acting Chief Financial Officer

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

Richard Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

1.

The Board Chairman, Director Dagostino called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. in
Classroom 6 of the Eugene L. Geil Pavilion at Tri-City Medical Center with attendance
as listed above.

Approval of Agenda

General Counsel Mr. Moser suggested the following addition to the closed session
portion of the agenda:

> Existing Litigation: TCHD vs. Burlew - Case No. 37-2014-00034015-CU-NP-
NC.

It was moved by Director Kellett to approve the agenda as amended. Director
Finnila seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Public Comments — Announcement

179



Chairman Dagostino read the Public Comments section listed on the April 28, 2016
Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda.

There were no public comments.
4, Oral Announcement of items to be discussed during Closed Session

Chairman Dagostino deferred this item to the Board’s General Counsel. General
Counsel, Mr. Greg Moser made an oral announcement of the items listed on the April
28, 2016 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda to be discussed during Closed
Session which included Conference with Labor Negotiators; Hearings on Reports of
the Hospital Medical Audit or Quality Assurance Committees; one Report Involving
Trade Secrets; Conference with Legal Counsel regarding six (6) matters of Existing
Litigation; five matters of Potential Litigation; Public Employee Evaluation: Chief
Compliance Officer; and Approval of Closed Session Minutes.

5. Motion to go into Closed Session

It was moved by Director Kellett and seconded by Director Finnila to go into
closed session at 1:35 p.m. The motion passed unanimously (7-0).

6. The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 1:35 p.m.

8. At 3:35 p.m. in Assembly Rooms 1, 2 and 3, Chairman Dagostino announced that the
Board was back in Open Session.

The following Board members were present:

Director James Dagostino, DPT, PT
Director Ramona Finnila

Director Cyril F. Kellett, MD
Director Laura E. Mitchell

Director Julie Nygaard

Director RoseMarie V. Reno
Director Larry W. Schallock

Also present were:

Greg Moser, General Legal Counsel

Steve Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer

Kapua Conley, Chief Operations Officer

Ray Rivas, Acting Chief Financial Officer

Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

Norma Braun, Chief Human Resource Officer
Cheryle Bernard-Shaw, Chief Compliance Officer
Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

Richard Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

9. Chairman Dagostino reported the Board unanimously approved and agrees with the
terms of the SEIU contract subject to employee ratification.

10. Director Reno led the Pledge of Allegiance.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 2- April 28, 2016

180



11.

12.

13.

Chairman Dagostino read the Public Comments section of the Agenda, noting
members of the public may speak immediately following Agenda Item Number 24,

Community Update — Sharon Schultz

Ms. Sharon Schultz, CNE reported Tri-City Medical Center earned its sixth
successive “A" grade in the national Hospital Safety Score ratings program (Leap
Frog) recognizing its exceptional patient safety record. She explained the Hospital
Safety Score is the gold standard rating for patient safety, compiled under the
guidance of the nation’s leading patient safety experts and administered by the Leap
Frog Group, a national patient safety watchdog. She further explained that Leap Frog
is a group made up of hospitals and insurers that began 15 years ago to help people
make their choices for their patient needs based on patient outcomes. ltis a
nonprofit “watch dog” group that collects, analyze and disseminates information to the
public to help them make those decisions. Ms. Schultz stated there are only 1,700
hospitals in the nation that disclose their information to Leap Frog and in California
only 123 out of 355 hospitals allow this transparency and data sharing.

Ms. Schultz briefly reviewed some of the things that were important in receiving our
“A” rating including 24/7 coverage in our ICU by intensivists. Additionally, with
respect to mother/baby care we have decreased our C-section rates as well as the
number of babies delivering before 39 weeks which makes the baby healthier and
their brains and lungs are much stronger. Ms. Schultz stated we have also cut down
on the number of infections and injuries to our patients. Ms. Schultz stated Tri-City
takes prevention very seriously and this is reflected by our “A” rating. She explained
that all of our preventive efforts that we take help to move our patients through a safe
passage in our hospital. Ms. Schultz stated our readmission and surgery infection
rates are very low, along with a low complication rate.

Ms. Schultz stated we are thrilled to have received this award and she expressed her
appreciation to our team of physicians, nurses and Allied Health Professionals that
helped us achieve this rating.

Ms. Schultz reported Saturday morning is the 15™ annual NAMI walk at Liberty
Station in Point Loma. Ms. Schultz explained NAMI is the National Alliance for Mental
liiness and they help to raise funds for education, support and provide a hot line not
only for patients that are afflicted with the illness but also for the families of those
patients who need help and support. Ms. Schultz stated if you are unable to walk on
Saturday you may still make a donation.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, Director Schallock congratulated the nurses,
physicians and administration for their efforts in providing quality of care for the
patients every hour of every day.

No action taken.

Report from TCHD Auxiliary — Pat Morocco, First Vice President

Mr. Pat Morocco, First Vice President presented the TCHD Auxiliary report on behalf
of Ms. Sandy Tucker, Auxiliary President.

Mr. Morocco reported the following:

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 3- April 28, 2016

181



15.

16.

» 89 Scholarships have been granted to 48 students at Mira Costa College, 31
students at Palomar College and 10 Junior Volunteers at various high schools
for a total amount of $67,500;

» 26 staff nurses and three therapists received financial aid to increase their
professional knowledge through a scholarship committee established this year
for nurses and therapists;

» The third annual Tails on the Trails Walk-a-Thon is scheduled for May 21°
from 9:00 a.m. — 1:00 p.m. at Mance Buchanon Municipal Park in Oceanside.

Mr. Morocco introduced Ms. Mary Gleisberg and her pet therapy dog Prince. Ms.
Gleisberg encouraged everyone to come out and walk on May 21* and noted
proceeds will benefit the Auxiliary Pet Therapy Department and the Oceanside Police
Department K-9 unit.

Ms. Gleisberg reported tomorrow, April 29" is Pet Therapy Day and is an opportunity
for us to honor all pet therapy dogs across the country. She stated there will be
special activities in the lobby tomorrow to recognize our five pet therapy dogs from
10:00 a.m. — 2:00 p.m.

Lastly, Mr. Morocco expressed his appreciation on behalf of all of the volunteers to the
Medical Center for hosting the Auxiliary Appreciation Luncheon, recognizing more than
500 volunteers servicing this fine organization.

No action was taken.
Report from Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Steve Dietlin, CEO echoed Ms. Schultz's comments related to the hospital’s Leap
Frog Patient Safety “A”. Mr. Dietlin stated the Tri-City Medical Center's Values
Statement reads “the needs of our patients come first” which is reflected by our recent
“A” rating. He noted this is the hospital’'s sixth consecutive patient safety “A” rating by
Leap Frog. Mr. Dietlin stated this award cannot be celebrated enough and is
attributed to the efforts of our staff and physicians.

Mr. Dietlin stated he is pleased that the District has reached a tentative agreement
with SEIU pending ratification from the employees. He noted the ratification votes are
scheduled for next week.

Mr. Dietlin reported the final Strategic Planning session was held with the Board on
April 12™ and those initiatives will be folded into a detailed budget which will then be
presented to the Board in June for FY2017.

Mr. Dietlin reported we are continuing to work with the county on the Crisis
Stabilization Unit.

Lastly, Mr. Dietlin reported we will be reporting monthly on the Campus
Redevelopment Plan.

No action was taken.

Report from Acting Chief Financial Officer

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 4- April 28, 2016

182



Mr. Rivas reported on the first nine months of FY 2016 as follows (Dollars in

Thousands):

» Operating Revenue — $249,504

» Operating Expense — $252,046

» EROE - ($496)

» EROE Excl. Settlement - $1,582

» EBITDA -$10,252

> EBITDA Excl. Settlement - $12,330

Other Key Indicators for the current year driving those results included the following:

Average Daily Census — 192
Adjusted Patient Days — 85,170
Surgery Cases — 4,813
Deliveries - 1,968

ED visits — 49,827

VVVVY

Director Reno requested clarification on the meaning of the hyphen in the % Variance
column. Mr. Rivas stated the hyphen signifies that the results are unfavorable to
budget.

Mr. Rivas reported on the following indicators for FY16 Average:

> Net Patient Accounts Receivable - $41.5
> Days in Net Accounts Receivable — 47.7

Mr. Rivas also reported on the current month financials as follows: (Dollars in
Thousands):

» Net Operating Revenue — $28,649
» Operating Expense — $29,323

> EROE -($220)

> EBITDA -$1,019

Current Month Key Indicators were reported as follows:

» AVG Daily Census — 187

» Adjusted Patient Days — 9,550
> Surgery Cases — 563

> Deliveries — 209

» ED Visits - 5,714

Mr. Rivas presented a slide reflective of Payor Mix Fiscal Year to Date which reflected
the following breakdown:

HMO/PPO/Commercial — 30.5%
Self Pay — 0.8%

Covered California - 2.9%
Other - 7.6%

Capitated Senior — 4.7%
Medi-Cal - 16.4%

Medicare — 37.1%

VVVVVVY

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 5- April 28, 2016

183



Mr. Rivas presented graphs which reflected trends in Net Days in Patient Accounts
Receivable, Average Daily Census excluding Newborns, Adjusted Patient Days, and
Emergency Department Visits.

Mr. Rivas noted without the OIG settlement we would have broke even for the month.
No action was taken.
16. New Business

a. Consideration to approve Resolution 777, a Resolution of the Board of Directors
of Tri-City Healthcare District Authorizing Issuance, Execution and Delivery of
Replacement Term Notes and Related Documents under Amended Credit
Agreement, and Certain Other Actions Related Thereto

It was moved by Director Nygaard to approve Resolution 777, a Resolution
of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District Authorizing
Issuance, Execution and Delivery of Replacement Term Notes and Related
Documents under Amended Credit Agreement, and Certain Other Actions
Related Thereto. Director Finnila seconded the motion.

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

b. Approval of a recruitment agreement with Dr. Aaron Boonjindasup, Urologist and
North Coast Urology

It was moved by Director Schallock that the TCHD Board of Directors find it
in the best interest of the public health of the communities served by the
District to approve the Physician Recruitment Agreement with Dr. Aaron
Boonjindasup and North County Urology, not to exceed $430,000 and a one-
year income guarantee in order to facilitate this Urology physician practicing
medicine in the communities served by the District. Director Nygaard
seconded the motion.

Mr. Wayne Knight, Chief Strategy Officer stated Dr. Boonjindasup is a urology
resident who will arrive in September. He stated our trusted colleagues Drs.
Frasier and Guerena have vetted Dr. Boonjindasup on our behalf and support the
recruitment. Mr. Knight stated we have already placed two physicians in this
group, Drs. Jason Phillips and Caroline Vilchis (Colangelo). He noted Dr.
Colangelo plans to cut back on her practice to raise a family following the five year
income guarantee and Dr. Boonjindasup will step in and fill this gap.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors:  Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 6- April 28, 2016

184



ABSENT: Directors: None

c. Approval of a recruitment agreement with Dr. B. David Badiee, Family Medicine
Practitioner

It was moved by Director Reno that the TCHD Board of Directors find it in the
best interest of the public health of the communities served by the District to
approve the Physician Recruitment Agreement with Dr. B. David Badiee, not
to exceed $595,000 over two years (not to exceed a two-year income
guarantee) to facilitate this Family Practice physician practicing medicine in
the communities served by the District. Director Kellett seconded the
motion.

Mr. Wayne Knight stated Dr. Badiee is a Family Practice Board Certified physician
who is interested in setting up practice as a solo practitioner in the Wellness
Center Medical Office Building. Mr. Knight stated that ultimately Dr. Badiee would
like to bring in a partner however will start out as a solo practitioner. Mr. Knight
stated primary care is the beginning of all patient care and to place a primary care
physician in the Wellness Center's Medical Office Building is a tremendous
opportunity.

Chairman Dagostino stated the recruitment agreements reflect the District’s plan to
attract physicians.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

17. Old Business
Report from Ad Hoc Commiittee on electronic Board Portal

Director Mitchell reported a demonstration on the Board Portal is scheduled for May
19™. She clarified that we are still in the preliminary stages and paper is still a viable
option. Director Reno expressed her concern with the public's access to the
information. Director Schallock stated the entire agenda packet is currently available
to the public on the District's website and will continue to be made available. He
explained that not all documents will migrate electronically and paper documents will
continue to be provided at the back table.

No action taken.
18. Chief of Staff
a. Consideration of April 2016 Credentialing Actions involving the Medical Staff as

recommended by the Medical Executive Committee at their meeting on April 25,
2016.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 7-

April 28, 2016

185



It was moved by Director Finnila to approve the April 2016 New
Appointment Credentialing Actions Involving the Medical Staff, as
recommended by the Medical Executive Committee at their meeting on
April 25, 2016. Director Reno seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

b. Consideration of Recredentialing Actions involving the Medical Staff as
recommended by the Medical Executive Committee at their meeting on April 25,
2016.

It was moved by Director Kellett to approve the April Recredentialing
Actions involving the Medical Staff as recommended by the Medical
Executive Committee at their meeting on April 25, 2016. Director Reno
seconded the motion.

Chairman Dagostino stated the credentialing actions go through a rigorous
process to ensure we have excellent competent staff.

Dr. Gene Ma, Chief of Staff reported many UCSD physicians are going
through our credentialing process and when credentialed will help fill some of
the gaps to assist in the District’s legacy plan to put our patients first.

Dr. Ma expressed his appreciation to the Auxilians for all the great work they
do. He commented on their support of the youth of tomorrow through their
generous scholarships.

Dr. Ma also commented on our Leap Frog Patient Safety “A” rating award. He
stated there has been a dramatic shift and he is proud and privileged to serve
at this institution.

Lastly, Dr. Ma highlighted the Foundation and their generous support. He
noted the CT 512 scanner will dramatically impact patient care by reducing the
amount of radiation a patient receives.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

19. Consent Calendar

It was moved by Director Nygaard to approve the Consent Calendar.
Director Finnila seconded the motion.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 8- April 28, 2016

186



It was moved by Director Finnila to pull item 19 D. 1 related to an agreement
with Melrose Plaza Complex. Director Kellett seconded the motion.

The vote on the main motion minus the items pulled was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard,
and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: Reno
ABSENT: Directors: None

The vote on the main motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard,
and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: Reno
ABSENT: Directors: None

20. Discussion of items pulled from Consent Agenda

Director Finnila who pulled item 19 D. 1) related to an agreement with Melrose Plaza
Complex suggested the motion include the purpose which is for our Outpatient
Behavioral Health.

It was moved by Director Finnila to approve an agreement with Melrose Plaza
Complex, L.P., lease of Suites 501 and 510 for a term of 60 months, beginning
July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2021 for an annual cost of $121,212.12 (years
1-3); $124,794.48 (year 4) and $128,484.36 (year 5) which includes
150.00/month for prorated gas and electric for Suite 501, with a total cost for
the five year term of $616,915.20. Director Nygaard seconded the motion.

It was moved by Director Schallock to amend the motion to approve an
agreement with Melrose Plaza Complex, L.P. for the purpose of Outpatient
Behavioral Health, lease of Suites 501 and 510 for a term of 60 months,
beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2021 for an annual cost of
$121,212.12 (years 1-3); $124,794.48 (year 4) and $128,484.36 (year 5)
which includes $150.00/month for prorated gas and electric for Suite 501,
with a total cost for the five year term of $616,915.20. Director Finnila
seconded the motion.

The vote on the main motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: = Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

The vote on the amended motion was as follows:

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting April 28, 2016

187



21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard,
Reno and Schallock

NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None

ABSENT: Directors: None

Reports (Discussion by exception only)
Legislative Update

Chairman Dagostino reported the Design Build Legislation Bill has passed out of the
Senate and will be debated in the Assembly and will hopefully be signed by the
Governor In August or September. He explained the Bill, if passed, will allow
hospitals to use the design build concept which the District is planning to use to build
out our institution. Design Build is a very efficient concept and method of construction
that allows the most economic use of your money while keeping costs down.

Director Finnila suggested the Board prepare a letter of support before the Bill is
debated in the Assembly. Director Nygaard stated she will also advocate on behalf of
the District at next week's ACHD’s Annual Meeting in Monterey, CA. Chairman
Dagostino indicated he would send a letter to the author of the Bill, Senator Huesso
on behalf of the Board.

Comments by members of the Public

There were no commented by members of the public.
Additional Comments by Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Dietlin did not have any additional comments.
Board Communications

Director Schallock stated Drug Take Back day is scheduled for this Saturday, May 1.
He encouraged everyone to drop off their unused and outdated medications on
Saturday afternoon in the Tri-City parking lot. He commented that at the last
Prescription Drug Take Back day, Tri-City took in approximately 850 pounds of drugs.
In addition, the Oceanside Police Department on Mission Avenue and Vista Sherriff's
station also has drop off boxes available on a routine basis.

Director Nygaard reported she missed the May Board meeting due to hip replacement
surgery that was performed on that day here at Tri-City. She expressed her
appreciation to the staff for the excellent care she received and noted less than a
month later she is walking without a cane. Director Nygaard stated Tri-City is truly “the
best hospital around”.

Director Nygaard read into the record information she recently shared with the Legal of
Women Voters as follow:

“Hospital districts have a much different type of governance and are unique in how we
do business.

We are elected and do receive funding. TCHD receives almost $8 million in tax
revenue. Most of that money is used for provndlng mdrgent care in our Emergency

TCHD Regular Board of Dlrectors Meetmg - 10- Aprll 28 2016

188



Room. We spend $6.5 million annually keeping our Emergency Department fully
staffed with an array of doctors on call for any emergency that might occur.

We support a number of charities. Last year the CHAC committee gave out $450,000
and tomorrow the Committee will make recommendations as to how we spend that
money this year.

The $8 million that we do receive in tax revenue is a small fraction of our operating
budget of approximately $356 million.

We are also the biggest employer in the City of Oceanside with over 2,200 employees.
We are a competitive business and other private hospitals do not operate by the same
rules that govern other public agencies. We are very transparent and sometimes it
makes it hard for us to compete. We all work very hard to make this the best hospital
around.

Our only shareholders are the people of this District. All the revenue that we receive
goes into providing the best doctors, best nurses and best equipment for our
constituents. Know that your tax dollars are being well spent and you are well cared
for. All of us on this board care about making this the hospital of choice for North
County.”

Director Mitchell reported she attended ACHD Legislative Days in Sacramento and
enjoyed her first visit to the State Capitol building. She stated she met with legislative
assistants and there was a particular emphasis on AB 2024 that allows for critical
access rural hospitals to directly hire physicians.

Director Mitchell reported she and Director Nygaard will be attending ACHD’s Annual
meeting next week in Monterey.

Lastly, Director Mitchell reported she will be attending TCHD’s Nurse’'s Week Award
Ceremony on Tuesday, May 10, 2016.

Director Reno congratulated all the employees and in particular Ms. Sharon Schultz,
CNE for their efforts in achieving the Leap Frog Patient Safety “A” Rating.

Director Reno also congratulated the Human Resources Department and
Administration for their efforts in finalizing the SEIU contract.

Lastly, Director Reno stated she believes in change and moving forward to bring this
hospital to a higher level of care, enhancing our patient care services and improving
access to care.

Director Finnila commented on the many projects that enhance patient care including
the new GE 512 Scanner and our recent Leap Frog Patient Safety “A” Rating. Director
Finnila also acknowledged the beautiful landscaping around the campus, the guitarist in
the lobby and the Valet who always has a cheery disposition. She stated the
Engineering Department continually strives to ensure things are working properly and
expressed her appreciation to the network here at the hospital that makes all these
things possible.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting

-11- April 28, 2016

189



Director Kellett expressed his appreciation to Administration for resolution of the SEIU
contract and encouraged employees to support the generous contract and ratify the
agreement next week.

Director Kellett reiterated comments related to the Leap Frog Patient Safety “A” Rating,
stating it demonstrates the value of care by our staff and physicians.

26. Report from Chairperson
Chairman Dagostino reiterated fellow Board member comments related to our Leap
Frog Patient Safety “A” Rating and resolution of the SEIU contract. On behalf of the
Board of Directors, Chairman Dagostino expressed his appreciation to all for a job well
done.

27. Oral Announcement of Items to be Discussion in Closed Session

Chairman Dagostino reported the Board would be returning to Closed Session to
complete unfinished closed session business.

28. Motion to return to Closed Session.
Chairman Dagostino adjourned the meeting to closed session at 4:28 p.m.
29. Open Session

At 7:35 p.m. Chairman Dagostino reported the Board was back in open session. All
Board members were present with the exception of Director Kellett.

30. Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session.
Chairperson Dagostino reported no action was taken in closed session.

31.  There being no further business Chairman Dagostino adjourned the meeting at 7:35
p.m.

James J Dagostino, DPT
Chairman
ATTEST:

Ramona Finnila, Secretary

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting

-12-

April 28, 2016

190



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

May 11, 2016 — 6:30 o’clock p.m.
Assembly Room 1 — Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at the
location noted above at 4002 Vista Way at 3:00 p.m. on February 16, 2016.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present:

Director James J. Dagostino, DPT, PT

Director Cyril F. Kellett, MD

Director Ramona Finnila

Director Laura E. Mitchell

Director Julie Nygaard (via teleconference)
Director RoseMarie V. Reno (via teleconference)
Director Larry W. Schallock

Also present were:

Steve Dietlin, Chief Executive Officer

Sharon Schultz, Chief Nurse Executive

Cheryle Bernard-Shaw, Chief Compliance Officer
Jody Root, General Legal Counsel

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

Rick Crooks, Executive Protection Agent

1.

The Board Chairman, Director Dagostino called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in
Assembly Room 1 of the Eugene L. Geil Pavilion at Tri-City Medical Center with
attendance as listed above. Director Dagostino led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Approval of Agenda

It was moved by Director Finnila and seconded by Director Kellett to approve the
agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously (7-0) with Directors
Nygaard and Reno participating via teleconference.

Public Comments — Announcement

Chairman Dagostino read the Public Comments section listed on the Board Agenda.
There were no public comments.

Oral Announcement of ltems to be discussed during Closed Session

Chairman Dagostino deferred this item to the Board’s General Counsel. General
Counsel, Mr. Root, made an oral announcement of items listed on the May 11, 2016
Special Board of Directors Meeting Agenda to be discussed during Closed Session
which included Conference with Legal Counsel on one matter of Potential Litigation and
one matter of Existing Litigation.

Motion to go into Closed Session

191



It was moved by Director Finnila and seconded by Director Kellett
to go into Closed Session. The motion passed unanimously (7-0) by a roll call
vote with Directors Nygaard and Reno participating via teleconference.

8. Chairman Dagostino adjourned the meeting to Closed Session at 6:35 p.m.
9. The Board returned to Open Session at 7:48 p.m. with attendance as listed above.
10. Report from Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session.

Chairman Dagostino reported no action was taken in Closed Session.

11. Consideration to approve documents related to the assignment of the Emergency
Department Physician’s Agreement.

It was moved by Director Finnila to authorize the CEO to take whatever actions
necessary to execute the Consent to Assignment and Amendment of the
Emergency Medicine Physician Agreement, Consent to Assignment and
Amendment related to the Residency Agreement and the Emergency Department
Consent and Waiver Agreement based on terms substantially presented,
contingent on the close of the Assignment transaction between Tri-City
Emergency Medical Group and Team Physicians of Southern California. Director
Kellett seconded the motion.

The vote on the roll call motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Dagostino, Finnila, Kellett, Mitchell, Nygaard
(via teleconference), Reno (via teleconference)
and Schallock

NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None

ABSENT: Directors: None

13- There being no further business, Chairman Dagostino adjourned the meeting at 7:50

p.m.
James J. Dagostino, PT, DPT
Chairman
ATTEST:
Ramona Finnila
Secretary
TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting -2- May 11, 2016

192



0T jO T 98ed - saouaadxy Jap|oyaye1s

€0 2 1 o €@ < I o 0 W 1

€0 W o €@ < I ¥ € W D
’ : : - . - . - SYIAd -VTM - PIAd
9T -9TA -9TA ST “STM -STAd CSTAd CWIA %0 -9TAJ -9TAd -9TAd -STAd -STAd -STAd -STAd -PIAd -bIAd -VIAd - DIAd

%0
- %T
b %z

() —

_.. et
I I wz w_. _m

%E
%y

- %S
%9
%L

%8
%6

01-6 PI0IG —iT= BUBY 3[1IUIID =t

(0T-0) 1edsoHy jo Suney ||esdn0 7

SWaIsAS 1 SISPIN0LG 3IDIPDIH fO JUIUSSISSY JAWNSUO) [DYASOH

(®109s xog doL) SIHVIH

NOA sos

FIVO HLVIH QIDNVAQY

193



‘suoljuaniajul

upjs -3UaWINJ0P AjUBISISUOI JsNLW saul(diasIp
|V ‘uonejuawniop uoidwieyd paseq Jun

e Aq 23s — a2e|d U] SUOIUBAIBIU| DALY 0} SPI3U
97T uey) 553 uapesg e yum sid |y’suoidweyd
punom paseq jjun pjing pue id 3as

01 5,NJOM PaaN {paxy aq Isnw jey) wajqoud
walsAs ‘awiny ‘sauyy ‘aels ayy o0} ajqenodal + §

uejd LUOIIY

0T 40 7 39ed - sHeyduUNY NdvH-lIed

%00

wesSo.d JaNIS 33t SASEAY MaN ‘WaISAS
UOIUIARL (|4 SSa[a1m maN ‘Wy3I| J|ed e yum
wiooy 3sed yjem YIAIN -2u0Z ssed ON ‘NY pue
juaned Aq pausis pue pamainal -ueld A1sjes
AN -UOIUDARL B4 10} Buuiauned, ‘ANIqISIA

uejd uondy

%S0

* %0'T
r
L

— > S - SEE— ¢ GEEE  Eme e s S D § 0 G G ¢ G e R SEEED. 0 e ¢ Cemmm oMM GENSS o SGMEEDmem ¢ S DS Semmmm 0 S SHIT 00 S o mmm— ewm S

%S'T

sagieyasig 0T 42d +|1 98€1s 123)n 2inssaid painboy |endsoH asnoH-ul %0'e

Apwey pue juagied a3eanp3

Isisse

yum yg 03 jejnquie o} ajgeun i ajqepiee
apowwod e ayep ‘Sunamoys /Sunajioy Suunp
sauny jje 3e syuaied ysK yBiy yum uleway
‘51n0Y 9-p AIaAa 1sea| 1e 13|10} 0} PAISISSE YSU

W ‘s, d€ Buisn Suipunod Alnoy :10§1d 8uniajiol

uejd uoIYy

PHIBIJNDL === =

-~ sheq uaned 000t 42d Ainfu] yum sjjeq apiw eudsoy
Jallagd
> N o o & S R > S o )
& s L &S 3 R & P L ¥ & & »
T Al P PP PP A A A A

. . . . . , . . , , . . . . . N i g

T

z

3

14

- sAeq juaned oot Jad sjjed apim jendsoy E
12119

ueap

218y DINDL

UBSAI YD = m = o=

194



0T Jo € a8ed - sHeyDUNY 340D

> & D O P & & 5 P & O L @ &S 5
S TS ST TSN ST TS T S

*UOJIBIUBWINIOP PIlewilo) pue s3asf o y : o
J13p1Q sisdag jo uopeziiin pue g3 uo 3uisnioy 0
Ajjuaiina asiopjse] Jusawadeue s1sdas ‘%05> vo
WIUoI 224N0S |euotieu 3ng 12A uostiedwod 50
paysiiqnd o ‘apim-uocijeu 353|(eyd panuiuo) ) o0

uejd uoijoy. @ »}oys das/sisdas alanas ‘@jpung juawadeue Alue3 I

N N P S TR WP P N
RN A SR ST T S SR - A AR O S

-1e9A 3UO < 10§ 81035 1a43d A[3U31SISUC)

uejd UoKIY

‘MO{|04 03 UONEINPD

JBIS "S1UaWa|3 uipewno) pasnbai payues pauasul 0
PUE 3AIINIU| BJOW 3q 03 UONIEIO| LoIIeIUBWINIoP 80
uo|1eINpa 3y} paduelleal sey 3a10pjse] ‘%00T 01 yoeq 60

. T

uejd uondy

195

‘uoneonpa

pue uoi3ugodal Aq paxiy MoN ‘SulJaAl3p INOYIM
SWOY JUIS USYM PasSIW 313M OS WNLed 1S0d

Ul pauaa.ds Sulaq 31am SIaYlo “pasiedad aunjiey

SL0
80
S8°0
60

S6'0

ssa204d Jua33y ‘3384e] 3yl SA0qe A[Jua1sIsuc)

uejd uonoy uoeZIUNWIW] BZUSNU|

UBDIN  ererrmeeeromsesenes 21ey DL



y43(3 Say pug Wa1sIsUoI spasu afels) weaj -
Apeal) paq uaym podsuesy juaned anordwi
03 Buy3 paau j|ns suonisod Japodsuel] a3 -

:sueyd Juawanosduy

uejd uonay

dn Juam sajed Japieog g3 -
spaq d| 4o} sadua|jeyd Suiyess -
Aienugad uy snsuad yaiy -

:saduajjey)d Juan)

(3uaWaa IN3U YNM pPauIquIo))

uejd UoldY

‘%07 do] jeuoiieu ueyy 19113 AJualsisuo)

ue|d UolIY

‘suop Bujjjasuno)y

0T Jo ¥ 38ed - sueyduny a10)
» & O (o) 5 N & 53 2> D O O o 8 £ &)
R T it AU S SIS S N AP A i S S A S P e
AN A P P AP . A AT AT S IS E A A A S A TS A
0
00t
- 00z
00€
> & O O o) & & 5 2> Y O (o) - & A
& LN SRS ST SR F A S S P
PN I S~ - SR R AN S - SR - S-SR P AV S S A S
. . . . . . . . . _ A _ _ _ _ e e 0

Janag 973 01 3wn] uepa
> & 2 O & S S 2 > & O %
RSO AP O NP LK ® S N S & & P L ¥ & s
P P R P A I PP

"yiuow 31se| 3o |je} 3|Suls Jayje %OOT 01 ydeg

uejd uondYy

831l JNDL -

Jealy de uidsy

ueay

174

L0

60

196



‘uonejuasasd yemoys 1a

uejd:uoidy

‘uoneuasasd yemoys IQ

ue|d oY

0T 10 § @8ed - speyHUNY 310D

v Y
A

] -~ A ) o G \% ) & \] < U & ~ ~ &
AW S T Y T S

A \

i el o m— e —— e —  — h——— b —— e —n ——— - — e em— e e e ———

\J \d \% © S )
A Y

paieas] Suieg a10)ag a yuaned
» & L o & R S & 52 2> & L o H QA & & )
RS AP SO DY Y - S T AR SR N~ AR AN A CANN e RO AN SNP NP SN S .
I A T A IR B T U AR IS A S S S S S S A SO A
. EN JOURPINS SR, RASS———"

sjuaned a3 pasdieydsig Joj inyedag g3 0} [BALUY (T W4y 3w Uelpa

ueaj

:mm_>_<u_|.|.|.| .....

0

S0'0

10

0s

001

197




0T Jo 9 @3ed - Yymouo

3Wes i .._mmu a4 :1eaA Jolid 0] paJedwiod aduewloLad

ST 11 14 6 8 11 L €T (4 ot L ot STAd

ST _ L 9 i } m._”. L 6 11 8 i m 01 9 STAd

61¢ 0¢ 6T 6T 1c €1 6T 1z 81 {4 [44 6 14 STAd

sase) AJagung aulds Jnnoqoy Joze

12374 e LE SE 1€ SE 6€ 33 SE 114 514 [43 S€ STAd

sase) Auadung auidg

DWN|OA

3@»5 Lﬂcwu_mu_umséwzh &)
¥V HITVIH QIDONVAQY A &S

198



0T j0 £ 33ed - yimouo

awes FEREL] :1eaA Joud 01 pasedwod adueuofad

0'S6T 8'061 STAS
| vesT 6'€E8T

Sny ng

L'6L1 S'181 €981 0'881 8661 €°e0¢ 6'/81 681 9'561 1'961

(Day) snsua) Ajleq adesany - |eldsoH

SEl LT 6°tl 14 ST¢ 9t 99T 181 L'61 '8t Ay STAd

eor _. (EiET

(Dav) snsua) Ajleq adesany - (NDIN) HuN 248D SAISUILU| |EIBUOIN

v's _ 1T's 6'S 'S 59 09 0L L €y 0'S 17 St S STAd
~ - —— - TR 5T

{Dav) snsua) Ajleq a8esany - uunN qeyay anay

L0C 6'LT Sl 691 9'61 SLT €81 1’6l 8¢ [ T4 T'LT 5'9¢ €'ec STAd

(Dav) snsua) Ajleq a8euany - UyeaH |esoineyag uanedu)

08y 134 ov 6€ LE ev 343 LT 61 314 CE 1S 14 STAd

(senwaaix3 1amo) sased Aading juawade|day jutor Jolein

199



0T jo g a3ed - yimoso

awes T 1aneg :1e2A so1d 0} pasedwod adueuLIOpdd
191 9917 S9'1 €91 9T €9'T 89’1 8917 99’7 8591 89T €91 9'1T STAd
191 09’1 S9'17 €9'T ST 9G'1 €91 91 09T €91 S9'T 9TAd

(anuanay di/enusaay |e10]) Jo1oe4 paisnipy DNDL

sase) A1agung pea uadp

s | T S € v ST 1 N v T g 9 v STAS

1 €C (44 4" ST 1T LT 61 [4 61 91 STAd

SUOIIUaAIalU| JeIpJe) Juanedu|

185¢ 861 81¢ 981 80¢ 651 €EC 61 €EC 444 €9¢ E144 STAd

STENEL

200



0T J0 6 99ed - Y18u3a11s jedueuly

%TT'T %19'T- %109 %ZT'T %20'T %TY'T %0L°0 %02'C %66'T %E6'T %Tt0 %ET- %EE'T STAd
%62°C %90°0- %ET'T %LLO- %ES'T- %TE9- %0'€ %00'Z- %89°0- %99°0 %02'T %E0'E 9TAd
SREnREIaLA Al S (5 LA : . - T
/o anuanay 8unjesadQ (e101 Jo % 30¥3 AHIL
160°€S {(TL¥5) vI8'TS £VES 7675 0LES 861% 7€9% 955$ 895$ [4313 (8ves) 89¢€S STAd
¥45'9$ (5919} TEES fozes)  (1T9$) (r8L'19) 5965 (e1s9) (6815) 781$ 719s% 7988 9IM
T3a8pnalqlA “alA | ung  Aew  ady  Jdew g4 uep 38g foN 10 CES iny [rETC s
/2 /o (s9suadx3 J9A0 BNUBA3Y $S3IXF) spuesnoy] ul $ 30T GHIL
00T-SL S'6L L'€8 8'78 978 €8 0LL Q6L 9LL S'6L 61LL 718 1L T'8L STAd
00T-SL 'v8 118 ¥'18 _TT18  9'€8 (%4 08 188 16 8'G8 9'€8 9TAd
: a7 e R T T e e
(d/¥) 219ehed sjunodoy ut sheg DJNDL
75-8y v'6v 7’9y 66V 018 905 905 0'1s 687 o6t 68V S8Y 8'8Y €9 STAd
75-8v 08 v'0S S'6Y 68y LIS T'6b 0Ly €51 LSt LSt L9 9TAd
T ugr, . ' 3@ AoN fmm.m.. G i s Y AR T e
(4/v) a1qen1a0ay sunoday Ul sAe@ JNDL
&
—
UORBWICIU] [BIDURULL)

yBuat
[DI2UDH
LSS aaonvaay o it g o)
e

ailidid
fn

7. e T

it
S’

201



0T 40 0T 28ed - y1duans |eueuly

€'SES v'97$ 8L1% v'ETS ¥'9TS 6'61S Tees 6815 8'81S 6615 1T JATR & STAd
0'8ZS 8'vTS SLTS €925 0'87$ 8TES L'SES 1°9€$ V'EES L'0€S 9TA4
v R e AR SO T dos i A0 TR

01T 18T LT 15T £5T ST €T vZ'T 0z'1 6’1 ST 09'T SS'T STA4
01’1 78T oLt €41 8T 26T S8'1T 50T sT'T 96'T 88'T 9TA4
jeusno) | unfWIE  ABWINLL CEFR T Ny ALL _

e NI LmES.E.l S —— —~ e -|.

UefINIL " 990 WLL AON WIL

POWLL d3STALLT Env AL
uonenaje) Jueuano) adesana) 28iey) paxiy AHIL

509 97’9 68'S LT9 819 69°S 68°'S 879 6€'9 609 109 68°S £€6'S STAd
809 €6'S 98'S £0'9 £€v's LLS 109 1’9 86°S 16'S 509 €19 9TAd
28pNg O (] - ahy P b B 3(] O 0 o b ]

pag paidnaag paisnipy Jad (1usjeainb3 awii-1nd) 319 pled JNIL

%88'S %8Y°'C %vi'0T %9L'S %85°S %Ve'9 %YE'S %169 %lL'9 %LV %LE'S %SL'E %8¢'9 STAS

%CT'S %95 %L6'C %01°C- %85°L %05°C %S59°E %06V %€S5'9 %0C°L 9TAd

T — T o T BT 5 T o : St
W/

%L0'L %ECY

ANUINIY mP‘__«ﬁwn_o |eJ01 JO % v(allg3 QHIL

ZEE'ITS veLs 9ET'ES 079'T$ 165°TS 759'1$ 86v'TS £86'TS 968TS 888'TS 9SY'TS 886% 19L'T$ STAd

€0€°0ZS ¢8L'T1S 0ESTS 610°T$ L6LS (v659) SST'eS 110'TS LSETS LI8'TS 9v0'tS 9TAd

3e3png S - . N SO S A e I B
W/

3 @> p= L = |

FAVvD HITVIH JIDNVAAY

202



i e SR o I Fe SIS 4 | s sk |
2] =

"'i’_' -7-"*_“?_)"“5“-‘!~n.7 W“:l al Center

‘."_ ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

IFOR Y@U

T

Bwldlng Operatung Leases
Month Ending Apr 30, 2016

Base Total Rent
Rate per per current LeaseTerm

Lessor Sq.Ft.| Sq. Ft. month Beginning  Ending Services & Location
Camelot Investments, LLC
5800 Armada Dr., #200 PCP Clinic - Radiance
Carlsbad, CA 92008 Approx 3998 Vista Way, Ste. C
V#15608 6,200 $2.50 |(a) $6,422.31 2/1/2015]  10/31/18|Oceanside, CA 92056
Creek View Medical Assoc
1926 Via Centre Dr. Suite A PCP Clinic - Vista
Vista, CA 92081 Approx 1926 Via Centre Drive, Ste A
V#81981 6,200 $2.50 {(a) 19,672.00 2/1/2015|  10/31/18|Vista, CA
Eflin Investments, LLC
Clancy Medical Group
20136 Elfin Creek Trail PCP Clinic
Escondido, CA 92029 2375 Melrose Dr. Vista
V#82575 3,140 $2.49 7,818.60 12/01/15 12/31/20|Vista, CA 92081
GCO
3621 Vista Way Performance Improvement
Oceanside, CA 92056 3927 Waring Road, Ste.D
#V81473 1.583 $1.50 {(a) 3,398.15 01/01/13|  04/30/16|Oceanside, Ca 92056
Golden Eagle Mgmt
2775 Via De La Valle, Ste 200 Vacant Building
Del Mar, CA 92014 3861 Mission Ave, Ste B25
V#81553 4,307 $0.95 |(a) 6,003.43 05/01/13|  04/30/16{Oceanside, CA 92054
Investors Property Mgmt. Group
c/o Levitt Family Trust OP Physical Therapy
2181 El Camino Real, Ste. 206 OP OT & OP Speech Therapy
Oceanside, Ca 92054 2124 E. El Camino Real, Ste.100
V#81028 5,214 $1.65 |(a) 9,821.55 09/01/12] 08/31/17[Oceanside, Ca 92054
Melrose Plaza Complex, LP
c/o Five K Management, Inc.
P O Box 2522 Outpatient Behavioral Health
La Jolia, CA 92038 510 West Vista Way
V#43849 7,247 $1.22 |(a) 10,101.01 07/01/11]  07/01/16]Vista, Ca 92083
OPS Enterprises, LLC Chemotherapyl/infusion Oncology
3617 Vista Way, Bidg. 5 Center
Oceanside, Ca 92056 3617 Vista Way, Bldg.5
#V81250 4,760 $3.55 j(a) 24,931.00 10/01/12 10/01/22|Oceanside, Ca 92056
Ridgeway/Bradford CALP
DBA: Vista Town Center
PO Box 19068 Vacant Building
Irvine, CA 92663 510 Hacienda Drive Suite 108-A
V#81503 3,307 $1.10 |(a) 4,984.83 10/28/13| 03/03/18)Vista, CA 92081
Tri City Real Estate Holding &
Management Company, LLC Vacant Medical Office Building
4002 Vista Way 4120 Waring Rd
Oceanside, Ca 92056 6,123 $1.37 8,037.03 12/19/11| 12/18/16|Oceanside, Ca 92056
Tri City Real Estate Holding &
Management Company, LLC Vacant Bank Building Property
4002 Vista Way 4000 Vista Way
Oceanside, Ca 92056 4,295 $3.13 12,652.78 01/01/12] 12/31/16|Oceanside, Ca 92056
Tri City Wellness, LLC
6250 El Camino Real Wellness Center
Carlsbad, CA 92009 Approx 6250 El Camino Real
V#80388 87,000 $4.08 |(a)| 239,250.00 07/01/13|  06/30/28|Carlsbad, CA 92009

Total $353,092.69

(a) Total Rent includes Base Rent plus property taxes, association fees, insurance, CAM expenses, etc.

203



= _AQANCED HEALTH CARE

o YOU

Education & Travel Expense

Month Ending 4/30/16
Cost Centers Description Invoice# Amount Vendor# Attendees

7010 MICN CLASS 33116| 1,000.00 31263|RACHAC MUSICH
7420 IAHCSMM CONFERENCE 10516 418.84 78238|MARY DIAMOND
8455 DEVELOPERS CONFERENCE 33016 200.00 16915{CHRIS MIECHOWSKI
8460 PDC SUMMIT CONFERENCE 32516 175.26 81655 |CHRIS MIECHOWSKI
8510 MED ASSETS COST COURSES 40116 517.89 82677|ERNIE MIER
8510 LAWSON GL TRAINING 20455069| 2,400.00 81173 |FINANCE STAFF
8618 IMAGINE SOFTWARE CONFERENCE 33116 307.39 46515 MELISSA NAIL
8620 ACHD LEGISLATIVE CONFERENCE-TRAVEL 33116 295.96 81163 |LAURA MITCHELL
8620 CHA LEGISLATIVE CONFERENCE-TRAVEL 40716 344.61 81515 JAMES DAGOSTINO
8700 HEALTH CONFIDENTIALTY 40616 180.00 15106|MELISSA SANCHEZ
8700 HEALTH CONFIDENTIALTY 406162 180.00 15106 {LEILANI SAGALE
8700 COMPLIANCE INSTITUTE 42616} 2,281.83 71807 |COLLEEN M THOMPSON
8720 HOSPITAL RELICENSING SURVEY 41316 185.00 14365[JAM! PIEARSON
8740 NRP SKILLS 40716 105.00 79144|MARIA A BAILEY
8740 ACUTE STROKE CARE 32316 112.00 55712|HOLLY LUPICA
8740 ACLS RENEWAL 33016 125.00 82670|KATIE YOUNG
8740 ECCU CONFERENCE 41416 150.00 78656 |ANGELA PEREZ
8740 ACLS COURSE 33016 150.00 79011|MARIA CYNTHIA TESTMAN
8740 ACLS COURSE 40716 150.00 81810{MYRNA MARTIN REYES
8740 PCCN REVIEW COURSE 42016 160.00 81825|MARIA CARLOS
8740 ANNUAL BIRTH CONFERENCE 40716 200.00 12303 |YVONNE BERKENKOTTER-ICK
8740 ACLS PROVIDER COURSE 42016 200.00 79370|PAIGE ALLEN
8740 LACTATION COUNSELOR 41416 200.00 79467|LISA BRUGNANO
8740 RNC REVIEW COURSE 42016 200.00 80072|STEPHANIE BENYEBKA
8740 PANIC HEALING COURSES 41416 200.00 81355|SHANNON REXRODE
8740 BOARD CERT ONCOLGY PHARMACY 31716 200.00 82662 {/INOO LEE

**This report shows payments and/or reimbursements to employees and Board Members in the Education
& Travel expense category in excess of $100.00.
**Detailed backup is available from the Finance department upon request.

204



ACHD Annual Conference and Directors meeting
Monterey California. May 2-4

| am a member of the Board of Directors of ACHD. The annual conference is a chance for
board members to learn about the state of health care as it continues to evolve and the waves
of change that continue to increase the complexity of how we do our business. It is also an
opportunity to share experiences and views and take advantage of the opportunity to learn from
and network with colleagues. The goal of the conference was to provide new ideas that will
help board members with the challenges ahead.

There were three exciting topics addressed this year. Last year Gyre Renwick from Goggle
talked to us about opportunities that were available to hospitals. Gyre was the head of Industry
for Healthcare at Goggle for the past 13 years. He was responsible for helping healthcare
clients leverage the full suite of Google products and potential opportunities across all of
Goggles initiatives. He was also responsible for Goggles Grants program focused on helping
non-profits grow through technology. Today he is working on a new venture. He has taken a
job with Lyft a private transportation service that is totally user friendly, cheaper and more
efficient than taxis or busses and most of all safe. When people leave a hospital or emergency
room, transportation is often a problem. Mr Gyre is looking for a hospital who could work with
him and his company to further develop transportation option. It might be interesting for us to
talk to him. North County does not have good transportation options. This might be the answer.

Kelly LIndsey and Jean Hurst gave us a good update on the climate in Sacramento. It was
alarming that our legislators do not know what what special districts do and more important do
not feel they understand how we are accountable for the tax dollars we receive. Given what
Sacramento did to Redevelopment district just a few years ago, it behoves us to start explaining
the unique value that we add to our communities. It is true that most people do not understand
what a hospital district does. Many of our healthcare districts do not even have hospitals. We
have a lot so work to do this year educating our communities and most of all our legislators.
With all the changes in healthcare and the federal governments focus on community health, we
do have a significant value to our communities.

We also heard from Kyle Packham from the California Special Districts Association. ACHD has
been working with special districts to help more people understand the value of all our districts.
There is a lot of value for our organization to join with a larger group. There are over a
thousand special districts. This organization has been working hard to spread the word about
our value. The community needs to know what we are becoming and what a benefit we are.

We also had a good discussion from Eric Brown CEO of California Telehealth Network. CTN
was launched in 2010 and has grown to become the largest consortium of safety newt clinics
and hospitals in California providing broadband and virtual Clare services to rural and medically
underserved communities where. CTN also operates the California Telehealth Resource Center
which provided federally funded technical and programmatic assistance to California healthcare
providers interested in Telehealth adoption or expansion.

| think it was a very good conference, | learned a lot.

Julie NYGAARD

205



Association of California Healthcare Districts
64th Annual Meeting
Monterey, California, May 4-5, 2016

Waves of Change
Oceans of Opportunity

May 4, we heard Gyre Renwick as our luncheon speaker. Mr. Renwick spoke last year when he
was Google exploring healthcare applications, such as Google glasses. This year, Mr. Renwick
is with Lyft and discussed the impact of transportation, specifically the lack of it, on health care.
4.5 million healthcare appoints annually are missed because of transportation issues. Further,
there is $4 billion in the Medicaid budget and $1 million in the Medicare budget for non-
emergency medical transportation.

Mr. Renwick explained that Lyft does extensive background checks (and continues to do them
quarterly) and carries liability insurance (in addition to the driver's mandated insurance) and that
Lyft can be as much as 35% less than a conventional taxi. He described an affiliation in New
York with a medical transport company that receives reimbursement.

Lyft has a desktop application for pre-scheduling, e.g. dialysis appointments; is working with a
startup to develop interfaces with EMR systems; and has a carpool feature. He also described a
project where Lyft drivers take home health nurses on visits. This is allows the nurse who
would've previously spent time driving and parking the opportunity to complete visit
documentation while being driven to the next visit.

TCHD: We should find out who in the district is specifically providing non-emergency medical
transportation for appointments, including informal networks. Perhaps Lyft can fill in gaps,
however, because Lyft (and Uber) can be construed as being an "end-run" around existing taxi
laws, a cautious approach is warranted.

After lunch, we heard from Marc Finucane of Alvarez and Marsal where he specializes in
academic medical centers. Mr. Finucane's topic was The Healthcare District Advantage in
today's environment--defined populations in an undefined environment. Mr. Finucane pointed
out that hospital districts have defined boundaries and responsibilities and that today's
healthcare environment requires evidence based practice, technology as well as strategic
positioning and governance capability. He also stated that Accountable Care Organizations
(ACO) would become Accountable Care Communities, which brought to my mind the
Settlement House movement of the latter 19th century where the emphasis was on the health of
the then immigrant communities learning about life in the United States.

Mr. Finucane, identified several challenges including: strategic capabilities, community
education, advocacy, governance, physician relationships, and cybersecurity.

May 5, we heard from Eric Brown (who lives in Escondido) from the California TeleHealth
Network which was developed to facilitate care and consultation in rural and underserved areas
by developing and supporting broadband services. The funding for these projects comes from
the Healthcare Connect Fund from the Federal Communications Commission Universal Service

206



Fund and District hospitals are eligible. The Telehealth Network connects rural and underserved
areas, as well as Indian Health Services and to the California Rural Indian Health Board to all
California Academic Medical Centers. Behavioral health, especially for children and adolescents
composes 74% of specialty utilization.

Non-broadband services include cyber security assessments, web-based video conferencing
platforms and equipment.

Over lunch, Kyle Packham from the California Special Districts Association spoke with us about
how to explain a healthcare district to the public.

The last speaker of the conference was Jim Tunney whose topic was Managing the Power of
Change. One of things that struck me was his definition of leadership. Dr. Tunney defined
leadership not as ability but as responsibility. Dr. Tunney spent 40 years as an educator with
many of those years spent with the Los Angeles Unified School District while simultaneously
working as a referee for the National Football League.

Laura Mitchell, RN, BSN, PHN

207



May 7, 2016

Report to the Board

lames J. Dagostino, Chairman of the Board TCHD

American Hospital Association Annual Meeting April 30 through May 5, 2016, Washington DC

| attended the AHA Meeting as well as CHA Legislative Congressional Action Day representing our
district. | participated in the Legislative Day with our colleagues from Sharp, Kindred, Scripps and
Palomar.

On Sunday, May 1 | attended a lecture hosted by James Orlikoff. Mr. Orikoff felt that the consumer was
going to be an issue/disruption in the healthcare system. We were cautioned to incorporate this concept
into our business models and appreciate that consumers were going to be driving medical care as they
are asked to pick up more of the tab for their care. They will have more to say about where they receive
care based on how they assess the value of the care proposed by their doctor.

Later that day participated in the AHA diversity Roundtable. The emphasis was on Medicare’s thoughts
about how ethnicity socioeconomic status plays into the healthcare of seniors. Institutions will need to
demonstrate that they have a plan for this. The conversation centered on the 30 day/90 day
readmissions and a bill HR1343/5688 that is in both houses that is supported by CHA. This bill will more
realistically figure into the mix the socioeconomic and types of patient populations that are most likely
to be readmitted. The bill will make adjustments to the readmission policy which hopefully will be
considered “mare fair” for those institutions that treat these citizens.

Monday, May 2 centered on the legislative environment in Washington. The elections took center stage
but what each of the speakers seems to profess was that if the Republican presidential candidate is
elected it is unclear how the healthcare arena will be effectd. We were fortunate enough to hear from
Chiefs of Staff from key senators about the plethora of Medicare regulations over the next six months.
Many of the staff, more democratic in nature, were aggressively pushing these regulations to cement
the gains in the ACA .

Tuesday May 3, started out with a heartwarming story from Anchor Fox News channel Megan Kelly. Ms.
Kelly’s speech was personal in nature about her mother family and personal responsibility. As we all
know Megan is very charming and talented but her presentation had nothing to do with healthcare
except her Mother was a physiciatric nurse.

I now turn my attention to the California Legislative Action Program which took up most of Tuesday and
Wednesday.

Four bills are on the CHA watch list.

1 HR 2156 (Support) A bill that would sharply curtail the fees and actions of Recovery
Audit Contractors. Most institutions are being unfairly targeted for RAC audits and most

208



are overturned. Our CEQ Steve Dietlin has stated that these audits are costly and most
of the time Tri City overturns the auditor.

2 HR1343/S 688- Hospital Readmission Program (Support) this bill would make
modifications to the readmission program allowing for low socioeconomic status and certain
patient populations that would almost be guaranteed a readmission and therefore would
unfairly penalize hospitals.

3 S 258/HR 169 — (Support) this bill would remove the 96 hour condition of payment
which seems to be more of an impediment to our rural hospitals.

4 Site neutral Payments- Medicare has placed in regulation that new Medicare outpatient
hospital facilities will now be paid at the outpatient surgery or physician rate. This rate is significantly
lower than the present institution rate and may interfere with hospitals creation of outpatient
departments. This has a direct impact on Tri-City as we are working with our physicians to create
outpatient ventures. These type clinics will guarantee that our physicians practice in our community and
allow vehicle to help alleviate the economic startup cost.

5 Congress is being encouraged to not restrict states ability to use provider fees offer vital
to Medi-Cal beneficiaries services. California this is known as the Medi-Cal hospital fee program. Tri-City
take advantage of this program to help gets reimbursed for the disproportionate share of payment
when treating Medi-Cal patients.

The legislative tone in Washington on health care was interesting. It became obvious that our
government does not have enough money to provide the entire healthcare they promised. ACA policy
care will be going up in premiums and copays and the plan to cover these costs ACA patients will come
out of Medicare cuts. CHA has created a graph demonstrating Tri-City Hospital total value of cuts in
Medicare from 2011 2025. (See attached .) Interesting all legislative speakers spoke about cuts and
regulatory changes and all of these actions will would improve guality. The improvement of quality
measures seems to be more regulations and metrics that if not met will cost institution penalties.

Opioid overutilization seems to be a new hot topic and per most of our speakers will be
addressed by our government. It seems that many of the prescriptions are falling into the wrong hands
our citizens are being injured or dying because of this.

It has become quite clear to me that CMS will propose a voluminous amount of regulations that
may or may not improve care. These regulations will cost us more to implement and | believe we can
expect many of these regulations will be tweaked as Medicare’s not quite sure how to decrease costs
and not let the quality of care erode. Because we (Tri City) do not have a dedicated government
relations program Tri-City benefits from their AHA/CHA membership. It seems valuable that someone
from Tri-City continues to monitor legisiation and determine how we need to react when Washington
continues to control healthcare. In discussion with my colleagues from Sharp and Scripps as well as our
sister institution Palomar the government relations people feel that Tri-City is well-informed as our
board has continued to be a conduit for institution for this information.

209



2016 Health Agenda

* Public health supplementals (Zika and Flint)

* Opioid abuse

* Puerto Rico

* Hospital outpatient department fix (HOPD)

* 21t Century Cures with some mandatory funding for NIH
* Mental health bill

* Improving patient safety in the medical device space

Pending Demographic Crisis

Number of People Age 65 o alder, by hﬁe érbup

Milions ol Peop'e
0o

36

Scurce: Congressional Budget Oifvc

5/2/2016

310



Revenue Increases (like in Administration’s Budget)
are Needed to Keep Promises to the Elderly

* Social Security benefits are not excessive. Average elderly
benefit is $16,092 per year

* Replacement rates in Social Security have fallen
< Retirement age increase to 67 is still to be phased in

 Medicare deductibles and copayments are significant. There is
not an out-of-pocket limit, so most beneficiaries have
supplemental (Medigap) coverage

+ Medicaid reimbursement rates are low

+ Medicare expenditures as a percent of GDP have been lowered
by over 2 percentage points by 2040 (per Medicare Trustees
reports)

* Since 2011, spending (mostly discretionary spending) has been
cut by almost $2 trillion over the 2017-26 window

Society needs to confront
demographic changes

Providers and elderly groups need to educate America

+ Has enormous implications for labor force participation, immigration,
and federal and state budgets

* We can keep promises to the elderly while making important public
investments

+ While we need to improve delivery systems and lower costs, spending
on the elderly will increase regardless. We need to address long-term
care and reduce the state burden inherent to Medicaid’s benefit and
funding structures '

Spending is not out of control. We've lowered long-term spending by
10 percentage points. Discretionary spending as a percent of GDP is at
Eisenhower levels

- Demographic bulge will take up 2-3 percentage points of GDP. Solves
our budget deficit.

We must improve Medicare’s capacity to serve the frail elderly. Could a
state launch a model for viable long-term care insurance?

5/2/2016

211



— N

AIFUPIUGS SUIJUY 5, FHJ §13f8 OIUOTU GIHIITYUITILT By P L R R PR TR b L i .
|013p3] O UDHDWIOJUI P21DPAN 103 “SUAWILI) BUNIIGNS 52}0CIOUD Jo E:;E_E%Ea IYLIAdSUH m\““\_. 9107 ‘Atenigad . ) o~
sDY yH) SuoHobal 3y} jo ISP 5] 1Y Y ‘wonopnbas jsod 10 pajpdinuo jio Jo ISi ANSNOYXS VINYOIITVD pouad Juawwo) il sy pasodold g AT o~

D JOU 3JyM ‘35UDY 0] 123/gNS PUD PAJDUIISI 3D 3A0GD PRIOU SAUIAUIN Aiojojnbar ayi :310N ‘

AVIA ONIMOT104 FHL 3AILI3443 33 OL AJVNYEI Nt GITHIVNIG ONV 339W331(0 NI Q350d0dd ATIVIdAL JYV SHOISIAOUG dHO

a8l 38 mztu_m_wu_& feury DTN i SRESS LLOZLE AW Il
aali m.mo m>_=w_mmu3m leuld S At E.E—__E_______—E—_—_E__E—R “
8_,“,23 an3j53 3 3Ny [euld : [ e At _E__E__E__EE__EEE__H._

aatiaieq anmana = 1 | . D i Bl S P SIS, 121 L0 1) WY H L 115V SN 0.0 U hﬁmﬁﬁ_&_ﬂ_
cmpmmﬁn CULRENE R B AR Vi _. ! . : Ao & ! : A0 r-.m.hﬁw;m&ﬁn_

aaLia1eq a3 a3 E«;Ei.—ﬂ._

agl Meg:anyl ._u | R ) S
as1 areaammaya [l _ DRI

@glia1eq andaa

ggiialed aanIayl
agglisred anpaya

aglia1ea a3yl
40> mmuzcuuﬁ_mxm AINIDHIWY i uwx %

Qgliaieq anNIay3

ZO.h(n._u_hu_<n_ 10 wZO_._._QZOU m&(U.QuS.

s _ | |

43 mm— _ __an%__s_a_

I Al S [T oz T

R S | CERINIER izrozollIE

b — z_m__ it _mﬁ@axnm@_______a_

o —0 p

/3. B " ___ﬁmmmﬁ%__a__ﬁ_ _ _

37 A R 1Tz oz T OO

. L Al | ﬁ__ﬁaﬁﬁﬁu______% aq_

'3~ S | oy | A .________n._ “

—— Lu_?%_w:‘mgﬁaﬁﬁ
Sdd 3dVIIAQIW

[ a N 0 S v

[ (
[L0Z 91L0¢ Si-LI

O .....v. NACIDNON S VLI SIOHEVA NGO . WA

- t_,,,,.___zow__>2m AJOLY TN DAY X




ajny jo Ayjebay

uol)njosay {eroiddesig
saujuialag 1no)

uo s3jop ssaibuo) =1 N . e _

1 133443 sDHIVL 310y

abuajjey jebal

MIADY _mco_mmwha_._OU 4

110y 1VNI4 40 NolLvdIT1and

4

ajny [euld yelg
0 MI{ASY WO

4.

awpedag/Ausby upim ajny
Jeutd 3jesq jo jeaosddy/majaay

+

AN jeuld 1eig jo Juaudogasa
/siuaisn) 03 asuedsay

FEERe LT

el =~

“ DNDIVWIINY G35040Yd
joMON jo voneMand -

3jny jesodoid Jeia
JO MIIN3Y WO

‘7

juawyedaq/Auaby
ungim 3Ny [esodoig 1eiq
Jo jeaorddy/mainay

4.

a|ny pasodold 1yeiq
sdojpaag Auaby

?jny jo 3duenssj 3Ny 30 3duenss|
—r butzisoyiny buinnbay

Y 31n1VIS SISSVd SSTUDNO)

JuaA3 Buneisiug

$SA)0AJ DNIIVWITNY Tvaiai]

Ty LE-88P-707
610jeydsoyjer@premoyi

e NOILVIDOSSY
889Y-88Y-70T _._ <-—. _ & m o :
B1o°jendsoyjer@ajaare YVINYOI11VD

siejjy Ajoje|nbay |esopad Juapisald A
ajaay essAly
Andeq buisinN pajys
uejd Yy eaH paiiend
wa)shs JuawAhed aaradsold
a|npayds 334 uenisiyd
Apap|a ayy Joj ase) anIsnPul-|V Jo sweiboid
wi3)sAs Juawhed aanpadsold Juaneding
weiboid sbuines paseys azedlpaw
wa)sAs juawAed 2AURIU| paseg-1dW
suoneziuebig ale) pabeuew
1PV uonjezuoyIneay diH) pue ssany edpanw
abejueapy alenpaw
|e)dsoH 2i1e) 3yny wia)-buol
Aypey voneyjiqeyay juanedul
wajsis Juawded aanadsold yuaniedu|
Anped oumeiydAsd yuanedu)
PV Ajigeiunody pue Ajjige}sod aruesnsu) yyeay
B3 [BISI4 |eJapad
aseasiq [euay abejs pu3l
Axuaby uondajold |eIuUaWUONAU]
1ea), lepuaje)
uonediyied jo suonpuo)
3Inpayas 324 Asojesoqet fenul])
uejd URINSY] Y}|eaH S,uaJpjiy)
|endsoH ssa3y |eani)
J21u3) A1abins Alojenquiy
S|9pow JuawAed aAneusal|y
sue|d 11jouag aAneuRNY

WiV/i

i

NS
dHbd
Sdd
Sid
dvd
Sdd0
dSSW
SdIW
SOOW
ViYW
VYW
HOI1
Eh |
Sddl
idl
VVdIH
Add
aJds3
vdi
A)
do)
SiD
dIH)
HY)
Jsv
SWdV
sdav

A4VSSOTD

213



viotl

uoNeIossY |eldsoH eluJofjed ayl

‘MOJaq paquiIsap si SISAIDUD Sty ul UMoys In3 Yoo3 ‘SIOZ Jo 1Y

1a6png uosiLDd)g 3yl fo £09 U0NIAS Wo.f Builnsal snd puo xapui abom D310 a3y} abuoyd o} sjpsodoad so yans ‘SISADUD iy} Ul PAPNIUI JOU 3D LOIIDIAPISUOD J3pun SN puo sn3
pa100u3 awos ‘D10p fo 320 3y} 03 anQ "SIDIA JUIIAI U pasodoud sin3 solow ay3 Jo (D1an3s SO [|am SO OTOZ IUIS PBIIOUS $1NI tofow 3y3 apnu SISADUD SIYT U UMmoys s1oodwi 3y |
(s€$)

e -~ logs)

(s23)

-~ {0z8)

e e (TS)

suol|jiN

(01$)

1

]
4

(s$)

| e e— Ow

[41074 T10¢ 010¢

S¢0T vzoc €¢0¢ ceoe 120t 0cot 6T0C 8T0C LT0C 910¢ ST0C 141014 €T0¢C

‘auminf 3yl ui pajuawadwir aq Abwi/jjim 103 SINI SO [|aM SO ‘9107 01
Jond 123ffa oaur 3nd s3n2 anadsold/iuaunwiad Jo s1aaffa papunoduios ayy apnjaul Sz0Z-9T0Z 10f umoys sapwiisy pajuawaduwl
u3aq Appalip anny 1oy} sind Aio1onbai pup annpysiba) Bulisixa jjo apnjaul STOZ-0T0C 10§ umoys sapwiils3 "Sz0z-910Z puo
ST0Z-0T0Z :SMOPUIM OM] 0QU] palDn1Dd3s 24 s120dw *140das AIDWIWNS 3Y] Ul SIDLWHIS3 3Y] UO [IDISP [DUOCIPPD Sapiaoad 110dau siy )

1214351Q 3402Y3[DAH A1D-1i]

UOIEJDPISUOD JBPUN SIND 77 SIND PAJILUT JO anjeA pajewiis]

sisAjeuy 1n) a4edIpa|Al 1eIA-9T

Ry 10} sjo0)

LNSVIVA AL,
<=uﬁ\k

<
910¢ \aZm:



Lo
uo(1RI20SSY |BNdSOH elulojljed 3yl vijoE 9107 >»...m.2_

-g|npayas 93} ueisAyd aiedlpapy ay3 Japun sueiaisAyd o3 papiaoad [9A3] JuawAed ay3 1e (SDdV 99) SIS juailedino uleas 1oy sjeydsoy o1 suawied
dea 03 £10z wouy uondo Adjjod JVdP3aIA e $1I3}3a4 1edwi sy :(uondo Adljod DydpPaiAl :934n0S) SBIIAIDS paja8ie] Joy uonezijenb3 JuswAed ueNsAyd/ado -
*3|INPayYos avy uedisAyd a4ealpan 3yl 1apun sueisAyd 03 papinoad [3as] JuawAed ayy 1e SADIAIDS (W/3) uswadeuew pue uonen|eas juanedino Joj sjendsoy

03 JuswAed dea 03 TTOC WOJ Adijod panoidde-asnoH 'S'M Y3 s13j3a4 1oedwi siy( {QEIE "Y’H :324N0S) S3AIIS /T 10} uofjezijenb3 JuawAed uedisAyd/ado -

TUONEIapISUO) J9pUf I UOREZI[END] JuatliAed Juaiteding
*133j2913Y) Ajjlenuue pajepdn ‘00z Ul siuapisal 0} pled Aejes adelane |BUOIIRU 3U) JO %0ZT O} JUBWASINGUIIR) (3noa)
e21pa J3eNpEIS 12317 S[eNdsoy Buiyaeal Jjwij 03 UOIIePUILILLGI3L 3y} s193424 J2edW) Sy (uoisSiWWo?) s3pMog-uosdwis :924n0s) sIND JNOQA -
%01 Ag Juaulasinquiial JN| 3INPIJ 03 UOIIEPUILILLIOIAL BY3 SIIB|I3) edun siy| :(328png |eRUAPIS3ld £TOC Add :334n0S) SIND JN -
‘UoneIapisuo) Japun sand IINOA/INL
:2pNjPU| UOIIRIBPISUOD JBPUN SIND DIBJIPBIA [RUOINPPY (b)

uogeanpd |
"sjeydsoy Sddl 40}

('siseq |euonieu e uo jeninau 123png s) weadoud dga ayL) “wesdoad uoidnpal

(DVH) suonpuod pasnboe-jeydsoy ayj pue ‘(dyy) wesSo.d uononpas suoissiwpeas ‘(dgA) Suiseydind paseq-anjen :stioyal juswaAed paseq-Ayjenb Aojepuew €

ayj 03 pajejas syjuawisnipe juawAed (Sddl) WalsAS JuswAed anildadsold juanedu) ay) 19834 syoedu asay) :(Y4aD) wiosay JuswAed paseq AjjenD palepue-yoy -
:SapN(U| Wioyay JuswAed paseq-Ayen (g)

"SddO Japun $301A135 qe| Utead 104 Aed 0} YIYs HTOZ AD 3Y) Ul uoiie|najed Ayjennau 198png Joud e

JO UOIIBWIIS3I3A0 UE J0) 1931102 03 13PIO0 U] 9TOT Add J0IDB) UOISIBAUDD SddO SY3 03 UORINP3. %0°C SIND $393|434 1oedW SIY |} :Juawisnipy uonepjuj Suidexded Sddo -

"6T0T ‘T 4890320 smofjo4 1ey) pouad Sullodal

1502 1xau s,|endsoy e jo Sutuuigaq ay3 1e sues Juawisnipe siy) ‘Juawisnipe [B1INaU-a)s 3y} Aq paidaje sased 10j d1el PIEPUBIS HDLT 2yl pue walp Jad Sdd| ay3 Jo

puajq 0S/0S [eUOISURIY € S{ 313U /TOT PUB 9TOTZ Add 104 "Junowe Sddl Waip 13d 10 1502 3Y3 0 %00T 40 49moj| 3y} pied aq ||Im sjeyidsoy ‘sased yans uj "Sdd HILT 34}

Japun juawdAed 104 9|q13148 pawiaap Ja3U0| OU SBSEI UleL3d 0} suawisnipe JuawAed |einau ays Ajdde 0y uoisPap ,SIND 40 1edwy 3y L Judawisnipy |BJINaN-9US HI11 -

*.3NY WYBUPIA-T,, 3YI YILM PIIBIIOSSE SUOISSILUPE Juliedul pasealaul

03 anp sanjpuadxa Sddi Ul YIMmo.5 19510 03 J3pJo Ul SN Aq pajuawa|du a1ed (e43pa) Sddl 3Y3 01 Juawisnipe %z°0- 2y} $193(334 9edwil iYL :39SHO ajny WBIUpIN-T -

"s3yS1am 9YyQ 10/puUe SDYQ M3U 0] Uollsuel) ay) 01 Aj9jos anp sjuawAed ssoud u)

saseaJoul Joj dnodal 0} pajuawaidull 213M eyl d)eJ |e1apaj/unowe piepuels 3yj 03 syuswisnipe [enuue ay} 13344 syoedwy asay ) :sjuawisnipy Suipo) Atojengday -
:apn)pu| sn) asedipay AlojenSay payeu] (z)

‘WHIVIN AQ patuawa|dwi Se ‘§TOZ Add4 Ul saipuade yijeay awoy pue ‘salijiaey duisinu paj|iys

‘sjepdsoy aJed wJal-Juo) ‘sanyioe) uoneNgeyss Jusiiedul 104 s1epdn 13)SEGIMIEW UO %0'T JO ded e 51I9)43) 1edwi siy L ded 19)seqiadie 33ndy-150d YHIVIN -

“YHLY 01 8NP 8TOT Add Ul 9A19231 01 219m s|endsoy Jey) aSeaIdUl %z € U3 JO N3}l Ul PRI1IBUS Sem 3Sealaul siyL “(sjendsoy Juanedu) Jead 1ad %50

1B (£20Z-8T0Z Ad4) pouiad Jeal-g e 19A0 Juawa|dw Isnw SIND 1BY) sasealdul Suipod aanaadsold pazuoyine-STOZ 40 (VHIVIN) 19y uollezuoyineay diH) pue ssaxy

aleaipaly ay3 s1aj4au osje 1oedwi syt “(sjendsoy yuanedur) (£10Z-¥T0Z Ad4) pouad ieal-p e 1aA0 Juawajdwi ISNW SIAD 1841 %E"6- 15e3| 1e Buljelo) snd Juauwisnipe

Suipod (3w-3u0) anlIadsoula.l PazIIOYINE-ZTOT JO (VY1Y) 42113y saAedxe | ueduaWy ay) 193|491 1edw siy | ;juawisnipy duipo) aM3122d50413Y Sddi VY1V -

‘5459 03 SSuI11as 1apinoad |je 1oy S1ap peq s|qesinquiial
10} syuawAed a1e21pajA 0} UORINP3I PAZIIOYINE-ZTOZ JO 10V UCIIEI) (Of PUE J31|3Y XBJ SSB|D 3IPPIN 3y} 1923(434 s1oed W 3say] :SIn) JuswAed 1qaQ peg -
‘s)oedull 353Y3 Ul PapN|aul Jou aJe (dDN 3 |BuoIlIpeI | %ST “SA
{euoiyiped] %00T) @8ueyd ASojopoyiaw HSQ 2Y3 03 Aj2|0s anp s)aedwi Jiy1dads [endsoH (08D) 92140 198png |euoissa48uo) a8yl Aq papiaoid aie) pansuiun |euoljeu
ay1 01 sadueyd paidafoid uo paseq Junouwie jood (dJN) JuswAed aies pajesuadulolun [RUOHEU 34} 0} SUOIIINPaI PAJBWISA 3Y) }23|3a4 s1oedwj :SIND HSQ SIENPIN -
‘(520Z - £10¢) pouad JeaA-gT e Joj sjuawAed 21ed1pa [B103 UO UOIIINPRJ 13)53Nbas %0'Z ay3 199)42. 1oedw 3say | 53N uoies3sanbas -
*$3Nd J03oey dlepdn pazioyine-010z 40 (VIV) 13y a4e) sjqepioyy 9yl 1931434 10eduwil 3say | 1N 19)Seqiayen vIv -
:3pnjau| sIn) AIedIpaAl danelsi3a] pajoeu] (1)

1S3I0N



	agenda.packet.may.1
	agenda.packet.May.2

